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3M COMPANY
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
PART |

Item 1. Business.

3M Company was incorporated in 1929 under the lafthe State of Delaware to continue operationsibeg 1902.
The Company'’s ticker symbol is MMM. As used heréirg term “3M” or “Company” includes 3M Company aitsl
subsidiaries unless the context indicates othenistinis document, for any references to Notertugh Note 18, refer
to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementem 8.

Available Information

The SEC maintains a website that contains repontsy and information statements, and other infdiomaregarding
issuers, including the Company, that file electrtaity with the SEC. The public can obtain any doeunts that the
Company files with the SEC at http://www.sec.gokeTTompany files annual reports, quarterly repgrisxy
statements and other documents with the Secuatid€Exchange Commission (SEC) under the SecuEtiebange Act
of 1934 (Exchange Act). The public may read andyaogpy materials that the Company files with the SE@e SEC's
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wagshim D.C. 20549. The public may obtain informat@mnthe
operation of the Public Reference Room by calllmg$EC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

3M also makes available free of charge througlvébsite (http://investors.3M.com) the Company'’s AalnrReport on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, CuriReports on Form 8-K, and, if applicable, amendmemnmthose
reports filed or furnished pursuant to the Exchafigeas soon as reasonably practicable after thrapaoy
electronically files such material with, or furneshit to, the SEC.

General

3M is a diversified technology company with a glop@sence in the following businesses: IndustBalfety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@oadsumer. 3M is among the leading manufacturepsaducts for
many of the markets it serves. Most 3M productslive expertise in product development, manufactuand
marketing, and are subject to competition from pitsl manufactured and sold by other technologicailnted
companies.

At December 31, 2016, the Company employed 91,88plp (full-time equivalents), with 35,745 employedhe
United States and 55,839 employed internationally.

Business Segments

As described in Notes 3 and 16, effective in th&t fijuarter of 2016, the Company changed its basisegment
reporting in its continuing effort to improve thiigament of its businesses around markets and st Business
segment information presented herein reflectsrttpact of these changes for all periods presented.

3M manages its operations in five business segmkmnisstrial; Safety and Graphics; Health CarerEtmics and
Energy; and Consumer. 3M’s five business segmeing bogether common or related 3M technologieba@eing the
development of innovative products and servicesmodiding for efficient sharing of business resms. Financial
information and other disclosures relating to 3ksiness segments and operations in major geograpgas are
provided in the Notes to Consolidated FinanciateSteents.

Industrial BusinessThe Industrial segment serves a broad range dfetegrsuch as automotive original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) and automotive aftermarket (dtdy shops and retail), electronics, appliancpepand printing,
packaging, food and beverage, and constructiomusinidl products include tapes, a wide varietyaxted, non-woven
and bonded abrasives, adhesives, advanced ceraesdants, specialty materials, separation andigation products,
closure systems for personal hygiene products,ssicosystems products, and components and prothattare used in



the manufacture, repair and maintenance of autematiarine, aircraft and specialty vehicles. 3MlI& a leading
global supplier of precision grinding technologyweg customers in the area of hard-to-grind pieaispplications in
industrial, automotive, aircraft and cutting tod#1 develops and produces advanced technical cesdion demanding
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industrieg\ugust 2015, 3M
acquired assets and liabilities associated witlygwk International, Inc.’s Separations Media beis#n a leading
provider of microporous membranes and modulesiltoatfon in the life sciences, industrial and sip#ty segments. In
the first quarter of 2016, 3M sold the assetsopiessurized polyurethane foam adhesives busiaedsn October
2016 sold the assets of its adhesive-backed temppratective films business (both discussed furthéNote 2).

Major industrial products include vinyl, polyestésil and specialty industrial tapes and adhesigesitch® Masking
Tape, Scotch® Filament Tape and Scotch® Packagipg Tpackaging equipment; 3M™ VHB™ Bonding Tapes;
conductive, low surface energy, sealants, hot rapiay and structural adhesives; reclosable fasteladel materials
for durable goods; coated, nonwoven and microstradtsurface finishing and grinding abrasives fierindustrial
market; a comprehensive line of filtration producisthe separation, clarification and purificatioffluids and gases;
and fluoroelastomers for seals, tubes and gasketsgines.

Major industrial products used in the transportatimlustry include insulation components, includiffgnsulate ™
Acoustic Insulation and components for cabin noéskiction and catalytic converters; functional dedorative
graphics; abrasion-resistant films; adhesivesasesi masking tapes; fasteners and tapes for attpohmeplates, trim,
moldings, interior panels and carpeting; coateawaven and microstructured finishing and grindibgasives;
structural adhesives; and other specialty matefiialaddition, 3M provides paint finishing and dia products,
including a complete system of cleaners, dresspgjsshes, waxes and other products.

Safety and Graphics Busine3$ie Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad odmgarkets that increase the safety,
security and productivity of people, facilities asybtems. Major product offerings include persqmatection products,
such as respiratory, hearing, eye and fall praiactiquipment; traffic safety and security produietsluding border and
civil security solutions; commercial solutions, liting commercial graphics sheeting and systenehijtectural design
solutions for surfaces, and cleaning and protegii@aucts for commercial establishments; and rgo§iranules for
asphalt shingles. In August 2015, 3M acquired @aiafety Group S.A.R.L., a leading global providéfall

protection equipment.

This segment’s products include personal protegifmalucts, such as certain disposable and reussdpé@ators, fall
protection equipment, personal protective equipezad and face protection, body protection, hggsiotection and
protective eyewear, plus reflective materials tratwidely used on apparel, footwear and access@iancing
visibility in low-light situations.

In traffic safety and security, 3M provides refigetsheeting used on highway signs, vehicle licgiates, construction
work-zone devices, trucks and other vehicles, dsal arovides pavement marking systems, in additioglectronic
surveillance products, and films that protect agiadounterfeiting. Traffic safety and security afgovides finger, palm,
face and iris biometric systems for governments,daforcement agencies, and commercial enterpiisesidition to
remote people-monitoring technologies used formafég-monitoring applications. In December 2015, 8Nl Faab
Fabricauto, a French manufacturer of license platelssignage solutions, and in the first quarte2df6 completed the
sale of its library systems business (both disalfisg¢her in Note 2).

Major commercial graphics products include filnrks, and related products used to produce grafdicshicles,
signs and interior surfaces. Other segment produchsde spill-control sorbents; nonwoven abrashagerials for floor
maintenance and commercial cleaning; floor mattamg} natural and color-coated mineral granules$phalt shingles.

Health Care Busines§he Health Care segment serves markets that iachetlical clinics and hospitals,
pharmaceuticals, dental and orthodontic practitignieealth information systems, and food manufaugueind testing.
Products and services provided to these and otagkeats include medical and surgical supplies, bkialth and
infection prevention products, inhalation and tdeerenal drug delivery systems, oral care solutialental and
orthodontic products), health information systears] food safety products. In April 2014, 3M purckdhsll of the
outstanding equity interests of Treo Solutions Lh€adquartered in Troy, New York. Treo SolutiongLik a provider



of data analytics and business intelligence totheate payers and providers. In March 2015, 3M imeduvera
Medical Corp., a manufacturer of health care prtgltiat disinfect and protect devices used for s@#o a patient’s
bloodstream.

In the medical and surgical areas, 3M is a supplienedical tapes, dressings, wound closure pradocthopedic
casting materials, electrodes and stethoscopésfelction prevention, 3M markets a variety of saegidrapes, masks
and preps, as well as sterilization assurance gwripand patient warming solutions designed togarekiypothermia in
surgical settings. Other products include drugveeli systems, such as metered-dose inhalers, #anatiskin patches
and related components. Oral care solutions inaladiratives, adhesives, finishing and polishiragpcts, crowns,
impression materials, preventive sealants, prafessitooth whiteners, prophylaxis and orthodongipleances, as well
as digital workflow solutions to transform traditiel impression and analog processes. In healthnvetion systems,
3M develops and markets computer software for halspdding and data classification, and providéstee consulting
services. 3M provides food safety products thateriafaster and easier for food processors tathesimicrobiological
quality of food.

Electronics and Energy Businesshe Electronics and Energy segment serves customefectronics and energy
markets, including solutions that improve the defaduility, cost-effectiveness, and performance etebnic devices;
electrical products, including infrastructure piiien; telecommunications networks, and power geiem and
distribution.

This segment’s electronics solutions include tlepldly materials and systems business, which pre¥ilies that serve
numerous market segments of the electronic digptiystry. 3M provides distinct products for five rket segments,
including products for: 1) LCD computer monitorslZ}D televisions 3) handheld devices such as @liphones and
tablets 4) notebook PCs and 5) automotive displalys segment also provides desktop and notebowlputer screen
filters that address display light control, privaend glare reduction needs. Major electronics petxlalso include
packaging and interconnection devices; high peréoree fluids and abrasives used in the manufactureroputer
chips, and for cooling electronics and lubricatimgnputer hard disk drives; and high-temperaturedasiplay tapes.
Flexible circuits use electronic packaging andrrtaenection technology, providing more connectimnigss space, and
are used in ink-jet printer cartridges, cell phoaed electronic devices. This segment also incltoiesh systems
products, including touch screens, touch monitans, touch sensor components. In December 2016 oBMlse assets
of its cathode battery technology out-licensingibess (discussed further in Note 2).

This segment’s energy solutions include electyicatucts, including infrastructure protection, telmmmunications, and
renewable energy. This segment serves the worlecsrizal and telecommunications markets, includitegtrical
utilities, electrical construction, maintenance agpair, original equipment manufacturers (OEMlgdemmunications
central office, outside plant and enterprise, alé agaerospace, military, automotive and medicalk®ts, with products
that enable the efficient transmission of electnmaver and speed the delivery of information. Rucid in this segment
include pressure sensitive tapes and resins, ielgldimsulation, a wide array of fiber-optic andpper-based
telecommunications systems for rapid deploymefiitkefti and wireless networks, as well as the 3M™milwum
Conductor Composite Reinforced (ACCR) electricabppcable that increases transmission capacitgXisting power
lines. This segment also includes renewable enswgponent solutions for the solar and wind powdustries, as well
as infrastructure products solutions that providmitipalities both protection and detection solngidor electrical, oil,
natural gas, water, rebar and other infrastruciseets.

Consumer Busines¥he Consumer segment serves markets that inclutuower retail, office retail, office business to
business, home improvement, drug and pharmacy, retai other markets. Products in this segmentidebffice

supply products, stationery products, home imprammproducts (do-it-yourself), home care prodygtstective
material products, certain consumer retail perseafdty products, and consumer health care praducts

Major consumer products include Scotch® brand petsjsuch as Scotch® Magic™ Tape, Scotch® Glue Sficl
Scotch® Cushioned Mailer; Post-it® Products, sueast-it® Flags, Post-it® Note Pads, Post-it® Lialge& Cover-
up Tape, and Post-it® Pop-up Notes and Dispenkersg improvement products, including surface-pragaam and
wood-finishing materials, Command™ Adhesive Progetd Filtrete™ Filters for furnaces and air candirs; home
care products, including Scotch-Brite® Scour P&tstch-Brite® Scrub Sponges, Scotch-Brite® MicrefiZloth



products, O-Cel-O™ Sponges; protective materiatipets, such as Scotchgard™ Fabric Protectors;icerta
maintenance-free respirators; certain consumeit petesonal safety products, including safety gigséiearing
protectors, and 3M Thinsulate™ Insulation, whiclised in jackets, pants, gloves, hats and bodisdp people warm;
Nexcare™ Adhesive Bandages; and ACE® branded @atkd brands) elastic bandage, supports and tineeteo
product lines.

Distribution

3M products are sold through numerous distributibannels, including directly to users and througmerous
wholesalers, retailers, jobbers, distributors agalers in a wide variety of trades in many coustasund the world.
Management believes the confidence of wholesaletailers, jobbers, distributors and dealers in8# its products —
a confidence developed through long associatioh skitlled marketing and sales representatives —bagibuted
significantly to 3M’s position in the marketplacedato its growth.

Research and Patents

Research and product development constitutes aorteng part of 3M’s activities and has been a mdjorer of 3M’s
sales and profit growth. Research, developmentealated expenses totaled $1.735 billion in 20167&3 billion in
2015 and $1.770 billion in 2014. Research and @geént, covering basic scientific research andafi@ication of
scientific advances in the development of new amgroved products and their uses, totaled $1.2261bih 2016,
$1.223 billion in 2015 and $1.193 billion in 20Related expenses primarily include technical suppaernally
developed patent costs, which include costs arslifeeirred to prepare, file, secure and maintatania; amortization
of externally acquired patents and externally awglin-process research and development; and psisss associated
with certain corporate approved investments in R&[Rted ventures, such as equity method effectsrapdirments.

The Company’s products are sold around the wortteumarious trademarks. The Company also ownsploisHicenses
to use, numerous U.S. and foreign patents. The @oyp research and development activities generateady stream
of inventions that are covered by new patents.rieasgpplicable to specific products extend for iragyperiods
according to the date of patent application filoxgpatent grant and the legal term of patentseénviirious countries
where patent protection is obtained. The actuakptmn afforded by a patent, which can vary frauamtry to country,
depends upon the type of patent, the scope obitsrage and the availability of legal remedieshim ¢country.

The Company believes that its patents provide goitant competitive advantage in many of its busses. In general,
no single patent or group of related patents itself essential to the Company as a whole or foadthe Company’s
business segments. The importance of patents il&wotronics and Energy segment is described infoPaance by
Business Segment” — “Electronics and Energy BusihiesPart Il, Item 7, of this Annual Report on Rod0-K.

Raw Materials

In 2016, the Company experienced declining costeifost raw material categories and transportatieh flue largely
to price decreases in crude oil and the derivathemical feedstock markets. This in turn drove y@aiyear cost
decreases in many feedstock categories, includimgleum based materials, minerals, metals and wogzbased
products. To date, the Company is receiving s@fitquantities of all raw materials to meet itssorebly foreseeable
production requirements. It is impossible to prefliture shortages of raw materials or the impagtsuch shortages
would have. 3M has avoided disruption to its maatufiang operations through careful management stie raw
material inventories and development and qualificadf additional supply sources. 3M manages spanegory price
risks through negotiated supply contracts, priadgmtion agreements and commaodity price swaps.

Environmental Law Compliance

3M’s manufacturing operations are affected by matipstate and local environmental laws aroundubed. 3M has
made, and plans to continue making, necessary dkpess for compliance with applicable laws. 3Maiso involved in
remediation actions relating to environmental niatieom past operations at certain sites (reféEtovironmental
Matters and Litigation” in Note 14, Commitments a@aontingencies).



Environmental expenditures relating to existingditians caused by past operations that do not itté to current or
future revenues are expensed. Reserves for liabifior anticipated remediation costs are recoodedn undiscounted
basis when they are probable and reasonably edéngdmerally no later than the completion of fbiisy studies, the
Company’s commitment to a plan of action, or apptdoy regulatory agencies. Environmental expendgdor capital
projects that contribute to current or future ofieres generally are capitalized and depreciated thesr estimated
useful lives.

In 2016, 3M expended about $28 million for capiedjects related to protecting the environmentsTmount excludes
expenditures for remediation actions relating tisting matters caused by past operations that toordribute to
current or future revenues, which are expensedit@axpenditures for environmental purposes hactuded pollution
control devices — such as wastewater treatment ptgsrovements, scrubbers, containment structsasent recovery
units and thermal oxidizers — at new and existamglities constructed or upgraded in the normaksewf business.
Consistent with the Company’s emphasis on envirartaleesponsibility, capital expenditures (othearttor
remediation projects) for known projects are prédgezxpected to be about $70 million over the rexd years for new
or expanded programs to build facilities or modifgnufacturing processes to minimize waste and redogssions.

While the Company cannot predict with certainty fileire costs of such cleanup activities, capixalemditures or
operating costs for environmental compliance, tbenfany does not believe they will have a mateffelcéon its
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive jpmsit

Executive Officers

Following is a list of the executive officers of 3lind their age, present position, the year eldctdioeir present
position and other positions they have held dutiregpast five years. No family relationships eaistong any of the
executive officers named, nor is there any undgsdcarrangement or understanding pursuant to velmgtperson was
selected as an officer. This information is preséni the table below as of the date of the 10kKdi(February 9,
2017).

Year
Elected to
Present
Name Age Present Position Position Other Positions Held During 2012-2016
Inge G. Thulin 63 Chairman of the Board, President ¢ 2012 President and Chief Executive Officer, 2012
Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer, 2011-2012
James L. Bauman 57 Executive Vice President, Electron 2015 Senior Vice President, Business Transformation,
and Energy Business Group Americas, 2015
Senior Vice President, Asia Pacific, 2012-2014
Vice President and General Manager, Optical
Systems Division, 2008-2012
Julie L. Bushman 55 Senior Vice President, Business 2013 Executive Vice President, Safety and Graphics, 2012
Transformation and Informatior 2013
Technology Executive Vice President, Safety, Security and
Protection Services Business, 2011-2012
Joaquin Delgado 56 Executive Vice President, Consurr 2016 Executive Vice President, Health Care Business
Business Group Group 2012-2016
Executive Vice President, Electro and
Communications Business, 2009-2012
Ivan K. Fong 55) Senior Vice President, Legal Affair 2012 General Counsel, U.S. Department of Homeland
and General Counsel Security, 2009-2012
Nicolas C. Gangest. 52 Senior Vice President and Chief 2014 Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief
Financial Officer Accounting Officer, 2011-2014



Executive Officers (continued)

Year
Elected to
Present
Name Age Present Position Position Other Positions Held During 2012-2016
Paul A. Keel a7 Senior Vice President, Supply Che 2014 Managing Director, 3M United Kingdom-Ireland
Region, 2013-2014
Vice President and General Manager, Skin and
Wound Care Division, 2010-2013
Ashish K. Khandpur 49 Senior Vice President, Research 2014 Vice President and General Manager, Personal £
Development, and Chief Division, 2014
Technology Officer Vice President, Research and Development,
Industrial Business Group, 2013
Vice President, Research and Development,
Industrial and Transportation Business, 2012
Jon T. Lindekugel 52 Senior Vice President, Business 2015 Senior Vice President, Business Development, 2014-
Development and Marketing-Sal 2015
President, Health Information Systems Inc., 2008-
2014
Frank R. Little 56 Executive Vice President, Safety a 2013 Vice President and General Manager, Personal £
Graphics Business Group Division, 2013
Vice President and General Manager, Occupational
Health and Environmental Safety Division, 2011-
2012
Marlene M. McGrath 54 Senior Vice President, Human 2012 Vice President, Human Resources, International
Resources Operations, 2010-2012
Kimberly F. Price 57 Senior Vice President, Corporate 2016 Vice President, 3Mgives, 2013-2015
Communications and Enterpris Vice President, Community Affairs, 2012-2013
Services Assistant General Counsel, Office of General
Counsel, 2000-2012
Michael F. Roman 57 Executive Vice President, Industri 2014 Senior Vice President, Business Development, 2013-
Business Group 2014
Vice President and General Manager, Industrial
Adhesives and Tapes Division, 2011-2013
Hak Cheol Shin 59 Executive Vice President, 2011
International Operations
Michael G. Vale 50 Executive Vice President, Health C 2016 Executive Vice President, Consumer Business G

Business Group

2012-2016
Executive Vice President, Consumer and Office
Business, 2011-2012



Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May AffectFuture Results

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Managentis Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditand
Results of Operations” in Item 7, contains forwéydking statements within the meaning of the Pen&écurities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company may atsake forward-looking statements in other repalesl fwith the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in materidisated to shareholders and in press releaseslditian, the
Company’s representatives may from time to time enadal forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futusness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exge@im,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” and other words and terms of similar meaning, tylbyddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

« the Company’s strategy for growth, future reveneesnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other messidir
financial performance, and market position,

» worldwide economic, political, and capital marketsditions, such as interest rates, foreign cusrexchange
rates, financial conditions of our suppliers angtemers, and natural and other disasters or cliofaage
affecting the operations of the Company or our §appand customers,

e new business opportunities, product developmert fature performance or results of current or apited
products,

« the scope, nature or impact of acquisition, stiatatljance and divestiture activities,

< the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

« future levels of indebtedness, common stock reages and capital spending,

« future availability of and access to credit markets

e pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

e asset impairments,

« tax liabilities,

« information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental ahérofaws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events andigréimat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histakresults or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statemenisesteling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includimgpag others, “Management’s Discussion and Analyglsinancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hegdof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liguitg” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part |, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbesidered an integral part of Part Il, ltem 7 giMgement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations.” For additional informatmncerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary niadliiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with theGfrom time to time.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whathelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfaPart 11, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and ckamgy worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and otbentries that are beyond its control, such asel@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widesprea@ssmnary
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conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government deféction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@rpany operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disastedimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&ahiliay and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, aharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atekr regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could ease cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciegtirmly evaluate the Company’s credit profile angigis debt ratings to
3M. This evaluation is based on a number of fagtetsch include financial strength, business andfficial risk, as well
as transparency with rating agencies and timelioéfinancial reporting. 3M currently has an AAedit rating with a
stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and has arcegtlit rating with a stable outlook from Moodyts/estors
Service. In March 2016, Moody’s downgraded 3M’sngffrom Aa3 to Al, revised 3M’s outlook from neiy&tto
stable, and affirmed the Company’s short-term gatihP-1. This ratings action followed 3M’s annoanent of its new
five-year plan for the period 2016 through 202@virich the Company communicated its intent to furitherease
financial leverage. The Company’s credit ratingsehserved to lower 3M’s borrowing costs and famititaccess to a
variety of lenders. The Company’s ongoing transitio a better-optimized capital structure, finanedith additional
low-cost debt, could impact 3M’s credit rating hretfuture. Failure to maintain strong investmeiaidgrratings would
adversely affect the Company’s cost of funding emuld adversely affect liquidity and access to edpharkets.

* The Company’s results are affected by competiomditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsaffected by (i) the development and timingtad tntroduction of
competitive products; (ii) the Company’s resporsddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelsrehiory maintained by customers and the timingust@mer purchases
which may be affected by announced price chandes)ges in the Company’s incentive programs, octistomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, wticly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company'’s abilityetdize projected
growth rates in its sales and earninggecause the Company’s financial statements arendi@ated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reveraegerived from outside the United States, the jg@amy's results
of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.

* The Company'’s growth objectives are largely defsart on the timing and market acceptance of its mi@auct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpssducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asreility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will proveetodmmercially successful.

* The Company'’s future results are subject to flations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaail natural gas and their derivatives, due to shoes, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchandesrigatural disasters and other factofie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aatgg (including oil and natural gas and their datives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss possible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evant® terminated in the future. Any sustainedrintption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could havatarial adverse effect on the Company. In addlitichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canvenghat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piieetdiations or that future price fluctuations oodhges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestiturasd other unusual events resulting from portfolanagement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitganizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
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Company monitors its business portfolio and orgatminal structure and has made and may continoeate
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures elmahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
future results will be affected by the Company’dihto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affecteddf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesntan
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as Laarsima, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiae@¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormmp operational efficiency and productivity, whilbowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficieRluig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phasegulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorilwide basis. There can be no assurance thaf #ie projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busimassformation on a worldwide basis over the resgeral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Gaomgjs information technology infrastructure couldérfere with the
Company'’s operations, compromise information beillogdo the Company and its customers, supplierd,employees,
exposing the Company to liability which could adedy impact the Company’s business and reputaktiotihe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoomagchnology networks and systems, some of whielhm@anaged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store elait information, and to manage or support a ¥@ieé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compealfects and stores certain data, including pegpriy business
information, and may have access to confidentigessonal information in certain of our businegbes is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeimmg@iosed controls. Despite our cybersecurity mess(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup raregqpive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upgtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damadsyuptions or shutdowns due to attack by hacketweaches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, dempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdisdsters or other catastrophic events. It isiples®r such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehperiod, up to and including several years. Whitechave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighese types of threats to the Company’s informatahnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datehad a material impact to the Company. Therelraayther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andastlizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.sch events
could result in legal claims or proceedings, lidpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojerations, and damage
to the Company’s reputation, which could adversélgct the Company’s business. Although the Compaaintains
insurance coverage for various cybersecurity riglexre can be no guarantee that all costs or lassesed will be fully
insured.

* The Company's defined benefit pension and pastreént plans are subject to financial market righst could
adversely impact our result¥he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company's funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Siigaifit changes in market interest rates, decreagés ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets,lavdntdegislative or regulatory changes relatimgéfined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company's funding obliyetiand adversely impact its results of operatimmscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedanipus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrui, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becauseotiieomes of litigation, including regulatory magteare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cwestinmtates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wiagnglicable, or make such estimates for mattergquisly not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as ificagn judicial ruling or judgment, a significaséttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavéeatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have teria adverse effect on the Company’s resultspafrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitéscussion of the legal proceedings involving@mmnpany and the

12



associated accounting estimates, see the discuadiote 14 “Commitments and Contingencies” wittlie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Iltem 2. Properties.

3M’s general offices, corporate research laboraspand certain division laboratories are locate8ti Paul, Minnesota.
The Company operates 81 manufacturing facilitie®drstates. The Company operates 122 manufactanidg
converting facilities in 36 countries outside theitdd States.

3M owns the majority of its physical properties. 3Ndhysical facilities are highly suitable for tharposes for which
they were designed. Because 3M is a global enserpgharacterized by substantial intersegment catiper properties
are often used by multiple business segments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part Il, Item 8, Note 14, “Commitmentsl a
Contingencies,” of this document, and should besared an integral part of Part I, Item 3, “LeBabceedings.”

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Pursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wabk&tReform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Adtig Company
is required to disclose, in connection with the @siit operates, information concerning mine safeilations or other
regulatory matters in its periodic reports filediwihe SEC. For the year 2016, the information eomiog mine safety
violations or other regulatory matters required3ggtion 1503(a) of the Act is included in Exhibit ® this annual
report.
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ediy
Securities.

Equity compensation plans’ information is incorgerhby reference from Part Ill, Item 12, “Secu@ynership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Reélateckholder Matters,” of this document, and stidag
considered an integral part of ltem 5. At Janudry2®17, there were 81,443 shareholders of re@ditk stock is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (NYSE), théc@po Stock Exchange, Inc., and the SWX Swiss ExgbaCash
dividends declared and paid totaled $1.11 per doamach quarter in 2016. Cash dividends declaretpaid totaled
$1.025 per share for each of the second, third feumth quarters of 2015. Cash dividends declanetié fourth quarter
of 2014 included a dividend paid in March 2015 dfoR5 per share. Stock price comparisons follow:

Stock price comparisons (NYSE composite transactia

(Per share amounts) First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter Year

2016 High $ 16750 $ 175.14 $ 18227 $ 180.06 $ 182.27
2016 Low 134.64 163.17 173.51 163.85 134.64
2015 High $ 17050 $ 167.70 $ 15794 $ 160.09 $ 170.50
2015 Low 157.74 153.92 134.00 138.57 134.00

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to suip@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios piad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2014 s3Btiard of Directors authorized the repurchasegdbus12 billion
of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-elishled end date. In February 2016, 3M’s Board akEtors
replaced the Company’s February 2014 repurchasggrowith a new repurchase program. This new progra
authorizes the repurchase of up to $10 billionMfs3outstanding common stock, with no pre-estalelisend date.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
(registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchanggct)

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
Total Number of AveragePrice as Part of Publicly

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
under the Plans

Shares Purchased  Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs
Period (1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2016 4,867,20¢ $ 141.70 4,867,01¢ $ 77
February 1-29, 2016 1,593,234 15347 1,590,500 $ 9,756
March 1-31, 2016 1,094,08: $ 162.58 1,091,29¢ $ 9,578
Total January 1-March 31, 2016 7,554,526 147.21 7,548,812 $ 9,578
April 1-30, 2016 1,543,07: $ 167.78 1,538,00¢ $ 9,320
May 1-31, 2016 1,695,626% 167.90 1,695,200 $ 9,036
June 1-30, 2016 1,712,49C $ 169.72 1,712,49C $ 8,745
Total April 1-June 30, 2016 4,951,18% 168.49 4,945,693 $ 8,745
July 1-31, 2016 1,351,737 $ 178.63 1,351,044 $ 8,504
August 1-31, 2016 1,529,161$ 179.33 1,528,801 $ 8,230
September 1-30, 2016 1,416,264 $ 177.68 1,416,264 $ 7,978
Total July 1-September 30, 2016 4,297,162 178.57 4,296,109 $ 7,978
October 1-31, 2016 1,753,25¢ $ 169.12 1,753,25¢ $ 7,682
Novembe 1-30, 2016 2,097,600 171.03 2,097,600 $ 7,323
December 1-31, 2016 1,510,47¢ $ 176.68 1,510,47¢ $ 7,056
Total October 1-December 31, 2016 5,361,3% 171.99 5,361,337 $ 7,056
Total January 1-December 31, 2016 22,164,214 $ 164.04 22,151,951 $ 7,056

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessithed

above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontiétexercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dichuAnnounced plans or programs includes shaneshased
under the Board's authorizations described above.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Years ended December 31:
Net sales $30,109 $30,274 $31,821 $30,871 $29,904
Net income attributable to 3M 5,050 4,833 4,956 4,659 4,444
Per share of 3M common stock:
Net income attributable to 3M — basic 8.35 7.72 7.63 6.83 6.40
Net income attributable to 3M — diluted 8.16 7.58 7.49 6.72 6.32
Cash dividends declared per 3M common share 4.44 3.075 3.59 3.395 2.36
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share 4.44 4.10 3.42 2.54 2.36
At December 31:
Total assets $32,906 $32,883 $31,374 $33,304 $34,006
Long-term debt (excluding portion due within onage
and long-term capital lease obligations 10,723 8,799 6,764 4,367 4,970

Cash dividends declared and paid totaled $1.1%hweme for each quarter in 2016. In 2015, 3M’s BadrDirectors
declared a second, third, and fourth quarter divddef $1.025 per share, which resulted in totat @€45 declared
dividends of $3.075 per share. In December 2014s 8dard of Directors declared a first-quarter 2@hsdend of
$1.025 per share (paid in March 2015), which whagted to second, third, and fourth quarter 2014atedl|dividends
of $0.855 per share, resulted in total year 20daded dividends of $3.59 per share. In Decemb&B28M’s Board of
Directors declared a first-quarter 2014 dividen&@1855 per share (paid in March 2014). This reslul total year
2013 declared dividends of $3.395 per share, v2tB4per share paid in 2013 and the additional3®r share paid
in March 2014. Total assets have been immaterniallised for prior periods as discussed in Noteidnificant
Accounting PoliciesBasis of Presentation
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desgdro
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements witharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in eight sections:

*  Overview

« Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment
« Performance by Geographic Area

«  Critical Accounting Estimates

¢ New Accounting Pronouncements
« Financial Condition and Liquidity

*  Financial Instruments

Forward-looking statements in Item 7 may involhaksi and uncertainties that could cause resultéfeor chaterially
from those projected (refer to the section entitlédutionary Note Concerning Factors That May AffEature Results”
in Item 1 and the risk factors provided in Item fbA discussion of these risks and uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
As described in Note 16, effective in the first gaaof 2016, 3M made a product line reporting @gimvolving two of
its business segments. Segment information preséetein reflects the impact of these changeslif@eaiods
presented. 3M manages its operations in five ojpgrausiness segments: Industrial; Safety and GeapHealth Care;
Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. From a gpbgrgerspective, any references to EMEA referuompe,
Middle East and Africa on a combined basis. Angrefices to “Membrana” refer to the former Sepanatidedia
business acquired by 3M from Polypore in 2015.

Earnings per share (EPS) attributable to 3M commehareholders — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for 2016 compaoe2Dtl5, and 2015
compared to 2014.

Year ended
December 31,
(Earnings per diluted share) 2016 2015
Same period last year $ 758 $ 7.49
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezito:
Operational benefits 0.16 0.42
2015 restructuring charges 0.14 (0.14)
Acquisitions and divestitures 0.14 (0.02
Foreign exchange impacts (0.14) (0.43)
Net interest expense (0.05 (0.02
Income tax rate 0.09 —
Shares of common stock outstanding 0.24 0.28
Current period $ 8.16 $ 7.58

Year 2016 versus Year 2015 EPS:

For total year 2016, net income attributable to8&% $5.050 billion, or $8.16 per diluted share, pamad to $4.833
billion, or $7.58 per diluted share, in 2015, acrgase of 7.7 percent on a per diluted share @pexational benefits
increased earnings, helped by lower defined bepefision and postretirement expenses. Operatienaifits also
included the combination of higher selling prices éower raw material costs, in addition to proditt benefits
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related to the fourth quarter 2015 restructurinigeSe operational benefits were partially offsethgyimpact of flat
organic sales and lower asset utilization. Reatrirag) actions resulted in an after-tax charge o€ddts per diluted
share in 2015, which provided a year-on-year beief016.

Acquisition and divestiture impacts, which are mmad for the first twelve months post-transactietated to the
acquisitions of Membrana and Capital Safety (tqudrter 2015) and Semfinder (September 2016), lmnditestitures
of Polyfoam (first quarter 2016), the library syatebusiness (fourth quarter 2015/first quarter 2046d the license
plate converting business in France (fourth qu&@di5). In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2038) sold the assets of
its protective films business and its cathode batechnology out-licensing business. On a comblresis, these
acquisition/divestiture year-on-year impacts rexiiin a 14 cents per diluted share benefit to agsnper share in 2016,
driven by solid performances from 2015 acquisitiand year-on-year divestiture gains. Refer to Nofer further
discussion of these acquisition/divestiture impacts

Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) decreasedax earnings by approximately $127 millionryea-year in
2016, excluding the impact of foreign currency aeson tax rates. This is equivalent to a yearear-gecrease of 14
cents per diluted share for 2016.

Over the past few years, 3M has taken actionstterbeptimize its capital structure and reducedst of capital by
adding debt. These actions have led to an inciedaterest expense year-on-year in 2016, largaly/td higher average
debt balances.

The income tax rate was 28.3 percent in 2016, hngeaf 0.8 percentage points versus last year.Zll & change in tax
rate was driven by a number of factors as refe@nt®lote 8, including the first quarter 2016 adoptof Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-09 (discussed e Np

Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding in 2@t6ned 3 percent versus last year, which besgefiarnings per
share. The benefits from share repurchases, ngtudnces, were partially offset by the adoptioA®H No. 2016-09,
which increased the calculated number of dilutexteshin 2016.

Refer to the section entitled “Results of Operatfdor further discussion.
Year 2015 versus Year 2014 EPS:

For total year 2015, net income attributable to8&% $4.833 billion, or $7.58 per diluted share, pamad to $4.956
billion, or $7.49 per diluted share, in 2014, acréase of 1.2 percent on a per diluted share @perational benefits
include the combination of selling price increaaed raw material cost decreases, partially offgdtigher
pension/postretirement benefit costs. Restructuaatipns (discussed in Note 4) resulted in an dfteccharge of 14
cents per diluted share. Acquisition and divestiompacts primarily relate to the Capital Safetg Membrana
acquisitions, and the divestitures of the licensgepconverting business in France and substantdlbf the library
systems business. Foreign exchange impacts dedreasgngs per diluted share by approximately 48scgear-on-
year, driven by average year-on-year changes @ignrexchange rates in the Euro of 17 percent,of @2 percent, and
Brazil Real of 30 percent. The income tax rate hegely unchanged year-on-year. Weighted-averdgeedi shares
outstanding in 2015 declined 3.7 percent year-ar-{e& 637.2 million, which increased earnings phrteld share by
approximately 28 cents. Refer to the section edtitResults of Operations” for further discussion.

Fourth-quarter 2016 sales and operating income résu

Fourth-quarter 2016 net income attributable to 3&W1.155 billion, or $1.88 per diluted share, carad to $1.038
billion, or $1.66 per diluted share, in the fougiiiarter of 2015. Fourth-quarter 2016 sales tot&led billion, an
increase of 0.4 percent from the fourth quarte2@if5. Organic-local currency sales increased Iréepé with organic
volume increases of 1.5 percent and higher sefiimges contributing 0.1 percent. Divestitures restlisales by 0.4
percent, which related to the fourth quarter 20416 sf both the license plate converting businegsrance, along with
substantially all of the library systems businéssaddition, in the fourth quarter of 2016, 3M stihé assets of its
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protective films business and its cathode battechiology out-licensing business. Foreign currerenyslation reduced
sales by 0.8 percent year-on-year.

From a business segment perspective, 3M achiewghiorlocal-currency sales growth (which includegamic volume
and selling price impacts) in Industrial, Safetd &raphics, and Health Care, with declines in Eteits and Energy,
and Consumer.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

- Sales increased 4.6 percent in Industrial, witesgrowth led by automotive OEM, advanced materials
separation and purification, and automotive aftekeia Sales declined in aerospace and commercial
transportation.

Sales increased 2.2 percent in Safety and Graphidssales increases in roofing granules, perssafaty, and
commercial solutions. Sales declined in traffiesafind security.

Sales increased 1.3 percent in Health Care, wieis $iacreases in food safety, critical and chraie, drug
delivery systems, and infection prevention. Saksdided slightly in oral care, as this businesgiooied to be
impacted by soft end-market conditions and chammvelntory adjustments. Health information systeiss a
declined due to a slower rate of software instaltest in a tougher market over the past year, alitiga
challenging comparison against last year’s fouttarter.

Sales decreased 0.6 percent in Electronics andyiznglectronics-related sales were flat, with griowt
electronics materials solutions more than offsealolecline in display materials and systems. Tlais an
improvement over recent quarters as end-marketittonsl and channel inventories became more stable.
Energy-related sales declined 2 percent as grawtttlécommunications markets was offset by declimes
electrical markets, and renewable energy. In Deegr®015, 3M exited its backsheet business in rebhlewa
energy, which reduced energy-related organic $8/es5 percent year-on-year.

Sales decreased 0.7 percent in the Consumer bssiegment. Despite channel inventory adjustmeits, 3
posted organic growth in the home improvement, gores health care, and home care businesses. The
stationery and office supplies business, which meast impacted by channel inventory adjustmentdjrobst
year-on-yeatr.

From a geographic area perspective, fourth-quaa&6 organic local-currency sales increased imLati
America/Canada, Asia Pacific, and the United Stadeganic local-currency sales declined in EMEA.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales in Latin America/Canada increased 4.1 per8dhsaw growth in four of its five business segiseted
by Health Care. Sales in Mexico increased 10 pér&anada was up 3 percent and Brazil increasestcept.

e Sales in Asia Pacific increased 2.4 percent, leHéglth Care and Consumer. This growth was partidfset
by a decline in Electronics and Energy. Within AB&cific, sales increased 6 percent in China/Hooggdl and
increased 3 percent in Japan. Excluding our eleitiserelated businesses, China/Hong Kong was ygetdent
and Japan grew 2 percent.

e Organic local-currency sales in the United Statesciased 1.2 percent, led by Industrial, Healtle Cand
Safety and Graphics.

e Organic local-currency sales in EMEA declined 2edcent. West Europe declined 1 percent, as grawth i
Safety and Graphics, and Industrial, was more tftset by declines in other business groups. CEBRfat
Europe and Middle East Africa declined 6 perceanpacted by ongoing challenges in Saudi Arabia and
Turkey, which 3M expects to persist in the neamter

Operating income in the fourth quarter of 2016 A& percent of sales, compared to 20.5 percesdles in the fourth
quarter of 2015, an increase of 2.2 percentagdgodihe year-on-year comparison related to 201suetsiring charges
increased operating income margins by 1.6 percemats. In addition, lower pension/postretireneemefit costs,
raw material cost decreases, year-on-year divestiains, and productivity benefits improved opaggincome
margins. These benefits were partially offset bgtsgic investments and legal costs, with thesestdiscussed on an
annual basis in the “Operating income margin” secti
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Year 2016 sales and operating income results:

Sales totaled $30.1 billion, a decrease of 0.5queritom 2015. Organic local-currency sales dedliBd percent, with
organic volumes declines of 0.8 percent largelgetfby selling price increases of 0.7 percent. Asitjions added 1.2
percent to sales, while divestitures reduced dajds4 percent. Foreign currency translation redwsades by 1.2
percent year-on-year.

From a business segment perspective, organic tacadncy sales increased 3.5 percent in Health, Qa2epercent in
Safety and Graphics, 1.9 percent in Consumer, ard flat in Industrial, while sales declined 7.5qaat in Electronics
and Energy. From a geographic area perspectivés @@hanic local-currency sales grew 3.7 percehaiim
America/Canada, 0.5 percent in the United Statdsp@rcent in EMEA, and declined 2.8 percent ireAzacific. Refer
to the sections entitled “Performance by Businegm&nt” and “Performance by Geographic Area” fatitohal
detalil.

Operating income in 2016 was 24.0 percent of sat@spared to 22.9 percent of sales in 2015, arase of 1.1
percentage points. Restructuring actions resuttedpre-tax charge of $114 million in 2015, whichypded a year-on-
year benefit in 2016. These results also includbdreefit from the combination of selling price ieases and raw
material cost decreases, plus lower pension/postiment benefit costs. Refer to the section eutitResults of
Operations” for further discussion.

Year 2015 sales and operating income results:

Sales totaled $30.3 billion, a decrease of 4.9gueritom 2014. Organic local-currency sales gre3vdkercent, with
higher organic volumes contributing 0.2 percent selting price increases contributing 1.1 percAnguisitions added
0.8 percent to sales, while divestitures reducézbday 0.2 percent. Foreign currency translatialuced sales by 6.8
percent year-on-year.

From a business segment perspective, organic taradncy sales increased 3.7 percent in Health, Bad¢epercent in
Consumer, 2.4 percent in Safety and Graphics, ahgdrcent in Industrial, while sales declineddebcent in
Electronics and Energy. From a geographic aregpetise, 2015 organic local-currency sales grewp2rtent in the
United States, 1.5 percent in Latin America/Can@dapercent in Asia Pacific, and 0.8 percent inEBMRefer to the
sections entitled “Performance by Business Segnamt™Performance by Geographic Area” for additlatetail.

Operating income in 2015 was 22.9 percent of satmwspared to 22.4 percent of sales in 2014, aeaser of 0.5
percentage points. These results included a bdnatfit the combination of selling price increased eaw material cost
decreases, partially offset by higher pension/gtistment benefit costs and 2015 restructuringgdmrRefer to the
section entitled “Results of Operations” for funtliscussion.
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Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operatingine results by business segment for the yearslddeeember 31,
2016 and 2015. In addition to the discussion belefer to the section entitled “Performance by Bass Segment” and
“Performance by Geographic Area” later in MD&A famore detailed discussion of the sales and inadeséts of the
Company and its respective business segmentsdingCorporate and Unallocated). Refer to NotedrGfiditional
information on business segments, including Eliigmaof Dual Credit.

2016 vs 2015

2016 2015 % change

Net % of Oper. Net % of Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Total Income Sales Total Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $10,313 34.3% $2,376 $10,295 34.0% $2,256 0.2% 5.3%
Safety and Graphics 5,660 18.8% 1,390 5515 182% 1,305 2.6% 6.6%
Health Care 5527 18.4% 1,754 5420 17.9% 1,724 2.0% 1.8%
Electronics and Energy 4,826 16.0% 1,075 5253 174% 1,109 (8.1% (3.1%
Consumer 4,482 149% 1,064 4,422 146% 1,046 1.3% 1.7%
Corporate and Unallocated 9 — % (280 1 —% (355 — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (708)  (2.4)% (156) (632) (2.1)% (139) — —
Total Company $30,109 100.0% $ 7,223 $ 30,274 100.0% $6,946 (0.5% 4.0%

Year ended December 31, 2016
Organic

Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Acquisitions Divestitures Translation chage
Industrial — % 1.6% (0.3% (1.1% 0.2%
Safety and Graphics 29% 4.0% (1.99% 1.7% 2.60
Health Care 3.5% 0.2% — % Q.7% 2.0%
Electronics and Energy (7%) —% —% (0.6)% (8.9
Consumer 1.9% — % — % (0.6% 1.3%
Total Company (0.% 1.2% (0.4)% (1.2)% (0.5

Sales in 2016 decreased 0.5 percent, impactedreigfocurrency translation, which reduced sales.Bypercent.
Organic local-currency sales growth (which includeganic volume and selling price impacts) declifelpercent,
acquisitions added 1.2 percent, and divestiturésaed sales by 0.4 percent. Sales in U.S. dolargased in Safety
and Graphics by 2.6 percent, Health Care by 2.6gmer Consumer by 1.3 percent, and Industrial Byp@rcent, while
sales in Electronics and Energy declined 8.1 peérédinof 3M’s five business segments posted oprgaincome
margins of more than 22 percent in 2016. Worldvagerating income margins for 2016 were 24.0 percampared to
22.9 percent for 2015.

Sales in 2015 decreased 4.9 percent, substaritigigcted by foreign currency translation, whichueetl sales by 6.8
percent. Organic local-currency sales growth (wlncfudes organic volume and selling price impauta$ 1.3 percent,
acquisitions added 0.8 percent, and divestiturésaed sales by 0.2 percent. Sales in U.S. dolkebred in Consumer
by 2.2 percent, Health Care by 2.7 percent, SaetyGraphics by 3.8 percent, and in both Industiadl Electronics
and Energy, sales declined by 6.3 percent. AllM&3ive business segments posted operating incowagins of more
than 21 percent in 2015. Worldwide operating inconaggins for 2015 were 22.9 percent, compared 14 gercent for
2014.

Financial condition:
3M generated $6.7 billion of operating cash flov2G16, an increase of $242 million when compare2ith. This

followed a decrease of $206 million when compa@0d5 to 2014. Refer to the section entitled “FoiahCondition
and Liquidity” later in MD&A for a discussion ofdtns impacting cash flows. In February 2016, 3M'ai8lcof
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Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $ll@biof 3M’s outstanding common stock, which repgd the
Company’s February 2014 repurchase program. Thisgnegram has no pre-established end date. In 206,
Company purchased $3.75 billion of its own stodmpared to purchases of more than $5 billion obvi® stock each
year in 2015 and 2014. The Company expects to paecti2.5 billion to $4.5 billion of its own stoeck2017. In
February 2017, 3M’'s Board of Directors declareds-fluarter 2017 dividend of $1.175 per shardparease of 6
percent. This marked the 59th consecutive yeaividend increases for 3M. 3M’s debt to total calitdio (total
capital defined as debt plus equity) was 53 peraeBecember 31, 2016, 48 percent at Decemberd35B, 2nd 35
percent at December 31, 2014. The Company has arcredit rating, with a stable outlook, from Stardi& Poor’s
and an Al credit rating, with a stable outlooknfrivloody’s Investors Service. The Company genesitgsficant
ongoing cash flow and has proven access to capadtets funding throughout business cycles.

Raw materials:

In 2016, the Company experienced declining costefost raw material categories and transportatieh flue largely
to price decreases in crude oil and the derivathemical feedstock markets. This in turn drove y@ayear cost
decreases in many feedstock categories, includimleum based materials, minerals, metals and wogzbased
products. To date the Company is receiving sufficguantities of all raw materials to meet its mrably foreseeable
production requirements. It is impossible to prediiture shortages of raw materials or the impagtsuch shortages
would have. 3M has avoided disruption to its maatufiang operations through careful management wtiexy raw
material inventories and development and qualificedf additional supply sources. 3M manages spaiegory price
risks through negotiated supply contracts, priaagmtion agreements and commaodity price swaps.

Pension and postretirement defined benefit/contritmn plans:

On a worldwide basis, 3M’s pension and postretimretrpéans were 84 percent funded at year-end 2046 pfimary
U.S. qualified pension plan, which is approximat@8ypercent of the worldwide pension obligations\98 percent
funded and the international pension plans werpe8bent funded. The U.S. non-qualified pension Earot funded
due to tax considerations and other factors. Agdatns in 2016 for the primary U.S. qualified pensplan were 5.8%,
as 3M strategically invests in both growth assatsfaxed income matching assets to manage its flistitus. For the
primary U.S. qualified pension plan, the expectedjtterm rate of return on an annualized basi2@dr7 is 7.25%,
down 0.25% from 2016. The primary U.S. qualifiechgien plan year-end 2016 discount rate was 4.2D%nd.26
percentage points from the year-end 2015 discaitataf 4.47%. The decrease in U.S. discount ratadted in an
increased valuation of the projected benefit oltiiga(PBO). The plan’s funded status decreaseththjign 2016 as the
growth in the PBO increased at a greater ratefttt@plan assets returned in 2016. Additional detadl discussion of
international plan asset returns and discount iatpsovided in Note 11 (Pension and PostretirerBamtefit Plans).

3M expects to contribute approximately $300 milltor8500 million of cash to its global defined bfithgension and
postretirement plans in 2017. The Company doesad a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2017. 3M expects global definedddit pension and postretirement expense in 20&fbKe
settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other) to increase by approximately $7Hioni pre-tax when
compared to 2016. Refer to “Critical AccountingiBsites” within MD&A and Note 11 (Pension and Patteenent
Benefit Plans) for additional information concemmi®M’s pension and post-retirement plans.

Beginning on January 1, 2016, with respect to @eficontribution plans, the Company reduced its matcemployee
401(k) contributions for U.S. employees. Previoublysed on the date the employee was hired, upptof@ligible
compensation was matched in cash at rates of 68%,0f 100%. Beginning in 2016, 5% of eligible comgation is
matched at rates of 45%, 60% or 100%, respectiVédig.reduction in the company’s match reduced 2ixfihed
contribution pension expense by approximately $abom.

Year 2017 announced divestitures:

In December 2016, 3M (Safety and Graphics Busiresspunced that it agreed to sell its identity ngenaent
business. The transaction is expected to closagltine first half of 2017. In January 2017, 3M &wiand Graphics
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Business) sold the assets of its safety prescngj@wear business. The Company expects a preataxof)
approximately $500 million in 2017 as a resulthdde two divestitures. Refer to Note 2 for addalafiscussion.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales:
2016 2015

U.S. Intl. Worldwide U.S. fith Worldwide

Net sales (millions $12,188 $17,921 $30,109 $12,049 $18,225 $30,274
% of worldwide sales 40.5% 59.5% 39.8% 60.2%

Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 0.7% (1.6)% (0.8)% 1.7% (0.5)% 0.2%
Price (0.2 1.2 0.7 0.4 14 1.1
Organic local-currency sales 0.5 (0.4) (0.1) 2.1 0.9 1.3
Acquisitions 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.2 0.5 0.8
Divestitures (0.6) (0.4) (0.4) (0.4) (0.2) (0.2)
Translation — (2.0 (1.2 — (10.7 (6.8
Total sales change 1.2% (1.7)% (0.5)% 2.9% (9.4)% (4.9)%

In 2016, organic local-currency sales declinedp&tcent, with increases of 3.7 percent in Latin AogCanada, 0.5
percent in the United States, and 0.4 percent iEEMvhile Asia Pacific declined 2.8 percent. Orgaloical-currency
sales growth was 0.2 percent across developingetgrand declined 0.3 percent in developed markédsidwide
organic local-currency sales grew 3.5 percent ialtheCare, 2.2 percent in Safety and Graphics,1a@gercent in
Consumer, while sales were flat in Industrial, dedlined 7.5 percent in Electronics and Energy.ulgitjons added 1.2
percent to worldwide growth, while divestituresuedd worldwide growth by 0.4 percent. Foreign cacketranslation
reduced worldwide sales growth by 1.2 percent.

In 2015, organic local-currency sales grew 1.3 @etrovith increases of 2.1 percent in the Uniteatest, 1.5 percent in
Latin America/Canada, 0.9 percent in Asia Pacéiwl 0.8 percent in EMEA. Organic local-currencesajrowth was
1.6 percent across developing markets, and 1.2peirc developed markets. Worldwide organic logakency sales
grew 3.7 percent in Health Care, 3.4 percent insQorer, 2.4 percent in Safety and Graphics, ang&dent in
Industrial, while sales declined 1.5 percent incEfenics and Energy. Acquisitions added 0.8 pertemtorldwide
growth, while divestitures reduced worldwide growth0.2 percent. Foreign currency translation redueorldwide
sales growth by 6.8 percent.

Worldwide selling prices rose by 0.7 percent in@0dnd 1.1 percent in 2015. Selling prices contilouge supported by
technology innovation, which is a key fundamentersgth of the Company, helping to drive uniqueteoer solutions
and an increasing flow of new products.

Refer to the sections entitled “Performance by Bess Segment” and “Performance by Geographic Aeger’ in
MD&A for additional discussion of sales change.

Operating Expenses:

2016 versu: 2015 versu:

(Percent of net sales) 2016 2015 2014 2015 2014
Cost of sales 49.9% 50.9% 51.7% (1.0% (0.8%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20.3 20.4 20.3 (0.1) 0.1
Research, development and related expenses 5.8 5.8 5.6 — 0.2
Operating income 24.0% 22.9% 22.4% 1.1% 0.5%

Defined benefit pension and postretirement expdesecased $305 million in 2016 compared to 201mpawed to an
increase of $165 million in 2015 compared to 204&ar 2015 includes the impact of a first-quartet®20apan pension
curtailment gain of $17 million. Defined benefitrpson and postretirement expense is recorded inoEasles; selling,
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general and administrative expenses (SG&A); angares, development and related expenses (R&D)rRefdote 11
(Pension and Postretirement Plans) for compondmtst@eriodic benefit cost and the assumptionsl tseletermine
net cost.

The Company is investing in business transformatusiness transformation is defined as changpsocesses and
internal/external service delivery across 3M to mtw more efficient business models to improve afpenal efficiency
and productivity, while allowing 3M to serve custers with greater speed and efficiency. This is kthby the
ongoing multi-year phased implementation of anmamise resource planning (ERP) system on a worldvigsis.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, as discussed withenOverview section above, 3M incurred restruatygharges
impacting operating expenses as follows:

(Millions) 2015

Cost of sales 40

Selling, general and administrative expenses 62

Research, development and related expenses 12
Total $ 114

Cost of Sales:
Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineenmyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of net saes}9.9 percent in 2016, a decrease of 1.0 pagemoint from 2015.
Cost of sales as a percent of sales decreased thue ¢ombination of selling price increases andmaaterial cost
decreases, as selling prices increased net sal@g Ipercent and raw material cost deflation waserable by
approximately 3.5 percent year-on-year. In addjtamst of sales as a percent of sales benefited livaver defined
benefit pension and postretirement costs (of whiglortion impacts cost of sales). Fourth quartdi52@structuring
charges also provided a favorable year-on-year eoisgn.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of net sae$50.9 percent in 2015, a decrease of 0.8 pagemoints from
2014. Cost of sales as a percent of sales decrdaseth the combination of selling price increaamed raw material cost
decreases, as selling prices increased net sated percent and raw material cost deflation wasrble by
approximately 3.5 percent year-on-year. In addjtiagher defined benefit pension and postretiremests (of which a
portion impacts cost of sales) and fourth quar@r=2restructuring charges, increased cost of sal@espercent of sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGé&gkyeased $71 million, or 1.2 percent, in 2016nd@mpared to
2015, with 2016 results benefiting from year-onsygigestiture gains (as discussed in Note 2), fpreiurrency
translation, and productivity benefits relatedhe fourth quarter 2015 restructuring. In additiB@G&A benefited from
lower defined benefit pension and postretiremepease. Fourth quarter 2015 restructuring chargespbvided a
favorable year-on-year comparison. SG&A, measused percent of sales, decreased 0.1 percentags po20.3
percent in 2016, compared to 20.4 percent in 28t8,20.3 percent of sales in 2014.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGdgtreased $287 million, or 4.4 percent, in 2018wtompared to
2014. The translation of foreign currencies int&\Hollars reduced SG&A expense, as evidenced bjooeign
currency translation impact which reduced worldwsdées by 6.8 percent. This foreign currency tatitsh benefit was
partially offset by higher defined benefit pensamd postretirement expense and fourth quarter 28stEucturing
charges. SG&A, measured as a percent of salegased 0.1 percentage points to 20.4 percent in, 20hipared to
20.3 percent of sales in 2014.
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Research, Development and Related Expenses:

Research, development and related expenses (R&D¢awed $28 million, or 1.6 percent, in 2016 comgao 2015,
and decreased $7 million, or 0.4 percent, in 20&Bpared to 2014. 3M continued to support its keyngh initiatives,
including more R&D aimed at disruptive innovatiomgrams with the potential to create entirely nearkets and
disrupt existing markets. In addition, 2016 bemwrefifrom lower defined benefit pension and poseat&nt expense,
while 2015, when compared to 2014, had higher ddfimenefit pension and postretirement expense. Réd&asured as
a percent of sales, was 5.8 percent in both 20d&®aa5, and 5.6 percent in 2014.

Operating Income:

3M uses operating income as one of its primaryriass segment performance measurement tools. Refer table
below for a reconciliation of operating income masgfor 2016 versus 2015, and 2015 versus 2014.

Operating income margin:

Year ended
December 31,
(Percent of net sales) 2016 2015
Same period last year 22.9% 22.4%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income margintaue
Selling price and raw material impact 1.0 1.6
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 1.0 (0.5)
2015 restructuring charges 0.4 (0.4
Productivity from restructuring 0.4 —
Strategic investments (0.3 (0.3
Foreign exchange impacts (0.2) —
Acquisitions and divestitures 0.2 (0.2
Organic volume and utilization (1.0) —
Legal and other (0.4 0.3
Current period 24.0% 22.9%

Year 2016 versus Year 2015:

Operating income margins were 24.0 percent in 2@h8pared to 22.9 percent in 2015, an increaselgbédrcentage
points. 3M benefited from the combination of higkeling prices and lower raw material costs, pbwger year-on-year
defined benefit pension and postretirement expéltse 2015 restructuring charges provided a favergbar-on-year
comparison, in addition to productivity benefits2@16 related to the 2015 restructuring actiongjuigitions and
divestitures, which are measured for the first Weehonths post-transaction, had a favorable impaciperating
margins. This included solid performances from kbthCapital Safety and Membrana acquisitionsdtqirarter 2015).
Divestiture impacts are related to the Polyfoamimss (first quarter 2016), the library systemsiess (fourth quarter
2015/first quarter 2016), and the license plateveding business in France (fourth quarter 20I%addition, in the
fourth quarter of 2016, 3M sold the assets ofiitegxtive films business and its cathode batteskirielogy out-
licensing business. Items that reduced operatiognie margins included 2016 strategic investmest8Mitook actions
to better optimize its manufacturing footprint aawtelerated growth investments across its busiseBseeign currency
impacts (net of hedging) also reduced operatingrime margins. Organic volume declines and relatiéidaiton impacts
included the impact of lower asset utilization npairily in the Industrial, and Electronics and Enebgsinesses. The
“legal and other” item in the preceding table retato an unfavorable second quarter 2016 arbitratibng on an
insurance claim, commercial litigation settlememeiated to Andover Healthcare and TransWeb, andiatscfor
respirator mask/asbestos liabilities (all of whixk discussed in Note 14).

Year 2015 versus Year 2014:
Operating income margins were 22.9 percent in 2@8pared to 22.4 percent in 2014, an increasesgbércentage

points. These results included a significant berfiefim the combination of higher selling prices amler raw material
costs, and a benefit from productivity and othemis. These benefits were partially offset by higlefimed benefit
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pension and postretirement benefit costs, 201Buetsting charges, higher strategic investmentd,anguisition and
divestiture impacts. Strategic investments includeemental programs around disruptive R&D and tess
transformation. Acquisition and divestiture impagisnarily relate to the Capital Safety and Memlaracquisitions,

and the divestitures of substantially all of tHediry systems business, along with the license glahverting business in
France.

Interest Expense and Income:

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

Interest expense $ 199 $ 149 $ 142

Interest income (29) (26) (33)
Total $ 170 $ 123 $ 109

Interest Expensdnterest expense increased in 2016 due to hig¥enage debt balances and higher U.S. borrowing
costs. Interest expense increased slightly in 2@h8pared to 2014, despite significantly higher debels, helped by
lower average interest rates.

Capitalized interest related to property, plant agdipment construction in progress is recordeal r@sluction to interest
expense. The amounts shown in the table abovatieneist expense are net of capitalized interestiatamf $10
million, $13 million, and $15 million, in 2016, 26Jand 2014, respectively.

Interest Incomelnterest income was higher in 2016 when compare2DiL5 due to higher average interest rates. lsttere
income in 2015 was lower when compared to 2014tdl@wer average cash/marketable securities batance

Provision for Income Taxes:

(Percent of pre-tax income) 2016 2015 2014
Effective tax rate 28.3% 29.1% 28.9%

The effective tax rate for 2016 was 28.3 percemmared to 29.1 percent in 2015, a decrease gfdd@&ntage points.
The effective tax rate for 2015 was 29.1 percemmared to 28.9 percent in 2014, an increase gié.@entage points.
The changes in the tax rates between years areietbhy many factors, as described further in oiacluding the
2016 adoption of ASU No. 2016-09 (discussed in Ngte

The Company currently expects that its effectivertae for 2017 will be approximately 28 to 29 pt The rate can
vary from quarter to quarter due to discrete itesush as the settlement of income tax audits, @dmimgtax laws and
employee share-based payment accounting; as wedtaging factors, such as the geographic mixiobime before
taxes.

Refer to Note 8 for further discussion of incomeeta

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 8 §$ 8 $ 42

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesgiresents the elimination of the income or logthatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese Thanges in noncontrolling interest amounts hargely related to
Sumitomo 3M Limited (Japan), which was 3M’s mogingiicant consolidated entity with non-3M ownershiferests.
As discussed in Note 6, on September 1, 2014, 3idhased the remaining 25 percent ownership in Sumait3M
Limited, bringing 3M’s ownership to 100 percent.uBheffective September 1, 2014, net income atalida to
noncontrolling interest was significantly reduc&tie primary remaining noncontrolling interest retato 3M India
Limited, of which 3M’s effective ownership is 75rpent.
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Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incoyr&l27 million
and $390 million in 2016 and 2015, respectivelyedhestimates include the effect of translatinditsrisom local
currencies into U.S. dollars; the impact of cursefiactuations on the transfer of goods betweendjdrations in the
United States and abroad; and transaction gaintoasds, including derivative instruments desigioectduce foreign
currency exchange rate risks. 3M estimates thatyeaear derivative and other transaction gairtslasses decreased
pre-tax income by approximately $69 million in 204i&d increased pre-tax income by approximately $a#iton in
2015. Refer to Note 12 in the Consolidated Findri&tatements for additional information concern@i’s hedging
activities.

PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures relating to 3M’s business segmentpareided in Item 1, Business Segments. Financfatimation and
other disclosures are provided in the Notes tdCthesolidated Financial Statements. As describédbie 16, effective
in the first quarter of 2016, 3M made a product lirporting change involving two of its businesgnsents. Business
segment information presented herein reflectsripact of these changes for all periods presentddndnages its
operations in five business segments. The repersgriments are Industrial; Safety and GraphicstiBigics and
Energy; Health Care; and Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five business segments, 3NMyassertain costs to “Corporate and Unallocatedhith is presented
separately in the preceding business segmentsaatlen Note 16. Corporate and Unallocated includeariety of
miscellaneous items, such as corporate investnans gnd losses, certain derivative gains and $pssetain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigatnd environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. pensiook-based compensation) that the Company digtesmot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Becthiseategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterss, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses daatdry $75 million in 2016 when compared to 20M's3efined
benefit pension and postretirement expense allmtad Corporate and Unallocated decreased by $2#8nmin 2016
when compared to 2015. In addition, the portiothef2015 restructuring actions charged to corpdf8& million)
provided a favorable year-on-year comparison. Theseeases were partially offset by an increasegal expenses
related to an unfavorable second quarter 2016ratioih ruling on an insurance claim, commerciajéition settlements
related to Andover Healthcare and TransWeb, andiatxfor respirator mask/asbestos liabilities ¢alvhich are
discussed in Note 14).

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses isedeay $105 million in 2015 when compared to 20Hs increase
was driven by higher defined benefit pension argtnetirement benefit expenses, which increasedtal by $165
million. Of this increase, $153 million was alloedtto Corporate and Unallocated. Increases weoedaigen by fourth
quarter 2015 restructuring charges of $37 millamnjndicated in the below table. Items which pHytiaffset these
increases within Corporate and Unallocated inclurigbler administrative and R&D cost absorption iy five business
segments, resulting in less under-absorbed expmisg allocated to Corporate.
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Operating Business Segments:

Each of 3M’s business segments incurred restruguriharges in the fourth quarter of 2015, as iriditén the
following table.

Restructuring Pre-Tax Charge by Business Segment:

(Millions) Fourth Quarter 2015
Industrial 42
Safety and Graphics 11
Health Care 9
Electronics and Energy 12
Consumer 3
Corporate and Unallocated 37
Total $ 114

Information related to 3M’s business segments és@nted in the tables that follow. Organic locarency sales include
both organic volume impacts plus selling price istpaAcquisition and divestiture impacts, if angg aneasured
separately for the first twelve months post-tratieac Foreign currency translation impacts andltsédes change are
also provided for each business segment. Any nedeeto EMEA relate to Europe, Middle East and dsfion a
combined basis. Any references to “Membrana” refehe former Separations Media business acquiyegibfrom
Polypore in 2015.

The following discusses total year results for 26@fpared to 2015, and also discusses 2015 compmg&d 4, for
each business segment.

Industrial Business (34.3% of consolidated sales):

2016 2015 2014
Sales (millions) $ 10,313 $ 10,295 $ 10,985
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency — % 0.4% 4.9%
Acquisitions 1.6 0.6 —
Divestitures (0.3 — —
Translation (1.2) (7.3) (1.8)
Total sales change 0.2% (6.3% 3.1%
Operating income (millions) $ 2376 $ 2256 $ 2,381
Percent change 5.3% (5.3)% 3.5%
Percent of sales 23.0% 21.9% 21.7%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM) and
automotive aftermarket (auto body shops and retéctronics, appliance, paper and printing, paitig food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productkidetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-wovenkmtled abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyiads, separation and purification productssate systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaisti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @itremd specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirabgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthaarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develaps produces advanced technical ceramics for ddinn
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.
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Year 2016 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $10.3 billion, up Oetgent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency salere flat,
acquisitions added 1.6 percent, divestitures retigeées by 0.3 percent, and foreign currency tediosi reduced sales
by 1.1 percent. The flat organic local-currencysampact reflected the continued economic chadlerig the global
industrial sector. Industrial did rebound in therth quarter of 2016, when it reflected 4.6 peragganic local-currency
sales growth.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales grew in automotive OEM, automotive aftermir&ed separation and purification.
e Sales declined in abrasives, industrial adhesindgapes, and aerospace and commercial transpaortati
e Sales also declined in advanced materials, prigndtie to persistent weakness in the oil and gasrendiets.

e Geographically, sales increased 5 percent in Latierica/Canada and 2 percent in EMEA, while AsiaifRa
declined 1 percent and the United States declinegr@ent.

Acquisitions and divestitures (also discussed iteN®):
* Acquisition sales growth primarily related to theguist 2015 acquisition of Membrana, a leading ptewof
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothilife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme
* 3M completed its sale of the assets of 3M’s prégsdrpolyurethane foam adhesives business (fornkedyvn
as Polyfoam) in January 2016.
« In October 2016, 3M sold the assets of its tempyguantective films business. This business is aiplier of
adhesive-backed temporary protective films usealbnoad range of industries.

Operating income:

e Operating income margins increased by 1.1 percergamts to 23.0 percent, helped by the gain on el
Polyfoam and its temporary protective films bus@esoductivity benefits from fourth quarter 2015
restructuring actions, and lower raw material costs

* The Membrana acquisition had a minimal impact o@rapng income margins.

Year 2015 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $10.3 billion, down §&cent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currendgsancreased 0.4
percent, acquisitions added 0.6 percent, and formigrency translation reduced sales by 7.3 percent

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales growth was led by separation and purificatmmomotive OEM, and aerospace and commercial
transportation, while automotive aftermarket inseghslightly. Sales in industrial adhesives andgagpere flat.
e Sales in advanced materials declined, primarilytdugeakness in the oil and gas market. Salesrizsalte
systems also declined.
* Geographically, sales increased 4 percent in Latherica/Canada, 1 percent in Asia Pacific, and \ilaten
both EMEA and the United States.

Acquisitions:
e Acquisition sales growth related to the August 2@t§uisition of Membrana.
e This business is a provider of microporous memisame modules for filtration in the life scienceslustrial,
and specialty segments. This acquisition enhangks &ore filtration platform and will help generatew
growth opportunities across the company.

Operating income:
*  Operating income margins increased by 0.2 percergamts to 21.9 percent, helped by the combinaifon
lower raw material costs and selective sellingeiicreases.
« Operating income margins were negatively impacte@.4 percentage points due to the $42 million
restructuring charge, plus an additional 0.3 pesgpoints penalty due to the Membrana acquisition
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Safety and Graphics Business (18.8% of consolidadatks):

2016 2015 2014
Sales (millions) $ 5,660 $ 5515 $ 5,732
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 2.2% 2.4% 5.4%
Acquisitions 4.0 2.6 —
Divestitures (1.9 (0.4, —
Translation 1.7) (8.4 (2.7)
Total sales change 2.6% (3.8% 2.7%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,390 $ 1,305 $ 1,296
Percent change 6.6% 0.7% 5.6%
Percent of sales 24.6% 23.7% 22.6%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad cdmgarkets that increase the safety, securitypaoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product aiffigs include personal protection products, suctesgiratory, hearing,
eye and fall protection equipment; traffic safetyg @ecurity products, including border and civdsdty solutions;
commercial solutions, including commercial graptsheeting and systems, architectural design sokifior surfaces,
and cleaning and protection products for commegstdblishments; and roofing granules for aspihatigbes.

Year 2016 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $5.7 billamincrease of 2.6 percent in U.S. dollars. Orgkntal-currency sales
increased 2.2 percent, and foreign currency tréoslaeduced sales by 1.7 percent. AcquisitionseddtlO percent,
while divestitures reduced sales by 1.9 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales growth was led by roofing granules, which dadnsistently strong year.
e Commercial solutions and personal safety also stgesitive growth.
e Sales declined in traffic safety and security.
* Sales increased 4 percent in Latin America/Can&garcent in the United States and 2 percent ia Rsicific,
while sales in EMEA were flat.

Acquisitions and divestitures (also discussed iteNt):
* Acquisition sales growth reflects the acquisitidgrCapital Safety in August 2015. Capital Safetg ieading
global provider of fall protection equipment.
e Inthe fourth quarter of 2015, 3M divested its fise plate converting business in France and sutabaall of
its library systems business. In the first quaofe2016, 3M divested the remainder of the libraygtems
business.

Operating income:
« Operating income totaled $1.4 billion, up 6.6 petce
*  Operating income margins were 24.6 percent of sagapared to 23.7 percent in 2015, benefiting frogher
selling prices and lower raw material costs, pleglpctivity benefits related to fourth quarter 2015
restructuring actions.
« Operating income margins were negatively impactechhrgin dilution related to the Capital Safety
acquisition, and divestiture impacts on margins.
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Year 2015 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $5.5 billdmwn 3.8 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic localrency sales
increased 2.4 percent, and foreign currency tréoslaeduced sales by 8.4 percent. Acquisitionseddi6 percent,
while divestitures reduced sales by 0.4 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by roofing granules, commesailutions, and personal safety, while sales \ilatén
traffic safety and security.
e Sales increased 6 percent in Asia Pacific, 3 peioghe United States, and 2 percent in EMEA, e/iséles
declined 1 percent in Latin America/Canada.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
e Acquisition sales growth reflects the acquisitidrCapital Safety in August 2015. Capital Safetg ieading
global provider of fall protection equipment.
* Inthe fourth quarter of 2015, 3M divested its fise plate converting business in France and sutzdtaill of
its library systems business.

Operating income:
« Operating income in 2015 totaled $1.3 billion, upp percent.
e Operating income margins were 23.7 percent of sateapared to 22.6 percent in 2014.
e Operating income margin improvements were drivehigher selling prices and lower raw material costs
along with productivity.
e Operating income margins penalty from acquisitimas partially offset by a benefit from divestituredich
resulted in a net margin penalty of 0.2 percentagets.

Health Care Business (18.4% of consolidated sales):

2016 2015 2014
Sales (millions) $ 5527 $ 5420 $ 5,572
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 3.5% 3.7% 5.8%
Acquisitions 0.2 0.8 0.4
Translation 1.7, (7.2 1.7
Total sales change 2.0% (2.7)% 4.5%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,754 $ 1,724 % 1,724
Percent change 1.8% — % 3.1%
Percent of sales 31.7% 31.8% 30.9%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadkcal clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalsfaleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sys$e and food manufacturing and testing. Produalssarvices
provided to these and other markets include medisdlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvpntion products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systeme, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products.
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Year 2016 results:

Health Care sales totaled $5.5 billion, an incred<20 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-engy sales increased
3.5 percent, acquisitions added 0.2 percent, amigio currency translation reduced sales by 1.Zquer

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
« Sales growth was broad-based across the entiréhHeate portfolio, led by food safety, critical aclaronic
care, and drug delivery systems.
« On a geographic basis, sales increased 8 percéstarPacific, 7 percent in Latin America/Canadag2cent
in the United States, and 1 percent in EMEA.
« In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 7 percent.
« 3M continues to increase investments across thadases to drive efficient growth into the future.

Acquisitions:
« Acquisition sales growth related to the March 2@uifchase of lvera Medical Corp, a manufacturereatn
care products that disinfect and protect devicesl @isr access into a patient’s bloodstream.

Operating income:
e Operating income increased 1.8 percent to $1.®bill
e Operating income margins were 31.7 percent, conpar81.8 percent in 2015.
e Acquisitions had a minimal impact on operating imeomargins.

Year 2015 results:

Health Care sales totaled $5.4 billion, a decre&fe7 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnog sales increased
3.7 percent, acquisitions added 0.8 percent, amigio currency translation reduced sales by 7.2quer

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was broad-based across much of thehH&are portfolio, including food safety, health
information systems, critical and chronic care] oeae solutions, and infection prevention.
e Sales declined in drug delivery systems.
« On a geographic basis, sales increased 8 percéstarPacific, 6 percent in Latin America/Canadagedcent
in the United States, and 1 percent in EMEA.
« In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 8 percent.

Acquisitions:
* Acquisition sales growth related to the March 2@ufchase of lvera Medical Corp. Ivera is a manuizetof
health care products that disinfect and protecicgswsed for access into a patient’s bloodstream.
< In addition, Treo Solutions LLC, acquired in Ap2id14, provided a year-on-year sales growth bergf#o is a
provider of data analytics and business intelligetachealthcare payers and providers.

Operating income:
e Operating income was flat in dollars at $1.7 biilio
*  Operating income margins were 31.8 percent in 26@&pared to 30.9 percent in 2014, helped by partfo
management actions that contributed to higher priddty and margins.
* Acquisition impacts reduced operating income mardpyn 0.2 percentage points.
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Electronics and Energy Business (16.0% of consotigth sales):

2016 2015 2014
Sales (millions) $ 4,826 $ 5253 % 5,608
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency (7.5% (1.5% 5.2%
Divestitures — (0.8) —
Translation (0.6 (4.0 (1.3
Total sales change (8.1)% (6.3)% 3.9%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,075 $ 1,109 $ 1,122
Percent change (3.1% (1.2% 16.8%
Percent of sales 22.3% 21.1% 20.0%

The Electronics and Energy segment serves custametsctronics and energy markets, including sohg that
improve the dependability, cost-effectiveness, padormance of electronic devices; electrical priguincluding
infrastructure protection; telecommunications nekgpand power generation and distribution. Thignsent's
electronics solutions include optical film solutiofor the electronic display industry; high-perfamae fluids and
abrasives; high-temperature and display tapesbfkexircuits, which use electronic packaging americonnection
technology; and touch systems products. This seisnemergy solutions include pressure sensitivesagnd resins;
electrical insulation; infrastructure products thatvide both protection and detection solutionjde array of fiber-
optic and copper-based telecommunications systentsfenewable energy component solutions for ttee and wind
power industries.

The display materials and systems business profildesthat serve numerous market segments ofldatrenic display
industry. 3M provides distinct products for five rket segments, including products for: 1) LCD cotapumonitors 2)
LCD televisions 3) handheld devices such as celpfimnes and tablets 4) notebook PCs and 5) auierdisplays.
The display materials and systems business incladesnber of different products that are protetigdarious patents
and groups of patents. These patents provide \@atgirels of exclusivity to 3M for a number of symtoducts. As some
of 3M’s multi-layer optical film patents expired the end of 2013 and will expire over several ydhaeseafter, 3M is
seeing more competition in these products. 3M coes to innovate in the area of optical films atebfpatents on its
new technology and products. 3M’s proprietary mantifring technology and know-how also provide apetitive
advantage to 3M independent of its patents.

Year 2016 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $4.8 billdmyn 8.1 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic localreocy sales declined
7.5 percent, and foreign currency translation redwsales by 0.6 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales decreased 10 percent in 3M’s electronicseetlausinesses, with declines in both electroniaterals
solutions and display materials and systems. 3Miwo@s to be impacted by weak end market demarabs.cr
most consumer electronic applications.

e Sales decreased approximately 4 percent in 3aM’sggrelated businesses, with an increase in
telecommunications more than offset by declinesléctrical markets and renewable energy. 3M exited
renewable energy backsheet business in Decembgr @bich contributed to the reduction in energated
sales.

* On a geographic basis, sales declined 1 percdrdtinLatin America/Canada and EMEA, and declined 2
percent in the United States. Sales declined 1depein Asia Pacific, where 3M’s electronics busmes
concentrated.

Divestitures:

* In December 2016, as discussed in Note 2, 3M $aldissets of its cathode battery technology oatdimg
business.
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Operating income:
e Operating income decreased 3.1 percent to $1idrbill
« Operating income margins were 22.3 percent compar2d.1 percent in 2015, as divestiture gains and
productivity benefits from past portfolio and restturing actions benefited results.
* Expenses related to portfolio management actio291®, in addition to lower organic volume, reduced
operating income margins.

Year 2015 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $5.3 billaown 6.3 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic localrency sales declined
1.5 percent, divestitures reduced sales by 0.8pg&rand foreign currency translation reduced daye$.0 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales were flat in 3M’s electronics-related bussiess with growth in electronics materials solutioffset by a
decline in display materials and systems, as 3Meegpced softer conditions in the electronics migrke
« Sales decreased approximately 4 percent in 3M’sggrelated businesses, as telecommunicationgrieksc
markets, and renewable energy all declined.
* On a geographic basis, sales increased 1 perceuntrape, were flat in the United States, and dedlia
percent in Asia Pacific and 3 percent in Latin AivetCanada.

Divestitures:
« 3M completed the sale of its static control businieslanuary 2015.

Operating income:
e Operating income decreased 1.2 percent to $1litrbith 2015.
*  Operating income margins were 21.1 percent compargd.0 percent in 2014, helped by prior yearfpbot
management actions that are contributing to higheductivity.
« Portfolio management actions in 2015 related teweble energy, plus fourth quarter 2015 restruoguri
charges, which combined reduced operating inconmgimsaby 0.8 percentage points.

Consumer Business (14.9% of consolidated sales):

2016 2015 2014
Sales (millions) $ 4,482 $ 4,422 $ 4,523
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 1.9% 3.4% 3.9%
Divestitures — — (0.2)
Translation (0.6 (5.6 (1.8
Total sales change 1.3% (2.2)% 2.0%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,064 $ 1,046 $ 995
Percent change 1.7% 5.2% 5.3%
Percent of sales 23.7% 23.7% 22.0%

The Consumer segment serves markets that inclutgrioter retail, office retail, office business tsingss, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and otheketa. Products in this segment include office $pppoducts,
stationery products, home improvement productsitgourself), home care products, protective matgsroducts,
certain consumer retail personal safety producid,cansumer health care products.

Year 2016 results:
Consumer sales totaled $4.5 billion, up 1.3 peroebtS. dollars. Organic local-currency sales éased 1.9 percent,

and foreign currency translation reduced sales.6y6rcent.
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On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales growth was led by home improvement, in amfditb consumer health care.
« On a geographic basis, sales increased 6 percésiarPacific, and 3 percent in the United Statese flat in
Latin America/Canada, and declined 6 percent in BME

Operating income:
*  Operating income was $1.1 billion, up 1.7 percentnf2015.

e Operating income margins were 23.7 percent in B6@t6 and 2015, benefiting from ongoing productivity
efforts.

Year 2015 results:

Consumer sales totaled $4.4 billion, down 2.2 peroeU.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sales@ased 3.4 percent,
and foreign currency translation reduced sales.8yB8rcent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
« Sales growth was led by home improvement, statioaed office supplies, and home care. 3M also ploste
positive growth in its consumer health care busines
e On a geographic basis, organic local-currency satgsased 5 percent in the United States and &pein
Asia Pacific, while sales in both EMEA and Latin Arica/Canada were flat.
« In developing markets, sales growth was 3 percent.

Operating income:
e Consumer operating income was $1.0 billion, uppetcent from 2014.
* Operating income margins were 23.7 percent, up #8rf percent in 2014.
« The combination of strong organic growth and praigitg continued to drive efficiencies across thissiness.

PERFORMANCE BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

While 3M manages its businesses globally and betiéte business segment results are the most ntlmeasure of
performance, the Company also utilizes geograpieia data as a secondary performance measure. Egpestare
generally reported within the geographic area whigedinal sales to 3M customers are made. A poricthe products
or components sold by 3M’s operations to its custenare exported by these customers to differesgrg@hic areas.
As customers move their operations from one gedigtagrea to another, 3M’s results will follow. Thuret sales in a
particular geographic area are not indicative af-aser consumption in that geographic area. Fimidiormation
related to 3M operations in various geographic@ige@rovided in Note 17.
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A summary of key information and discussion relate8M’s geographic areas follow:

2016
Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide
Net sales (millions) $12,188 $8847 $ 6,163 $2901 $ 10 $ 30,109
% of worldwide sales 40.5% 29.4% 20.5% 9.6% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 0.7% (2.5p6 (0.6)% (2.4% — (0.8)%
Price (0.2 (0.3 1.0 6.1 — 0.7
Organic local-currency sales 0.5 (2.8) 0.4 3.7 — (0.1)
Acquisitions 1.3 0.7 1.7 1.3 — 1.2
Divestitures (0.6) (0.2) (0.7) (0.3 — (0.4)
Translation — 0.2 (2.5 (7.4 — 1.2
Total sales change 1.2% (2.1 (1.1)% (2.7% — (0.5)%
Operating income (millions) $ 2948 $2560 $ 1046 $ 705 $ (36) $ 7,223
Percent change 11.4% (0.8% 2.8% (0.2% — 4.0%

For total year 2016, as shown in the precedingtakbridwide sales declined 0.5 percent, with oigaalume
decreases of 0.8 percent and selling price incseafs@.7 percent. Acquisitions added 1.2 percehtlewdivestitures
reduced sales by 0.4 percent. Foreign currencglaion reduced sales by 1.2 percent. OrganicHogakncy sales
increased 3.7 percent in Latin America/Canadap@rgent in the United States, 0.4 percent in EM&# decreased 2.8
percent in Asia Pacific. For 2016, internationa¢igtions represented 59.5 percent of 3M’s sales.

2015
Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada  Unallocated Worldwide
Net sdes (millions) $12,049 $9,041 $ 6,228 $2,982 $ (26) $30,274
% of worldwide sales 39.8% 29.9% 20.5% 9.8% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 1.7% 0.9% (1.0)% (3.1 — 0.2%
Price 0.4 — 1.8 4.6 — 1.1
Organic local-currency sales 2.1 0.9 0.8 15 — 1.3
Acquisitions 1.2 0.4 0.7 0.7 — 0.8
Divestitures (0.4) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) — (0.2)
Translation — (5.2 (14.9 (16.9 — (6.8
Total sales change 2.9% (4.0%% (13.5)% (14.9%% — (4.9)%
Operating income (millions) $2,647 $2580 $ 1017 $ 706 $ (4) $ 6,946
Percent change 4.2% 3.8% (175% (18.5% — (2.6%

For total year 2015, as shown in the precedingetedalles declined 4.9 percent, with organic volimoeeases of 0.2
percent and selling price increases of 1.1 peréagjuisitions added 0.8 percent, while divestitiexuced sales by 0.2
percent. Foreign currency translation reduced $ale&8 percent. Organic local-currency sales asee 2.1 percent in
the United States, 1.5 percent in Latin AmericadZin 0.9 percent in Asia Pacific, and 0.8 peraeBVEA. For 2015,
international operations represented 60.2 perde3iits sales.
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Geographic Area Supplemental Information

Property, Plant and
Equipment - net

Employees as of December 31, Capital Spending as of December 31,
(Millions, except Employees) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015
United States 35,748 35973 35581 $ 834 $ 936 $ 909 $4,914 $ 4,838
Asia Pacific 18,124 17,642 17,854 228 172 184 1,573 1,647
Europe, Middle East and Africa 20,203 20,563 20,506 294 249 288 1,512 1,531
Latin America and Canada 17,509 15,268 15,859 64 104 112 517 499
Total Company 91,584 89,446 89,800 $1,420 $1,461 $ 1,493 $8,516 $ 8,515

Employment:

Employment increased by 2,138 positions in 2016deateased by 354 positions in 2015. The primartofahat
decreased employment in 2015 related to fourthtqu&015 restructuring actions that impacted appmately 1,700
positions worldwide. The 2015 acquisitions of Ivétadical Corp., Membrana, and Capital Safety GrSup.R.L.
increased 2015 headcount by approximately 2,000iqas.

Capital Spending/Net Property, Plant and Equipment:

Investments in property, plant and equipment englidaith across many diverse markets, helping tat mesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency. Stéipital spending by geography has been led bytiited States
(59% of spending in 2016), followed by Europe, M&#&ast and Africa, Asia Pacific, and Latin Amefcanada. 3M is
continuing to increase its manufacturing and sogrciapability, particularly in developing economiigsorder to more
closely align its product capability with its salasnajor geographic areas. 3M will continue to makvestments in
critical developing markets, such as Brazil, Chiaxico, Panama, Poland, Southeast Asia, and Tutkapital
spending is discussed in more detail later in MDi&Ahe section entitled “Cash Flows from Investhgivities.”

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Information regarding significant accounting padgiis included in Note 1. As stated in Note 1,pgteparation of
financial statements requires management to makeates and assumptions that affect the reportemliata of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses, and relatedadisce of contingent assets and liabilities. Mamaget bases its
estimates on historical experience and on varisgaraptions that are believed to be reasonable theer
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuesssess and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces. Actual results may differ from thesénestes.

The Company believes its most critical accountistingates relate to legal proceedings, the Compamsssion and
postretirement obligations, asset impairments andme taxes. Senior management has discussedvélepiment,
selection and disclosure of its critical account&@sgimates with the Audit Committee of 3M’s Boafdarectors.

Legal Proceedings:

The categories of claims for which the Companyapsobable and estimable liability, the amount®fiability
accruals, and the estimates of its related inserasgeivables are critical accounting estimatetedito legal
proceedings. Please refer to the section entifkedcess for Disclosure and Recording of Liabilia@sl Insurance
Receivables Related to Legal Proceedings” (condaiiméLegal Proceedings” in Note 14) for additiomaflormation
about such estimates.

Pension and Postretirement Obligations:

3M has various company-sponsored retirement plamsring substantially all U.S. employees and manpleyees
outside the United States. The primary U.S. definedefit pension plan was closed to new participaffective
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January 1, 2009. The Company accounts for its ddfirenefit pension and postretirement health gaadife insurance
benefit plans in accordance with Accounting Staddzodification (ASC) 715Compensation — Retirement Benefits
measuring plan assets and benefit obligations mdétermining the amount of net periodic benefgtcASC 715
requires employers to recognize the underfundexerfunded status of a defined benefit pensionostrptirement plan
as an asset or liability in its statement of firahposition and recognize changes in the fundatlistin the year in
which the changes occur through accumulated othapoehensive income, which is a component of stolclkdrs’
equity. While the company believes the valuatiorthods used to determine the fair value of plantasa® appropriate
and consistent with other market participants,ube of different methodologies or assumptions terdgne the fair
value of certain financial instruments could resuld different estimate of fair value at the repay date. See Note 11
for additional discussion of actuarial assumptiosed in determining defined benefit pension andrptiement health
care liabilities and expenses.

Pension benefits associated with these plans aergty based primarily on each participant’s ye#rservice,
compensation, and age at retirement or terminaiiba.benefit obligation represents the presentevafithe benefits
that employees are entitled to in the future fovises already rendered as of the measurement HlaéeCompany
measures the present value of these future bebgfitsojecting benefit payment cash flows for eadhre period and
discounting these cash flows back to the Decemben&surement date, using the yields of a portfuflisigh quality,
fixed-income debt instruments that would producghdéows sufficient in timing and amount to sefitejected future
benefits. Historically, the single aggregated distaate used for each plan’s benefit obligatiors atso used for the
calculation of all net periodic benefit costs, udihg the measurement of the service and inteosts cBeginning in
2016, 3M changed the method used to estimate thizse@nd interest cost components of the net garipension and
other postretirement benefit costs. The new methedsures service cost and interest cost separately the spot yield
curve approach applied to each corresponding digigaService costs are determined based on durapecific spot
rates applied to the service cost cash flows. Mterést cost calculation is determined by applgngation-specific spot
rates to the year-by-year projected benefit paymdrite spot yield curve approach does not affectitbasurement of
the total benefit obligations as the change iniserand interest costs offset in the actuarial gaimd losses recorded in
other comprehensive income. The Company changte:toew method to provide a more precise measuseruvice
and interest costs by improving the correlatiomleetn the projected benefit cash flows and the elisspot yield curve
rates. The Company accounted for this change harge in estimate prospectively beginning in th& fjuarter of
2016.

Using this methodology, the Company determinedatiatrates for its plans as follow:

International
Pension u.s.
U.S. Qualified (weighted Postretirement
Pension average) Medical

December 31, 2016 Liability:

Benefit obligation 4.21% 2.54% 4.08%
2017 Net Periodic Benefit Cost Components:

Service cost 4.44% 2.32% 4.37%

Interest cost 3.62% 2.25% 3.41%

Another significant element in determining the Camgs pension expense in accordance with ASC 7fieigxpected
return on plan assets, which is based on histarégsallts for similar allocations among asset ckdser the primary
U.S. qualified pension plan, the expected long-teata of return on an annualized basis for 2017745%, 0.25% lower
than 2016. Refer to Note 11 for information on hbe 2016 rate was determined. Return on assetmptisns for
international pension and other post-retirementbeplans are calculated on a plan-by-plan basiisgiplan asset
allocations and expected long-term rate of retggumptions. The weighted average expected retuthdo
international pension plan is 5.16% for 2017, coragdo 5.77% for 2016.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Companmgnized total consolidated defined benefit prepnsion and
postretirement expense (after settlements, curgitsy special termination benefits and other) &1$aillion, down
from $556 million in 2015. Defined benefit pensiamd postretirement expense (before settlementsilcoents, special
termination benefits and other) is anticipatechttréase to approximately $325 million in 2017, rmeréase of $74
million compared to 2016.
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The table below summarizes the impact on 2017 peresipense for the U.S. and international pensianspof a 0.25
percentage point increase/decrease in the expleectgderm rate of return on plan assets and dido@ie assumptions
used to measure plan liabilities and 2016 net paribenefit cost. The table assumes all other facice held constant,
including the slope of the discount rate yield @gv

Increase (Decrease) in Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Discount Rate Expected Return on Assets
(Millions) -0.25% +0.25% -0.25% +0.25%
U.S. pension plans $ 31 $ (28 $ 36 $ (36)
International pension plans 23 (29) 14 (14)

Asset Impairments:

As of December 31, 2016, net property, plant andpement totaled $8.5 billion and net identifiabf¢aingible assets
totaled $2.3 billion. Management makes estimatesaasumptions in preparing the consolidated firsstatements for
which actual results will emerge over long perioflime. This includes the recoverability of loriged assets
employed in the business, including assets of aeduiusinesses. These estimates and assumptiocie seky
monitored by management and periodically adjusseciraumstances warrant. For instance, expected kgss may be
shortened or an impairment recorded based on gyeharthe expected use of the asset or performaitte related
asset group.

Of the $2.3 billion in net identifiable intangibéessets, $0.6 billion relates to indefinite-liveadenames, primarily
Capital Safety, whose tradenames ($520 milliorcquisition date) have been in existence for oveyésis (refer to
Note 2 for more detail). The primary valuation teicjue used in estimating the fair value of indeéirived intangible
assets (tradenames) is a discounted cash flow agpr8pecifically, a relief of royalty rate is ajepl to estimated sales,
with the resulting amounts then discounted usingpropriate market/technology discount rate. Efiefrof royalty
rate is the estimated royalty rate a market pawiti would pay to acquire the right to market/pesthe product. If the
resulting discounted cash flows are less than ¢l value of the indefinite lived intangible assetpairment exists,
and the asset value must be written down. Basechpairment testing in the third quarter of 2016 impairment was
indicated. The discounted cash flows related tahgital Safety tradename exceeded its book valuadre than 10
percent.

3M goodwill totaled approximately $9.2 billion as@ecember 31, 2016. 3M’s annual goodwill impairmesting is
performed in the fourth quarter of each year. Impant testing for goodwill is done at a reportimgt level, with all
goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. Reportingtsiare one level below the business segment lbuélcan be
combined when reporting units within the same setdrhave similar economic characteristics. At 3Mparing units
correspond to a division. 3M did not combine anyt®feporting units for impairment testing.

An impairment loss generally would be recognize@mthe carrying amount of the reporting unit's aetets exceeds
the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. Bistimated fair value of a reporting unit is detieed using earnings for
the reporting unit multiplied by a price/earningsio for comparable industry groups, or by usirdisgounted cash flow
analysis. 3M typically uses the price/earningsorapproach for stable and growing businesses thag & long history
and track record of generating positive operatitapime and cash flows. 3M uses the discounted tasrapproach for
start-up, loss position and declining businesseagddition to businesses where the price/earnigtis valuation method
indicates additional review is warranted. 3M alsesidiscounted cash flow as an additional todbfsinesses that may
be growing at a slower rate than planned due to@woé or other conditions.

As described in Note 16, effective in the first gaaof 2016, 3M made a product line reporting @&imvolving two of
its business segments. For any product moveséhatted in reporting unit changes, the Companyiepphe relative
fair value method to determine the impact on godidWithe associated reporting units. During thstfquarter of 2016,
the Company completed its assessment of any patgatdwill impairment for reporting units impacted this new
structure and determined that no impairment existéé discussion that follows relates to the sepdmrth quarter
2016 annual impairment test and is in the contéi@reporting unit structure that existed at tirae.
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As of October 1, 2016, 3M had 26 primary reportimits, with ten reporting units accounting for appmately 86
percent of the goodwill. These ten reporting uniese comprised of the following divisions: Advandddterials,
Communication Markets, Display Materials and Systedealth Information Systems, Industrial Adhesiarad

Tapes, Infection Prevention, Oral Care SolutiorssBnal Safety (which includes the Capital Safeguasition),
Separation and Purification (which includes the Meamna acquisition), and Traffic Safety and Secufitye estimated
fair values for these reporting units were in exoafscarrying value by approximately 35 percentnore, except for one
reporting unit with approximately $250 million obgdwill, where the fair value exceeded the carryialye by
approximately 30 percent. 3M’s market value at ipgitember 31, 2016, and September 30, 2016, wasicimtly in
excess of its shareholders’ equity of approxima$dl§ billion and $12 billion, at December 31, 2@t®l September 30,
2016, respectively.

In 2016, 3M primarily used an industry price-eagsmatio approach, but also used a discountedftass approach for
certain reporting units, to determine fair valuéhere applicable, 3M used a weighted-average digedwcash flow
analysis for certain divisions, using projectedhcéisws that were weighted based on different sgtesvth and terminal
value assumptions, among other factors. The weightias based on management’s estimates of thénbloal of each
scenario occurring.

3M is an integrated materials enterprise, thus nwdr8M’s businesses could not easily be sold otaadsalone basis.
3M’s focus on research and development has resultaghortion of 3M’s value being comprised of m&lly developed
businesses that have no goodwill associated wimttBased on the annual test in the fourth quaft2016, no
goodwill impairment was indicated for any of theoeting units.

Factors which could result in future impairmentrgfess include, among others, changes in worldwide@aic
conditions, changes in competitive conditions amst@mer preferences, and fluctuations in foreigmericy exchange
rates. These risk factors are discussed in ItenfR&k Factors,” of this document. In addition, olgas in the weighted
average cost of capital could also impact impairtnesting results. As indicated above, during iret fjuarter of 2016,
the Company completed its assessment of any pakgaibdwill impairment for reporting units impacted changes
between reporting units and determined that no impnt existed. Long-lived assets with a definite &re reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in cistances indicate that the carrying amount of aatgasset group)
may not be recoverable. If future non-cash asspairment charges are taken, 3M would expect thigtaportion of
the long-lived assets or goodwill would be impair@il will continue to monitor its reporting uniteéasset groups in
2017 for any triggering events or other indicamirgnpairment.

Income Taxes:

The extent of 3M’s operations involves dealing witicertainties and judgments in the applicationarhplex tax
regulations in a multitude of jurisdictions. Thadl taxes paid are dependent upon many factoisidimg) negotiations
with taxing authorities in various jurisdictionsdaresolution of disputes arising from federal, estaind international tax
audits. The Company recognizes potential liabflis&xd records tax liabilities for anticipated taxliaissues in the
United States and other tax jurisdictions basedsoestimate of whether, and the extent to whiclditeonal taxes will
be due. The Company follows guidance provided b A80,Income Taxegegarding uncertainty in income taxes, to
record these liabilities (refer to Note 8 for aduitl information). The Company adjusts these ressein light of
changing facts and circumstances; however, dugetaamplexity of some of these uncertainties, ttimate resolution
may result in a payment that is materially différfeom the Company’s current estimate of the takilities. If the
Company’s estimate of tax liabilities proves toléss than the ultimate assessment, an additioaajelo expense
would result. If payment of these amounts ultimafebves to be less than the recorded amountsetiegsal of the
liabilities would result in tax benefits being remized in the period when the Company determinediabilities are no
longer necessary.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Information regarding new accounting pronounceminitscluded in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinanStatements.

40



In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 201640%rovements to Employee Share-Based Payment Aaegpun
which modifies certain accounting aspects for stwa®ed payments to employees including, among etberents, the
accounting for income taxes and forfeitures, ad agtlassifications in the statement of cash flolWwse Company early
adopted ASU No. 2016-09 as of January 1, 2016 peatively beginning January 1, 2016, excess tax
benefits/deficiencies have been reflected as indambenefit/expense in the statement of incomeltiag in a $184
million tax benefit for 2016. 3M typically experieds the largest volume of stock option exercisesrastricted stock
unit vestings in the first quarter of its fiscabyeRefer to Note 1 for additional detail.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizeghital structure and is adding leverage at a medspace. The strength
and stability of 3M's business model and strong @r@sh flow capability, together with proven cdpitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtinaas the first
priority for capital deployment, including reseaitd development, capital expenditures, and comializiation
capability. Investment in organic growth will bepplemented by complementary acquisitions. 3M wibacontinue to
return cash to shareholders through dividends bhatksepurchases. Sources for cash availabilitydrnited States,
such as ongoing cash flow from operations and adoesapital markets, have historically been sigfitto fund
dividend payments to shareholders and share regseshas well as funding U.S. acquisitions andr dtttims as needed.
For those international earnings considered tebe/ested indefinitely, the Company currently hagptans or
intentions to repatriate these funds for U.S. ojp@ma. However, if these international funds aredesl for operations in
the U.S., 3M would be required to accrue and p&. thxes to repatriate them. See Note 8 for fuiitifermation on
earnings considered to be reinvested indefinitely.

3M’s primary short-term liquidity needs are meftthgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper isssaBM
believes it will have continuous access to the cencial paper market. 3M’s commercial paper progpammits the
Company to have a maximum of $5 billion outstandaridn a maximum maturity of 397 days from datessfuance.
Effective July 15, 2016, this program was increaseal maximum of $5 billion outstanding from a poass program
size of $3 billion.

Total Debt:

The strength of 3M’s capital structure and sigifitongoing cash flows provide 3M proven accesapital markets.
Additionally, the Company’s maturity profile is gigered to help ensure refinancing needs in anyngrear are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolio. 8\Mtrently has an AA- credit rating with a stablglook from
Standard & Poor’s and has an Al credit rating wittable outlook from Moody'’s Investors Service.

The Company has a “well-known seasoned issuer” (WEKI®If registration statement, effective May 2614, which
registers an indeterminate amount of debt and ygaiturities for future sales. In May 2016, in oection with the
WKSI shelf, 3M entered into an amended and rest@igtdbution agreement relating to the future &sste and sale
(from time to time) of the Company’s medium-termiesprogram (Series F), up to the aggregate pahaimount of
$18 billion, which was an increase from the presiaggregate principal amount up to $9 billion & ame Series.

The Company’s total debt was $853 million higheDatember 31, 2016 when compared to December 35, 20th
the increase primarily due to May 2016 and Septer2b#6 debt issuances, partially offset by the &mper 2016
repayment of $1 billion aggregate principal amaefmnedium-term notes. In May 2016, 3M issued 500ioni Euro
aggregate principal amount of 5.75-year fixed naéglium-term notes due February 2022 with a couptmnaf 0.375%
and 500 million Euro aggregate principal amount®fyear fixed rate medium-term notes due 2031 witbupon rate
of 1.50%. In September 2016, 3M issued $600 miliggregate principal amount of five-year fixed naiedium-term
notes due 2021 with a coupon rate of 1.625%, $68®maggregate principal amount of 10-year fixatle medium-
term notes due 2026 with a coupon rate of 2.250%b.$500 million aggregate principal amount of 3@uyfxed rate
medium-term notes due 2046 with a coupon rateX#596. All of these 2016 issuances were under thgiumeterm
notes program (Series F). As of December 31, 2B&6total amount of debt issued as part of the nmederm notes
program (Series F), inclusive of debt issued in12@D12, 2014, 2015 and the 2016 debt referencedeals
approximately $11.1 billion (utilizing the foreigixchange rates applicable at the time of issuamcihé Euro
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denominated debt). Information with respect to keign debt issuances and maturities for the perpoesented is
included in Note 10.

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exighg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilitgxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 hillion five-year revolving crefitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreemt includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lenders’ discretion), lging the total

facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving crediacility is undrawn at December 31, 2016. Under$Ber5 billion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiB B8 DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlsquarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defingde agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBATDA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to total intergmtrese on all funded debt for the same period. étdinber 31, 2016,
this ratio was approximately 44 to 1. Debt covesaltt not restrict the payment of dividends. Apartrf the committed
facilities, an additional $291 million in stand-a®letters of credit and bank guarantees wereisdsed and outstanding
at December 31, 2016. These instruments are watilizeonnection with normal business activities.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities:

At December 31, 2016, 3M had $2.7 billion of casish equivalents and marketable securities, oftwdaiproximately
$2.35 billion was held by the Company'’s foreignsidiaries and approximately $350 million was hejdtie United
States. These balances are invested in bank institisrand other high-quality fixed income securitfgsDecember 31,
2015, cash, cash equivalents and marketable sesunild by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries laythe United
States totaled approximately $1.7 billion and $&0lion, respectively. Specifics concerning marke¢asecurities
investments are provided in Note 9.

Net Debt (non-GAAP measure):

The Company defines net debt as total debt leswtakof cash, cash equivalents and marketablerisies. 3M
considers net debt and its components to be anrtemgandicator of liquidity and a guiding measuwoifecapital structure
strategy. Net debt is not defined under U.S. gdlyemacepted accounting principles and may notdaputed the same
as similarly titted measures used by other comaiiike following table provides net debt as of Defger 31, 2016 and
2015.

At December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015
Total Debt $ 11,650 $ 10,797
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and marketablati&scu 2,695 1,925

Net Debt (non-GAAP measure) $ 8,955 $ 8,872

In 2016, net debt rose by $83 million to a net delance of $9.0 billion (as of December 31, 2046)3M progressed
on its capital structure strategy. Debt levels wegher due to 2016 issuances, with this increasgally offset by the
September 2016 repayment of $1 billion aggregateipal amount of medium-term notes. Cash and egsfivalents
and marketable securities were higher in both tf& Bnd internationally.

Balance Sheet:

3M'’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @mmpany with significant flexibility to take adviage of numerous
opportunities going forward. The Company will coni@ to invest in its operations to drive growtltluding continual
review of acquisition opportunities.

Various assets and liabilities, including cash sindrt-term debt, can fluctuate significantly froromth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workingita (defined as current assets minus currentliigls) totaled
$5.507 billion at December 31, 2016, compared %8868 billion at December 31, 2015, an increas&la$39 billion.
Current asset balance changes increased workirigiday $740 million, largely due to higher cashsh equivalents,
and marketable securities balances. Current ltgliklance changes increased working capital b@ $8@ion, driven
by lower short-term debt balances.
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The Company uses working capital measures that @amphasis and focus on certain working capitatas$hese
measures are not defined under U.S. generally sstegcounting principles and may not be computedsame as
similarly titted measures used by other compariiaese measures include accounts receivable tuefiad¢d as
quarterly net sales multiplied by 4 divided by enpaccounts receivable — net) and inventory tulefirfed as quarterly
manufacturing cost multiplied by 4 divided by erglinventory). For inventory turns calculation pusps,
manufacturing cost is defined as cost of salesffegght and engineering costs. Freight and engingeost totaled
$160 million for the fourth quarter of 2016, andb®Imillion for the fourth quarter of 2015.

Accounts receivable increased $238 million, or agjnately 5.7%, compared with December 31, 201%jgiser
December 2016 sales compared to December 2015csaiFguted to this increase. Accounts receivalnes were
6.67 at December 31, 2016, compared to 7.03 atrbeee31, 2015. Inventories decreased $133 milbon,
approximately 3.8 percent, compared with Decembef815. Inventory turns were 4.20 at Decembe28Q6, up
from 4.13 at December 31, 2015. Accounts payaldieeased by $104 million compared with Decembe2B15, as
changes in business activity impacted balances.
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Return on Invested Capital (non-GAAP measure):

Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) is not definedemU.S. generally accepted accounting principgiégrefore, ROIC
should not be considered a substitute for othersomea prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP andmoape
comparable to similarly titted measures used bgwotiompanies. The Company defines ROIC as adjugteithcome
(net income including non-controlling interest phfter-tax interest expense) divided by averagested capital (equity
plus debt). Total equity has been immaterially sedifor prior periods as discussed in Note 1, 8Saarit Accounting
Policies,Basis of Presentatioimhe Company believes ROIC is meaningful to inmesas it focuses on shareholder
value creation. ROIC was 22.6 percent for 20167 p2rcent for 2015, and 22.3 percent for 2014. ddbeulation is
provided in the below table.

Years ended December 31
(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

Return on Invested Capital (non-GAAP measure)

Net income including nc-controlling interest 5,058 $ 4841 $ 4,998
Interest expense (after-tax) (1) 143 106 102
Adjusted net income (Return) 5201 $ 4947 $ 5,100

»

»

Average shareholders' equity (including non-cofitrglinterest) (2) $ 11,316 $ 12,484 $ 16,000

Average short-term and long-term debt (3) 11,725 9,266 6,913
Average invested capital $ 23041 $ 21,750 $ 22,913
Return on invested capital (non-GAAP measure) 22.6% 22.7% 22.3%
(1) Effective income tax rate used for interestenge 28.3% 29.1% 28.9%

(2) Calculation of average equity (includes nontomling interest)
Ending total equity as of:

March 31 $ 11,495 $ 13,673 $ 17,645
June 30 11,658 12,851 17,567
September 30 11,769 11,945 15,927
December 31 10,343 11,468 12,863
Average total equity $ 11,316 $ 12484 $ 16,000

(3) Calculation of average debt
Ending short-term and long-term debt as of:

March 31 $ 11,139 $ 6,566 $ 6,560

June 30 11,749 8,484 6,956

September 30 12,361 11,216 7,323

December 31 11,650 10,797 6,811
Average short-term and long-term debt $ 11,725 $ 9,266 $ 6,913
Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financaegjvities are provided in the tables that folldmdividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdndeffects of acquisitions, divestitures and excfe rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are preseepadagely in the cash flows. Thus, the amountsepited in the
following operating, investing and financing acties tables reflect changes in balances from pedqekriod adjusted
for these effects.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Years Ended December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 5,058 $ 4841 $ 4,998
Depreciation and amortization 1,474 1,435 1,408
Company pension contributions (380 (264 (210
Company postretirement contributions 3) 3) (5)
Company pension expense 202 442 310
Company postretirement expense 49 114 81
Stock-based compensation expense 298 276 280
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) 108 (349) 60
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — (154 (167
Accounts receivable (313) (58) (268)
Inventories 57 3 (113
Accounts payable 148 9 75
Other — net (36) 128 177
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6,662 $ 6,420 $ 6,626

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusignificantly from period to period, as pensionding decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significaintipact cash flows.

In 2016, cash flows provided by operating actigitiecreased $242 million compared to the same géaist year, with
this increase primarily due to lower year-on-yeastttaxes and higher net income. These items vegtialfy offset by
higher Company pension contributions. The combamadif accounts receivable, inventories and accquengable
increased working capital by $108 million in 20t6mpared to working capital increases of $46 millio 2015.
Additional discussion on working capital changeprsvided earlier in the “Financial Condition andjlidity” section.
Information concerning defined benefit pension podtretirement contributions and expense is pravidéNote 11,
with additional discussion in the preceding Resoft®perations section. Other-net in the precethibie reflects a
reduction in cash flows from operating activitipartially due to divestiture gains in 2016 (disatss Note 2), as cash
divestiture activity is presented as proceeds fsaia of businesses within investing activities, sypdrating activities.
Additional discussion on working capital changeprisvided earlier in the “Financial Condition anidjlidity” section.

In 2015, cash flows provided by operating actigititecreased $206 million compared to 2014. Operatish flows
decreased due to $363 million in higher cash inctames when comparing 2015 to 2014, plus lowein@ame, which
was partially offset by lower year-on-year workicapital requirements. The combination of accouetgivable,
inventories and accounts payable increased wodapgal by $46 million in 2015, compared to incresasf $306
million in 2014, with the year-on-year improvemeesiated to lower organic volume growth.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ (1,420 $ (1,461 $ (1,493,
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 58 33 135
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (16, (2,914 (94
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and safauddetable

securities and investments, net (163) 1,300 754
Proceeds from sale of businesses 142 123 —
Other investing activities (4) 102 102
Net castused in investing activities $ (1,403 $ (2,817 $ (596

Investments in property, plant and equipment englidaith across many diverse markets, helping ta mesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.i@hgpending was $1.420 billion in 2016, $1.46Hidr in 2015,
and $1.493 billion in 2014. The Company expects72tdpital spending to be approximately $1.3 billior$1.5 billion
as 3M continues to invest in its businesses.

3M invests in renewable and maintenance prograrmighwpertains to cost reduction, cycle time, mairitey and
renewing current capacity, eliminating pollutiondacompliance. Costs related to maintenance, argliegoairs, and
certain other items are expensed. 3M also invaggsdawth, which adds to capacity, driven by newdoias, both
through expansion of current facilities and newlitées, plus research facilities. Finally, 3M algwests in other
initiatives, such as information technology (ITdasorporate laboratory facilities.

In 2016, investments included new sites and bugislim addition to continued expansion and sustairiraf current and
new facilities; specifically renewal projects daatehe 3M Center in St. Paul, Minnesota. Other $twents across
geographies included growth, productivity, and citgaas well as IT systems and infrastructuretipalarly the
ongoing multi-year phased implementation of an ERfRlem on a worldwide basis.

In 2015, investments included new sites and buiislimnvestments in IT, continued expansion of aurfacilities and
new facilities, plus the sustainment of existinglfies, in addition to other initiatives. Specifinvestments in 2015
included a new state-of-the-art, four story, 400,8Quare foot research facility at 3M Center inF&iul, Minnesota. In
addition, 3M continued its investments it IT sysseamd infrastructure, particularly the ongoing rirydtar phased
implementation of an ERP system.

In 2014, investments in growth across geographigsided production equipment, new sites and buglglicapacity
investments, converting, and distribution, and ptrewth initiatives. Other investments includesyistems and
infrastructure, including an ongoing multi-year pbd implementation of an ERP system on a worldWwatgs. In
addition, 3M began a multi-year program in the BdiStates to renew and upgrade laboratory fasilétiel
administrative buildings.

Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets tds&l@dnillion in 2016, $33 million in 2015, and $18#llion in 2014.
Apart from the normal periodic sales of PP&E, 2@icluded proceeds of $114 million related to thesaf real estate
and non-production equipment.

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions afigestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional
acquisitions, investments and strategic allianaed,from time to time may also divest certain besses. Proceeds from
sale of businesses in 2016 related to the divestdfithe assets of the pressurized polyurethasm fadhesives business
(formerly known as Polyfoam) within the Industrmalsiness segment and the completion of the divestdf the

Library business within the Safety and Graphicdrmss segment. In addition, in the fourth quarfe20i.6, 3M sold the
assets of its protective films business (Indugtaad its cathode battery technology out-licenginginess (Electronics
and Energy).
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Purchases of marketable securities and investraetproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsdatarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbdcsecurities, certificates of deposit/time defspsiommercial paper,
and other securities, which are classified as alkdtfor-sale. Net proceeds from maturities and elimarketable
securities in 2015 were used to help fund the Aug045 acquisitions of Capital Safety and Membrétefer to Note 9
for more details about 3M’s diversified marketaféeurities portfolio. Purchases of investmentsuideladditional
survivor benefit insurance, plus cost method andtgdnvestments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Change in short-term debt — net $ (797, $ 860 $ 27

Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (992) (800) (1,625)
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days 2,832 3,422 2,608
Total cash change in debt $ 1,043 $ 3,482 $ 1,010
Purchases of treasury stock (3,753 (5,238 (5,652,
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursoanbck

option and benefit plans 804 635 968

Dividends paid to stockholders (2,678 (2,561 (2,216
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — 154 167

Purchase of noncontrolling interest — — (861
Other — net (42) (120) (29)
Net cah used in financing activities $ (4,626 $ (3,648 $ (6,603

Total debt was $11.7 billion at December 31, 2CHif).8 billion at December 31, 2015, and $6.8 billa
December 31, 2014. Total debt was 53 percent af taipital (total capital is defined as debt plgsity) at year-end
2016, 48 percent at year-end 2015, and 35 pertgeaaend 2014.

2016 Debt Activity:

Total debt at December 31, 2016 increased $858mithen compared to year-end 2015, with the irsggaimarily
due to May 2016 debt issuances (approximately Billitn at issue date exchange rates) and Septefild debt
issuances of approximately $1.75 billion. This @ase was partially offset by the repayment of $iibhiaggregate
principal amount of medium-term notes due Septer@b&6 along with the net impact of repayments aoddwings by
international subsidiaries, primarily Japan andd¢ofapproximately $0.8 million decrease), whicteftected in
“Change in short-term debt—net” in the precedirtgdaForeign exchange rate changes also impactodddntces.

Proceeds from debt for 2016 primarily related ® My 2016 issuance of 500 million Euros aggregatecipal amount
of 5.75-year fixed rate medium-term notes due Faiyr@022, and 500 million Euros aggregate princgmabunt of 15-
year fixed rate medium-term notes due 2031 alonly thie September 2016 issuances of $600 milliomezgge
principal amount of five-year fixed rate mediumrtenotes due 2021, $650 million aggregate princpabunt of 10-
year fixed rate medium-term notes due 2026, an@ $5i0ion aggregate principal amount of 30-yeaefixate medium-
term notes due 2046 (refer to Note 10 for moreitjeta

2015 and 2014 Debt Activity:

In both 2015 and 2014, the change in short-tern pléimarily related to bank borrowings by interoail subsidiaries,
primarily Japan and Korea in 2015. In 2015, repayioé debt primarily related to debt assumed (azid pff) as part
of the Capital Safety acquisition (refer to Notel®)2014, repayment of debt primarily includesagment of a
Eurobond in July 2014 totaling 1.025 billion Eufapproximately $1.4 billion carrying value), repagmt of the three-
year 66 million British Pound committed credit fégiagreement entered into in December 2012, apdyment of
other international debt.
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In 2015, proceeds from debt primarily related ® khay 2015 issuance of 650 million Euros aggregatecipal amount
of five-year floating rate medium-term notes du@@0600 million Euros aggregate principal amoungight-year fixed
rate medium-term notes due 2023, and 500 millioro&aggregate principal amount of fifteen-yeardixate medium-
term notes due 2030, which in the aggregate tpgadaximately $1.9 billion at issue date exchanges.an addition,
August 2015 issuances included $450 million aggeegeincipal amount of three-year fixed rate medienm notes
due 2018, $500 million aggregate principal amodriive-year fixed rate medium-term notes due 2026] $550
million aggregate principal amount of 10-year fixate medium-term notes due 2025, which in aggeetgabl $1.5
billion. In 2014, proceeds from debt primarily reld to the June 2014 issuances of $625 millionege principal
amount of five-year fixed rate medium-term notes 8019 and $325 million aggregate principal amadniirty-year
fixed rate medium-term notes due 2044, as welhas\tovember 2014 issuances of 500 million Eurascigsal amount
of four-year floating rate medium-term notes dué&and 750 million Euros principal amount of 12+yfeed rate
medium-term notes due 2026. In addition, proceeatn flebt for 2014 also include bank borrowingsriginational
subsidiaries. Refer to Note 10 for additional désion of debt.

Repurchases of Common Stock:

Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@tadhmpany’s stock-based employee compensation plash$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3M'ar8of Directors authorized the repurchase of upl® billion of
3M's outstanding common stock, which replaced tbhenBany’s February 2014 repurchase program. Thisosization
has no pre-established end date. In 2016, the Qoymmachased $3.75 billion of its own stock, conggbto purchases
in 2015 and 2014 of more than $5 billion of its ostack in each year. The Company expects full-284r7 gross share
repurchases will be in the range of $2.5 billior$#5 billion. For more information, refer to trabte titled “Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part Il, ItenTBe Company does not utilize derivative instruradimked to the
Company’s stock.

Dividends Paid to Shareholders:

Cash dividends paid to shareholders totaled $20dli8n ($4.44 per share) in 2016, $2.561 billiéh (10 per share) in
2015, and $2.216 billion ($3.42 per share) in 2@M.has paid dividends since 1916. In February 28M's Board of
Directors declared a first-quarter 2017 dividen&dfL75 per share, an increase of 6 percent. $kEguivalent to an
annual dividend of $4.70 per share and marked 3itie &nsecutive year of dividend increases.

Purchase of Noncontrolling Interest:

On September 1, 2014, 3M purchased (via Sumitomd.Bhited) Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd.’s 2Brgent
interest in 3M’s consolidated Sumitomo 3M Limitagbsidiary for 90 billion Japanese Yen. Upon conipietf this
transaction, 3M owned 100 percent of Sumitomo 3miteéd. This was reflected as a “Purchase of nomobinig
interest” in the financing section of the consadi@hstatement of cash flows. In addition, in Ag6lL4, 3M purchased
the remaining noncontrolling interest in a consatigdl 3M subsidiary for an immaterial amount, whiets also
classified as a “Purchase of noncontrolling intériesthe financing section of the consolidatedataent of cash flows.

Other cash flows from financing activities may umbé various other items, such as changes in casldmft balances,
and principal payments for capital leases.

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

In addition, to net cash provided by operating\tigis, 3M believes free cash flow and free caskwftonversion are
useful measures of performance and uses these resasuan indication of the strength of the Compatyits ability
to generate cash. Free cash flow and free cashcibowersion are not defined under U.S. generaltgpied accounting
principles (GAAP). Therefore, they should not besidered a substitute for income or cash flow gadpared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and may not be compatahbdémilarly titled measures used by other comgsinisM
defines free cash flow as net cash provided byaijey activities less purchases of property, péantt equipment
(which is classified as an investing activity)shtould not be inferred that the entire free casWw thmount is available
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for discretionary expenditures. 3M defines freehddsw conversion as free cash flow divided by imebme attributable
to 3M. Below find a recap of free cash flow andefaash flow conversion for 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Years ended December 31
(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

Major GAAP Cash Flow Categories

Net cash provided by operating activi $ 6,662 $ 6,420 $ 6,626
Net cash used in investing activil (1,403) (2,817) (596
Net cash used in financing activit (4,626 (3,648 (6,603
Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)

Net cash provided by operating activi $ 6,662 $ 6,420 $ 6,626
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (1,420) (1,461) (1,493
Free cash flow $ 5242 $ 4959 $ 5,133
Net income attributable to 3 $ 5050 $ 4833 $ 4,956
Free cash flow conversion 104 % 103% 104%

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Qfdtions:

As of December 31, 2016, the Company has not etilepecial purpose entities to facilitate off-basheet financing
arrangements. Refer to the section entitled “WaieafGuarantees” in Note 14 for discussion of aedrproduct
warranty liabilities and guarantees.

In addition to guarantees, 3M, in the normal cowfseusiness, periodically enters into agreemérdsrequire the
Company to indemnify either major customers or $isppfor specific risks, such as claims for injunyproperty
damage arising out of the use of 3M products ontgigence of 3M personnel, or claims alleging 8 products
infringe third-party patents or other intellectpabperty. While 3M’s maximum exposure under theskemnification
provisions cannot be estimated, these indemnifioatare not expected to have a material impadt@Cbmpany’s
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon.

A summary of the Company’s significant contractoigligations as of December 31, 2016, follows:
Contractual Obligations

Payments due by year

After
(Millions) Total 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2021
Long-term debt, including current portic
(Note 10) $ 11,478 $ 800 $ 1,042 $ 623 $ 1,176 $ 1,246 $6,591
Interest on long-term debt 2,936 224 221 210 205 195 1,881
Operating leases (Note 14) 825 210 161 119 89 58 188
Capital leases (Note 14) 59 9 7 5 4 4 30
Unconditional purchase obligations and
other 1,361 946 189 123 54 24 25
Total contractual cash obligations ¥5,659 $ 2,189 $ 1,620 $ 1,080 $ 1,528 $ 1,527 $8,715

Long-term debt payments due in 2017 and 2018 ircfladiting rate notes totaling $150 million (cldiesl as current
portion of long-term debt), and $71 million (inckdlin other borrowings in the long-term debt tahle}pectively, as a
result of put provisions associated with these dettuments. Interest projections on both floatimgl fixed rate long-
term debt, including the effects of interest rat@yss, are based on effective interest rates agoéimber 31, 2016.

Unconditional purchase obligations are definedreagreement to purchase goods or services thafasceable and

legally binding on the Company. Included in the amgitional purchase obligations category abovecartain
obligations related to take or pay contracts, edpibmmitments, service agreements and utiliti®é®s€ estimates
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include both unconditional purchase obligationgwérms in excess of one year and normal ongoinghase
obligations with terms of less than one year. Mahthese commitments relate to take or pay corgractwhich 3M
guarantees payment to ensure availability of pridacservices that are sold to customers. The @ognpxpects to
receive consideration (products or services) fes¢hunconditional purchase obligations. Contractajital
commitments are included in the preceding tabletirse commitments represent a small part of tragany’s
expected capital spending. The purchase obligatinounts do not represent the entire anticipatech@ases in the
future, but represent only those items for whiah @ompany is contractually obligated. The majooit$M’s products
and services are purchased as needed, with no diticoal commitment. For this reason, these amowiitsiot
provide a reliable indicator of the Company’s expdduture cash outflows on a stand-alone basis.

Other obligations, included in the preceding takihin the caption entitled “Unconditional purchasaigations and
other,” include the current portion of the liahjlfior uncertain tax positions under ASC 740, whbkxpected to be paid
out in cash in the next 12 months. The Companypishle to reasonably estimate the timing of tigerm payments
or the amount by which the liability will increase decrease over time; therefore, the long-ternigroof the net tax
liability of $284 million is excluded from the preding table. Refer to Note 8 for further details.

As discussed in Note 11, the Company does not dagquired minimum cash pension contribution olidgafor its
U.S. plans in 2017 and Company contributions tdJiS. and international pension plans are expeotbée largely
discretionary in future years; therefore, amouatated to these plans are not included in the diegeable.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters into foreign exchange forwardracts, options and swaps to hedge against theteff exchange
rate fluctuations on cash flows denominated inifgreurrencies and certain intercompany financiaggactions. The
Company manages interest rate risks using a mixed and floating rate debt. To help manage boimgweosts, the
Company may enter into interest rate swaps. Urigeset arrangements, the Company agrees to exclargpecified
intervals, the difference between fixed and flogiimerest amounts calculated by reference to a@ealgupon notional
principal amount. The Company manages commoditepisks through negotiated supply contracts, picgéection
agreements and commodity price swaps.

Refer to Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Elssures About Market Risk”, for further discussimfiforeign
exchange rates risk, interest rates risk, commautites risk and value at risk analysis.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures A&out Market Risk.

In the context of Item 7A, 3M is exposed to manksk due to the risk of loss arising from adverkanges in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyrquittes. Changes in those factors could caustui#tions in
earnings and cash flows. Senior management proeidasight for risk management and derivative @i,
determines certain of the Company’s financial gskicies and objectives, and provides guidelinesi&rivative
instrument utilization. Senior management alsob#istaes certain associated procedures relativeritral and
valuation, risk analysis, counterparty credit appipand ongoing monitoring and reporting.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interes sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and omttmtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively nowsiits exposure to credit risk through the usereflit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interaaéil banks and financial institutions as countdiparThe Company
does not anticipate nonperformance by any of thesaterparties.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk:
Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationisdse rates may affect the Company’s net invedtingoreign
subsidiaries and may cause fluctuations in castsfielated to foreign denominated transactionsis88dso exposed to

the translation of foreign currency earnings tolth8. dollar. The Company enters into foreign exgjeaforward and
option contracts to hedge against the effect oharge rate fluctuations on cash flows denominatddreign
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currencies. These transactions are designatecshdloa hedges. 3M may dedesignate these cashhitalge
relationships in advance of the occurrence of thhedasted transaction. Beginning in the secondguaf 2014, 3M
began extending the maximum length of time overchliti hedges its exposure to the variability irufetcash flows of
the forecasted transactions from a previous teriahonths to a longer term of 24 months, withaiarturrencies
being extended further to 36 months starting irfitise quarter of 2015. In addition, 3M enters ifidoeign currency
forward contracts that are not designated in hefggtationships to offset, in part, the impacts@iftain intercompany
activities (primarily associated with intercompditgnsing arrangements and intercompany finanaigsactions). As
circumstances warrant, the Company also uses foreigency forward contracts and foreign currenegaininated
debt as hedging instruments to hedge portionseo€tbmpany’s net investments in foreign operatidihg dollar
equivalent gross notional amount of the Compamgyreifin exchange forward and option contracts deséghas cash
flow hedges and those not designated as hedgitrgiinasnts were $3.2 billion and $5.7 billion, respeaty, at
December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, thepaognhad 150 million Euros and 248 billion Southréan Won
in notional amount of foreign currency forward qacts designated as net investment hedges alohgtwiitbillion
Euros in principal amount of foreign currency demuated debt designated as non-derivative hedgistguments in
certain net investment hedges as discussed in MNoite the “Net Investment Hedges” section.

Interest Rates Risk:

The Company may be impacted by interest rate Vityatvith respect to existing debt and future dilsuances. 3M
manages interest rate risk and expense using afrfised and floating rate debt. In addition, therfpany may enter
into interest rate swaps that are designated aalifgjas fair value hedges. Under these arrangesnémt Company
agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, tHerdifice between fixed and floating interest amooatsulated by
reference to an agreed-upon notional principal arhdithe dollar equivalent (based on inception dateign currency
exchange rates) gross notional amount of the Coyparterest rate swaps at December 31, 2016 wasisiion.
Additional details about 3M’s long-term debt canfbend in Note 10, including references to inforimatregarding
derivatives and/or hedging instruments associafddthe Company’s long-term debt.

Commodity Prices Risk:

The Company manages commaodity price risks throwgotiated supply contracts, price protection agesgmand
commodity price swaps. 3M used commodity price saapcash flow hedges of forecasted commodity drdions to
manage price volatility, but discontinued this picein the first quarter of 2015. The related mrdmarket gain or
loss on qualifying hedges was included in other maihensive income to the extent effective, andassified into cost
of sales in the period during which the hedgedsaation affected earnings. The Company may enteroither
commodity price swaps to offset, in part, fluctoatand costs associated with the use of certaimmdities and
precious metals. These instruments are not desidmatedged relationships and the extent to witiel were
outstanding at December 31, 2016 was not material.

Value At Risk:

The value at risk analysis is performed annuallggsess the Company’s sensitivity to changes oy rates, interest
rates, and commodity prices. A Monte Carlo simolatechnique was used to test the impact on afteedrnings
related to financial instruments (primarily delatgrivatives and underlying exposures outstandiridegember 31,
2016. The model (third-party bank dataset) usefl pedcent confidence level over a 12-month timeézoor The
exposure to changes in currency rates model usedri@ncies, interest rates related to three coigsnand commodity
prices related to five commaodities. This model deespurport to represent what actually will be exgnced by the
Company. This model does not include certain hédgesactions, because the Company believes thadirsion would
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not materially impact the results. The followinpl&summarizes the possible adverse and positigadta to after-tax
earnings related to these exposures.

Adverse impact on after-tax Positive impact on after-tax

earnings earnings
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Foreign exchange rates $ (245 $ (254 % 264 $ 273
Interest rates (13) (13) (2) 9
Commodity prices (2) Q) 1 1

In addition to the possible adverse and positiveaiats discussed in the preceding table relateor&igh exchange
rates, recent historical information is as follo®s1 estimates that year-on-year currency effentduding hedging
impacts, had the following effects on pre-tax ineo2016 ($127 million decrease) and 2015 ($390anillecrease).
This estimate includes the effect of translatingfigs from local currencies into U.S. dollars; fhgact of currency
fluctuations on the transfer of goods between 3Mrafions in the United States and abroad; andacdios gains and
losses, including derivative instruments desigmedtuce foreign currency exchange rate risks. 8fiinates that year-
on-year derivative and other transaction gainslassks had the following effects on pre-tax incog@6 ($69 million
decrease) and 2015 ($180 million increase).

An analysis of the global exposures related to lpased components and materials is performed atyemrkend. A one
percent price change would result in a pre-tax eosavings of approximately $70 million per yeHne global energy
exposure is such that a ten percent price changédwesult in a pre-tax cost or savings of appratety $40 million
per year. Global energy exposure includes energisased in 3M production and other facilitiespaiily electricity
and natural gas.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Financial Statements

A complete summary of Form 10-K content, includihg index to financial statements, is found atiteéginning of this
document.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for the integrity anatciijity of the financial information included ihis report. The
financial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally acceptethnUnited States
of America. Where necessary, the financial statésneflect estimates based on management’s judgment

Management has established and maintains a sys$tetemmal control over financial reporting for t@®mpany and its
subsidiaries. This system and its established adtt@uprocedures and related controls are desigmpdovide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguénatetietbooks and records properly reflect allgaations, that policies
and procedures are implemented by qualified peedpand that published financial statements arpgntg prepared
and fairly presented. The Company’s system of imatlecontrol over financial reporting is supportgdviidely
communicated written policies, including businessduct policies, which are designed to requirealployees to
maintain high ethical standards in the conduct@i@any affairs. Internal auditors continually revithe accounting
and control system.

3M Company
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg an adequate system of internal control dwancial
reporting. Management conducted an assessmeng @fdmpany’s internal control over financial repagtbased on the
framework established by the Committee of Spongo@inganizations of the Treadway Commissioimiternal Control
— Integrated Framework (2013ased on the assessment, management concludedstioh December 31, 2016, the
Company’s internal control over financial reportisgffective.

The Company’s internal control over financial repuay as of December 31, 2016 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registmiblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich is
included herein, which expresses an unqualifiediopion the effectiveness of the Company’s intecoaitrol over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.

3M Company
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 3Mrpany

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheet and the related consolidated statemeimtsarhe, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows preséty,fan all material respects, the financial pasit of 3M Company and its
subsidiariegthe “Company”) at December 31, 2016 and 2015,thadesults of their operations and their cashdléov each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20&6riformity with accounting principles generalscapted in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, the Company main&alnin all material respects, effective internaitcol over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2016, based on criteria establishedernal Control - Integrated Framewo(R013)issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg@iSO). The Company's management is responsibtedse financial
statements, for maintaining effective internal cohtver financial reporting and for its assessnudrihe effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in thecampanying Management's Report on Internal Cootret Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on thigsancial statements and on the Company's intexoatrol over financial reporting
based on our integrated audits. We conductedwlitsain accordance with the standards of the Bulxdimpany Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standauisire that we plan and perform the audits to ab@asonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of matarisstatement and whether effective internal mdmiver financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditgheffinancial statements included examining, testabasis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemasgessing the accounting principles used andisat estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financébstent presentation. Our audit of internal cdrtver financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internaltc@rover financial reporting, assessing the rtsktta material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operatiregtfeness of internal control based on the asdesde Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thadudits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firedal reporting includes those policies and proceslthat (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable datlrately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thasaetions are recorded as necessary to permitratepeof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of tingpemy are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoeasisurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijon, use, or disposition of the company’s ass$leat could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becimméequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 9, 2017
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income
Years ended December 31

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014
Net sale 30,109 $ 30,274 $ 31,821
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 15,040 15,383 16,447

Selling, general and administrative expenses 6,111 6,182 6,469

Research, development and related expenses 1,735 1,763 1,770

Total operating expenses 22,886 23,328 24,686

Operating income 7,223 6,946 7,135
Interest expense and income

Interest expense 199 149 142

Interest income (29) (26) (33)

Total interest expense — net 170 123 109

Income before income taxes 7,053 6,823 7,026
Provision for income taxes 1,995 1,982 2,028
Net income including noncontrolling intere 5,058 $ 4,841 $ 4,998
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingeietst 8 8 42
Net income attributable to 3| 5,050 $ 4,833 $ 4,956
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas 604.7 625.6 649.2
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common siddehs — basic  $ 8.35 $ 772 $ 7.63
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding tedil 618.7 637.2 662.0
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwdens —dilutec  $ 8.16 $ 758 $ 7.49
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share 444 $ 410 $ 3.42

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 5,058 $ 4841 $ 4,998
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (331 (586 (942
Defined benefit pension and postretirement planssatient (524) 489 (1,562)
Debt and equity securities, unrealized gain (loss) — — 2
Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsflos (33) 25 107
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (888 (72 (2,395
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrglimerest 4,170 4,769 2,603
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norredlintg interest (6) (6) (48)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 4,164 $ 4,763 $ 2,555

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
At December 31

(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2016 2015
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,398 $ 1,798
Marketable securities — current 280 118
Accounts receivable — net of allowances of $88 $&ti 4,392 4,154
Inventories
Finished goods 1,629 1,655
Work in process 1,039 1,008
Raw materials and supplies 717 855
Total inventories 3,385 3,518
Other current assets 1,271 1,398
Total current assets 11,726 10,986
Marketable securities — non-current 17 9
Investments 128 117
Property, plant and equipment 23,499 23,098
Less: Accumulated depreciation (14,983) (14,583)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,516 8,515
Goodwill 9,166 9,249
Intangible assets — net 2,320 2,601
Prepaid pension benefits 52 188
Other assets 981 1,218
Total assets 32,906 $ 32,883
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt 972 % 2,044
Accounts payable 1,798 1,694
Accrued payroll 678 644
Accrued income taxes 299 332
Other current liabilities 2,472 2,404
Total current liabilities 6,219 7,118
Long-term debt 10,678 8,753
Pension and postretirement benefits 4,018 3,520
Other liabilities 1,648 2,024
Total liabilities 22563 $ 21,415
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock par value, $.01 par value 9 $ 9
Shares outstanding - 2016: 596,726,278
Shares outstanding - 2015: 609,330,124
Additional paid-in capital 5,061 4,791
Retained earnings 37,907 36,296
Treasury stock (25,434) (23,308)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (7,245 (6,359
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 10,298 11,429
Noncontrolling intere: 45 39
Total equity 10,343 $ 11,468
Total liabilities and equity 32,906 $ 32,883

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Years Ended December 31

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated
Stock and Other
Additional Comprehensive Non-
Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2013 $17669 $ 4,384 $32,137 $ (15385 $ (3913 $ 446
Net income 4,998 4,956 42
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (942, (948 6
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjissament (1,562) (1,562) —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) 2 2 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo 107 107 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (2,395
Dividends declared ($3.59 per share, Note 6) (2,297) (2,297)
Purchase of subsidiary shares (870 (434 25 (461
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 438 438
Reacquired stock (5,643 (5,643
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 963 (758) 1,721
Balance at December 31, 2014 $12863 $ 4,388 $34,038 $ (19,307 $ (6,289 $ 33
Net income 4,841 4,833 8
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (586, (584 2
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjissament 489 489 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo 25 25 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (72
Dividends declared ($3.075 per share, Note 6) (1,913) (1,913)
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 412 412
Reacquired stock (5,304) (5,304)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 641 (662 1,303
Balance at December 31, 2015 $1,468 $ 4,800 $36,296 $(23,308) $ (6,359) $ 39
Net income 5,058 5,050 8
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (331) (329) 2)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platissament (524 (524 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gais)o (33 (33] —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (888)
Dividends declared ($4.44 per share, Note 6) (2,678 (2,678
Stock-based compensation 270 270
Reacquired stock (3,699 (3,699
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 812 (761) 1,573
Balance at December 31, 2016 $10,343 $ 5,070 $37,907 $ (25434 $ (7,245 $ 45
Supplemental share information 2016 2015 2014
Treasury stock

Beginning balance 334,702,932 308,898,462 280,736,817

Reacquired stock 22,602,74€ 34,072,584 40,664,061

Issuances pursuant to stock options and benefispla (9,998,902) (8,268,114) (12,502,416)
Ending balance 347,306,77¢ 334,702,93: 308,898,46:

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 5,058 $ 4841 $ 4,998
Adjustments to reconcile net income including naroalling
interest to net cash provided by operating actiti
Depreciation and amortization 1,474 1,435 1,408
Company pension and postretirement contributions (383) (267) (215)
Company pension and postretirement expense 251 556 391
Stock-based compensation expense 298 276 280
Deferred income taxes 7 395 (146
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — (154) (167)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (313) (58) (268)
Inventories 57 3 (113
Accounts payable 148 9 75
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) 101 (744 206
Other — net (36) 128 177
Net cash provided by operating activit 6,662 6,420 6,626
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (1,420) (1,461) (1,493)
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 58 33 135
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (16) (2,914) (94)
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (1,410 (652 (1,280
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablerges and
investments 1,247 1,952 2,034
Proceeds from sale of businesses 142 123 —
Other investing (4) 102 102
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,403 (2,817 (596
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net (797) 860 27
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (992 (800 (1,625
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days 2,832 3,422 2,608
Purchases of treasury stock (3,753 (5,238 (5,652
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursaastotk option
and benefit plans 804 635 968
Dividends paid to shareholders (2,678 (2,561 (2,216
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — 154 167
Purchase of noncontrolling interest — — (861
Other — net (42) (120) (19)
Net cash used in financing activiti (4,626 (3,648 (6,603
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatents (33 (54 (111
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 600 (99 (684
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,798 1,897 2,581
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,398 $ 1,798 $ 1,897

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation:3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technglémnovator and marketer of a wide variety of
products. All subsidiaries are consolidated. Alenaompany transactions are eliminated. As useeimehe term “3M”
or “Company” refers to 3M Company and subsidiatieless the context indicates otherwise.

Basis of presentatiorCertain consolidated balance sheet amounts reltdiprior periods have been immaterially
revised to correct the Company’s application of dwtting Standards Codification (ASC) 4%pntingencieswith
respect to its respirator mask/asbestos liabiggoaiated with pending and future claims and rdldefense costs. This
correction reflects the inclusion of all potentyalélevant years rather than a subset of futuresywhen estimating this
liability. See Note 14 for further detail. 3M assed the materiality of this correction to prioripds’ financial
statements in accordance with Securities and Exgh@ommission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. (SAB),9
Materiality, and SAB 108Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemeavtien Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statementodified in ASC 250Presentation of Financial Statemenithe Company
concluded that the correction was not materialriorgeriods and therefore, amendments of prewofilsld reports are
not required. In accordance with ASC 250, 3M cdgédrior periods presented herein by revisingcthesolidated
balance sheet amounts, including associated ddftaxes. Period to period changes in previous astisnof probable
loss were similar to those of the revised amouktsordingly, the correction had no impact on coiusdkd results of
operations and cash flows for the periods preseatethis correction originates in periods priottiose presented in the
annual report. The impact of this revision on tlerpany’s previously reported consolidated balaheet
consolidated statement of changes in equity, alatestamounts in Notes 5, 8, 14 and 16 is as fallow

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

(Millions) Previously Reported  Adjustment As Revised Previously Reported  Adjustment  As Revised
Other assets $ 1,053 $ 165 $ 1,218 $ 1,769 $ 165 $ 1,934
Total assets 32,718 165 32,883 31,209 165 31,374
Other liabilities 1,580 444 2,024 1,555 444 1,999
Total liabilities 20,971 444 21,415 18,067 444 18,511
Retained earnings 36,575 (279 36,296 34,317 (279 34,038
Total 3M Company

shareholders' equity 11,708 (279) 11,429 13,109 (279) 12,830
Total equity 11,747 (279 11,468 13,142 (279 12,863

As the correction originates in periods prior togl presented in this annual report, the previoeggrted amounts of
retained earnings and total equity as of Decembe2@13 of $32,416 million and $17,948 million, pestively, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity haok lkkeen reduced by $279 million.

Foreign currency translationkocal currencies generally are considered thetional currencies outside the United
States. Assets and liabilities for operations alecurrency environments are translated at monthexchange rates of
the period reported. Income and expense itemgamelated at month-end exchange rates of eactcapfdimonth.
Cumulative translation adjustments are recordesl @smponent of accumulated other comprehensiveriadtoss) in
shareholders’ equity.

Although local currencies are typically consideasdhe functional currencies outside the UnitedeStainder ASC 830,
Foreign Currency Mattershe reporting currency of a foreign entity’s pares assumed to be that entity’s functional
currency when the economic environment of a foreigtity is highly inflationary—generally when itsmulative
inflation is approximately 100 percent or more tloe three years that precede the beginning of @rtiag period. 3M
has a subsidiary in Venezuela with operating incoapeesenting less than 1.0 percent of 3M’s codat#d operating
income for 2016. Since January 1, 2010, the firdrstatements of the Venezuelan subsidiary have teseeasured as
if its functional currency were that of its parent.
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The Venezuelan government sets official rates oharge and conditions precedent to purchase fooeigency at
these rates with local currency. Such rates andittons have been and continue to be subject tagdan

January 2014, the Venezuelan government annouhagthe National Center for Foreign Commerce (CEREY had
assumed the role with respect to the continuatfdheoexisting official exchange rate, significangixpanded the use of
a second currency auction exchange mechanism ¢hée@omplementary System for Foreign Currency Aequent
(or SICAD1), and issued exchange regulations ingligehe SICAD1 rate of exchange would be usegp&yments
related to international investments. In late Ma26ti4, the Venezuelan government launched a tbiglgn exchange
mechanism, SICAD2, which it later replaced with thieo foreign currency exchange platform in Febr20¢5 called
the Marginal System of Foreign Currency (SIMADIhel'SIMADI rate was described as being derived fdaity
private bidders and buyers exchanging offers thinaughorized agents. This rate was approved anlisheld by the
Venezuelan Central Bank. In March 2016, the Venkezugovernment effected a replacement of its peeifiéal
CENCOEX rate with Tipo de Cambio Protegido (DIPR@8scribed as available largely for essential irtgpor
eliminated its SICAD exchange mechanism; and repldis SIMADI rate with Tipo de Cambio Complemerdar
(DICOM), published by the Venezuelan Central Ban#l described as fluctuating in rate based on sugpdydemand.

The financial statements of 3M’s Venezuelan subsydivere remeasured utilizing the official CENCOX its
predecessor) rate into March 2014, the SICAD1atginning in late March 2014, the SICAD2 rate bagig in

June 2014, and the DICOM rate (or its SIMADI prezk=or) beginning in February 2015. 3M’s uses aféhates were
based upon evaluation of a number of factors inalydout not limited to, the exchange rate the Canys Venezuelan
subsidiary may legally use to convert currencytles#tansactions or pay dividends; the probabdityaccessing and
obtaining currency by use of a particular rate echanism; and the Company’s intent and abilityse @& particular
exchange mechanism. Other factors notwithstandemgeasurement impacts of the changes in use af thehange
rates did not have material impacts on 3M’s codsidid results of operations or financial condition.

The Company continues to monitor circumstancesivel#o its Venezuelan subsidiary. Changes in apple exchange
rates or exchange mechanisms may continue in theefurhese changes could impact the rate of exgghapplicable to
remeasure the Company’s net monetary assets ifiedildenominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF).oks
December 31, 2016, the Company had a balance ofiowetary assets denominated in VEF of less tHabillion VEF
and the DIPRO and DICOM exchange rates were apmately 10 VEF and 670 VEF per U.S. dollar, respetyi

A need to deconsolidate the Company’s Venezuelbsidiary’'s operations may result from a lack ofteageability of
VEF-denominated cash coupled with an acute degoadit the ability to make key operational decisatue to
government regulations in Venezuela. 3M monitocsdies such as its ability to access various exchamgchanisms;
the impact of government regulations on the Comisaatyility to manage its Venezuelan subsidiary’gitz structure,
purchasing, product pricing, and labor relatiomg] the current political and economic situationhivitVenezuela.
Based upon such factors as of December 31, 20a & dmpany continues to consolidate its Venezualbgidiary. As
of December 31, 2016, the balance of intercompangivables due from this subsidiary and its edugthance were not
significant.

ReclassificationsCertain amounts in the prior years’' consolidatedriicial statements have been reclassified to confor
to the current year presentation.

Use of estimatesthe preparation of financial statements in conformith U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimaassumptions that affect the reported amountsssta and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities at the date of the financial staémts, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the neg@eriod. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

Cash and cash equivalen8ash and cash equivalents consist of cash andbtampnvestments with maturities of
three months or less when acquired.

Marketable securitiesThe classification of marketable securities asaniror non-current is based on the nature of the
securities and availability for use in current gimms. 3M reviews impairments associated witlmgsketable securities
in accordance with the measurement guidance prdbgeASC 320 Investments-Debt and Equity Securitigben
determining the classification of the impairmenttasnporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A tempordampairment
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charge results in an unrealized loss being recardéte other comprehensive income component akfiwdders’
equity. Such an unrealized loss does not reducmoaine for the applicable accounting period beedhs loss is not
viewed as other-than-temporary. The factors evatlad differentiate between temporary and othen-tiemporary
include the projected future cash flows, crediiniga actions, and assessment of the credit qulitiye underlying
collateral, as well as other factors.

Investmentstnvestments primarily include equity method, aosthod, and available-for-sale equity investments.
Available-for-sale investments are recorded atvaiue. Unrealized gains and losses relating testments classified as
available-for-sale are recorded as a component@fraulated other comprehensive income (loss) irestwdders’

equity.

Other assetsOther assets include deferred income taxes, pradutbther insurance receivables, the cash sumrende
value of life insurance policies, and other longrt@ssets. Investments in life insurance are redat the amount that
could be realized under contract at the balancetstate, with any changes in cash surrender valaerdract value
during the period accounted for as an adjustmepterhiums paid. Cash outflows and inflows assodiatith life
insurance activity are included in “Purchases ofk@table securities and investments” and “Procé®ais maturities
and sale of marketable securities and investmergspectively.

Inventories:Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketamith cost generally determined on a firstfirst-out
basis.

Property, plant and equipmerfroperty, plant and equipment, including capitaiinterest and internal engineering
costs, are recorded at cost. Depreciation of ptgpglant and equipment generally is computed utliegstraight-line
method based on the estimated useful lives ofdbeta. The estimated useful lives of buildingsiamtovements
primarily range from ten to forty years, with thajarity in the range of twenty to forty years. Tésimated useful lives
of machinery and equipment primarily range fronethto fifteen years, with the majority in the ramddive to ten
years. Fully depreciated assets are retained jmeptypand accumulated depreciation accounts uisflogal. Upon
disposal, assets and related accumulated depoecat removed from the accounts and the net amiesstproceeds
from disposal, is charged or credited to operati@neperty, plant and equipment amounts are reddamrimpairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset (asset yroap not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognizkdn the carrying amount of an asset exceedsstimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to resnththe use of the asset and its eventual dispasitihe amount of
the impairment loss recorded is calculated by #oess of the asset’s carrying value over its falug. Fair value is
generally determined using a discounted cash floalyais.

Conditional asset retirement obligation&:liability is initially recorded at fair value foan asset retirement obligation
associated with the retirement of tangible longdi\assets in the period in which it is incurred feasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. Conditional asset retir¢robligations exist for certain long-term assetshef Company. The
obligation is initially measured at fair value ugiexpected present value techniques. Over timbathitities are

accreted for the change in their present valuetlamdhitial capitalized costs are depreciated dlerremaining useful
lives of the related assets. The asset retiremgigtadion liability was $111 million and $102 mii at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

Gooduwill: Goodwill is the excess of cost of an acquired gmtiter the amounts assigned to assets acquirelibdildies
assumed in a business combination. Goodwill isanwdrtized. Goodwill is tested for impairment anhyal the fourth
quarter of each year, and is tested for impairrbetween annual tests if an event occurs or circamests change that
would indicate the carrying amount may be impaitatpbairment testing for goodwill is done at a rejay unit level,
with all goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. Rejing units are one level below the business segieegel, but can be
combined when reporting units within the same sedrhave similar economic characteristics. 3M ditlcambine any
of its reporting units for impairment testing. Anpairment loss generally would be recognized whercarrying
amount of the reporting unit's net assets excdeglestimated fair value of the reporting unit. Esémated fair value
of a reporting unit is determined using earninggfie reporting unit multiplied by a price/earnirrgsio for comparable
industry groups, or by using a discounted cash #oalysis. Companies have the option to first asgaalitative factors
to determine whether the fair value of a reporting is not “more likely than not” less than itsrigang amount, which
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is commonly referred to as “Step 0”. 3M has chasetrto apply Step 0 for 2016 or prior period anrg@bdwill
assessments.

Intangible assetdntangible asset types include customer relategnps other technology-based, tradenames and other
intangible assets acquired from an independeny.patangible assets with a definite life are anzed over a period
ranging from one to twenty years on a systemaiicrational basis (generally straight line) thatepresentative of the
asset’s use. The estimated useful lives vary goay, with customer related largely between seweseventeen years,
patents largely between five to thirteen yearseiotechnology-based largely between two to fiftgears, definite lived
tradenames largely between three and twenty yeadspther intangibles largely between two to tesryeCosts related

to internally developed intangible assets, suchadsnts, are expensed as incurred, primarily irsé&ech, development
and related expenses.”

Intangible assets with a definite life are testdimpairment whenever events or circumstancesatdithat the
carrying amount of an asset (asset group) may@o¢doverable. An impairment loss is recognizednithe carrying
amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiszboash flows used in determining the fair valuthefasset. The
amount of the impairment loss recorded is calcdlatethe excess of the asset's carrying value bwéair value. Fair
value is generally determined using a discountst law analysis.

Intangible assets with an indefinite life, namedytain tradenames, are not amortized. Indefinitediintangible assets
are tested for impairment annually, and are tefsteinpairment between annual tests if an eventiccor
circumstances change that would indicate that éingy/ing amount may be impaired. An impairment Igeserally
would be recognized when the fair value is lesa tha carrying value of the indefinite-lived intalpig asset.

Restructuring actionsRestructuring actions generally include significactions involving employee-related severance
charges, contract termination costs, and impairroeatcelerated depreciation/amortization of asseteciated with
such actions. Employee-related severance chargdargely based upon distributed employment pdieied
substantive severance plans. These charges areteeflin the quarter when the actions are prokaiilghe amounts are
estimable, which typically is when management apgsdhe associated actions. Severance amountsiohn affected
employees were required to render service in dalezceive benefits at their termination dates weeasured at the
date such benefits were communicated to the afydicamployees and recognized as expense over thieysas’
remaining service periods. Contract termination eiteér charges primarily reflect costs to termiramt®ontract before
the end of its term (measured at fair value atithe the Company provided notice to the counteypant costs that will
continue to be incurred under the contract foreteaining term without economic benefit to the Camp Asset
impairment charges related to intangible assetgamperty, plant and equipment reflect the excéskeassets’
carrying values over their fair values.

Revenue (sales) recognitionhe Company sells a wide range of products tosersified base of customers around the
world and has no material concentration of cradit.rRevenue is recognized when the risks and igsvafr ownership
have substantively transferred to customers. Tdnglition normally is met when the product has beelivered or upon
performance of services. The Company records etgthraductions to revenue or records expense &iomer and
distributor incentives, primarily comprised of rédmand free goods, at the time of the initial.sBleese sales incentives
are accounted for in accordance with ASC 6®&yenue Recognitioffhe estimated reductions of revenue for rebates
are based on the sales terms, historical experi¢nerel analysis and projected market conditiorthénvarious markets
served. Since the Company serves numerous mathketgbate programs offered vary across businelsset)je most
common incentive relates to amounts paid or crddiecustomers for achieving defined volume lewelgrowth
objectives. Free goods are accounted for as amegpnd recorded in cost of sales. Sales, uses-ealded and other
excise taxes are not recognized in revenue.

The vast majority of 3M’s sales agreements arastandard products and services with customer aageptoccurring
upon delivery of the product or performance of¢hevice. However, to a limited extent 3M also entato agreements
that involve multiple elements (such as equipmiestallation and service), software, or non-staddarms and
conditions.
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For non-software multiple-element arrangementsQbmpany recognizes revenue for delivered elemeinésn they
have stand-alone value to the customer, they hese Accepted by the customer, and for which thererdy
customary refund or return rights. Arrangement @ersition is allocated to the deliverables by usthe relative selling
price method. The selling price used for each @edilile is based on vendor-specific objective exiddWSOE) if
available, third-party evidence (TPE) if VSOE ig awailable, or estimated selling price if neitMSOE nor TPE is
available. Estimated selling price is determined imanner consistent with that used to establisiptite to sell the
deliverable on a standalone basis. In additioméoprreceding conditions, equipment revenue isewirded until the
installation has been completed if equipment acoege is dependent upon installation or if instaltats essential to the
functionality of the equipment. Installation revesware not recorded until installation has beenpbeted.

For arrangements (or portions of arrangementdpéplithin software revenue recognition standanufs that do not
involve significant production, modification, orstomization, revenue for each software or softwatated element is
recognized when the Company has VSOE of the fairevaf all of the undelivered elements and applieabiteria have
been met for the delivered elements. When the geraents involve significant production, modificatior
customization, long-term construction-type accauminvolving proportional performance is generatyployed.

For prepaid service contracts, sales revenue égréped on a straight-line basis over the ternhefdontract, unless
historical evidence indicates the costs are incuoreother than a straight-line basis. Licensadeenue is recognized
as earned, and no revenue is recognized untihtteption of the license term.

On occasion, agreements will contain milestoneSNowill recognize revenue based on proportionafgrenance. For
these agreements, and depending on the specifice)a&/ recognize revenue upon completion of a sulbist
milestone, or in proportion to costs incurred ttedaompared with the estimate of total costs tmberred.

Accounts receivable and allowancdsade accounts receivable are recorded at thededamount and do not bear
interest. The Company maintains allowances fordeduts, cash discounts, product returns and vadthes items. The
allowance for doubtful accounts and product retisrzased on the best estimate of the amount digie credit losses
in existing accounts receivable and anticipatedssedturns. The Company determines the allowarassdbon historical
write-off experience by industry and regional eamimdata and historical sales returns. The Compeawigws the
allowance for doubtful accounts monthly. The Compdoes not have any significant off-balance-shesdit exposure
related to its customers.

Advertising and merchandisin@hese costs are charged to operations in theerarred, and totaled $385 million in
2016, $368 million in 2015 and $407 million in 2014

Research, development and related experigesse costs are charged to operations in thegemorred and are shown
on a separate line of the Consolidated Statemelntcofme. Research, development and related expéotsésd $1.735
billion in 2016, $1.763 billion in 2015 and $1.7Billion in 2014. Research and development expertsr&ring basic
scientific research and the application of scientiflvances in the development of new and imprg@reducts and their
uses, totaled $1.225 billion in 2016, $1.223 hillio 2015 and $1.193 billion in 2014. Related exggsrprimarily
include technical support; internally developedepatosts, which include costs and fees incurrgdepare, file, secure
and maintain patents; amortization of externaliguiied patents and externally acquired in-processarch and
development; and gains/losses associated withic@daporate approved investments in R&D-relatedtwees, such as
equity method effects and impairments.

Internal-use softwareThe Company capitalizes direct costs of servigeslin the development of internal-use
software. Amounts capitalized are amortized oveerod of three to seven years, generally on agéiirdine basis,
unless another systematic and rational basis ie mguresentative of the software’s use. Amountseperted as a
component of either machinery and equipment ortablgiases within property, plant and equipment.

Environmental:Environmental expenditures relating to existingditions caused by past operations that do not
contribute to current or future revenues are exp@nReserves for liabilities related to anticipatehediation costs are
recorded on an undiscounted basis when they almpl® and reasonably estimable, generally no tfager the
completion of feasibility studies, the Company’sreonitment to a plan of action, or approval by retpaagencies.
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Environmental expenditures for capital projects ttumtribute to current or future operations gelgee capitalized
and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Income taxesThe provision for income taxes is determined usiregasset and liability approach. Under this appino
deferred income taxes represent the expected ftaxnreonsequences of temporary differences betweeocarrying
amounts and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Jdmpany records a valuation allowance to redsageferred tax
assets when uncertainty regarding their realizgislkists. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the@my had
valuation allowances of $47 million and $31 million its deferred tax assets, respectively. Theeas® in valuation
allowance at December 31, 2016 relates to cemamriational jurisdictions with taxable loss caoryfards that are
expected to expire prior to utilization. The Compagcognizes and measures its uncertain tax posibased on the
rules under ASC 740ncome Taxes

Earnings per shareThe difference in the weighted average 3M shan¢standing for calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddlels is the result of the dilution associatedchwvlite Company’s
stock-based compensation plans. Certain optiorstanding under these stock-based compensation ghlaimg the
years 2016, 2015 and 2014 were not included ircdingputation of diluted earnings per share attribetéo 3M
common shareholders because they would have hadtadilutive effect (3.6 million average optiors 2016, 5.0
million average options for 2015, and 1.4 millioreeage options for 2014. The computations for basit diluted
earnings per share for the years ended Decembiefl@d:

Earnings Per Share Computations

(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014
Numerator
Net income attributable to 3M $ 5050 $ 4833 $ 4,956
Denominator:
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanéstanding- basic 604.7 625.6 649.2
Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basetipensation plans 14.0 11.6 12.8
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanéstanding- dilutec 618.7 637.2 662.0
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddehs— basic $ 835 $ 772 % 7.63
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common siwddehns— diluted $ 8.16 $ 758 $ 7.49

Stock-based compensatiorhe Company recognizes compensation expense fetoitk-based compensation programs,
which include stock options, restricted stock,niettd stock units, performance shares, and theeéEmployees’

Stock Purchase Plan (GESPP). Under applicable atingustandards, the fair value of share-based eosgtion is
determined at the grant date and the recogniticdheofelated expense is recorded over the periadhioh the share-
based compensation vests. Refer to the New Acamgifionouncements section that follows for discussi

Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 201646$rovements to Employee Share-Based Payment Aaogumhich
3M adopted on January 1, 2016.

Comprehensive incom&otal comprehensive income and the componentsafraulated other comprehensive income
(loss) are presented in the Consolidated Stateafeddmprehensive Income and the Consolidated Seateof

Changes in Equity. Accumulated other compreherisiseme (loss) is composed of foreign currency tedion effects
(including hedges of net investments in internalaompanies), defined benefit pension and postregnt plan
adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on alexfaisale debt and equity securities, and urzedligains and losses
on cash flow hedging instruments.

Derivatives and hedging activitiedll derivative instruments within the scope of ABC5, Derivatives and Hedging

are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value Cdmpany uses interest rate swaps, currency anchodity price
swaps, and foreign currency forward and option reat$ to manage risks generally associated wittigarexchange
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rate, interest rate and commaodity market volatilitlf hedging instruments that qualify for hedgeagnting are
designated and effective as hedges, in accordaiticévE. generally accepted accounting principlethe underlying
hedged transaction ceases to exist, all chanda# ialue of the related derivatives that have lrextn settled are
recognized in current earnings. Instruments thatatajualify for hedge accounting are marked tokagwith changes
recognized in current earnings. Cash flows fronivag¢ive instruments are classified in the statenedémash flows in
the same category as the cash flows from the iseriect to designated hedge or undesignated (edonbetge
relationships. The Company does not hold or issuvative financial instruments for trading purpssad is not a
party to leveraged derivatives.

Credit risk: The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interetst ra
swaps, currency swaps, commodity price swaps, @aneafd and option contracts. However, the Compariglsis
limited to the fair value of the instruments. Then@pany actively monitors its exposure to credk tlwough the use of
credit approvals and credit limits, and by selagtimjor international banks and financial instiias as counterparties.
3M enters into master netting arrangements wittaparties when possible to mitigate credit riskiérivative
transactions. A master netting arrangement mawadiach counterparty to net settle amounts oweddsstva 3M entity
and the counterparty as a result of multiple, sspaderivative transactions. The Company doesmiatipate
nonperformance by any of these counterparties. 88/ehected to present the fair value of derivadisgets and
liabilities within the Company’s consolidated batarsheet on a gross basis even when derivativesitions are
subject to master netting arrangements and maywigequalify for net presentation.

Fair value measurement8M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyregth respect to assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on@irgng basis and nonrecurring basis. Under thedstal, fair value is
defined as the exit price, or the amount that wdngldeceived to sell an asset or paid to transfiabdity in an orderly
transaction between market participants as of thasarement date. The standard also establishesaadiy for inputs
used in measuring fair value that maximizes theafisdservable inputs and minimizes the use of sankable inputs
by requiring that the most observable inputs bel wggen available. Observable inputs are inputs atgrérticipants
would use in valuing the asset or liability deveddipased on market data obtained from sourceséndept of the
Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reffecCompany’s assumptions about the factors madwticipants
would use in valuing the asset or liability deveddased upon the best information available irciteamstances. The
hierarchy is broken down into three levels. Levéifduts are quoted prices (unadjusted) in activeketa for identical
assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs include qubpeices for similar assets or liabilities in aetimarkets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities irankets that are not active, and inputs (other thated prices) that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikgor indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservalsiputs for the asset or
liability. Categorization within the valuation hachy is based upon the lowest level of input thatgnificant to the
fair value measurement.

Acquisitions:The Company accounts for business acquisitionsdordance with ASC 80RBusiness Combinations
This standard requires the acquiring entity in sifiess combination to recognize all (and only)assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the transaction and esthbtighe acquisition-date fair value as the measemeobjective for all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a bssio@mbination. Certain provisions of this stangamscribe, among
other things, the determination of acquisition-datevalue of consideration paid in a business limation (including
contingent consideration) and the exclusion ofdaation and acquisition-related restructuring cisi: acquisition
accounting.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsf@8q&ASB) issued ASU No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with
Customersand in August 2015 issued ASU No. 2015-14, whictended the standard as to effective date. The ASU
provides a single comprehensive model to be us#tkiaccounting for revenue arising from contragth customers
and supersedes most current revenue recognitialages, including industry-specific guidance. Thndard's stated
core principle is that an entity should recognizeéenue to depict the transfer of promised goodeprices to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration toctviihe entity expects to be entitled in exchangehose goods or
services. To achieve this core principle the AStludes provisions within a five step model thatudes identifying

the contract with a customer, identifying the parfance obligations in the contract, determiningtthasaction price,
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allocating the transaction price to the performasigigations, and recognizing revenue when (omasntity satisfies a
performance obligation. The standard also spedifiesaccounting for some costs to obtain or fulfitontract with a
customer and requires expanded disclosures abauiatiuire, amount, timing and uncertainty of reveame cash flows
arising from contracts with customers. During 20th&, FASB also issued ASU No. 2016-88incipal versus Agent
Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus ASt) No. 2016-10ldentifying Performance Obligations and
Licensing ASU No. 2016-12Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedjertd ASU No. 2016-20,echnical
Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revémue Contracts with Customevghich amend ASU No. 2014-09.
These amendments include clarification of princigalus agent guidance in situations in which amee transaction
involves a third party in providing goods or seedgdo a customer. In such circumstances, an entist determine
whether the nature of its promise to the customés provide the underlying goods or services, (it entity is the
principal in the transaction) or to arrange for thied party to provide the underlying goods owsegs (i.e., the entity is
the agent in the transaction). The amendmentdglariterms of identifying performance obligatigi®w entities
would determine whether promised goods or senaceseparately identifiable from other promisea @ontract and,
therefore, would be accounted for separately. Tdamce allows entities to disregard goods or ses/that are
immaterial in the context of a contract and proside accounting policy election to account for pliig and handling
activities as fulfillment costs rather than as #iddal promised services. With regard to the litegsthe amendments
clarify how an entity would evaluate the naturét®foromise in granting a license of intellectusdgerty, which
determines whether the entity recognizes reveneetawe or at a point in time. The amendments atidress
implementation issues relative to transition (agdirpractical expedient for contract modificatiansl clarifying what
constitutes a completed contract when employinigofumodified retrospective transition methods)jexability,
noncash consideration, and the presentation of salé other similar-type taxes (allowing entitieexclude sales-type
taxes collected from transaction price). Finalhe amendments make certain technical correctiompeovide
additional guidance in the areas of disclosureesfggmance obligations, provisions for losses amtade types of
contracts, scoping, and other areas. Overall, ABU2014-09, as amended, provides for either falbspective
adoption or a modified retrospective adoption bychtit is applied only to the most current periocégented. For 3M,
the ASU is effective January 1, 2018. The Compargontinuing to evaluate the standard’s impactMis3
consolidated results of operations and financiad#@on. 3M has conducted initial analyses, devetbproject
management relative to the process of adoptingA8id, and is currently completing detailed contnastiews to
determine necessary adjustments to existing acicmupblicies and to support an evaluation of tlendard’s impact on
the Company’s consolidated results of operatiomsferancial condition. For the majority of 3M’s renue
arrangements, no significant impacts are expecétese transactions are not accounted for undasiry-specific
guidance that will be superseded by the ASU anégdly consist of a single performance obligatioransfer
promised goods or services. However, in additioexjganded disclosures regarding revenue, the ASild cfor
example, impact the timing of revenue recognitimséme arrangements for which software industrgifipguidance
(which the ASU supersedes) is presently utilizése Tompany currently anticipates utilizing the nfiedi retrospective
method of adoption on January 1, 2018.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015A18endments to the Consolidation Analygisich changes
guidance related to both the variable interestye(MIE) and voting interest entity (VOE) consoltaa models. With
respect to the VIE model, the standard changeshgmther things, the identification of variableergsts associated
with fees paid to a decision maker or service ptexnithe VIE characteristics for a limited partonesimilar entity, and
the primary beneficiary determination. With respiecthe VOE model, the ASU eliminates the presuampthat a
general partner controls a limited partnershipimilar entity unless the presumption can otherdlieevercome. Under
the new guidance, a general partner would largefycansolidate a partnership or similar entity urttie VOE model.
The Company adopted this ASU effective Januaryd162Because 3M did not have significant involvetheith
entities subject to consolidation considerationganted by the VIE model changes or with limitediparships
potentially impacted by the VOE model changesaitheption did not have a material impact on the Camygis
consolidated results of operations and financialaon.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@ustomer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Agament

which requires a customer to determine whetheoadctomputing arrangement contains a software sieelfi the
arrangement contains a software license, the cestamuld account for fees related to the softwimenike element in a
manner consistent with accounting for the acqoisitif other acquired software licenses. If therageanent does not
contain a software license, the customer would @atcfor the arrangement as a service contract.rlfangement would
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contain a software license element if both (1)ahstomer has the contractual right to take possessithe software at
any time during the hosting period without sigrafit penalty and (2) it is feasible for the custoitoegither run the
software on its own hardware or contract with aapftarty unrelated to the vendor to host the soBw8M adopted this
ASU prospectively to arrangements entered intonaterially modified beginning January 1, 2016. &deption did not
have a material impact on 3M’s consolidated resfligperations and financial condition.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-&implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modifies existing
requirements regarding measuring inventory atalet of cost or market. Under existing standatus,nharket amount
requires consideration of replacement cost, ndizedde value (NRV), and NRV less an approximatabymal profit
margin. The new ASU replaces market with NRV, defims estimated selling prices in the ordinary s®arf business,
less reasonably predictable costs of completi@patial and transportation. This eliminates the neeldtermine and
consider replacement cost or NRV less an approgimabrmal profit margin when measuring inventdfgr 3M, this
standard is effective prospectively beginning Jan@a2017. The Company does not expect this AShaie a material
impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operatioms #nancial condition.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial Assetskandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) thesification and measurement of investments iritgqu
securities and (2) the presentation of certainvaine changes for financial liabilities measuretha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements assdaiath the fair value of financial instrument$i€Tnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmiengg|uity securities and other ownership intergstmn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpedgbint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation anelnot accounted for under the equity methodti&sntvill need to
measure these investments and recognize chanégs\value in net income. Entities will no longez hble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity #@uthey classify under current guidance as abl for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdoity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair valllestead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicépiexception and
measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslusnus observable price changes (in orderlystations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondasclosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the fa@mlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OCpitr¢ion of the total fair value change attributatdénstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting thére amount in earnings. For derivative liabikti®r which the FVO has
been elected, however, any changes in fair valubatable to instrument-specific credit risk wowdntinue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent witlnent guidance. For 3M, this standard is effectigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company isenily assessing
this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated results p&mtions and financial condition.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016L@2sesreplacing existing lease accounting guidance. ridve
standard introduces a lessee model that would nregutities to recognize assets and liabilitiesfiost leases, but
recognize expenses on their income statementsnanamer similar to current accounting. The ASU dustsmake
fundamental changes to existing lessor accountiogvever, it modifies what qualifies as a sales-tgpd direct
financing lease and related accounting and alignsnaber of the underlying principles with thoset new revenue
standard, ASU No. 2014-09, such as evaluating halleatability should be considered and determinifgen profit can
be recognized. The guidance eliminates existingastate-specific provisions and requires expanpeditative and
quantitative disclosures. The standard requiresifiradd-etrospective transition by which it is amliat the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented in tlae geadoption. For 3M, the ASU is effective Jaryubr2019.
Information under existing lease guidance with eg$po rent expense for operating leases and thgp@oy’s minimum
lease payments for capital and operating leasdsneii-cancelable terms in excess one year as afitser 31, 2016 is
included in Note 14. The Company is currently asiegsthis ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated resoft®perations
and financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-06ntingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instrumeriisis ASU
clarifies guidance used to determine if debt insgnts that contain contingent put or call optiosald require
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separation of the embedded put or call feature ftwardebt instrument and trigger accounting forfeaure as a
derivative with changes in fair value recorded tigloincome. Under the new guidance, fewer put hiogdions
embedded in debt instruments would require dexigadccounting. For 3M, this ASU is effective Jayuhr2017. The
Company’s outstanding debt with embedded put pravisdoes not require separate derivative accayiniier
existing guidance. As a result, 3M does not explestASU to have a material impact on the Companygissolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-8implifying the Transition to the Equity MethodAattounting
which eliminates the existing requirement to apghky equity method of accounting retrospectivelyi§iag prior
periods as if the equity method had always beetie)pvhen an entity obtains significant influermeer a previously
held investment. The new guidance would requirarthiestor to apply the equity method prospectiedyn the date
the investment qualifies for the equity method. ihestor would add the carrying value of the emgsinvestment to
the cost of any additional investment to deterntivgeinitial cost basis of the equity method investtm For 3M, this
ASU is effective January 1, 2017 on a prospectagd) with early adoption permitted. 3M would apibiis guidance to
investments that transition to the equity methddrahe adoption date.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016409rovements to Employee Share-Based Payment Agagpun
which modifies certain accounting aspects for stxased payments to employees including, among etkarents, the
accounting for income taxes and forfeitures, ag agtlassifications in the statement of cash floiwih respect to
income taxes, under current guidance, when a dyased payment award such as a stock option oictestistock unit
(RSU) is granted to an employee, the fair valuthefaward is generally recognized over the vegiargpd. However,
the related deduction from taxes payable is baseti@award’s intrinsic value at the time of exsedffor an option) or
on the fair value upon vesting of the award (fotJ8% which can be either greater (creating an extaesbenefit) or
less (creating a tax deficiency) than the compémsabst recognized in the financial statementselss tax benefits are
recognized in additional paid-in capital (APIC) kit equity, and tax deficiencies are similarly rgaized in APIC to
the extent there is a sufficient APIC amount (APIEDI) related to previously recognized excess tmefits. Under the
new guidance, all excess tax benefits/deficiensi@sid be recognized as income tax benefit/expamdes statement of
income. The new ASU’s income tax aspects also itnh@ccalculation of diluted earnings per shareksiuding excess
tax benefits/deficiencies from the calculation s§amed proceeds available to repurchase sharesthedecasury
stock method. Relative to forfeitures, the new déad allows an entity-wide accounting policy elenteither to
continue to estimate the number of awards thatheilforfeited or to account for forfeitures as tloegur. The new
guidance also impacts classifications within tleesnent of cash flows by no longer requiring inidanof excess tax
benefits as both a hypothetical cash outflow wittash flows from operating activities and hypottedtcash inflow
within cash flows from financing activities. Insteaxcess tax benefits would be classified in dpegactivities in the
same manner as other cash flows related to incarest Additionally, the new ASU requires cash payséo tax
authorities when an employer uses a net-settlefeahire to withhold shares to meet statutory takhalding
provisions to be presented as financing activitiyni@ating previous diversity in practice). For 3hhjs standard is
required effective January 1, 2017, with early @adwoppermitted. The Company early adopted ASU N31.6209 as of
January 1, 2016. Prospectively beginning Janua?p16, excess tax benefits/deficiencies have beflacted as income
tax benefit/expense in the statement of incomeltiagun a $184 million tax benefit in 2016. Thetent of excess tax
benefits/deficiencies is subject to variation in 3Mck price and timing/extent of RSU vestings amployee stock
option exercises. 3M’'s adoption of this ASU alssulted in associated excess tax benefits beingifitbas operating
activity in the same manner as other cash flowatedlto income taxes in the statement of cash fiowspectively
beginning January 1, 2016. Based on the adoptidhadelogy applied, the statement of cash flowssifestion of

prior periods has not changed. In addition, 3Mmbitl change its accounting principles relative tmednts of this
standard and continued its existing practice dfregtng the number of awards that will be forfeited

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016M8asurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruevhich
revises guidance for the accounting for creditdsssn financial instruments within its scope. The/rstandard
introduces an approach, based on expected lossestihate credit losses on certain types of fiimestruments and
modifies the impairment model for available-foresdkebt securities. The new approach to estimatiedjtdosses
(referred to as the current expected credit lossmtel) applies to most financial assets measuradattized cost and
certain other instruments, including trade and otbeeivables, loans, held-to-maturity debt seigsjtnet investments
in leases and off-balance-sheet credit exposuréh.rdspect to available-for-sale (AFS) debt sdimsj the ASU
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amends the current other-than-temporary impairmedel. For such securities with unrealized lossesties will still
consider if a portion of any impairment is relatedy to credit losses and therefore recognizedrasglaction in income.
However, rather than also reflecting that credislamount as a permanent reduction in cost (aredrtiast) basis of
that AFS debt security, the ASU requires that ¢redises be reflected as an allowance. As a rasudgr certain
circumstances, a recovery in value could resyttr@vious allowances, or portions thereof, reversiagk into income.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2020, wadrly adoption permitted. Entities are requiredpply the
standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjastt to retained earnings as of the beginning efitist reporting
period in which the guidance is adopted. The Comgmourrently assessing this ASU’s impact on 3kbssolidated
result of operations and financial condition.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-QBssification of Certain Cash Receipts and CashirRentswhich
is intended to reduce diversity in practice in haertain cash receipts and payments are presenteclassified in the
statement of cash flows. The standard providesaguiel in a number of situations including, among@hsettlement of
zero-coupon bonds, contingent consideration paysmeate after a business combination, proceedstirersettlement
of insurance claims, and distributions receivednfequity method investees. The ASU also providédamee for
classifying cash receipts and payments that hgwecss of more than one class of cash flows. FortBM,ASU is
effective January 1, 2018, with early adoption gad. The standard requires application usingmspective
transition method. The Company does not expectA8id to have a material impact on 3M’s consolidatsllts of
operations and financial condition.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016ti8a-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventavhich
modifies existing guidance and is intended to rediigersity in practice with respect to the accoygfor the income
tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of as3dte ASU indicates that the current exceptioim¢ome tax
accounting that requires companies to defer thenmectax effects of certain intercompany transastiwould apply only
to intercompany inventory transactions. That is,eRkception would no longer apply to intercompaalgs and transfers
of other assets (e.g., intangible assets). Undeetisting exception, income tax expense assocvwitbdntra-entity
profits in an intercompany sale or transfer of tssigeeliminated from earnings. Instead, that codeferred and
recorded on the balance sheet (e.g., as a pregsat) aintil the assets leave the consolidated g®ingilarly, the entity
is prohibited from recognizing deferred tax as$atshe increases in tax bases due to the interaognpale or transfer.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2018, watrly adoption permitted as of January 1, 201& Sthndard
requires modified retrospective transition withusnzilative catch-up adjustment to opening retairegdiags in the
period of adoption. Upon adoption, a company waulide off any income tax effects that had been aefkfrom past
intercompany transactions involving non-inventosgets to opening retained earnings. In additiomraity would
record deferred tax assets with an offset to ogeretained earnings for amounts that entity hagipusly not
recognized under existing guidance but would rezmgander the new guidance. While 3M could initiatiglitional
relevant transactions prior to this ASU’s adoptifate, based on deferred tax amounts related tacapfe past
intercompany transactions as of December 31, 20&86Company does not expect this ASU to have ariabiepact

on 3M’s consolidated results of operations andrfai@ condition.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016ttferests Held through Related Parties That Arearfdommon
Control, which modifies existing guidance with respechtav a decision maker that holds an indirect intdrea
variable interest entity (VIE) through a common ttohparty determines whether it is the primary éf@iary of the

VIE as part of the analysis of whether the VIE vebnéed to be consolidated. Under the ASU, a dectisiaker would
need to consider only its proportionate indiret¢iiast in the VIE held through a common controtypd?Previous
guidance had required the decision maker to theatdmmon control party’s interest in the VIE athéd decision maker
held the interest itself. As a result of the AStUcertain cases, previous consolidation conclusioag change. For 3M,
the standard is effective January 1, 2017 witlosgtective application to January 1, 2016. 3M da¢save significant
involvement with entities subject to consolidatammsiderations impacted by VIE model factors. Assult, 3M does
not expect this ASU to have a material impact en@ompany’s consolidated results of operationsfimaahcial
condition.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R&stricted Cashwhich clarifies guidance on the classification

and presentation of restricted cash in the statenferash flows. Under the ASU, changes in regidatash and
restricted cash equivalents would be included alwitiy those of cash and cash equivalents in therstnt of cash
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flows. As a result, entities would no longer preédesnsfers between cash/equivalents and restraasi/equivalents in
the statement of cash flows. In addition, a red@iimin between the balance sheet and the statesfieash flows
would be disclosed when the balance sheet incloabee than one line item for cash/equivalents asttioted
cash/equivalents. For 3M, this ASU is effectiveulay 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Easitare required to
apply the standard’s provisions on a retrospediags. 3M does not expect this ASU to have a natenpact on the
Company’s consolidated results of operations amahitial condition.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017e)4rifying the Definition of a Businesahich narrows the existing
definition of a business and provides a frameworlefvaluating whether a transaction should be atteoiufor as an
acquisition (or disposal) of assets or a businElss.ASU requires an entity to evaluate if substdlytall of the fair

value of the gross assets acquired is concentiai@gingle identifiable asset or a group of simidentifiable assets; if
s0, the set of transferred assets and activit@ie(tively, the set) is not a business. To be mred a business, the set
would need to include an input and a substantieegss that together significantly contribute todbdity to create
outputs. The standard also narrows the definitfomutputs. The definition of a business affectsaaref accounting such
as acquisitions, disposals and goodwill. Undemiiw guidance, fewer acquired sets are expected tomsidered
businesses. For 3M, this ASU is effective Januai3018 on a prospective basis with early adoptienmgited. 3M

would apply this guidance to applicable transactiafter the adoption date.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 20178Mhplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairmettnder the new
standard, goodwill impairment would be measurethasamount by which a reporting unit's carryingueakxceeds its
fair value, not to exceed the carrying value ofdeitl. This ASU eliminates existing guidance thauires an entity to
determine goodwill impairment by calculating thepirad fair value of goodwill by hypothetically agsing the fair
value of a reporting unit to all of its assets &adilities as if that reporting unit had been aicgd in a business
combination. For 3M, this ASU is effective prospeely to impairment tests beginning January 1, 20@th early
adoption permitted. 3M would apply this guidancepplicable impairment tests after the adoptiore dat

NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses frome to time that are aligned with its strategic mt&ith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacerdyat lines or technologies.

Goodwill resulting from business combinations ig&y attributable to the existing workforce of thequired
businesses and synergies expected to arise afterag@iguisition of these businesses. Pro forma métion related to
acquisitions was not included because the impath@©ompany’s consolidated results of operatioas mot
considered to be material.

In addition to business combinations, 3M periodycatquires certain tangible and/or intangible tsaed purchases
interests in certain enterprises that do not otlsngualify for accounting as business combinatidihese transactions
are largely reflected as additional asset purchagdenvestment activity.

2016 acquisitions:

During 2016, 3M completed the acquisition of SeméNnAG and Sembrowser AG (collectively “Semfindealdng
with an additional immaterial acquisition, the insfsaof which on the consolidated balance sheet watreonsidered
material. In September 2016, 3M (Health Care Bsshacquired all of the outstanding shares of Sedtwfi
headquartered in Kreuzlingen, Switzerland. Semfiigla leading developer of precision software #ratbles efficient
coding of medical procedures in multiple languadé® purchase price paid for these business comitisa(net of
cash acquired) during 2016 aggregated to $16 millio

Adjustments in 2016 to the preliminary purchasegaéllocations of other acquisitions within thevedition period

primarily related to the identification of contingdiabilities and certain tax-related items ag@titg to approximately
$35 million along with other balances related ® 2015 acquisition of Capital Safety Group S.A.R.he change to
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provisional amounts resulted in an immaterial impgadhe results of operations in the third quaoe2016, a portion of
which related to earlier quarters in the measuremperiod.

Purchased identifiable finite-lived intangible asselated to acquisition activity in 2016 totafetimillion. The
associated finite-lived intangible assets acquineZD16 will be amortized on a systematic and ratidasis (generally
straight line) over a weighted-average life of &nge(lives ranging from two to 20 years). Acquinegbrocess research
and development and identifiable intangible asfetahich significant assumed renewals or extersioiunderlying
arrangements impacted the determination of thefuliives were not material.

2015 acquisitions:

In March 2015, 3M (Health Care Business) purchadleaf the outstanding shares of Ivera Medical Corp
headquartered in San Diego, California. Ivera Mald@orp. is a manufacturer of health care prodiasdisinfect and
protect devices used for access into a patientsddtream. In addition, in the first quarter of 203M (Industrial
Business) purchased the remaining interest inradoequity method investment for an immaterial antou

In August 2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Businesguied all of the outstanding shares of CapitdéyaGroup
S.A.R.L., with operating headquarters in Bloomimgt®Minnesota, from KKR & Co. L.P. for $1.7 billiongt of cash
acquired. The net assets acquired included thergtgn of $0.8 billion of debt. Capital Safety isemding global
provider of fall protection equipment.

In August 2015, 3M (Industrial Business) acquireel assets and liabilities associated with Polyjaernational, Inc.’s
Separations Media business (hereafter referred Meanbrana), headquartered in Wuppertal, GermanyX.0 billion.
Membrana is a leading provider of microporous membs and modules for filtration in the life sciemdadustrial and
specialty segments.

The impact on the consolidated balance sheet giuhehase price allocations related to 2015 adipisi and assigned
weighted-average intangible asset lives, includidgistments relative to other acquisitions witthie measurement
period, follows. Adjustments in 2015 to the preliauiy allocations primarily related to the identfiion and valuation
of certain indefinite-lived intangible assets. Tdmange to provisional amounts resulted in an imriztenpact to
results of operations in the fourth quarter of 204 portion of which relates to earlier quarterghia measurement
period.
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2015 Acquisition Activity

Finite-Lived
Intangible-
Asset
Weighted-
(Millions) Capital Polypore Separations Average
Asset (Liability) Safety Media (Membrana) Other Total Lives (Years)
Accounts receivable $ 66 $ 30 $ 7 $ 103
Inventory 63 35 4 102
Other current assets 10 1 1 12
Property, plant, and equipment 36 128 7 171
Purchased finite-lived intangible assets:
Customer related intangible assets 445 270 40 755 16
Patents 44 11 7 62 7
Other technology-based intangible assets 85 42 1 128 7
Definite-lived tradenames 26 6 1 33 16
Other amortizable intangible assets — — 2 2 4
Purchased indefinite-lived intangible assets 520 — — 520
Purchased goodwill 1,764 636 95 2,495
Accounts payable and other liabilities, net of othe
assets (105, (122 (5) (232
Interest bearing debt (766) — — (766)
Deferred tax asset/(liability) (464 — (7) (471
Net assets acquire $ 1,724 $ 1,037 $ 153 $ 2,914
Supplemental information:
Cash paid $ 1,758 $ 1,037 $ 154 $ 2,949
Less: Cash acquired 34 — 1 35
Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 1,724 % 1,037 $ 153 $ 2,914

Purchased identifiable finite-lived intangible asselated to acquisition activity in 2015 totafHO0 billion. The
associated finite-lived intangible assets acquineZD15 will be amortized on a systematic and ratidasis (generally
straight line) over a weighted-average life of Bans (lives ranging from two to 20 years). Indeéidived intangible
assets of $520 million relate to certain tradenaasssciated with the Capital Safety acquisitioncltiiave been in
existence for over 55 years, have a history ofifeptharket-share positions, have been and aredatkto be
continuously renewed, and the associated proddiethioch are expected to generate cash flows forf@\an indefinite
period of time. Acquired in-process research anegid@ment and identifiable intangible assets forchIsignificant
assumed renewals or extensions of underlying agrapgts impacted the determination of their uséfaklwere not
material.

2014 acquisitions:

3M completed one business combination during 2@ilimpact of which on the consolidated balancetsivas not
considered material. In April 2014, 3M (Health CBusiness) purchased all of the outstanding eduigrests of Treo
Solutions LLC, headquartered in Troy, New York.d ®olutions LLC is a provider of data analytics &nudiness
intelligence to healthcare payers and providerg. girchase price paid for this business combingtiehof cash
acquired) and the impact of other matters (netindu2014 aggregated to $94 million.

Separately, as discussed in Note 6, during 20140\80Sumitomo 3M Limited) purchased Sumitomo Hliect
Industries, Ltd.’s 25 percent interest in 3M’s colidated Sumitomo 3M Limited subsidiary for 90 tmh Japanese Yen.
Because 3M already had a controlling interest i ¢bnsolidated subsidiary, this transaction wasssely recorded as
a financing activity in the statement of cash flows

Purchased identifiable finite-lived intangible @sselated to acquisition activity in 2014 totak@¥ million. The

associated finite-lived intangible assets acquineZD14 will be amortized on a systematic and ratidasis (generally
straight line) over a weighted-average life of wars (lives ranging from three to 10 years). Aceglin-process
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research and development and identifiable intaegiskets for which significant assumed renewadxi@nsions of
underlying arrangements impacted the determinatfidheir useful lives were not material.

Divestitures:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to tirased upon review of the Company’s portfolio coasity, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftsga and technological alignment and optimizatibeapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellifgtbusinesses results in the greatest value andfatithe Company and
for shareholders.

In January 2015, 3M (Electronics and Energy Businesmpleted the sale of its global Static Corlbidiness to Desco
Industries Inc., based in Chino, California. 20&#s of this business were $46 million. This tratisa was not
considered material.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, 3M (Safety and GieplBusiness) entered into agreements with Onet¥{gairtners
Capital Advisors L.P. (OEP) to sell the assetsMfs3library systems business. The sales of the INArherican
business and the majority of the business outditoth America closed in October and November 20&5Spectively.
The sale of the remainder of the library systensrimss closed in the first quarter of 2016 (diseddsarther below). In
December 2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Businese)ampleted the sale of Faab Fabricauto, a wiellyed
subsidiary of 3M, to Hills Numberplates Limited. & hibrary systems business, part of the Traffie8afnd Security
Division, delivers circulation management solutibméibrary customers with on-premise hardware software,
maintenance and service, and an emerging cloudiahigital lending platform. Faab Fabricauto, alsotf the Traffic
Safety and Security Division, is a leading Frenanuafacturer of license plates and signage solutibhe aggregate
cash proceeds relative to the 2015 global librgsgfesns and Faab Fabricauto divestiture transactiass$104 million.
The Company recorded a net pre-tax gain of $40anillapproximately $10 million after tax) in 2015 a result of the
sale and any adjustment of carrying value.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M (Safety and GraglBusiness) completed the sale of the remaindirecdissets of 3M'’s
library systems business to One Equity Partnerst@lajdvisors L.P. (OEP). 3M had previously sol@ tRorth
American business and the majority of the busioesside of North America to OEP in the fourth geaxf 2015. The
library systems business delivers circulation managnt solutions to library customers with on-prentiardware and
software, maintenance and service, and an emectpng-based digital lending platform. Also in thiesf quarter of
2016, 3M (Industrial Business) sold to Innovativiee@ical Products Group, a portfolio company of AuBaivate
Equity, the assets of 3M’s pressurized polyuretifaaen adhesives business (formerly known as Pafgfodhis
business is a provider of pressurized polyurettiaam adhesive formulations and systems into thideasal roofing,
commercial roofing and insulation and industriafosegments in the United States with annual sélagproximately
$20 million. The Company recorded a pre-tax gaif4d million in the first quarter of 2016 as a restfithe sales of
these businesses (recorded in selling, generahdmihistrative expenses).

In October 2016, 3M (Industrial Business) sold dlsets of its temporary protective films busined8regis LLC. This
business, with annual sales of approximately $390omj is a provider of adhesive-backed temporawmtective films
used in a broad range of industries. In Decemb#628M (Electronics and Energy Business) sold #&ets of its
cathode battery technology out-licensing businegts, annual sales of approximately $10 millionUdMICORE. The
aggregate selling price relative to these two trsgas was $86 million. The Company recorded agxrgdin of $71
million in the fourth quarter of 2016 as a restltre sales of these businesses (recorded ingetlaneral and
administrative expenses).

In December 2016, 3M (Safety and Graphics Busir@sspunced that it agreed to sell its identity ng@naent business
to Gemalto N.V. for $850 million, subject to clogiand other adjustments. This business, with 28l ©f
approximately $205 million, is a leader in identit,anagement solutions providing biometric hardveare software that
enable identity verification and authenticationwasdl as secure materials and document readerstrahsaction is
expected to close during the first half of 2017J&muary 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics Businedd)tbe assets of its
safety prescription eyewear business, with anralaksof approximately $45 million, to HOYA Visiora@. The
Company expects a pre-tax gain of approximatelyd$860lion as a result of these two divestiturese Bmounts of

74



major assets and liabilities associated with thiksigosal groups classified as held-for-sale aseafeinber 31, 2016
include accounts receivable; property, plant andmgent (net); intangible assets; and deferredmaedother current
liabilities) of approximately $25 million, $25 miitin, $35 million, and $35 million, respectively. &ddition,
approximately $270 million of goodwill is estimattlbe attributable to these businesses as of Deee®l, 2016
based upon relative fair value. These amounts havbeen segregated and are classified withinxistirg
corresponding line items on the Company’s constdidldalance sheéthe aggregate operating income of these two
businesses was less than $20 million in each 0622015 and 2014.

NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Purchased goodwill from acquisitions totaled $14iom in 2016, none of which is deductible for taurposes. The
acquisition activity in the following table alsocindes the net impact of adjustments to the prakmyi allocation of
purchase price within the one year measurementgéoilowing prior acquisitions, which increasecogwill by $39
million during 2016. Purchased goodwill from acdtidsis totaled $2.5 billion in 2015, $636 milliof which is
deductible for tax purposes. The amounts in thati$lation and other” column in the following taplémarily relate to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Thdwitidalance by business segment follows:

Goodwill

Dec. 31, 2015 2015 Dec. 31, 2016 2016 Dec. 31,

2014 acquisition translation 2015 acquisition translation 2016

(Millions) Balance activity and other  Balance activity and other  Balance
Industrial $2042 $ 637 $ (106 $2,573 $ — $ (37, $2,536
Safety and Graphics 1,650 1,764 (72) 3,342 41 (59) 3,324
Health Care 1,589 94 (59) 1,624 12 (27, 1,609
Electronics and Energy 1,554 — (44) 1,510 — (21) 1,489
Consumer 215 — (15 200 — 8 208
Total Company ¥,050 $ 2,495 $ (296) $9,249 $ 53 $ (136) $9,166

Accounting standards require that goodwill be ®@$te impairment annually and between annual testertain
circumstances such as a change in reporting untteedesting of recoverability of a significansasgroup within a
reporting unit. At 3M, reporting units correspodat division.

As described in Note 16, effective in the first gaaof 2016, the Company changed its business asegraporting in its
continuing effort to improve the alignment of itsdinesses around markets and customers. For adygtrchanges that
resulted in reporting unit changes, the Companyieghphe relative fair value method to determine ithhpact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units. Durthg first quarter of 2016, the Company completecdgsessment of
any potential goodwill impairment for reporting tsmimpacted by this new structure and determinatirib impairment
existed. The Company also completed its annual gildchpairment test in the fourth quarter of 20ft8 all reporting
units and determined that no impairment existe@ddition, the Company had no impairments of gotidwprior
years.
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Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizaticacgtiired finite-lived intangible assets, in adiitio the balance
of non-amortizable intangible assets, as of Decer@bgfollow:

(Millions) 2016 2015
Customer related intangible assets $ 1,939 $ 1,973
Patents 602 616
Other technology-based intangible assets 524 525
Definite-lived tradenames 420 421
Other amortizable intangible assets 211 216
Total gross carrying amount $ 3,696 $ 3,751
Accumulated amortization — customer related (797) (668)
Accumulated amortization — patents (497 (481
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (302) (252)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (236, (215
Accumulated amortization — other (173) (169)
Total accumulated amortization $ (2,005 $ (1,785
Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1,691 $ 1,966
Non-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 629 635
Total intangible assets — net $ 2320 $ 2,601

Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amortieeduse they have been in existence for over &3 ykave a
history of leading-market share positions, haventse® are intended to be continuously renewedftendssociated
products of which are expected to generate castsffor 3M for an indefinite period of time.

Amortization expense for the years ended DecembéolBws:

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Amortization expense $ 262 $ 229 $ 228

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdntgzatangible assets recorded as of December®H llows:

After
(Millions) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2021
Amortization expense $ 223 202 $ 190 $ 180 $ 164 $ 732

The preceding expected amortization expense istamage. Actual amounts of amortization expense ditigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleamages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. 3péersges the costs
incurred to renew or extend the term of intangddsets.
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NOTE 4. Restructuring Actions

2015 Restructuring Actions:

During the fourth quarter of 2015, management aggtaand committed to undertake certain restruauaictions
primarily focused on structural overhead, largelyie U.S. and slower-growing markets, with paficemphasis on
Europe, Middle East, and Africa (EMEA) and Latin Arica. This impacted approximately 1,700 positivoesldwide
and resulted in a fourth-quarter 2015 pre-tax achafgb114 million.

Components of these restructuring charges are sumaday business segment as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2015

(Millions) Employee-Related Asset-Related Total
Industrial $ 30 $ 12 $ 42
Safety and Graphics 11 — 11
Health Care 9 — 9
Electronics and Energy 8 4 12
Consumer 3 — 3
Corporate and Unallocated 37 — 37
Total Expense $ 98 $ 16 $ 114

The preceding restructuring charges were recomiéki income statement as follows:

(Millions) 2015

Cost of sales 40

Selling, general and administrative expenses 62

Research, development and related expenses 12
Total $ 114

Components of these restructuring actions, inclydessh and non-cash impacts, follow:

Employee- Asset-
(Millions) Related Related Total
Expense incurred $ 98 $ 16 $ 114
Non-cash changes (8) (16) (24)
Cash payments (27) — (27)
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Decei®bg2015 $ 63 $ — $ 63
Cash payments (57) — (57)
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Decei®beg2016 $ 6 $ — 3 6

Non-cash changes include certain pension settlenaamt special termination benefits recorded inwextdefined
benefit pension and postretirement benefits andleated deprecation resulting from the cessatiarse of certain
long-lived assets.
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NOTE 5. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Accounts payable (included as a separate lineiiteifmre Consolidated Balance Sheet) includes dpafysble on
demand of $88 million at December 31, 2016, andifleon at December 31, 2015. Accumulated depiesiafor

capital leases totaled $89 million and $98 millaanof December 31, 2016, and 2015, respectivelgitiddal
supplemental balance sheet information is providdte table that follows.

(Millions) 2016 2015
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses and other 1,014 1,081
Derivative assets-current 148 211
Insurance related (receivables, prepaid expenskstager) 109 106
Total other current assets 1,271 1,398
Investments
Equity method 60 56
Cost method 67 59
Other investments 1 2
Total investments 128 117
Property, plant and equipment - at cost
Land 341 354
Buildings and leasehold improvements 7,252 7,120
Machinery and equipment 14,935 14,743
Construction in progress 809 723
Capital leases 162 158
Gross property, plant and equipment 23,499 23,098
Accumulated depreciation (14,983) (14,583)
Property, plant and equipment - net 8,516 8,515
Other assets
Deferred income taxes 422 675
Insurance related receivables and other 68 49
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies 236 241
Other 255 253
Total other assets 981 1,218
Other current liabilities
Accrued trade payables 578 566
Deferred income 551 518
Derivative liabilities 92 65
Employee benefits and withholdings 155 148
Contingent liability claims and other 201 147
Property and other taxes 90 89
Pension and postretirement benefits 66 60
Other 739 811
Total other current liabilities 2,472 2,404
Other liabilities
Long term income taxes payable 244 154
Employee benefits 256 254
Contingent liability claims and other 719 739
Capital lease obligations 45 46
Deferred income 15 19
Deferred income taxes 145 551
Other 224 261
Total other liabilities 1,648 2,024
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NOTE 6. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information

Common stock ($.01 par value per share) of 3.®hikhares is authorized, with 944,033,056 shamsed. Treasury
stock is reported at cost, with 347,306,778 shar&ecember 31, 2016, 334,702,932 shares at Decedhp2015, and
308,898,462 shares at December 31, 2014. Prefstwek, without par value, of 10 million sharesushmrized but
unissued.

Cash dividends declared and paid totaled $1.1%kmme for each quarter in 2016, which resultedtal tyear declared
dividends of $4.44 per share. In 2015, 3M’s BodrDicectors declared a second, third, and fourtarter dividend of
$1.025 per share, which resulted in total year 2fd&ared dividends of $3.075 per share. In Deced&4, 3M’s
Board of Directors declared a first quarter 202Bd#ind of $1.025 per share (paid in March 2015)ctvivhen added to
second, third and fourth quarter 2014 declaredidivils of $0.855 per share, resulted in total yéad 2ieclared
dividends of $3.59 per share. In December 2013 s384&iard of Directors declared a first quarter 268d4dend of
$0.855 per share (paid in March 2014).

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé @ss) Attributable to 3M by Component

Defined Benefit  Debt and Cash Flow  Accumulated

Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized  Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2013, net of tax: $ (188 $ (3,715 $ 2 % 8 $ (3,913
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (856 (2,638 2 171 (3,321,
Amounts reclassified out — 360 1 (4) 357
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before (856 (2,278 3 167 (2,964
Tax effect (92) 716 (1) (60) 563
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of (948 (1,562 2 107 (2,401,
Impact from purchase of subsidiary shares 41 (16) — — 25
Balance at December 31, 2014, net of tax: $ (1,095 $ (5,293 $ — $ 9 $ (6,289
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (447 367 — 212 132
Amounts reclassified out — 537 — (174 363
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before (447 904 — 38 495
Tax effect (137) (415) — (13) (565)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of (584, 489 — 25 (70)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax $ (1679)9% (4804 % — $ 124 $  (6,359)
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (244) (1,122) — 57 (1,309)
Amounts reclassified out — 421 — (109 312
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax  (244) (701) — (52) (997)
Tax effect (85) 177 — 19 111
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ~ (329) (524) — (33) (886)
Balance at December 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (2008 $ (5328 $ — $ 91 $ (7,245

Income taxes are not provided for foreign transtatielating to permanent investments in internatisubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does g impacts from items such as net investment higdgeactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid ldoedunting in comprehensive income items thatige recorded as
part of net income.
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Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehesive Income Attributable to 3M

Amounts Reclassified from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Details about Accumulated Other Yearended Yearended Year ended
Comprehensive Income Components Decemb8i. December3l. December31. Location on Income
(Millions) 2016 2015 2014 Statement

Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefisiparand
postretirement plans amortization

Transition asset $ 1 % 1 % 1 See Note 11
Prior service benefit 92 79 59 See Note 11
Net actuarial loss (506) (626) (420) See Note 11
Curtailments/Settlements (8) 9 — See Note 11
Total before tax (421) (537) (360)
Tax effect 148 176 122 Provision for income taxes
Net of ta $ 273) $ (361) $ (238)

Debt and equity security gains (losses)
Selling, general and

Sales or impairments of securities $ — 8 — % (1) administrative expenses
Total before tax — — Q)
Tax effect — — — Provision for income taxes
Net of ta $ — $ — 3 1)
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)

Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 110 $ 178 $ 3 Cost of sales

Commodity price swap contracts — 2) 2 Cost of sales

Interest rate swap contracts (1) (2) (1) Interest expense
Total before tax 109 174 4
Tax effect (39 (63) (1) Provision for income taxes
Net of tas $ 70 $ 111 $ 3
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax $ (203 $ (250 $ (236

Purchase of Subsidiary Shares

On September 1, 2014, 3M (via Sumitomo 3M Limitpd)chased Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd.’s BEcpnt
interest in 3M’s consolidated Sumitomo 3M Limitagbsidiary for 90 billion Japanese Yen. Upon conipietbf the
transaction, 3M owned 100 percent of Sumitomo 3Witeéd. This transaction was recorded as a finanaatiyity
(Purchase of noncontrolling interest) in the statehof cash flows.

In April 2014, 3M purchased the remaining noncollitrg interest in a consolidated 3M subsidiary &orimmaterial
amount, which was classified as a financing agtifturchase of noncontrolling interest) in the aigsited statement
of cash flows.

The following table summarizes the effects of th2@84 transactions on equity attributable to 3M @any
shareholders:

Year ended
(Millions) December 31, 2014
Net income attributable to 3| $ 4,956
Impact of purchase of subsidiary shares (409
Change in 3M Company shareholders’ equity frommsime
attributable to 3M and impact of purchase of subsydshares $ 4,547
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NOTE 7. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

Cash income tax payments, net of refunds $ 1,888 $ 2331 % 1,968
Cash interest payments 194 134 178
Capitalized interest 10 13 15

Cash interest payments include interest paid ohaled capital lease balances, including net intgr@gments/receipts
related to accreted debt discounts/premiums, palofatebt issue costs, as well as net interest paysireceipts
associated with interest rate swap contracts.

Individual amounts in the Consolidated Statemer@adh Flows exclude the impacts of acquisitionggstitures and
exchange rate impacts, which are presented selyarate

Transactions related to investing and financingviiets with significant non-cash components aréodlsws:
« 3M sold and leased-back, under a capital leasingecently constructed machinery and equipmengturn
for municipal bonds with the City of Nevada, Missiaduring 2016 and 2014 valued at approximately $12
million and $15 million, respectively, as of tharisaction date.

In addition, as discussed in Note 6, in the foguhrter of 2014, 3M’s Board of Directors declarditst quarter 2015
dividend of $1.025 per share (paid in March 2015)he fourth quarter of 2013, 3M’s Board of Dirext declared a
first quarter 2014 dividend of $0.855 per sharedpaMarch 2014).

NOTE 8. Income Taxes

Income Before Income Taxes

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

United States $ 4366 $ 4399 $ 3,815

International 2,687 2,424 3,211
Total $ 7,053 $ 6,823 $ 7,026

Provision for Income Taxes

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Currently payable
Federal $ 1192 $ 1,338 $ 1,108
State 75 101 108
International 733 566 1,008
Deferred
Federal 3) (55) (171)
State 9 6 9
International (11) 26 (11)
Total $ 1995 $ 1982 $ 2,028
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Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

(Millions) 2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:

Accruals not currently deductible

Employee benefit costs $ 195 $ 175
Product and other claims 326 311
Miscellaneous accruals 92 114
Pension costs 1,217 1,120
Stock-based compensation 302 305
Net operating/capital loss carryforwards 93 109
Foreign tax credits 22 25
Inventory 53 46
Gross deferred tax assets 2,300 2,205
Valuation allowance (47 (31)
Total deferred tax assets $ 2253 $ 2,174
Deferred tax liabilities:
Product and other insurance receivables $ 27 $ (28)
Accelerated depreciation (730 (736,
Intangible amortization (903) (1,017)
Currency translation (276 (299
Other (40) (70)
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (1,976 $ (2,050
Net deferred tax ass $ 277 % 124

The net deferred tax assets are included as comfwagOther Assets and Other Liabilities withie tBonsolidated
Balance Sheet. See Note 5 “Supplemental Balancet ffermation” for further details.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had tax effeoperating losses, capital losses, and tax aradiyovers for
federal (approximately $21 million), state (approately $1 million), and international (approximat&l71 million),
with all amounts before valuation allowances. Tédefal tax attribute carryovers will expire aftérth 20 years, the
state after 5 to 10 years, and the internationiat ahe to three years or have an indefinite cagyperiod. The tax
attributes being carried over arise as certaisglictions may have tax losses or may have inasltid utilize certain
losses without the same type of taxable incomeofA3ecember 31, 2016, the Company has providech§ilion of
valuation allowance against certain of these defetax assets based on management’s determinhéibit is more-
likely-than-not that the tax benefits related tesh assets will not be realized.

Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rate

2016 2015 2014
Statutory U.S. tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes - net of federal benefit 0.9 11 0.9
International income taxes - net 2.7, (3.9 (5.8
U.S. research and development credit (0.5) (0.5) (0.4
Reserves for tax contingencies 0.2 (1.0 0.6
Domestic Manufacturer’s deduction (1.8) (1.8) (1.3
Employee share-based payments (2.8 (0.1, (0.1
All other - net — 0.3 —

Effective worldwide tax rate 28.3% 29.1% 28.9%

The effective tax rate for 2016 was 28.3 percemgared to 29.1 percent in 2015, a decrease gfdd@ntage points,
impacted by several factors. Primary factors teatrelased the Company’s effective tax rate inclutledecognition of
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excess tax benefits beginning in 2016 related tpleyee share-based payments (resulting from thptamoof ASU
No. 2016-09, as discussed in Note 1) and a redugtistate taxes. Combined, these factors decréhsddompany’s
effective tax rate by 3.2 percentage points. Thealse was partially offset by a 2.4 percentagetpocrease, which
related to remeasurements of 3M’s uncertain taitipas and international taxes that were impactgdhanges to both
the geographic mix of income before taxes and Buidit tax expense related to global cash optinmoragictions.

The effective tax rate for 2015 was 29.1 percemmared to 28.9 percent in 2014, an increase gié.@entage points,
impacted by many factors. Primary factors whichréased the Company’s effective tax rate includéstmational
taxes, which were impacted by both changes indareurrency rates and changes to the geographiohiicome
before taxes, and an increase in state taxes. @enhbthese factors increased the Company’s eftetdiv rate by 2.4
percentage points. This increase was partiallyebfiy a 2.2 percentage point decrease, which tetatthe
remeasurements of 3M’s uncertain tax positionduting the restoration of tax basis on certain @sk which
depreciation deductions were previously limitedj arcreases in the domestic manufacturer’'s deduetia U.S.
research and development credit benefits.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.& federal, state and local, or non-U.S. inctemesxaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@wmpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2014. The Company protested certain IRRipos within these tax years and entered intcaitheinistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 2012Ctimpany received a statutory notice of deficieforythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courthe first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 year.

Currently, the Company is under examination bylRf® for its U.S. federal income tax returns for ylears 2015 and
2016. It is anticipated that the IRS will complégeexamination of the Company for 2015 by the ehthe second
quarter of 2017 and for 2016 by the end of the fitsarter of 2018. As of December 31, 2016, the hBS not proposed
any significant adjustments to the Company’s tasitmms for which the Company is not adequatelgmnesd.

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgafiiom the 2005 through 2016 examinations maybeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the @mypand the IRS on such assessments or upon adswution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeeslamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’s uncergipbsitions due to the closing and resolutionusfitissues for

various audit years mentioned above and closustatdites. Currently, the Company is estimatingaedse in
unrecognized tax benefits during the next 12 moatha result of anticipated resolutions of auditiés.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafngross unrecognized tax benefits (UTB) is akofas:

Federal, State and Foreign Tax

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

Gross UTB Balance at January 1 $ 381 $ 583 $ 659
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryear 67 77 201
Additions for tax positions of prior years 43 140 30
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (66) (399 (74
Settlements (95) (4) (154)
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutenotditions (11 (16) (79
Gross UTB Balance at December 31 $ 319 $ 381 $ 583
Net UTB impacting the effective tax rate at Decer 31 $ 333 % 369 $ 265

The total amount of UTB, if recognized, would afféwe effective tax rate by $333 million as of Dexxer 31, 2016,
$369 million as of December 31, 2015, and $265ionilas of December 31, 2014. The ending net UTBltefrom
adjusting the gross balance for items such as Bed&tate, and non-U.S. deferred items, interedtpemalties, and
deductible taxes. The net UTB is included as coreptmsof Other Assets, Accrued Income Taxes, andrQilabilities
within the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax rgpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeinicome on a gross basis approximately $10 mikibaxpense, $2
million of expense, and $14 million of benefit iA16, 2015, and 2014, respectively. The amounttef@st and
penalties recognized may be an expense or bengfitalnew or remeasured unrecognized tax benefitals. At
December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2015, accntee$t and penalties in the consolidated balameet ®n a gross
basis were $52 million and $45 million, respectyvéhcluded in these interest and penalty amoursrgerest and
penalties related to tax positions for which thitmate deductibility is highly certain but for whi¢here is uncertainty
about the timing of such deductibility. Becausehaf impact of deferred tax accounting, other tierest and
penalties, the disallowance of the shorter dedilityilperiod would not affect the annual effectitax rate but would
accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing aityroran earlier period.

As a result of certain employment commitments aaqital investments made by 3M, income from certain
manufacturing activities in the following countrisssubject to reduced tax rates or, in some césegempt from tax
for years through the following: China (2016), Thad (2018), Korea (2019), Brazil (2023), Switzadg2024), and
Singapore (2025). The income tax benefits attribletéo the tax status of these subsidiaries ammatgtd to be $142
million (23 cents per diluted share) in 2016, $hdiflion (18 cents per diluted share) in 2015, a88 illion (15 cents
per diluted share) in 2014.

The Company has not provided deferred taxes omitteal earnings attributable to international comipa that have
been considered to be reinvested indefinitely. Ummemitted earnings relate to ongoing operationsvegre
approximately $14 billion as of December 31, 2é&cause of the availability of U.S. foreign taxdits, the multiple
avenues in which to repatriate the earnings tomiize tax cost, and because a large portion of tbas@ngs are not
liquid, it is not practical to determine the incotag liability that would be payable if such eaigsnvere not reinvested
indefinitely.
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NOTE 9. Marketable Securities

The Company invests in asset-backed securitiesficates of deposit/time deposits, commercial papad other
securities. The following is a summary of amouetorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for adoleesecurities
(current and non-current).

December 31, December 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ 10
Foreign government agency securities — 10
Commercial paper 14 12
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 197 26
U.S. municipal securities 3 3
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 31 26

Credit card related 18 10

Other 7 21
Asset-backed securities total 56 57
Current marketable securities $ 280 $ 118
U.S. municipal securities $ 17 % 9
Non-current marketable securities $ 17  $ 9
Total marketable securities $ 297 $ 127

Classification of marketable securities as curogmton-current is based on the nature of the sesiand availability
for use in current operations. At December 31, 2&1® 2015, gross unrealized gains and/or lossestég) were not
material. Refer to Note 6 for a table that provittesnet realized gains (losses) related to salesmairments of debt
and equity securities, which includes marketab&risges. The gross amounts of the realized gairigsses were not
material. Cost of securities sold use the firsfinst out (FIFO) method. Since these marketabteigtes are classified
as available-for-sale securities, changes in faline will flow through other comprehensive incométh amounts
reclassified out of other comprehensive income @&mings upon sale or “other-than-temporary” impant.

3M reviews impairments associated with its markietabcurities in accordance with the measuremeadague
provided by ASC 320investments-Debt and Equity Securiti@bhen determining the classification of the impant as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporargpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgoscorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitefsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-temporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between tempgoaad other-than-temporary include the projectedréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetayadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@tber factors.
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The balance at December 31, 2016, for marketabigrises by contractual maturity are shown belowtual maturities
may differ from contractual maturities becauseisiseiers of the securities may have the right tpgyebligations
without prepayment penalties.

(Millions) December 31, 2016

Due in one year or less $ 216
Due after one year through five years 77
Due after five years through ten years 4
Total marketable securities $ 297

3M has a diversified marketable securities pomfdithin this portfolio, asset-backed securitieisnarily include
interests in automobile loans, credit cards andragisset-backed securities. 3M’s investment pdailows investments
in asset-backed securities with minimum credinggiof Aa3 by Moody’s Investors Service or AA- haiglard &
Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRS. Asset-backed séeammust be rated by at least two of the aforainaad rating
agencies, one of which must be Moody’s Investorsi€e or Standard & Poor’s. At December 31, 2016 sset-
backed security investments were in compliance thithpolicy. Approximately 84.8 percent of all asbacked
security investments were rated AAA or A-1+ by $tard & Poor’s and/or Aaa or P-1 by Moody’s InvestBervice
and/or AAA or F1+ by Fitch Ratings. Interest ratkrand credit risk related to the underlying catal may impact the
value of investments in asset-backed securitiegevidctors such as general conditions in the diveradit market and
the nature of the underlying collateral may aftbet liquidity of investments in asset-backed sei@si 3M does not
currently expect risk related to its holding inetssacked securities to materially impact its ficiahcondition or
liquidity.
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NOTE 10. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

The following debt tables reflect effective intdrestes, which include the impact of interest eaps, as of
December 31, 2016. If the debt was issued on a twulbasis, the debt has been separated to shamplaet of the
fixed versus floating effective interest rates. rgizg value includes the impact of debt issuancsand fair value
hedging activity. Long-term debt and short-termrbwaings as of December 31 consisted of the follgwin

Long-Term Debt

Currency/ Effective Final
(Millions) Fixed vs. Interest Maturity Carrying Value
Description / 2016 Principal Amount Floating Rate Date 2016 2015
Medium-term note ($1 billion) USD Fixed — % — $ — 3 999
Medium-term note ($650 million) USD Fixed 1.10% 2017 649 648
Medium-term note (500 million Euros) Euro Floating — % 2018 523 545
Medium-term note ($450 million) USD Floating 0.98% 2018 448 448
Medium-term note ($600 million) USD Floating 1.00% 2019 598 597
Medium-term note ($25 million) USD Fixed 1.74% 2019 25 25
Medium-term note (650 million Euros) Euro Floating — % 2020 680 708
Medium-term note ($300 million) USD Floating 1.06% 2020 297 297
Medium-term note ($200 million) USD Fixed 2.12% 2020 199 198
Eurobond (300 million Euros) Euro Floating 0.01% 2021 336 348
Eurobond (300 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.97% 2021 312 326
Medium-term note ($600 million) USD Fixed 1.63% 2021 598 —
Medium-term note (500 million Euros) Euro Fixed 0.45% 2022 520 —
Medium-term note ($600 million) USD Fixed 2.17% 2022 593 592
Medium-term note (600 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.14% 2023 619 644
Medium-term note ($550 million) USD Fixed 3.04% 2025 546 545
Medium-term note (750 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.71% 2026 770 801
Medium-term note ($650 million) USD Fixed 2.25% 2026 640 —
30-year debenture ($330 million) USD Fixed 6.01% 2028 342 343
Medium-term note (500 million Euros) Euro Fixed  1.90% 2030 512 533
Medium-term note (500 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.54% 2031 518 —
30-year bond ($750 million) USD Fixed 5.73% 2037 743 743
Floating rate note ($96 million) USD Floating 0.65% 2041 96 96
Medium-term note ($325 million) USD Fixed 4.05% 2044 313 313
Floating rate note ($55 million) USD Floating 0.61% 2044 54 55
Medium-term note ($500 million) USD Fixed 3.13% 2046 473 —
Other borrowings Various 0.82% 2017-204C 74 74
Total long-term debt $ 11,478 $ 9,878
Less: current portion of long-term debt 800 1,125
Long-term debt (excluding current portion) $ 10,678 $ 8,753
Post-Swap Borrowing (Long-Term Debt, Including Current Portion)
2016 2015
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
(Millions) Value Interest Rate Value Interest Rate
Fixed-rate debt $ 8,372 242% $ 6,712 2.54%
Floating-rate debt 3,106 0.48% 3,166 0.32%
Total long-term debt, including current portion $ 11,478 $ 9,878
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Short-Term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-T erm Debt

Effective Carrying Value
(Millions) Interest Rate 2016 2015
Current portion of long-term debt 1.01% $ 800 $ 1,125
U.S. dollar commercial paper 9% — —
Other borrowings 0.48% 172 919
Total short-term borrowings and current portioaofg-term debt $ 972 % 2,044

In both 2016 and 2015, other short-term borrowimgmarily consisted of bank borrowings by internatl
subsidiaries, primarily Japan and Korea.

Maturities of Long-term Debt

Maturities of long-term debt for the five years sequent of December 31, 2016 are as follows (itiand):

After
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2021 Total
$ 800 $ 1,042 $ 623 $ 1,176 $ 1,246 $ 6,591 $ 11,478

Long-term debt payments due in 2017 and 2018 iecfloting rate notes totaling $150 million (cldiesl as current
portion of long-term debt), and $71 million (inckdlin other borrowings in the long-term debt tahle}pectively, as a
result of put provisions associated with these dattuments.

Credit Facilities

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exighg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilitgxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 hillion five-year revolving creftitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreemt includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lender’s discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving crediacility was undrawn at December 31, 2016. Under®R.75 billion
credit agreement, the Company is required to maia EBITDA to Interest Ratio as of the end o€lediscal quarter at
not less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (asneeffin the agreement) as the ratio of consolidettied EBITDA for the
four consecutive quarters then ended to total@stezxpense on all funded debt for the same petibbecember 31,
2016, this ratio was approximately 44 to 1. Debtet@nts do not restrict the payment of dividends.

Other Credit Facilities

Apart from the committed revolving facility, an atidnal $291 million in stand-alone letters of citemhd bank
guarantees were also issued and outstanding atribece31, 2016. These instruments are utilized imeotion with
normal business activities.

Long-Term Debt Issuances

The principal amounts, interest rates and matdiates of individual long-term debt issuances cafobed in the long-
term debt table found at the beginning of this note

In May 2016, 3M issued 1 billion Euros aggregaiegpal amount of medium-term notes. In Septemi@di62 3M
issued $1.75 billion aggregate principal amounneflium-term notes.

In May 2015, 3M issued 1.750 billion Euros aggregaincipal amount of medium-term notes. In Auget5, 3M
issued $1.500 billion aggregate principal amourmetlium-term notes. Upon debt issuance, the Comeatgyed into
two interest rate swaps as fair value hedges oftiop of the fixed interest rate medium-term noldigation. The first
converted a $450 million three-year fixed rate patel the second converted $300 million of a fieewyfixed rate note
included in this issuance to an interest rate baseal floating three-month LIBOR index.
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In June 2014, 3M issued $950 million aggregategyed amount of medium-term notes. Upon debt isseathe
Company entered into an interest rate swap to co8€0 million of a $625 million note included tinis issuance to an
interest rate based on a floating three-month LIBRRX as a fair value hedge of a portion of thediinterest rate
medium-term note obligation. In November 2014, @wampany issued 1.250 billion Euros aggregate gra@mount

of medium-term notes.

Long-Term Debt Maturities
In September 2016, 3M repaid $1 billion aggregaiecipal amount of medium-term notes.

In July 2014, 3M retired at maturity 1.025 billi&uros of seven-year 5.0% fixed rate Eurobonds.dodinber 2012,
3M entered into a three-year 66 million British Rdyapproximately $106 million based on agreemaie éxchange
rates) committed credit facility agreement withMBrgan Chase Bank, which was fully drawn as of Dealoer 31,
2012. 3M repaid the balance in 2014.

Floating Rate Notes

At various times, 3M has issued floating rate ne@®taining put provisions. 3M would be requireddépurchase these
securities at various prices ranging from 99 perted00 percent of par value according to the cédn schedules for
each security. In December 2004, 3M issued a fgegr- $60 million floating rate note, with a rateséd on a floating
LIBOR index. Under the terms of this floating raigte due in 2044, holders have an annual put feaut00 percent of
par value from 2014 and every anniversary thereaftél final maturity. Under the terms of the ftomy rate notes due
in 2027, 2040 and 2041, holders have put optioasdhmmence ten years from the date of issuanceaatuthird
anniversary thereafter until final maturity at gscranging from 99 percent to 100 percent of parevdor the periods
presented, 3M was required to repurchase an imiabaenount of principal on the aforementioned flogtrate notes.

NOTE 11. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

3M has company-sponsored retirement plans covetibgtantially all U.S. employees and many emplogegside the
United States. In total, 3M has over 80 defineddfieplans in 27 countries. Pension benefits asdediwith these plans
generally are based on each participant’s yeassmice, compensation, and age at retirement nitation. The
primary U.S. defined-benefit pension plan was dadsenew participants effective January 1, 200% Tompany also
provides certain postretirement health care aedri§urance benefits for its U.S. employees whotreatirement age
while employed by the Company and were employethbyCompany prior to January 1, 2016. Most intéonat
employees and retirees are covered by governmaithtere programs. The cost of company-providesirprement
health care plans for international employees tametterial and is combined with U.S. amounts intttides that follow.

The Company has made deposits for its defined bhgrehs with independent trustees. Trust fundsdegbsits with
insurance companies are maintained to provide permnefits to plan participants and their benafies. There are no
plan assets in the non-qualified plan due to itanea For its U.S. postretirement health care #adrisurance benefit
plans, the Company has set aside amounts at kpastt to annual benefit payments with an indepentianstee.

3M’s primary U.S. qualified defined benefit planedonot have a mandatory cash contribution beches€ampany has
a significant credit balance from previous disanetiry contributions that can be applied to any ParBrotection Act
funding requirements.

The Company also sponsors employee savings plates @ection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codesélplans are
offered to substantially all regular U.S. employe®sginning on January 1, 2016, for U.S. employdesCompany
reduced its match on employee 401(k) contributiéios.eligible employees hired prior to JanuarydQ2 employee
401(k) contributions of up to 5% (down from 6% prio 2016) of eligible compensation matched in catstates of
45% or 60%, depending on the plan in which the eyg® participates. Employees hired on or afterdmani, 2009,
receive a cash match of 100% for employee 401 (Kributions of up to 5% (down from 6% prior to 2018 eligible
compensation and receive an employer retirementiecaccount cash contribution of 3% of the paréioifs total
eligible compensation. All contributions are invabsin a number of investment funds pursuant teethployees’
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elections. Employer contributions to the U.S. dedirontribution plans were $139 million, $165 roifliand $153
million for 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 3ibsidiaries in various international countries adacticipate in
defined contribution plans. Employer contributi@aghe international defined contribution plans ev887 million, $77
million and $75 million for 2016, 2015 and 2014spectively.

As a result of changes made to its U.S. postredrgrnealth care benefit plans in 2010, the Compasytransitioned all
current and future retirees to a savings accoumtfiie-based plan. These changes became effeciaring

January 1, 2013, for all Medicare eligible retiraasl their Medicare eligible dependents and beczffeetive beginning
January 1, 2016, for all non-Medicare eligiblenass and their eligible dependents. In August 28 modified the
3M Retiree Welfare Benefit Plan postretirement roadbenefit reducing the future benefit for pagants not retired as
of January 1, 2016. For participants retiring aft@nuary 1, 2016, the Retiree Medical Savings AGCRMSA) is no
longer credited with interest and the indexatiorboth the RMSA and the Medicare Health Reimbursémen
Arrangement is reduced from 3 percent to 1.5 pengenyear (for those employees who are eligibtelese accounts).
Also effective January 1, 2016, 3M no longer offéké Retiree Health Care Accounts to new hires. foutese
changes the plan was re-measured in the thirdeuafr2015, resulting in a decrease to the progebtmnefit obligation
liability of approximately $233 million, and a rédal increase to shareholders’ equity, specificatipumulated other
comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company convertedddRP 2014 Mortality Tables” and updated the niityta
improvement scale it used for calculating the yerad-2014 U.S. defined benefit pension annuitantpmstiretirement
obligations and 2015 expense. The impact of thisigk increased the year-end 2014 U.S. pensioncpedjbenefit
obligation (PBO) by approximately $820 million attet U.S. accumulated postretirement benefit obbgaty
approximately $100 million. As of December 31, 20tt&@ Company updated the mortality improvemeniesitaScale
MP-2016, which was released by the Society of Aégan October 2016. The impact of this changeessed the
year-end 2016 U.S. pension PBO by approximately0$ddlion and the U.S. accumulated postretirememtefit
obligation by approximately $60 million.

In March 2015, 3M Japan modified the Japan Limibefined Benefit Corporate Pension Plan (DBCPP).ifdengg

July 1, 2015, eligible employees receive a comganyided contribution match of 6.12% of their diilgi salary to their
defined contribution plan. Employees no longer eafditional service towards their defined benedtigion plans after
July 1, 2015, except for eligible salaries abowedtatutory defined contribution limits. As a resflthis plan
modification, the Company re-measured the DBCPRgiwtesulted in a $17 million pre-tax curtailmentirgfor the
year ended December 31, 2015. In March 2015, 3Mralseived a favorable Internal Revenue Service tax
determination letter to terminate a frozen defibedefit pension plan of one of 3M’s acquired suiasids. By the end
of 2015, this plan made final distributions of $hélion to participants. The Company also had otettlements,
curtailments, special termination benefits and oitteens in 2015 aggregating to the amounts inditatehese
components in the applicable tables that follow.

3M was informed during the first quarter of 200®attthe general partners of WG Trading Companwtiith 3M’s
benefit plans hold limited partnership interests, the subject of a criminal investigation as vaslicivil proceedings by
the SEC and CFTC (Commaodity Futures Trading Conion$sin March 2011, over the objections of 3M aixother
limited partners of WG Trading Company, the distciourt judge ruled in favor of the court appointedeiver’s
proposed distribution plan (and in April 2013, theited States Court of Appeals for the Second @iaffirmed the
district court’s ruling). The benefit plan trusteeldings of WG Trading Company interests were adpliso reflect the
decreased estimated fair market value, inclusivestimated insurance proceeds, as of the annuaumeaent dates.
The Company has insurance that it believes, basedhat is currently known, will result in the prdida recovery of a
portion of the decrease in original asset valughénfirst quarter of 2014, 3M and certain 3M bénahns filed a
lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof Minnesota against five insurers seeking insceatoverage for the
WG Trading Company claim. In September 2015, thatawled in favor of the defendant insurance conigpson a
motion for summary judgment and dismissed the ld#wsuOctober 2015, 3M and the 3M benefit plansdia notice of
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals ferBlghth Circuit. As of the 2016 measurement daitese holdings
represented less than one half of one percent ¢&f 8 value of total plan assets. 3M currentljidees that the
resolution of these events will not have a materihlerse effect on the consolidated financial posibf the Company.
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The following tables include a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of the benefigabtin and the fair
value of plan assets as well as a summary of tatetkamounts recognized in the Company’s conseliiaalance
sheet as of December 31 of the respective yearsal8Mhas certain non-qualified unfunded pensiahpostretirement
benefit plans, inclusive of plans related to suppat/excess benefits for employees impacted bycpéat relocations
and other matters, that individually and in theraggte are not significant and which are not inetuth the tables that
follow. The obligations for these plans are incldiddgthin other liabilities in the Company’s congtadied balance sheet
and aggregated less than $35 million as of Dece®ibe2016 and 2015.

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $15,856 $16,452 $ 6,322 $6,979 $ 2,216 $ 2,462
Acquisitions/Transfers — — 5) 94 — —
Service cost 259 293 133 154 54 75
Interest cost 575 655 171 206 79 98
Participant contributions — — 8 9 — 14
Foreign exchange rate changes — — 472 (589 7 (22)
Plan amendments 5 — (4) (6) — (211)
Actuarial (gain) loss 427 (657 724 (274 7 (80
Medicare Part D Reimbursement — — — — — 1
Benefit payments (919 (874 (245 (232 (104 (122
Settlements, curtailments, special termination
benefits and other (1) (13) (7 (19) — 1
Benefit obligation at end of year $16,202 $15,856 $ 6,625 $6,322 $ 2,259 $ 2,216

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $13,966 $ 14,643 $ 5669 $5,957 $ 1,367 $ 1,436

Acquisitions/Transfers — — — 8 — —
Actual return on plan assets 779 100 512 287 90 36
Company contributions 259 113 121 151 3 3
Participant contributions — — 8 9 — 14
Foreign exchange rate changes — — (444) (498) — —
Benefit payments (919 (874 (245 (232 (104 (122
Settlements, curtailments, special termination
benefits and other 4) (16) (4) (13) — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $14,081 $13,966 $ 5,617 $5,669 $ 1,356 $ 1,367
Funded status at end of year $(2,221) $ (1,890) $(1,008) $ (653) $ (903) $ (849)
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Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits

(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of Dec. 31,

Non-current assets $ 4 $ 3 $ 48 $ 185 $ — $ —

Accrued benefit cost

Current liabilities (52) (47) (10) (10) 4) 3
Non-current liabilities (2,073 (1,846 (1,046 (828 (899 (846
Ending balance $(2,121) $(1,890) $(1,008) $ (653) $ (903 $ (849)
Qualified and Non-qualified
Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits

(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income as of Dec. 31,

Net transition obligation (asset) $ — % — 3% — 8% @38 — % —

Net actuarial loss (gain) 5,704 5,366 1,933 1,610 761 815

Prior service cost (credit) (198 (227) (56) (68) (214 (270)

Ending balance $ 5506 $ 5139 $ 1,877 $ 1540 $ 547 $ 545

The balance of amounts recognized for internatiptaais in accumulated other comprehensive inconod as
December 31 in the preceding table are presentsetiban the foreign currency exchange rate on titat d

The pension accumulated benefit obligation reprtssiie actuarial present value of benefits baseehgpioyee service
and compensation as of the measurement date aschdonclude an assumption about future compesséivels. The
accumulated benefit obligation of the U.S. pengitams was $15.149 billion and $14.834 billion atBmber 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively. The accumulated benefigatibn of the international pension plans was $8.6illion and
$5.773 billion at December 31, 2016 and 2015, retby.

The following amounts relate to pension plans withumulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets as of
December 31:

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Plans

United States International
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Projected benefit obligation $ 16,202 $ 15856 $ 2,590 $ 2,382
Accumulated benefit obligation 15,149 14,834 2,351 2,149
Fair value of plan assets 14,081 13,966 1,635 1,566
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Components of net periodic cost and other amountecognized in other comprehensive income

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost désaselling, general and administrative expersed,research,
development and related expenses. Components périetic benefit cost and other changes in plaetasand benefit
obligations recognized in other comprehensive iredon the years ended December 31 follow:

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 259 $ 293 $ 241 $ 133 $ 154 $ 141 $54 $ 75 $ 65
Interest cost 575 655 676 171 206 252 79 98 97
Expected return on plan assets (1,043) (1,069) (1,043) (308) (308) (312) (90) (91) (90)
Amortization of transition (asset)
obligation — — — Q) (1) (1) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost
(benefit) (24) (24) 4 (13) (23) (16) (55) (42) (47)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain)
loss 354 409 243 91 144 121 61 73 56
Settlements, curtailments, special
termination benefits and other 4 2 — 4 (6) 4 — 1 —

Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) aft
settlements, curtailments, special
termination benefits and other $ 125 $ 266 $ 121 $ 77 $ 176 $ 189 $ 49 $ 114 $ 81
Other changes in plan assets and bene
obligations recognized in other
comprehensive (income) loss
Amortization of transition (asset)

obligation — — — 1 1 1 — — —
Prior service cost (benefit) 5 — (266) (5) 10 3 — (212) —
Amortization of prior service cost
(benefit) 24 24 (4) 13 13 16 55 42 47
Net actuarial (gain) loss 692 312 2,167 512 (270) 592 8 (23) 358
Amortization of net actuarial (gain)
loss (354 (409 (243 91, (144 (121, (61) (73) (56)
Foreign currency — — — (93) (174) (215) — (1) (1)
Total recognized in other comprehensi
(income) loss $ 367 $ (73 $ 1654 $ 337 $(564 $ 276 $ 2 $(267 $348

Total recognized in net periodic benefit
cost (benefit) and other comprehensive
(income) loss $ 492 $ 193 $ 1,775 $ 414 $(388) $465 $ 51 $(153) $429

Amounts expected to be amortized from accumulatedtioer comprehensive income into net periodic benefitosts
over the next fiscal year

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
(Millions) United States International Benefits
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation $ — 3 — 3 =
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (23) (12) (53)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 387 119 56
Total amortization expected over the next fiscarye $ 364 $ 107 $ 3

The Company primarily amortizes amounts recognaegrior service cost (benefit) over the averafigréuservice
period of active employees at the date of the amemd.
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bdn@bligations as of December 31

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits Posttirement
United States International Benefits
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Discount rate 421% 4.47% 4.10% 2.54% 3.12% 3.11% 4.26% 4.48% 4.07%
Compensation rate increase 410% 4.10% 4.10% 2.90% 2.90% 3.33% N/A N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine nedst for years ended December 31

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits Posttirement
United States International Benefits
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Discount rate - service cost 4.70% 4.10% 4.98% 2.84% 3.11% 4.02% 4.70% 4.07% 4.83%
Discount rate - interest cost 3.73% 4.10% 4.98% 2.72% 3.11% 4.02% 3.80% 4.07% 4.83%
Expected return on assets 7.50% 7.75% 7.75% 5.77% 5.90% 5.83% 6.91% 6.91% 7.11%
Compensation rate increase 4.10% 4.10% 4.00% 2.90% 3.33% 3.35% N/A N/A N/A

The Company provides eligible retirees in the p&tretirement health care benefit plans to a gavitcount benefits-
based plan. The contributions provided by the Comiga the health savings accounts increase 3 pepegryear for
employees who retired prior to January 1, 2016iaccekase 1.5 percent for employees who retire after January 1,
2016. Therefore, the Company no longer has matexjgbsure to health care cost inflation.

The Company determines the discount rate used &sume plan liabilities as of the December 31 measant date for
the pension and postretirement benefit plans, wisietiso the date used for the related annual meamnt
assumptions. The discount rate reflects the curegatat which the associated liabilities couldeHectively settled at
the end of the year. The Company sets its rateftect the yield of a portfolio of high qualityxgéd-income debt
instruments that would produce cash flows sufficiartiming and amount to settle projected futueadfits. Using this
methodology, the Company determined a discountafade21% for pension and 4.26% for postretirentestefits to be
appropriate for its U.S. plans as of December 8162which is a decrease of 0.26 percentage paim<.22
percentage points, respectively, from the rated aseof December 31, 2015. For the internationasio® and
postretirement plans the discount rates also itettheccurrent rate at which the associated liabditould be effectively
settled at the end of the year. If the countryddsep market in corporate bonds the Company nmtbhkesxpected
cash flows from the plan either to a portfolio ohlds that generate sufficient cash flow or a natigreld curve
generated from available bond information. In coestthat do not have a deep market in corporatefagovernment
bonds are considered with a risk premium to appnai& corporate bond yields.

Beginning in 2016, 3M changed the method usedtimate the service and interest cost componentseofiet periodic
pension and other postretirement benefit costs.nBwemethod measures service cost and interessepatately using
the spot yield curve approach applied to each spording obligation. Service costs are determirseseth on duration-
specific spot rates applied to the service codt fasvs. The interest cost calculation is deterrdibg applying
duration-specific spot rates to the year-by-yeajgmted benefit payments. The spot yield curve @ggn does not affect
the measurement of the total benefit obligationthashange in service and interest costs offsétaractuarial gains
and losses recorded in other comprehensive incbheCompany changed to the new method to providera precise
measure of service and interest costs by improthiagorrelation between the projected benefit flasts and the
discrete spot yield curve rates. The Company adedufor this change as a change in estimate prtogpkcbeginning
in the first quarter of 2016. As a result of thehe to the spot yield curve approach, 2016 ardefaled benefit
pension and postretirement net periodic benefit desreased approximately $180 million.

For the primary U.S. qualified pension plan, therfpany’s assumption for the expected return on psets was
7.50% in 2016. Projected returns are based priynanilbroad, publicly traded equity and fixed-incomeices and
forward-looking estimates of active portfolio amyéstment management. As of December 31, 201& ahgpany’s
2017 expected long-term rate of return on U.S. pksets is 7.25%, a decrease of 0.25 percentages frmim 2016. The
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expected return assumption is based on the stcadsget allocation of the plan, long term capitatkat return
expectations and expected performance from aativestment management. The 2016 expected long-tamof return
is based on an asset allocation assumption of 26B&lgequities, 18% private equities, 41% fixedeime securities,
and 16% absolute return investments independanaditional performance benchmarks, along with fpaesireturns
from active investment management. The actualatetof return on plan assets in 2016 was 5.8%01% 2he plan
earned a rate of return of 0.7% and in 2014 eaarediurn of 13.0%. The average annual actual retorme plan assets
over the past 10 and 25 years has been 7.2% a%g Be8pectively. Return on assets assumptionsiferriational
pension and other post-retirement benefit plansal@ilated on a plan-by-plan basis using plantadkeations and
expected long-term rate of return assumptions.

During 2016, the Company contributed $380 millionts U.S. and international pension plans and $Bmto its
postretirement plans. During 2015, the Companyrdmurted $264 million to its U.S. and internatiopainsion plans and
$3 million to its postretirement plans. In 2017 tBompany expects to contribute an amount in theeaf $300

million to $500 million of cash to its U.S. andénhational retirement plans. The Company does &t la required
minimum cash pension contribution obligation farlit.S. plans in 2017. Future contributions will eleg on market
conditions, interest rates and other factors.

Future Pension and Postretirement Benefit Payments

The following table provides the estimated pensind postretirement benefit payments that are payatn the plans
to participants.

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement

(Millions) United States International Benefits

2017 Benefit Payments $ 1,020 $ 203 $ 129
2018 Benefit Payments 1,040 212 139
2019 Benefit Payments 1,057 228 147
2020 Benefit Payments 1,071 235 157
2021 Benefit Payments 1,088 256 166
Next five year 5,586 1,452 839

Plan Asset Management

3M's investment strategy for its pension and paisgment plans is to manage the funds on a goimgem basis. The
primary goal of the trust funds is to meet the gdions as required. The secondary goal is to tharhighest rate of
return possible, without jeopardizing its primanat) and without subjecting the Company to an urataeunt of
contribution risk. Fund returns are used to halprice present and future obligations to the extessible within
actuarially determined funding limits and tax-detared asset limits, thus reducing the potentiatirfee additional
contributions from 3M. The investment strategy tieed long duration cash bonds and derivative imsnis to offset a
significant portion of the interest rate sensitivif U.S. pension liabilities.

Normally, 3M does not buy or sell any of its owrtseties as a direct investment for its pension atfer
postretirement benefit funds. However, due to exkinvestment management of the funds, the plansindirectly
buy, sell or hold 3M securities. The aggregate amoti3M securities are not considered to be maltegiative to the
aggregate fund percentages.

The discussion that follows references the fain@aheasurements of certain assets in terms ofléyé& and 3. See
Note 13 for descriptions of these levels. While ¢tbenpany believes the valuation methods are apiatepaind
consistent with other market participants, the afsgifferent methodologies or assumptions to deileerthe fair value
of certain financial instruments could result idilerent estimate of fair value at the reportirejal
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U.S. Pension Plans and Postretirement Benefit Plagsets

In order to achieve the investment objectives @hS. pension plans and U.S. postretirement bguiafis, the
investment policies include a target strategic taatbgcation. The investment policies allow somietance around the
target in recognition that market fluctuations dhiquidity of some investments may cause the alltan to a specific
asset class to vary from the target allocationepiidlly for long periods of time. Acceptable rasdmve been designed
to allow for deviation from strategic targets andatiow for the opportunity for tactical over- andder-weights. The
portfolios will normally be rebalanced when the deaend asset allocation deviates from acceptaiges. The
allocation is reviewed regularly by the named fidug of the plans. Approximately 42% of the posteghent benefit
plan assets are in a 401(h) account. The 401 (ljuat@ssets are in the same trust as the prim&ygénsion plan and
invested with the same investment objectives aptimeary U.S. pension plan.

The fair values of the assets held by the U.S.ipandans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as Fair Value at
(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Dec. 31,
Asset Class 2016 2015 2016 2015 20162015 2016 2015
Equities
U.S. equities $1522 $18%7 $ — $ — $— $ — $ 1522 $ 1,897
Non-U.S. equities 1,179 1,149 — — — — 1,179 1,149
Index and long/short equity funds* 414 578
Total Equities $2,701 $3046 $ — $ — $— $ — $ 3115 $ 3,624
Fixed Income
U.S. government securities $1,701 $1,095 $ 560 $ 456 $ — $ — $ 2261 $ 1,551
Non-U.S. government securities — — 146 126 — — 146 126
Preferred and convertible securities 4 4 1 8 — — 5 12
U.S. corporate bonds 10 9 3,392 2,820 — — 3,402 2,829
Non-U.S. corporate bonds — — 672 616 — — 672 616
Derivative instruments Q) 1) (31) 40 — — 32 39
Other* 7 11
Total Fixed Income $1,714 $1107 $4,740 $4066 $ — $ — $ 6461 $ 5184
Private Equity
Derivative instruments $ — $ — $ — $ — $(83 $(106 $ (83 $ (106,
Growth equity 19 24 — — — — 19 24
Partnership investments* 2,188 2,450
Total Private Equity $ 19 $ 24 $ — $ — $(83) $(106) $ 2,124 $ 2,368
Absolute Return
Derivative instruments $ — $ — $ MHMS$ B $— s — 3 7 % (5)
Fixed income and other 29 253 78 46 — — 107 299
Hedge fund/fund of funds* 1,793 1,409
Partnership investments* 296 355
Total Absolute Return $ 29 $ 253 $ 71 $ 41 $— $ — $ 2189 $ 2,058
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55 $ 102 $ — $ 1 $2 %$ — 3% 57 $ 103
Repurchase agreements and derivative margin activi — — (545 5 — — (545 5
Cash and cash equivalents, valued at net asset*valu 931 783
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 55 $ 102 $ (545 $ 6 $ 2 $ — $ 443 $ 891
Total $4518 $4532 $4,266 $4,113 $(81) $(106) $14,332 $ 14,125
Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésse $ (251 $ (159
Fair value of plan assets $14,081 $ 13,966

* In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investraghat are measured at fair value using the net aatue (NAV)

per share (or its equivalent) as a practical exgrediave not been classified in the fair valuedrigry. The NAV is
based on the fair value of the underlying assetseaMby the fund, minus its liabilities then dividegithe number of
units outstanding and is determined by the investmmeanager or custodian of the fund. The fair val®unts
presented in this table are intended to permitrreitiation of the fair value hierarchy to the amtaupresented in the fair
value of plan assets.
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The fair values of the assets held by the postregnt benefit plans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as Fair Value at

(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Dec. 31,
Asset Class 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Equities
U.S. equities $ 477 $ 508 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 477 $ 508
Non-U.S. equities 62 59 — — — — 62 59
Index and long/short equity funds* 40 49
Total Equities $ 539 $57 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 579 $ 616
Fixed Income
U.S. government securities $ 102 $ 71 $ 191 $ 192 $ — $ — $ 293 $ 263
Non-U.S. government securities — — 9 8 — — 9 8
U.S. corporate bonds — — 172 153 — — 172 153
Non-U.S. corporate bonds — — 36 35 — — 36 35
Derivative instruments — — (1) 2 — — (1) 2
Total Fixed Income $ 102 $ 71 $ 407 $ 390 $ — $ — $ 509 $ 461
Private Equity
Derivative instruments $ — % — $ — $ — $ 3% WSS B @
Growth equity 1 1 — — — — 1 1
Partnership investments* 113 136
Total Private Equity $ 1 % 1 $ — $ — $ (3 $ @ $ 111 $ 133
Absolute Return
Fixed income and other $ 1 $ 10 $ 3 $ 2 % — $ — % 4 $ 12
Hedge fund/fund of funds* 72 54
Partnership investments* 12 14
Total Absolute Return $ 1 $ 10 $ 3 $ 2 $ — $ — $ 8 $ 80
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4 $ 38 $ 3 $ — $ — $ — $ 47 $ 38
Repurchase agreements and derivative margin activit — — (22) — — — (22) —
Cash and cash equivalents, valued at net asset*valu 38 30
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4 $ 38 $ 199 — $ — $ — $ 63 $ 68
Total $ 687 $ 687 $ 391 $ 392 $ (3 $ (4 $1350 $1,358
Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésse $ 6 $ 9
Fair value of plan assets $1,356 $ 1,367

*In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investméi are measured at fair value using the net aafee per share
(or its equivalent) as a practical expedient haatebeen classified in the fair value hierarchy. NV is based on the
fair value of the underlying assets owned by thfuminus its liabilities then divided by the numioé units
outstanding and is determined by the investmentag@nor custodian of the fund. The fair value ant®pnesented in
this table are intended to permit reconciliatiorihaf fair value hierarchy to the amounts preseintéle fair value of
plan assets.

Publicly traded equities are valued at the clogirige reported in the active market in which théividual securities are
traded.

Fixed income includes derivative instruments sushradit default swaps, interest rate swaps angdstcontracts.
Corporate debt includes bonds and notes, asse¢taelcurities, collateralized mortgage obligatiand private
placements. Swaps and derivative instruments doeddy the custodian using closing market swapasiand market
derived inputs. U.S. government and government@gbands and notes are valued at the closing pejgerted in the
active market in which the individual securityliaded. Corporate bonds and notes, asset backedtisscand
collateralized mortgage obligations are valuedtaeethe yields currently available on comparat@eurities of issuers
with similar credit ratings or valued under a diseted cash flow approach that utilizes observaigets, such as
current yields of similar instruments, but include§ustments for certain risks that may not be oladde such as credit
and liquidity risks. Private placements are valbgdhe custodian using recognized pricing servaetssources.

The private equity portfolio is a diversified mikaerivative instruments, growth equity and parshgo interests.
Derivative investments are written options that\akied by independent parties using market inpatsvaluation
models. Growth equity investments are valued atkbsing price reported in the active market inabhthe individual
securities are traded.
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Absolute return consists primarily of partnershiferests in hedge funds, hedge fund of funds @rqihvate fund
vehicles. Corporate debt instruments are valueittar the yields currently available on comparageurities of
issuers with similar credit ratings or valued undetiscounted cash flow approach that utilizes Madde inputs, such
as current yields of similar instruments, but inigla adjustments for certain risks that may notlisevable such as
credit and liquidity risk ratings.

Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan &s$eclude the net of insurance receivables for Wé&ding Company,
interest receivables, amounts due for securitite amounts payable for securities purchased aedeist payable.

The balances of and changes in the fair valuelseobit S. pension plans’ and postretirement planvglld assets for the
periods ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were atetial.

International Pension Plans Assets

Outside the U.S., pension plan assets are typioadiyaged by decentralized fiduciary committees. diselosure below
of asset categories is presented in aggregatevéori® defined benefit plans in 26 countries; hosvethere is
significant variation in asset allocation policgiin country to country. Local regulations, localding rules, and local
financial and tax considerations are part of thdfng and investment allocation process in eacimttguThe Company
provides standard funding and investment guidam@dl international plans with more focused guidatwthe larger
plans.

Each plan has its own strategic asset allocatibr.dSset allocations are reviewed periodicallyrebdlanced when
necessary.
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The fair values of the assets held by the inteonatipension plans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as Fair Value at

(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Dec. 31,
Asset Class 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Equities
Growth equities $ 605 $ 718 $ 214 $ 195 $ — $ — $ 819 $ 913
Value equities 575 494 28 27 — — 603 521
Core equities 55 31 583 671 4 4 642 706
Equities, valued at net asset value* 16 17
Total Equities $1235 $1243 $ 825 $ 893 $ 4 $ 4 $2080 $2,157
Fixed Income
Domestic government $ 340 $ 283 $ 202 $ 346 $ 3 $ 4 $ 545 $ 633
Foreign government 142 — 353 206 — — 495 206
Corporate debt securities 51 30 888 661 9 10 948 701
Fixed income securities, valued at net asset value* 641 770
Total Fixed Income $ 533 $ 313 $1,443 $1,213 $ 12 $ 14 $2,629 $2,310
Private Equity
Real estate $ 29 % 1 $ 62 % 5 $ 3 $ 4 % 94 $ 10
Real estate, valued at net asset value* 34 126
Partnership investments* 63 24
Total Private Equity $ 29 % 1 $ 62 $ 5 $ 3 $ 4 $ 191 $ 160
Absolute Return
Derivatives $ 43 2% — $ 15 $— $— $ @ $ 13
Insurance — — — — 455 456 455 456
Other — — — 4 6 3 6 7
Other, valued at net asset value* — 1
Hedge funds* 174 119
Total Absolute Return $ 4 $ (2% — $ 19 $461 $459 $ 631 $ 596
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 99 $ 126 $ 18 $ 347 $ — $ — $ 117 $ 473
Cash and cash equivalents, valued at net asset*valu 4 1
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 99 $ 126 $ 18 $ 347 $ — $ — $ 121 $ 474
Total $1892 $1,681 $2,348 $2477 $480 $481 $5,652 $ 5,697
Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésse $ (35 $ (28
Fair value of plan assets $5617 $ 5,669

*In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investméi are measured at fair value using the net aafee per share
(or its equivalent) as a practical expedient haatebeen classified in the fair value hierarchy. NV is based on the
fair value of the underlying assets owned by thfuminus its liabilities then divided by the numioé units
outstanding and is determined by the investmeniag@mnor custodian of the fund. The fair value am®pnesented in
this table are intended to permit reconciliatiorthef fair value hierarchy to the amounts preseintéde fair value of
plan assets.

Equities consist primarily of mandates in publiuigg securities managed to various public equitiéas. Publicly
traded equities are valued at the closing pricented in the active market in which the individsaturities are traded.

Fixed Income investments include domestic and fprgiovernment, and corporate, (including mortgaayked and
other debt) securities. Governments, corporate $and notes and mortgage backed securities aredratithe closing
price reported if traded on an active market gjigltls currently available on comparable securibifissuers with
similar credit ratings or valued under a discourttash flow approach that utilizes observable inpaush as current
yields of similar instruments, but includes adjusits for certain risks that may not be observaldd sis credit and
liquidity risks.

Private equity funds consist of partnership intey@sa variety of funds. Real estate consistsroperty funds and
REITS (Real Estate Investment Trusts). REITS aheedhat the closing price reported in the activekagin which it is
traded.

Absolute return consists of private partnershipriests in hedge funds, insurance contracts, demvisistruments,
hedge fund of funds, and other alternative investmidnsurance consists of insurance contractg;hwuie valued using
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cash surrender values which is the amount theyptand receive if the contract was cashed out at gad. Derivative
instruments consist of interest rate swaps thatised to help manage risks.

Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésseclude the net of interest receivables, amoduésfor securities
sold, amounts payable for securities purchasedrderkest payable.

The balances of and changes in the fair valuelseoirnternational pension plans’ level 3 assetsisbpgamarily of
insurance contracts under the absolute return alssst. The aggregate of net purchases and netlizegkgains
increased this balance by $8 million and $16 miliio 2016 and 2015, respectively. Foreign curremahange impacts
decreased this balance by $9 million and $36 miliilo2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE 12. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiamreats to
manage risks generally associated with foreign @mxgh rate, interest rate and commodity price fiatibns. The
information that follows explains the various typéslerivatives and financial instruments used by Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaameunted for, and how such instruments impact Jiviancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative mepgnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 6. Adxhitl information with respect to the fair valuedwrivative
instruments is included in Note 13. Referencesfiormation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingrimeents
associated with the Company’s long-term debt ee alade in Note 10.

Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inolugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income:

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedcaradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portbthe gain or loss on
the derivative is reported as a component of atberprehensive income and reclassified into earrnimgjse same
period during which the hedged transaction affeatsiings. Gains and losses on the derivative reptieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frenassessment of effectiveness are recognizednent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tieeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash floesaminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desidrest cash flow hedges. The settlement or exten$ithrese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (fraaecumulated other comprehensive income) to earminte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamiBlyl may dedesignate these cash flow hedge nedttips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the denresinstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive irefon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulahed ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted tranmactccurs. Changes in the value of derivative imsemts after
dedesignation are recorded in earnings and anedadlin the Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgms¢riments
section below. Beginning in the second quarterddf42 3M began extending the maximum length of tawer which it
hedges its exposure to the variability in futurehciows of the forecasted transactions from aipresterm of 12
months to a longer term of 24 months, with certairrencies being extended further to 36 monthsisgpin the first
quarter of 2015.

Cash Flow Hedging - Commodity Price Managemdiiie Company manages commodity price risks thrawggotiated
supply contracts, price protection agreements angheodity price swaps. 3M discontinued the use ofimodity price
swaps as cash flow hedges of forecasted commaditgdctions in the first quarter of 2015. The Comypased
commodity price swaps as cash flow hedges of fatedacommodity transactions to manage price vitjatThe related
mark-to-market gain or loss on qualifying hedges w&luded in other comprehensive income to therexffective,
and reclassified into cost of sales in the periodng) which the hedged transaction affected eaming
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Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtsthe third and fourth quarters of 2014, the Campentered into
forward starting interest rate swaps with noticaralounts totaling 500 million Euros as a hedge agaiterest rate
volatility associated with the forecasted issuanmicixed rate debt. 3M terminated these interet& savaps upon
issuance of 750 million Euros aggregate principabant of twelve-year fixed rate notes in connectiotih 3M's 1.250
billion Eurobond offering in November 2014. Themémation resulted in an $8 million pre-tax ($5 moifl after-tax) loss
within accumulated other comprehensive incomenlihbe amortized over the twelve-year life of thetes.

In the first six months of 2016, the Company ertténgo forward starting interest rate swaps thairexi in December
2016 with an aggregate notional amount of $300ienilas a hedge against interest rate volatilitpeiased with a
forecasted issuance of fixed rate debt. Upon issahmedium-term notes in September 2016, 3M teated these
interest rate swaps. The termination resulted imamaterial loss within accumulated other comprehemincome that
will be amortized over the respective lives of thedbt.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company enténemiforward starting interest rate swaps with &amal amount of
$200 million as a hedge against interest rate Nityessociated with a forecasted issuance offfirate debt.

The amortization of gains and losses on forwardistainterest rate swaps is included in the tablkdsw as part of the
gain/(loss) recognized in income on the effectivgtipn of derivatives as a result of reclassifioatfrom accumulated
other comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had a balai$81 million associated with the after tax netaatized gain
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @tin accumulated other comprehensive income.imbligdes a
remaining balance of $6 million (after tax losdpted to forward starting interest rate swaps, Wwhidl be amortized
over the respective lives of the notes. Based change rates as of December 31, 2016, 3M expeotsimssify
approximately $57 million of the after-tax net ualized foreign exchange cash flow hedging gaireatmings in 2017,
approximately $26 million of the after-tax net ualized foreign exchange cash flow hedging gairesatmings in 2018,
and approximately $8 million of the after-tax netealized foreign exchange cash flow hedging gairearnings after
2018 (with the impact offset by earnings/lossesiftnderlying hedged items).

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathlbases
related to derivative instruments designated als fta®/ hedges are provided in the following talieclassifications of
amounts from accumulated other comprehensive indotaéncome include accumulated gains (lossegjextesignated
hedges at the time earnings are impacted by tieedsted transaction.

Year Ended December 31, 2016
Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of

Ineffective Portim of Gain
(Loss) on Derivative ah

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Comprehensive
Income on Effective
Pdion of Derivative

Reclassification from
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income

Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognizeiti Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 58 Cost of sales $ 110 Cost of sales $ =

Interest rate swap contracts (1) Interest expense (1) Interest expense —
Total $ 57 $ 109 $ —

Year Ended December 31, 2015
Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of

Ineffective Portim of Gain
(Loss) on Derivative ah

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Comprehensive
Income on Effective
Pdion of Derivative

Reclassification from
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income

Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognizeiti Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 212 Costofsales $ 178 Cost of sales $ —
Commodity price swap contracts — Cost of sales (2) Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts — Interest expens (2) Interest expens —
Total $ 212 $ 174 $ —
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Year Ended December 31, 2014

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Pretax Gain (Loss) Income on Effective Portion of Ineffective Portim of Gain
Recognized in Other Derivative as a Result of (Loss) on Derivative ah
Comprehensive Reclassification from Amount Exclded from
Income on Effective Accumulated Other Effectiveness Testing
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Pdion of Derivative Comprehensive Income Recognizeid Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 183 Costofsales $ 3 Cost of sales $ —
Commodity price swap contracts (4) Cost of sales 2 Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts (8) Interest expens (1) Interest expens —
Total $ 171 $ 4 $ —

Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedoaradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged ittribatable to the hedged risk are recognized mesu earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swafi$te Company manages interest expense using afrfiked and floating

rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @osnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under thesemgements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified al&rhe difference between fixed and floatingries¢ amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjpmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yailue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expenses arfitdet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faievaedges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness.

In July 2007, in connection with the issuance eéwen-year Eurobond for an amount of 750 millionoSuthe
Company completed a fixed-to-floating interest @t@p on a notional amount of 400 million Euros dair value
hedge of a portion of the fixed interest rate Eorabobligation. In August 2010, the Company terri@dal 50 million
Euros of the notional amount of this swap. As altea gain of 18 million Euros, recorded as pédrthe balance of the
underlying debt, was amortized as an offset ta@steexpense over this debt’s remaining life. Piaaiermination of the
applicable portion of the interest rate swap, tlaekato-market of the hedge instrument was recoetedains or losses
in interest expense and was offset by the gaings dn carrying value of the underlying debt inseat. Consequently,
the subsequent amortization of the 18 million Euszorded as part of the underlying debt balance et part of gains
on hedged items recognized in income in the tadidésw. The remaining interest rate swap of 250iomlIEuros
(notional amount) matured in July 2014,

In November 2013, 3M issued a Eurobond due in 2624 face amount of 600 million Euros. Upon delsuance, 3M
completed a fixed-to-floating interest rate swapaamtional amount of 300 million Euros as a failue hedge of a
portion of the fixed interest rate Eurobond obligat

In June 2014, 3M issued $950 million aggregateggal amount of medium-term notes. Upon debt isseathe
Company entered into an interest rate swap to cof6€0 million of a $625 million note includedtinis issuance to an
interest rate based on a floating three-month LIB@x as a fair value hedge of a portion of tlediinterest rate
medium-term note obligation.

In August 2015, 3M issued $1.500 billion aggregatacipal amount of medium-term notes. Upon dettasice, the
Company entered into two interest rate swaps asdi#tie hedges of a portion of the fixed interes¢ medium-term
note obligation. The first converted a $450 millithnee-year fixed rate note, and the second coed&800 million of a
five-year fixed rate note included in this issuat@an interest rate based on a floating three-mbi2OR index.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toati@gvinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infaomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedgeddm
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Reognized in Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (2) Interest expens $ 2
Total $ (2) $ 2
Year Ended December 31, 2015
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedgeddm
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Reognized in Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (2) Interestexpens $ 2
Total $ (2) $ 2
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedgeddm
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Reognized in Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 11 Interest expens $ (11
Total $ 11 $ (11)

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @omg’s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigrextddjualify as hedges of net investments in forejgerations and that
meet the effectiveness requirements, the net gailtsses attributable to changes in spot excheatgs are recorded in
cumulative translation within other comprehensiveoime. The remainder of the change in value of sugthuments is
recorded in earnings. Recognition in earnings odamts previously recorded in cumulative translat®limited to
circumstances such as complete or substantiallytimliquidation of the net investment in the hediforeign
operation. To the extent foreign currency denoneidatebt is not designated in or is dedesignated &met investment
hedge relationship, changes in value of that pomioforeign currency denominated debt due to exghaate changes
are recorded in earnings through their maturitg dat

3M's use of foreign exchange forward contracts glesied in hedges of the Company’s net investmeiatr&ign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balancegulasd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/ngesued and designated. Additionally, variati@m©ccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfozdign exchange risk coverage.

At December 31, 2016, the total notional amourfoodign exchange forward contracts designated irnnvestment
hedges was approximately 150 million Euros and @pprately 248 billion South Korean Won, along watlprincipal
amount of long-term debt instruments designatateirinvestment hedges totaling 4.4 billion Eurdse Taturity dates
of these derivative and nonderivative instrumeesghated in net investment hedges range from 02031.

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathkases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumel@signated as net investment hedges are as folldvese were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compsaleeimcome into
income for the periods presented in the table below
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Year ended December 31, 2016
Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation

within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) ;
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Inestment Hedging on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing
Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 215 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts (9) Cost of sales (3)
Total $ 206 $ (3)

Year ended December 31, 2015
Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation

within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) m
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Inestment Hedging on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing
Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 63 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 14&ost of sales 11
Total $ 206 $ 11

Year ended December 31, 2014
Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation

within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) ;
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Inestment Hedging on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing
Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 152 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 94 ost of sales 1
Total $ 246 $ 1

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrumerniside dedesignated foreign currency forward antbogontracts
that formerly were designated in cash flow hedg#lgtionships (as referenced in the Cash Flow Hedgetion above).
In addition, 3M enters into foreign currency foréiaontracts to offset, in part, the impacts of @iartntercompany
activities (primarily associated with intercompditgnsing arrangements) and enters into commaodite swaps to
offset, in part, fluctuations in costs associatdith the use of certain commaodities and preciousateeThese derivative
instruments are not designated in hedging relatipss therefore, fair value gains and losses osettoentracts are
recorded in earnings. The Company does not hoissae derivative financial instruments for tradmgposes.

The Company revised amounts previously presentdteitable below for the gain (loss) on derivativesognized in
income for the year ended December 31, 2015 relédioreign currency forward contracts. This imeniatl correction
decreased the previously presented amount of fiserzognized in income in the disclosure tablevedly $112
million for the year ended December 31, 2015. Téigsion had no impact on the Company’s consolla¢sults of
operations, financial condition, or cash flows.

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toati@evinstruments
not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow
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Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Income

Year ended Year ended Year ended

December31, December31, December31,
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments 2016 2015 2014
(Millions) Location Amount Amount Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Costofsales $ 14 $ 5 % 10
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expen 9 82 (40)
Commaodity price swap contracts Cost of sales — (3) —

Total $ 5) $ 84 $ (30)

Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents:

The following tables summarize the fair value of'8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts beftewpr@sented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except for iceiriterest rate swaps, which are presented ukmgnteption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information widfspect to the fair value of derivative instrumastsicluded in Note
13.

Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2016 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts ~ $ 2,160 Other current asse $ 107 Other current liabilitie $ 9
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,459 Other assets 86 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,953 Other assets o 25  Other current liabilitie 1
Total derivatives designated as hedging
instruments $ 218 $ 13
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,655 Other current assets  $ 41 Other current liabilities  $ 82
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 41 $ 82
Total derivative instruments $ 259 $ 95
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2015 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac $ 2,815 Other current asset: $ 148 Other current liabilitie  $ 14
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,24®@ther assets 61 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,753 Other assets 24 Other liabilities 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 233 $ 18
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,359 Other current assets $ 63  Other current liabilities $ 51
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 63 $ 51
Total derivative instruments $ 296 $ 69

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments:

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interes sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and omttmtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively nowsiits exposure to credit risk through the useretlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interoatl banks and financial institutions as countdigsr3M enters into
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master netting arrangements with counterpartieswgossible to mitigate credit risk in derivativarisactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterpartetcettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddhaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative trafisas. As of December 31, 2016, 3M has Internati@waps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements with pplacable banks and financial institutions whichntain netting
provisions. In addition to a master agreement @thsupported by a primary counterparty’s parentragngee, 3M also
has associated credit support agreements in plake & of its primary derivative counterparties athiamong other
things, provide the circumstances under which eplaety is required to post eligible collateral @uhthe market value
of transactions covered by these agreements exspedsied thresholds or if a counterparty’s crediing has been
downgraded to a predetermined rating). The Complaeg not anticipate nonperformance by any of these
counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of derreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative traoisa@re subject to master netting arrangememntsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company aktted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerinsients, netted in accordance with various critierine event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtidrrangements with each of the counterpartiese&oln counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset &fillity balances of all derivatives at the endted reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the &atisns. Derivatives not subject to master nettiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicatiéges presented below, no cash collateral hadieeeived or pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

December 31, 2016 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Arnat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 259 $ 39 % — % 220
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 259 $ 220
December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Aot of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 296 $ 37 % — % 259
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 296 $ 259
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Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

December 31, 2016 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Arnat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 93 $ 39 $ — 3 54
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 2 2
Total $ 95 $ 56
December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 64 $ 37 % — 3 27
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 5 5
Total $ 69 $ 32

Foreign Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencysaation effects, including hedging impacts, desgdgre-tax
income by approximately $69 million in 2016 andreesed pre-tax income by approximately $180 millio2015.
These estimates include transaction gains anddpssguding derivative instruments designed tauedforeign
currency exchange rate risks.

NOTE 13. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyredth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasured
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurpiagjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an assetit o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadizo establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andnmies the use of unobservable inputs by requittirag the most
observable inputs be used when available. Observaplits are inputs market participants would nsealuing the
asset or liability developed based on market dataieed from sources independent of the Compangbkkrvable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asgiomg about the factors market participants wowld im valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The margis broken down
into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted pricesdjusted) in active markets for identical essetliabilities. Level 2
inputs include quoted prices for similar assetkadnilities in active markets, quoted prices foemtical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, amputs (other than quoted prices) that are obsésvfab the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3puts are unobservable inputs for the asset diitiatCategorization
within the valuation hierarchy is based upon thedst level of input that is significant to the faalue measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifuoéaon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddiavalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieat/ailable-for-sale
marketable securities, available-for-sale investiméncluded as part of investments in the Constdid Balance Sheet)
and certain derivative instruments. Derivativedude cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps and medsvestment
hedges. The information in the following paragraphd tables primarily addresses matters relativkdse financial
assets and liabilities. Separately, there were ateral fair value measurements with respect tdinancial assets or
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liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at Yailue in the Company’s financial statements oecarring basis for
2016 and 2015.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which amagrily based upon the market and income approagh#srespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following igl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedtie respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at faiug.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — exceptain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. munlapaurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAswveighted average
price is used for these securities. Market pricesoitained for these securities from a varietindistry standard data
providers, security master files from large finahénstitutions, and other third-party sources. Sehenultiple prices are
used as inputs into a distribution-curve-basedralyn to determine the daily fair value to be us&id. classifies U.S.
treasury securities as level 1, while all otherkatable securities (excluding certain U.S. municgegurities) are
classified as level 2. Marketable securities asewlised further in Note 9.

Available-for-sale marketable securities —certais.Ununicipal securities only:

In both 2016 and 2014, 3M obtained municipal bonik the City of Nevada, Missouri, which represdit’s only
U.S. municipal securities holding as of December28116. Due to the nature of this security, theiaabn method
utilized will include the financial health of thatZ of Nevada, any recent municipal bond issuangeSevada, and
macroeconomic considerations related to the doedif interest rates and the health of the ovenalhicipal bond
market, and as such will be classified as a levsd@urity.

Available-for-sale investments:

Investments include equity securities that areetisid an active market. Closing stock prices aaglifg available from
active markets and are used as being representdtis@ value. 3M classifies these securitieseazl 1.

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivatibhat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commodity price swaps, interatt swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge 3tsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementlatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the hehgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in spetdn currency exchange rates and not with redpeather factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwargsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign ewyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itidmsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgsipclude foreign currency exchange rates, \ilas, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations/models that use as Kasiis readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedptaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuarstod cash flows model.
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The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured av#dire on a recurring

basis.
Fair Value Measurements
Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December3l, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:
Corporate debt securities $ 10 — $ 10 $ —
Commercial paper 14 — 14 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 197 — 197 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 31 — 31 —
Credit card related 18 — 18 —
Other 7 — 7 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 234 — 234 —
Interest rate swap contracts 25 — 25 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 94 — 94 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —
Fair Value Measurements
Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December3l, 201! Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:
Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — $ 10 $ —
Foreign government agency securities 10 — 10 —
Commercial paper 12 — 12 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 26 — 26 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 26 — 26 —
Credit card related 10 — 10 —
Other 21 — 21 —
U.S. municipal securities 12 — — 12
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 272 — 272 —
Interest rate swap contracts 24 — 24 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 68 — 68 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measutifedt aalue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used scgmif unobservable inputs (level 3).

Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seaities and auction rate
securities only

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014
Beginning balance $ 12 $ 15 $ 11
Total gains or losses:

Included in earnings — — Q)

Included in other comprehensive income — — 2
Purchases and issuances 12 — 15
Sales and settlements (4) 3) (12)
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — —
Ending balance 20 12 15

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the panicidded in
earnings for securities held at the end of the nt@pmpperiod — — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension arstretirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifugaon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abditias that are measured at fair value, but ammgnized and disclosed
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in periodsseguent to initial recognition. For 3M, such meaments of fair
value relate primarily to long-lived asset impaints There were no material long-lived asset inmpairts for 2016,
2015 and 2014.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company'’s financial instruments include cash @ash equivalents, marketable securities, accoaotsvable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiagg,derivative contracts. The fair values of cash@ash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and shantierrowings and current portion of long-term dapproximated
carrying values because of the short-term natuteesfe instruments. Available-for-sale marketabtsgties and
investments, in addition to certain derivative ingtents, are recorded at fair values as indicatelde preceding
disclosures. For its long-term debt, the Compailizetl third-party quotes to estimate fair valuek$sified as level 2).
Information with respect to the carrying amountd astimated fair values of these financial instrotadollow:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 10678 $ 11,168 $ 8,753 $ 9,101

The fair values reflected above consider the terhtke related debt absent the impacts of derieétiedging activity.
The carrying amount of long-term debt referencemvalis impacted by certain fixed-to-floating intereate swaps that
are designated as fair value hedges and by thgrédiin of fixed rate Eurobond securities issuetheyCompany as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investrireits European subsidiaries. Many of 3M’s fixeder bonds were
trading at a premium at December 31, 2016 and 20&50 the low interest rates and tightening of 8ktedit spreads.

NOTE 14. Commitments and Contingencies
Capital and Operating Leases:
Rental expense under operating leases was $31i8miill 2016, $316 million in 2015 and $332 millian2014. It is

3M'’s practice to secure renewal rights for leasigs,eby giving 3M the right, but not the obligatidéo maintain a
presence in a leased facility. 3M has three princapjtal leases. First, 3M has a capital leasechvbecame effective in
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April 2003, that involves a building in the Unit&dhgdom (with a lease term of 22 years). During $keond quarter of
2003, 3M recorded a capital lease asset and oioligaf approximately 33.5 million British Pound (®R or
approximately $41 million at December 31, 2016 hexmge rates. Second, during the fourth quarte00923M
recorded a capital lease asset and obligationmoapmately $50 million related to an IT investmavith an
amortization period of seven years. This capitaséewas fully amortized at December 31, 2016. TRikd recorded a
capital lease asset and obligation of approxim&i&R million in 2016 and $15 million in 2014, whighdiscussed in
more detail in Note 7.

Minimum lease payments under capital and operdgiages with non-cancelable terms in excess of eaeas of
December 31, 2016, were as follows:

Operating
(Millions) Capital Leases Leases
2017 $ 9 % 210
2018 7 161
2019 5 119
2020 4 89
2021 4 58
After 2021 30 188
Total $ 59 §$ 825
Less: Amounts representing interest 5
Present value of future minimum lease payments 54
Less: Current obligations under capital leases 9
Long-term obligations under capital leases $ 45

Unconditional Purchase Obligations:

Unconditional purchase obligations are definedreagreement to purchase goods or services thafasceable and
legally binding (non-cancelable, or cancelable anlgertain circumstances). The Company estimatdstal
unconditional purchase obligation commitment (fayste contracts with terms in excess of one yeasf Becember 31,
2016, at $608 million. Payments by year are esgédhas follows: 2017 ($193 million), 2018 ($189 ioifl), 2019 ($123
million), 2020 ($54 million), 2021 ($24 million) drafter 2021 ($25 million). Many of these commitrteerelate to take
or pay contracts, in which 3M guarantees paymeangure availability of products or services thatsold to
customers. The Company expects to receive considie@roducts or services) for these unconditignathase
obligations. The purchase obligation amounts da@otesent the entire anticipated purchases ifuthee, but represent
only those items for which the Company is contraltyuobligated. The majority of 3M’s products arehdces are
purchased as needed, with no unconditional commitnk@r this reason, these amounts will not proedéndication
of the Company’s expected future cash outflowsteeléo purchase obligations.

Warranties/Guarantees:

3M’s accrued product warranty liabilities, recordsdthe Consolidated Balance Sheet as part of muared long-term
liabilities, are estimated at approximately $47lionl at December 31, 2016, and $28 million at Delsen81, 2015. 3M
does not consider this amount to be material. &ivevhlue of 3M guarantees of loans with third gasrand other
guarantee arrangements are not material.

Related Party Activity:

3M does not have any material related party agtivit

Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imebin numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyha United

States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thedede various products liability (involving procts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latssincluding
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those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwemtal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, tmep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation.

Process for Disclosure and Recording of Liabili@sl Insurance Receivables Related to L egal Prouged

Many lawsuits and claims involve highly complexuss relating to causation, scientific evidence, whdther there are
actual damages and are otherwise subject to stidtamcertainties. Assessments of lawsuits andnslzan involve a
series of complex judgments about future eventscandely heavily on estimates and assumptions.Cidrapany
complies with the requirements of ASC 4&8Imntingenciesand related guidance, and records liabilitieddgal
proceedings in those instances where it can reboastimate the amount of the loss and whereliiglis probable.
Where the reasonable estimate of the probableda@ssange, the Company records the most likelynese of the loss,
or the low end of the range if there is no one betitnate. The Company either discloses the anafumpossible loss
or range of loss in excess of established acciuadimable, or states that such an estimate d¢dmmade. The
Company discloses significant legal proceedings evieere liability is not probable or the amounttaf liability is not
estimable, or both, if the Company believes ther ieast a reasonable possibility that a lossbeapcurred.

The Company estimates insurance receivables bawsad analysis of its numerous policies, includingjit exclusions,
pertinent case law interpreting comparable polidisexperience with similar claims, and assessmethe nature of
the claim and remaining coverage, and records auanit has concluded is likely to be recovered. those insured
matters where the Company has taken an accruadh®any also records receivables for the amouimsofance that
it expects to recover under the Company’s insur@negram. For those insured matters where the Coypas not
taken an accrual because the liability is not pbtdar the amount of the liability is not estimalde both, but where the
Company has incurred an expense in defending,itbelfCompany records receivables for the amouintsoffance that
it expects to recover for the expense incurred.

Because litigation is subject to inherent uncetias) and unfavorable rulings or developments cougltlr, there can be
no certainty that the Company may not ultimatebuincharges in excess of presently recorded ltadsliA future
adverse ruling, settlement, or unfavorable develmroould result in future charges that could heveaterial adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations shdows in the period in which they are recordgithough the
Company cannot estimate its exposure to all legaiqedings, it currently believes that such futthrarges, if any,
would not have a material adverse effect on thesaligetted financial position of the Company. Basadexperience
and developments, the Company reexamines its deméprobable liabilities and associated expeasdseceivables
each period, and whether it is able to estimaielality previously determined to be not estimahtel/or not probable.
Where appropriate, the Company makes additions &mljoistments of its estimated liabilities. As aulg the current
estimates of the potential impact on the Compaaogissolidated financial position, results of opemasi and cash flows
for the legal proceedings and claims pending ag#tiesCompany could change in the future.

The following sections first describe the signifitdegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then
describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating sigtsficant legal
proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of December 31, 2016, the Company is a nameshdaht, with multiple co-defendants, in numerousslats in
various courts that purport to represent approetge,660 individual claimants, compared to appmagely 2,130
individual claimants with actions pending at Decem®1, 2015.

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims resdlty and currently pending against the Compamgallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products ar#t damages from the Company and other defendamatiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesitica, coal mine dust or other occupationatslésund in
products manufactured by other defendants or giypérahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits éelaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company géigerlege personal injury from occupational exp@sto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Comparhich are often unspecified, as well as produsiufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnses.
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The Company’s current volume of new and pendingenais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
much lower levels than in the past. Accordingly thumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaagieater percentage of total claims than in . @he Company
has prevailed in all eleven cases taken to traluding nine of the ten cases tried to verdictiisuials occurred in
1999, 2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, 2015, and 2fHsEribed below), and an appellate reversal in 20@% 2001
jury verdict adverse to the Company. The remaiizgg, tried in 2009, was dismissed by the couheatlose of
plaintiff's evidence, based on the court’s legatlfing that the plaintiff had not presented suffitievidence to support a
jury verdict. In August 2016, 3M received a unanusaefense verdict from a jury in state court imtdeky, in 3M’s
first respirator trial involving coal mine dust. &lestate of the plaintiff alleged that the 3M 87dgpirator is defective
and caused his death because it did not protectrbimharmful coal mine dust. The jury rejectediqi#’s claim and
returned a verdict finding no liability against 3Whe verdict is final as the plaintiff did not fit; appeal.

The Company has demonstrated in these past tdaépdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imtbaded circumstances. Consequently the Compelmves that
claimants are unable to establish that their médimaditions, even if significant, are attributalbbethe Company’s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless theamy’s litigation experience indicates that clamhpersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeteebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on agb@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were d@eseny medically unimpaired claimants.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complaini@03 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respirgbooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia, and amended its complaint in 2005. Theeaded complaint seeks substantial, but unspecifitipensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the cosegyetlly incurred by the State for worker's compéinssand
healthcare benefits provided to all workers witigzational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundanmages. The
case was inactive from the fourth quarter of 200 late 2013, other than a case management camgerin

March 2011. In November 2013, the State filed aiomoto bifurcate the lawsuit into separate liailind damages
proceedings. At the hearing on the motion, the tcdeclined to bifurcate the lawsuit. No liabilitpdibeen recorded for
this matter because the Company believes thatitialsi not probable and estimable at this timeatidition, the
Company is not able to estimate a possible losarage of loss given the lack of any meaningful avgry responses by
the State of West Virginia, the otherwise minimeti\aty in this case and the fact that the complaisserts claims
against two other manufacturers where a defendahéiee of liability may turn on the law of jointcheeveral liability
and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury mighbahte to each defendant if the case is ultimatedg.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivables:

The Company annually conducts a comprehensive tegedw of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilitiresonnection
with finalizing and reporting its annual resultsogferations, unless significant changes in tremadew developments
warrant an earlier review. The Company reviewsmeaead historical claims data, including withoumiiation, (i) the
number of pending claims filed against the Comp#iijythe nature and mix of those claims (i.e., fineportion of
claims asserting usage of the Company’s mask piredsr products and alleging exposure to eactsbéstos, silica,
coal or other occupational dusts, and claims pfeadse of asbestos-containing products allegedhyufaatured by the
Company), (iii) the costs to defend and resolvedpepnclaims, and (iv) trends in filing rates anccosts to defend and
resolve claims, (collectively, the “Claims DataAs part of its comprehensive legal review, the Campprovides the
Claims Data to a third party with expertise in det@ing the impact of Claims Data on future filingnds and costs.
The third party assists the Company in estimatiegcosts to defend and resolve pending and futaias. The
Company uses these estimates to develop its leastés of probable liability.

Developments may occur that could affect the Comigagstimate of its liabilities. These developmeantdude, but are

not limited to, significant changes in (i) the kassumptions underlying the Company’s accrual, dfinly, the number
of future claims, the nature and mix of those chithe average cost of defending and resolvingnslaand in
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maintaining trial readiness (ii) trial and appeadlatutcomes, (iii) the law and procedure applicabliese claims, and
(iv) the financial viability of other co-defendardad insurers.

As a result of the Company’s regular comprehenigigel review and underlying factors such as thesocofresolving
claims of persons who claim more serious injuriesluding mesothelioma and other malignanciesQbmpany
recorded an expense in 2016 for respirator maskéass liabilities of $69 million. In 2016, the Coamy made
payments for legal fees and settlements of $62amilelated to the respirator mask/asbestos libgats of

December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had anaddor respirator mask/asbestos liabilities (esloig Aearo
accruals) of $595 million and $588 million, respeely. This accrual represents the Company’s bstitnate of
probable loss and reflects an estimation perioduimre claims that may be filed against the Conypagpproaching the
year 2050. Refer to Note 1 for further detail oa thvision of this accrual. The Company cannotesi the amount or
upper end of the range of amounts by which théliiglmay exceed the accrual the Company has astadd because of
the (i) inherent difficulty in projecting the numbef claims that have not yet been asserted ofirties period in which
future claims may be asserted, (ii) the complameizrly always assert claims against multiple dedaetslwhere the
damages alleged are typically not attributed tividdal defendants so that a defendant’s sharibility may turn on
the law of joint and several liability, which caary by state, (iii) the multiple factors descrikmzbve that the Company
considers in estimating its liabilities, and (ilagtseveral possible developments described abaventiy occur that
could affect the Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s receivatiiéisurance recoveries related to the respiratmkfasbestos
litigation was $4 million. As a result of a finalbdtration decision in June 2016 regarding insueateverage under two
policies, 3M reversed its receivable for the insgearecoveries related to respirator mask/ashéstagion by $35
million. The Company is seeking coverage undempthleeies of certain insolvent and other insurersc©those claims
for coverage are resolved, the Company will havkected substantially all of its remaining insurar@mverage for
respirator mask/asbestos claims.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Teclhgas

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company pas#d the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréatearo
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@idous products, including personal protectionipment, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respyratotection products.

As of December 31, 2016, Aearo and/or other congsatfiat previously owned and operated Aearo’s ragpibusiness
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LLAD Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various caartghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator préasiand seek damages from Aearo and other defenfibarstbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsestitica-related, or other occupational dusts tbimproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenatbrkplace.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company, through &arA subsidiary, had accruals of $19 million fardarct liabilities
and defense costs related to current and futurecAedated asbestos and silica-related claims. Gtesbility for legal
costs, as well as for settlements and judgmentsiriently shared in an informal arrangement ambearo, Cabot,
American Optical Corporation and a subsidiary ofriéa Lambert and their respective insurers (the/P&roup”).
Liability is allocated among the parties basedtmnrtumber of years each company sold respiratagyats under the
“AO Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Digisiof American Optical Corporation and the allegedrs of
exposure of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s sharfethe contingent liability is further limited tan agreement entered
into between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. agisement provides that, so long as Aearo pagabmt a
quarterly fee of $100,000, Cabot will retain resgibitity and liability for, and indemnify Aearo aigat, any product
liability claims involving exposure to asbestodicai, or silica products for respirators sold prioJuly 11, 1995.
Because of the difficulty in determining how longarticular respirator remains in the stream of cmrce after being
sold, Aearo and Cabot have applied the agreememitns arising out of the alleged use of respmaiovolving
exposure to asbestos, silica or silica producty poi January 1, 1997. With these arrangementtatepAearo’s
potential liability is limited to exposures allegedhave arisen from the use of respirators invg\@xposure to
asbestos, silica, or silica products on or aftauday 1, 1997. To date, Aearo has elected to paygtharterly fee. Aearo
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could potentially be exposed to additional claimssome part of the pre-July 11, 1995 period calénreits agreement
with Cabot if Aearo elects to discontinue its paption in this arrangement, or if Cabot is nogenable to meet its
obligations in these matters.

In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot @aitjon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaratligfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the

July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratained liability for coal workers’ pneumocorigslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In 20Bicthurt granted Aearo’s motion for summary judgnuantwo claims,
but declined to rule on two issues: the specifibility for certain known coal mine dust lawsuisid Cabot’s claim for
allocation of liability between injuries allegedigused by exposure to coal mine dust and injuliegeaily caused by
exposure to silica dust. Following additional digexy, the parties filed new motions for summarygonént. In
February 2016, the court ruled in favor of Aearalese two remaining issues, and ordered that Cabdtnot Aearo, is
solely responsible for all liability for the coaiime dust lawsuits under the 1995 agreement. Camappealed with a
decision expected in 2017.

Developments may occur that could affect the esémfAearo’s liabilities. These developments ingubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbérfuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal ®st defending these claims, (iv) significant chesxin the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appellatécomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aretpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tiability allocation among the co-defendants, (Miiig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or éxjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflifglis inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these patetgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeasbare of
liability for these existing and future claimsalfy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataims could be significantly larger than the amioaccrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assahteadomplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amotg tPayor Group, and the several possible develojgntieat may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab#l#tj the Company cannot estimate the amount or @re@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environatdgavs and regulations including those pertainiingir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and titing and disposal of solid and hazardous wastémeeable by
national, state, and local authorities around thddy and private parties in the United States amwad. These laws and
regulations provide, under certain circumstancdmsas for the remediation of contamination, fatoeation of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcedoampersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs andidgxpenditures in complying with these laws aagulations,
defending personal injury and property damage daand modifying its business operations in ligtit

environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisty its environmental responsibilities and compliyh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establigimetperiodically updates, policies relating to eowimental

standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including thetddiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsep€usation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgily with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former faciliteex at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustions, most of which are in the United States, kictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivablédsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.
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Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatilptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal
(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Age{&PA)), and international agencies of possibleremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoumasuding perfluorooctanyl compounds such as perfboctanoate
(“PFOA"), perfluorooctane sulfonate (“PFOS”), omsiar compounds (“PFCs”). As a result of its phase-decision in
May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures pandloctanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
using the vast majority of these compounds witlipraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaad ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehi$ themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisigsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative riate the Company continues to control or eliménidite presence of
certain PFCs in purchased materials or as bypreducome of 3M’s fluorochemical manufacturing prsses,
products, and waste streams.

Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFOftiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlaet before
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,agdessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. In Oct@®46, the European Commission notified the Worlader
Organization of a draft regulation to restrict PF@#d its related substances under the EU’'s REAC#uR#Eon
(Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, and Riesitsn of Chemicals). If adopted, the regulationulgbrestrict PFOA
and its related substances to concentrations radegrthan 25 parts per billion in constituents thieo substances, in
mixtures, and in articles. As the database of studf both chemicals has expanded, the EPA hasogeeehuman
health effects documents summarizing the availdata from these studies. In February 2014, the iBRiAted external
peer review of its draft human health effects doents for PFOA and PFOS. The peer review panel met i

August 2014. In May 2016, the EPA announced lifetimealth advisory levels for PFOA and PFOS at 76 peer
trillion (superseding the provisional levels esistitd by the EPA in 2009 of 400 parts per trillfonPFOA and 200
parts per trillion for PFOS). Where PFOA and PF@sSfaund together, EPA recommends that the coratéonis be
added together, and the lifetime health advisoryPieBOA and PFOS combined is also 70 parts peofrilLifetime
health advisories, while not enforceable, servguidance and are benchmarks for determining if entrations of
chemicals in tap water from public utilities ardestor public consumption. In an effort to collestposure information
under the Safe Drinking Water Act, the EPA publisbba May 2, 2012 a list of unregulated substanoefjding six
PFCs, required to be monitored during the periai328015 by public water system suppliers to deteenihe extent of
their occurrence. Through July 2016, the EPA ragbréesults for 4,909 public water supplies natiatevBased on the
2016 lifetime health advisory, 13 public water siggexceed the level for PFOA and 46 exceed thel fFer PFOS. A
technical advisory issued by EPA in September 281&boratory analysis of drinking water samplesest that 65
public water supplies had exceeded the combinea fev PFOA and PFOS. These results are based @oromore
samples collected during the period 2012-2015 andad necessarily reflect current conditions osthpublic water
supplies. EPA reporting does not identify the searaf the PFOA and PFOS in the public water supplie

The Company is continuing to make progress in agskwunder the supervision of state regulatorgddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufeeturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabddepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s maturfag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant slugggaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facili§fter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pir@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafion areas on the manufacturing site with subseggroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothat plan continues and is expected to be contpiatd018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlution Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the ternfghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreena@at Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@f&ls in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irskifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) a& the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMénnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’<ipah
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obligations include (i) evaluating releases of a@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respoieasic(ii) providing
treatment or alternative drinking water upon idgintg any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\WBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemici drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of Health
(MDH) to be safe for human consumption over ailifief) for certain PFCs for which a HBV and/or HRLi#g as a
result of contamination from these sites; (iii) ediating identified sources of other PFCs at tisites that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiggssformal decisions adopting remedial optionglierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota (@aékand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issaiédrmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compai@ottage Grove manufacturing facility. During #pging and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreet upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdadeisitate 2010. At each location the remedial opgtivere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MRE&/ediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational taaance mode. Remediation will continue at thedgmtGrove site
during 2017.

In August 2014, the lllinois EPA approved a requmsthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroee at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, lllinois, whidhcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwagroundwater
monitoring and routine reporting of results.

The Company cannot predict what additional regmeaations arising from the foregoing proceedingd activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgegjuences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee fileduggorted class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the St. John case), seeking wustiimages and alleging that the plaintiffs sufféear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagenfrexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or tirmaCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The cdaor2005 granted the Company’s motion to dismigsrtamed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the excluspribyisions of the
state’s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifistinsel filed an amended complaint in November 200fjng the
case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegaelass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaanended complaint adding additional defendantsyding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wislsteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daga
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamaladiecatur
Utilities.

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmaddiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Cgurtlabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive damagelsing alleged damage to their property from gsions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the CorgfsaDecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the Chandler caaedegl the Company’s motion to abate the case,teféée putting
the case on hold pending the resolution of clagfication issues in the St. John case. Despiesthy, plaintiffs filed
an amended complaint seeking damages for allegsdna injuries and property damage on behalf efntéamed
plaintiffs and the members of a purported classfuMiher action in the case is expected unlesauatitithe stay is
lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyal®dima, filed a purported class action lawsuit énGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the Stover case) seeking compengatamages and injunctive relief based on theiegpdn by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagter treatment sludge to farmland and grasslanitie state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratbals. The named plaintiff seeks to represenaascof all
persons within the State of Alabama who have had&RFPPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasetkposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supré&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklior®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its diiémg of the other matters, the Morgan County Qir€@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resohutibthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.
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In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&esver Authority (Water Authority) filed an individu
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, anikidbeAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court ftine Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepressentative plaintiffs who brought the complaintoehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and possestproperty who use water provided by the WatethArity and five
local water works to which the Water Authority slipp water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”).lle complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctivef lsased on allegations that the defendants’ ét&ls) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&eratur, have contaminated the water in the Tesg@eRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals cannotb®ved by the water treatment processes utiligatido Water
Authority. In September 2016, the court granted SMbtion to dismiss plaintiffs’ trespass claimshaptrejudice,
negligence claims for personal injuries, and pevatisance claims, and denied the motion to disthésglaintiffs’
negligence claims for property damage, public mésaabatement of nuisance, battery and wantonness.

In June 2016, the Tennessee Riverkeeper, Inc. f&eper), a non-profit corporation, filed a lawsnoithe U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of Alabama agaiist; BFI Waste Systems of Alabama; the City of Dacaf\labama;
and the Municipal Utilities Board of Decatur, Morg@ounty, Alabama. The complaint alleges that #fermdants
violated the Resource Conservation and RecoveryrAabnnection with the disposal of certain PFGstlgh their
ownership and operation of their respective sité& complaint further alleges such practices maggmt an imminent
and substantial endangerment to health and/om¥ieomment and that Riverkeeper has suffered aticcamtinue to
suffer irreparable harm caused by defendants’raila abate the endangerment unless the courtsgitatequested
relief, including declaratory and injunctive relidhe Company believes that the complaint lackstmer

In July 2016, the City of Lake EImo filed a lawsintthe U.S. District Court for the District of Milesota against 3M
alleging that the City suffered damages from drigkivater supplies contaminated with PFCs, includiogfs to
construct alternative sources of drinking water.

As of December 31, 2016, seven purported classrectivere filed against 3M and other defendants.$ District
Court - three in the District of Colorado and fauthe Eastern District of Pennsylvania. The conmpdaseek unstated
damages and other remedies, such as medical niogitand allege that the plaintiffs suffered peedanjury and
property damage from drinking water supplies coimtated with certain PFCs used in Aqueous Film Fogitoam
(AFFF) at current or former airports and air fora#itary bases located in Colorado and Pennsylvania

In September 2016, the Water Works and Sewer Bafatte City of Gadsden, Alabama filed a lawsuithe Circuit
Court of Etowah County Alabama against 3M and wegicarpet manufacturers. The complaint allegesRR@as from
the defendants’ facilities contaminated the CoosaRas its raw water source for drinking water aedks unstated
damages for the installation and operation ofteafibn system, expenses to monitor PFC levelsa@stdrofits and
sales.

In November 2016, the Town of Barnstable, Massaetisifiled an individual action in the U.S. Distr@ourt for the
District of Massachusetts seeking unstated compenrysand punitive damages and other relief aga@isand other
suppliers of AFFF for alleged contamination of #upiifer supplying drinking water to the Hyannis @ragystem. The
town seeks to recover costs associated with thestigation, treatment, remediation, and monitodhdrinking water
supplies allegedly contaminated with certain PF&=iun AFFF. In January 2017, the County of Balyista
Massachusetts, filed an individual action in th& \District Court for the District of Massachusedteking unstated
compensatory and punitive damages and other (gligfiding indemnification and contribution in cagtion with
claims asserted against the County by the Townapfi&able) against 3M and other suppliers of AFdtFafleged
contamination of the aquifer supplying drinking ermto the Hyannis water system.

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAey General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagtyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, fildalwsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBkt to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costseandnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydestruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resssiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé iabdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContratAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaw/
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence e#ipect to the presence of PFCs in the groundvatdgce water, fish
or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaiV}. The State also seeks declarations under MERIat 3M is
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responsible for all damages the State may suffdrdarfuture for injuries to natural resources fraieases of PFCs into
the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfm@d$or compensation for future loss or destruttid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filedhation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laivseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratdrgguitable relief, including reasonable attorhésgss, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuthe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’s PF@i&harges to the Mississippi River, including it&tallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based exesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorynstaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thendota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory agguitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri®®t.did not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’'s complaint aifetfa counterclaim alleging that the Metropolitaouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and diggsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural larttslocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M’s comiplaagainst the
Metropolitan Council asks that if the court finthait the State is entitled to any of the damageseaks, 3M be awarded
contribution and apportionment from the Metropalitaouncil, including attorneys’ fees, under MER lahd
contribution from and liability for the MetropolitaCouncil’s proportional share of damages awarddti¢ State under
the MWPCA, as well as under statutory nuisancecamdmon law theories of trespass, nuisance, andgeege. 3M
also seeks declaratory relief under MERA.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlibgiP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motionitmgdalify Covington as counsel to the State andStta¢e and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatiothte Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, thaemésota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualifimat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtloé decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveiisgaart, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence @ndisqualification issues at a hearing in Octolftdr=2 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against represgiaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialbted matter where that person’s interests arera#yeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district epinowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogiaon because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. Other activity in the casbich had been
stayed pending the outcome of the disqualificatssne, has resumed. A trial date has not yet beteinsa separate but
related action, the Company filed suit in the RayrGeunty District Court against Covington for breaxf its fiduciary
duties to the Company and for breach of contrasiray out of Covington’s representation of the Staft Minnesota in
the NRD Lawsuit. In September 2016, the court gaM’s motion for leave to amend the complainplead punitive
damages.

For environmental litigation matters describedhis section for which a liability, if any, has beerorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of stebished accrual
is not material to the Company’s consolidated tesefl operations or financial condition. For thasatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company bekeany such liability is not probable and estimalnlé the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had recoiidbdifies of $38 million for estimated “environmigh
remediation” costs based upon an evaluation ofatly available facts with respect to each indiaidsite and also
recorded related insurance receivables of $11anillfhe Company records liabilities for remediatimsts on an
undiscounted basis when they are probable andrmabBoestimable, generally no later than the cotigaieof feasibility
studies or the Company’s commitment to a plan tbacLiabilities for estimated costs of environrteremediation,
depending on the site, are based primarily upariiad or third-party environmental studies, andhestes as to the
number, participation level and financial viabilf any other potentially responsible parties,aktent of the
contamination and the nature of required remeditbas. The Company adjusts recorded liabilitiefuather
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information develops or circumstances change. Torafgany expects that it will pay the amounts recdmleer the
periods of remediation for the applicable sitesrently ranging up to 20 years.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had recoidbdities of $29 million for “other environmenthbilities”
based upon an evaluation of currently availablésfeimplement the Settlement Agreement and Cdar@eder with
the MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADE¥d to address trace amounts of perfluorinated ocomgs in
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Mirata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwahthe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafa, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Mwedbury). The Company expects that most of thedipg will
occur over the next four years. As of December2B16, the Company’s receivable for insurance regeseelated to
“other environmental liabilities” was $15 million.

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the unceresntegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emrnental laws and regulations, the extent of envirental
contamination and the existence of alternativertipanethods. Developments may occur that coula e
Company’s current assessment, including, but natéd to: (i) changes in the information availatdgarding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiors @roducts; (i) changes in environmental regulaicchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drigkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theaniépolicies,
including efforts to recover natural resource dagsagiii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;

(iv) success in allocating liability to other poti@ily responsible parties; and (v) the financiebility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimshitors. For sites included in both “environmemngahediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesgt which remediation activity is largely completed remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancénefremedy, including required post-remediation nuwirg, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in excedeaimount accrued would not be material to the g2om's
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon. However, for locations at which remediataxctivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibéedosange of loss in excess of the associatetlisstad accruals for
the reasons described above.

Other Matters
Commercial Litigation

3M sued TransWeb Corporation in Minnesota in 2@kdrffringement of several 3M patents covering flnation and
hydrocharging of filter media used in 3M’s respiratand furnace filters. TransWeb filed a declasafodgment action
in and successfully moved the litigation to the \D$trict Court for the District of New Jerseyge&eng a declaration of
invalidity and non-infringement of 3M’s patentsddfiurther alleging that 3M waited too long to erm®its rights.
TransWeb also alleged 3M obtained the patents ¢firamequitable conduct and that 3M’s attempt tmesd the patents
constituted a violation of the antitrust laws. lolémber 2012, a jury returned a verdict in favol cfnsWeb on all but
one count, including findings that 3M’s patents evgvalid and not infringed, and that 3M had conteditan antitrust
violation by seeking to enforce a patent it hachoigd fraudulently. The jury also recommended thatcourt find 3M
had committed inequitable conduct in obtainingghtents, and that the patents were therefore uremable. Since the
vast majority of TransWeb’s claim for treble ant#t damages was in the form of its attorneys’ tgesexpenses in
connection with the defense of the patent casgydhties agreed that the measure of damages wotigbrto the jury,
but rather would be submitted to a special masgter the trial. In April, 2014, the court issued @amler denying 3M'’s
motions to set aside the jury’s verdict. In addtitithe court found two 3M patents unenforceabletdueequitable
conduct. The court accepted the special mastesammendation as to the amount of attorneys’ fedetawarded as
damages, and entered judgment against 3M. In Ddl¢,23M filed a notice of appeal of the judgmentite U.S. Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. In February @0the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Cir@sgued its decision
affirming the lower court’s judgment. In March 201BM paid TransWeb $27 million in full satisfactiofithe
judgment.
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Andover Healthcare filed an infringement suit agaBM in May 2013 in the U.S. District Court foetbDistrict of
Delaware. Andover also filed a related infringemaetion against 3M and 3M Deutschland GmbH in Ddmem2013 in
Mannheim, Germany. In both cases, Andover allegatdertain of 3M’s self-adherent wraps, includ@gpan™ Latex
Free and Nexcare™ No Hurt Latex Free wraps, inthgndover’'s U.S. and German patents. 3M denietttha
infringed Andover’s patents, asserted that therpgatare invalid, and claimed that Andover shoulgfexluded from
recovery of its alleged damages, in part becau#s fafng delay in bringing the actions. 3M and Ardr each filed
motions for summary judgment, and in October 2046 court denied all pending summary judgment nnstided by
both parties. Trial in the U.S. matter was schedifde November 2016. A hearing in the German irfement case
occurred in September 2014. In November 2014, #ren@n trial court issued a decision ordering thgoagment of an
expert to assist with analysis of whether 3M’s utd infringe Andover’s German patent. Separa@y filed a nullity
action in Germany, challenging the validity of Awméo's German patent. At a hearing in July 2015,Gleeman patent
court revoked Andover’s German patents. Andoveeafga that decision and, in April 2016, the Gertneah court
stayed the infringement proceedings during the eeoyl of Andover’s appeal. In November 2016, theigsresolved
all pending litigation in the United States and @any for an amount that is not material to the Camy{s consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

Product Liability Litigation

Electricité de France (EDF) filed a lawsuit agai®st France in the French courts in 2006 claiminmorcial loss and
property damage after experiencing electrical netvailures which EDF claims were caused by allégeeéfective 3M
transition splices. The French Court of AppealNetsailles affirmed the commercial trial court’scégon that the
transition splices conformed to contract specifiwa and that EDF thoroughly analyzed and testedgptices before
purchase and installation. The Court of Appealsyéher, ordered a court-appointed expert to studyptioblem and
issue a technical opinion on the cause of the mitfailures. The court-appointed expert submittedraport to the
commercial court in May 2014. The expert found ptigé defects in 3M’s product and found that EDEuirred
damages in excess of 100 million euros. The exgeginion was not dispositive of liability or danesgand subject to
numerous factual and legal challenges that couldiised with the court. In June 2016, the paréashed an agreement
to resolve this dispute; the agreement include$id@ntial terms that, when taking into account 3Misurance
coverage, were not material to the Company’s cafaigld results of operations or financial condition

One customer obtained an order in the French cagesst 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidianypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroergial loss and property damage allegedly caugedidgedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantifeing process. An Austrian subsidiary of this samustomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austri@urts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sanme iBkase two cases are still pending. Another costdiled a
lawsuit against 3M Deutschland GmbH (a German slignyi) in the German courts in March 2012 seekimigmercial
loss and property damage allegedly caused by the 8M filters used in that customer’s manufactupnocess; the
Company has resolved the claims in the Germaratitg. The Company has also settled without litagathe claims of
two other customers arising out of the same isBhe.amounts paid are not material to the Compasorsolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company is a nameshdaht in approximately 1,260 lawsuits (compared to
approximately 122 lawsuits at December 31, 20198ktrof which are pending in federal or state cauMinnesota, in
which the plaintiffs claim they underwent varioog arthroplasty, cardiovascular, and other suegeand later
developed surgical site infections due to the dsheoBair Hugger™ patient warming system. The claimps seek
damages and other relief based on theories of Bafiility, negligence, breach of express and iegblwarranties, failure
to warn, design and manufacturing defect, fraududed/or negligent misrepresentation/concealmanjtist
enrichment, and violations of various state consunaeid, deceptive or unlawful trade practices anétlse advertising
acts. One case, from the U.S. District Court ferWestern District of Tennessee is a putative nafide class action.
The U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict LitigatighMDL) granted the plaintiffs’ motion to transfemd consolidate all
cases pending in federal courts to the U.S. Dis@aurt for the District of Minnesota to be managed multi-district
proceeding during the pre-trial phase of the ltima In June 2016, the Company was served withtatjve class action
filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice &irCanadian residents who underwent various jaititroplasty,
cardiovascular, and other surgeries and later dpeel surgical site infections due to the use oBthie Hugger™
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patient warming system. The representative pldisgieks relief (including punitive damages) undan&tian law based
on theories similar to those asserted in the MDie Bair Hugger™ product line was acquired by 3Mpag of the

2010 acquisition of Arizant, Inc., a leading marmtifaer of patient warming solutions designed tosprg hypothermia
and maintain normal body temperature in surgictiings. No liability has been recorded for this teabecause the
Company believes that any such liability is notljadole and estimable at this time.

In September 2011, 3M Oral Care launched Lava @EnCAD/CAM dental restorative material. The praduas
originally indicated for inlay, onlay, veneer, atwn applications. In June 2015, 3M Oral Care mtdrily removed
crown applications from the product’s instructidosuse, following reports from dentists of pat®rirowns
debonding, requiring additional treatment. The piddemains on the market for other applicatiohé.ceémmunicated
with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as veallregulators outside the United States. 3M alfewrned
customers and distributors of its action, offeeadcept return of unused materials and providemdsf. As of
December 31, 2016, there are three lawsuits periatgvere brought by dentists and dental practgesnst 3M. The
complaints allege 3M marketed and sold defectiveallditimate material used for dental crowns to téstand, under
various theories, seek monetary damages (replaterosts and business reputation loss), punitiveadgs,
disgorgement of profits, injunction from marketiagd selling Lava Ultimate for use in dental crowsiatutory
penalties, and attorneys’ fees and costs. One igvgsmding in the U.S. District Court for the Dist of Minnesota,
names 39 plaintiffs and seeks certification ofasslaction of dentists in the United States aneitgories, and
alternatively seeks subclasses in 13 states. THeg two lawsuits are individual complaints agaBigt— one in Madison
County, lllinois and the other in the U.S. Distr@ourt for the Northern District of New York.

For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been resed, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material taCtpany’s consolidated results of operationsrarftial condition.
In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of thebshed accruals at
this time.
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NOTE 15. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) pro\sder the issuance or delivery of up to 100 millairares of 3M
common stock (including additional shareholder appls subsequent to 2008) pursuant to awards gramiger the
plan. In May 2016, shareholders approved the 200€ Lproviding an additional 23,965,000 shares,dasing the
number of approved shares to 123,965,000 shares2016 LTIP succeeds the 3M 2008 LTIP. Awards maisbued
in the form of incentive stock options, nonquatifigtock options, progressive stock options, stggkeciation rights,
restricted stock, restricted stock units, othecls@mwards, and performance units and performarmeshAwards
denominated in shares of common stock other théinrepand stock appreciation rights, count agahest1 23,965,000
share limit as 3.38 shares for every one shareredvy such award (for full value awards with grdates prior to
May 11, 2010), as 2.87 shares for every one stwvered by such award (for full value awards witargrdates on or
after May 11, 2010, and prior to May 8, 2012), &03hares for every one share covered by suchdaifaarfull value
awards with grant dates of May 8, 2012 and pridvitty 10, 2016), or as 2.50 shares for every oneest@vered by
such award (for full value awards with grant dateMay 10, 2016 or later). The remaining total gsaavailable for
grant under the LTIP Program are 36,865,814 aseakhber 31, 2016. There were approximately 7,6@kjpants
with outstanding options, restricted stock, orniettd stock units at December 31, 2016.

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide arggrand
immediate link between the performance of individuduring the preceding year and the size of theftual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible empleyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateoénting

rules require recognition of expense under a ndastamtive vesting period approach, requiring corespéan expense
recognition when an employee is eligible to retitmployees are considered eligible to retire at&gand after having
completed ten years of service. This retiree-digggmpulation represents 35 percent of the 2016&arstock-based
compensation award expense dollars; thereforeghigflock-based compensation expense is recogmizée first
quarter.

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictextktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash sessiieitted stock units and stock appreciationtsigh certain
countries. These grants do not result in the isseiahcommon stock and are considered immateniali8zlosure
purposes by the Company.

During the first quarter of 2016, the Company addpASU No. 2016-09mprovements to Employee Share-Based
Payment Accountingrhe adoption is required to be implemented prospaly and resulted in income tax benefits of
$184 million for 2016. See Note 1 for additiondbirmation regarding ASU No. 2016-09.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wadpect to stock-based compensation programshvimitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umitsformance shares, and the General Employeesk Btachase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were netiala

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014

Cost of sales $ 47 % 46 $ 47
Selling, general and administrative expenses 206 185 192
Research, development and related expenses 45 45 41
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 298 $ 276 $ 280
Income tax benefits $ (272) $ 87) $ (79)

»

Stock-based compensation expenses (benefits)f teet o 26 $ 189 $ 201
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Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acyi¥dr the years ended December 31:

2016 2015 2014
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Under option —
January 1 38,652,445 $ 102.01 39,235,557 $ 90.38 43,938,778 $ 83.84
Granted:

Annual 5,591,727 147.99 5,529,544 165.91 5,736,183 126.77
Exercised (7,716,141 86.76 (5,978,382 83.74 (10,219,261 82.37
Canceled (231,799) 148.43  (234,274) 128.99 (220,143) 105.11
December 31 36,196,232 $ 112.07 38,552,44t $ 102.01 39,235,557 $ 90.38

Options exercisable
December 31 25,240,75¢ $ 95.65 27,262,062 $ 85.97 27,502,20¢ $ 81.42

Stock options vest over a period from one to tlyesrs with the expiration date at 10 years frone ddigrant. As of
December 31, 2016, there was $69 million of compgms expense that has yet to be recognized refatedn-vested
stock option based awards. This expense is expéxtee recognized over the remaining weighted-ayesxeesting
period of 20 months. For options outstanding atebawer 31, 2016, the weighted-average remainingacto@al life
was 69 months and the aggregate intrinsic value$a)7 billion. For options exercisable at Decengie 2016, the
weighted-average remaining contractual life wasne®iths and the aggregate intrinsic value was $20U188n.

The total intrinsic values of stock options exezdisluring 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $608 million 5&d@lion and
$615 million, respectively. Cash received from ops exercised during 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $6E6mMm$501
million and $842 million, respectively. The Compangctual tax benefits realized for the tax dedirgirelated to the
exercise of employee stock options for 2016, 20152014 was $224 million, $172 million and $226liw,
respectively.

The Company does not have a specific policy tonemse common shares to mitigate the dilutive impaoptions;
however, the Company has historically made adedliateetionary purchases, based on cash availgbitérket trends,
and other factors, to satisfy stock option exeraisévity.

For annual options, the weighted average fair vatube date of grant was calculated using thelBfaholes option-
pricing model and the assumptions that follow.

Stock Option Assumptions

Annual
2016 2015 2014
Exercise price $ 14787 $ 16594 $ 126.72
Risk-free interest rate 1.5% 1.5% 1.9%
Dividend yield 2.5% 2.5% 2.6%
Expected volatility 20.8% 20.1% 20.8%
Expected life (months) 77 76 75
Black-Scholes fair value $ 2247 $ 2398 $ 19.63

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éneount by which a stock price is expected to flat¢ during a period.
For the 2016 annual grant date, the Company e&drtat expected volatility based upon the aver&gjgeomost recent
one year volatility, the median of the term of eéhgected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of the
expected life volatility of 3M stock, and the imgdi volatility on the grant date. The expected tassumption is based
on the weighted average of historical grants.
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock eagdricted stock unit activity for the years endistember 31:

2016 2015 2014
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of GrantDate  Number of = GrantDate = Number of  Grant Date
Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value
Nonvested balanc—

As of January 1 2,441,088 $127.47 2,817,786 $104.41 3,105,361 $ 92.31

Granted
Annual 749,068 148.20 671,204 165.86 798,615 126.79
Other 8,115 169.00 26,886 156.94 78,252 152.74
Vested (960,345) 101.64 (1,010,612) 89.99 (1,100,675) 90.37
Forfeited (52,880 145.95 (64,176 118.99 (63,767 97.23
As of December 31 2,185,046 $145.64 2,441,088 $127.47 2,817,786 $ 104.41

As of December 31, 2016, there was $81 millionahpensation expense that has yet to be recogretsed to non-
vested restricted stock and restricted stock ufiliss expense is expected to be recognized ovaethaining weighted-
average vesting period of 22 months. The totalMalue of restricted stock and restricted stocksuthiat vested during
2016, 2015 and 2014 was $149 million, $166 milkord $145 million, respectively. The Company’s aktar benefits
realized for the tax deductions related to theingsif restricted stock and restricted stock uftts2016, 2015 and 2014
was $56 million, $62 million and $54 million, respieely.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest tiigzas following the grant date assuming continemgployment.
Dividend equivalents equal to the dividends payall¢he same number of shares of 3M common stakiaon these
restricted stock units during the vesting peridthaugh no dividend equivalents are paid on anthe$e restricted stock
units that are forfeited prior to the vesting d&iezidends are paid out in cash at the vest datestnicted stock units,
except for performance shares which do not earidelivds. Since the rights to dividends are forfééathere is no
impact on basic earnings per share calculationsghéxd average restricted stock unit shares outstgrare included in
the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Performance Shares

Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makeual grants of performance shares to membéisefecutive
management. The 2016 performance criteria for thesirmance shares (organic volume growth, redarimvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earningsshare growth) were selected because the Compsieyés that they
are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thadcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®md may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachoperdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Comngaring such performance period. Non-substantesting
requires that expense for the performance sharesclgnized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. Prior to the 2pg&6formance share grant, performance shares digceoue
dividends during the performance period. Therefthre grant date fair value was determined by rewdyuttie closing
stock price on the date of grant by the net pregaine of dividends during the performance peritte 2016
performance share grant accrues dividends, therdffiergrant date fair value is equal to the closkogk price on the
date of grant. Since the rights to dividends areitable, there is no impact on basic earningsspare calculations.
Weighted average performance shares whose perfoeammariod is complete are included in computatiodilated
earnings per share.
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The following table summarizes performance shatigigcfor the years ended December 31:

2016 2015 2014
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date  Number of Grant Date  Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 871,192 $120.89 1,099,752 $102.65 895,635 $ 88.12
Granted 219,431 160.17 227,798 158.88 305,225 124.89
Distributed (367,428) 99.06 (323,938) 83.08 (277,358) 84.74
Performance change (37,534 15598 (106,760 127.70 212,461 109.74
Forfeited (29,383) 149.08  (25,660) 125.33  (36,212) 109.44

As of December 31 656,278 $ 142.98 871,192 $120.89 1,099,752 $ 102.65

As of December 31, 2016, there was $16 millionahpensation expense that has yet to be recogretaed to
performance shares. This expense is expectedr@cbgnized over the remaining weighted-averagemgsmperiod of
11 months. During 2016, 2015 and 2014, the totaVEue of performance shares that were distridbutere $54
million, $54 million and $35 million, respectivelyhe Company’s actual tax benefits realized fortéhxedeductions
related to the distribution of performance shace016, 2015 and 2014 was $15 million, $15 millzovd $11 million,
respectively.

General Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan (GESPP):

As of December 31, 2016, shareholders have appr@@edillion shares for issuance under the CompaBESPP.
Substantially all employees are eligible to papite in the plan. Participants are granted optd®5% of market value
at the date of grant. There are no GESPP shares aptlon at the beginning or end of each year lizaptions are
granted on the first business day and exercisdtieolast business day of the same month.

General Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan

2016 2015 2014
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price  Shares Exercise Price
Options granted 987,478 $ 140.06 1,007,66¢ $ 133.52 1,073,95¢ $ 118.73
Options exercised (987,478) 140.06 (1,007,669) 133.52 (1,073,956) 118.73
Shares available for grant -
December 31 27,116,857 28,104,33¢ 29,112,004

The weighted-average fair value per option gradigihg 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $24.72, $23.56 a0®$,
respectively. The fair value of GESPP options wasel on the 15% purchase price discount. The Compangnized
compensation expense for GESSP options of $24omilti 2016, $24 million in 2015 and $22 million2014.
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NOTE 16. Business Segments

3M’s businesses are organized, managed and inegralped into segments based on differences mkets products,
technologies and services. 3M manages its opegitiofive business segments: Industrial; Safety@raphics; Health
Care; Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. 3M&s liiusiness segments bring together common oeceiiYl
technologies, enhancing the development of inneggiroducts and services and providing for effiti@raring of
business resources. Transactions among reporedpeests are recorded at cost. 3M is an integratentgrise
characterized by substantial intersegment cooperatbst allocations and inventory transfers. Tloeee management
does not represent that these segments, if oparategendently, would report the operating inconferimation shown.
The difference between operating income and préntome relates to interest income and interesties@, which are
not allocated to business segments.

Effective in the first quarter of 2016, 3M maderaduct line reporting change involving two of itsdiness segments in
its continuing effort to improve the alignment tf businesses around markets and customers.

The change between business segments was as follows
» Elements of the electronic bonding product linesengreviously separately reflected in the Elecisni

Materials Solutions Division (Electronics and Enebyisiness segment) and the Industrial AdhesivdsTapes
Division (Industrial business segment). Effectimdhe first quarter of 2016, certain sales and aijy@y income
results for these electronic bonding product limesggregate were equally divided between the Eaats and
Energy business segment and Industrial businessesggThis change resulted in a decrease in nes sald
operating income for total year 2015 of $33 millexmd $7 million, respectively, in the Industrialsiness
segment offset by a corresponding increase in betienics and Energy business segment. In additienain
assets were moved from the Industrial business esgtn the Electronics and Energy business segaseat
result of this change.

The financial information presented herein reflebtsimpact of the preceding product line reportthgnge between
business segments for all periods presented.

Business Segment Products

Business Segment Major Products

Industrial Tapes, coated, nonwoven and bonded abrasives,iaefhesdvanced ceramics, sealants,
specialty materials, filtration products, closuystems for personal hygiene products,
acoustic systems products, automotive componemtasimn-resistant films, structural
adhesives and paint finishing and detailing prosluct

Safety and Graphics Personal protection products, traffic safety armiggy products, commercial graphics
systems, commercial cleaning and protection praddictor matting, roofing granules for
asphalt shingles, and fall protection products

Health Care Medical and surgical supplies, skin health anddtié@ prevention products, drug delivery
systems, dental and orthodontic products, healthrimation systems and food safety
products

Electronics and Energy Optical films solutions for electronic displaysckaging and interconnection devices,
insulating and splicing solutions for the electamitelecommunications and electrical
industries, touch screens and touch monitors, rehnenergy component solutions, and
infrastructure protection products

Consumer Sponges, scouring pads, high-performance clothswroer and office tapes, repositionable

notes, indexing systems, home improvement prodhotsge care products, protective
material products, and consumer and office tapdsadhesives
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Business Segment Information

Net Sales Operating Income
(Millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Industrial $ 10,313 $ 10,295 $ 10,985 $ 2,376 $ 2,256 $ 2,381
Safety and Graphics 5,660 5,515 5,732 1,390 1,305 1,296
Health Care 5,527 5,420 5,572 1,754 1,724 1,724
Electronics and Energy 4,826 5,253 5,608 1,075 1,109 1,122
Consumer 4,482 4,422 4,523 1,064 1,046 995
Corporate and Unallocated 9 1 5 (280 (355) (250)
Elimination of Dual Credit (708 (632 (604 (156 (139 (133
Total Company $ 30,109 $ 30,274 $ 31,821 $ 7223 % 6,946 $ 7,135
Assets Depreciation & Amortization Capital Expenditures

(Millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Industrial $ 9158 $9230 $8536 $ 407 $ 374 $ 383 $ 360 $ 317 $ 395
Safety and Graphics 7,479 7,564 4,939 264 245 234 215 199 221
Health Care 4,303 4,403 4,344 175 179 181 136 168 169
Electronics and Energy 4,556 4,788 5,088 241 201 271 210 211 232
Consumer 2,504 2,393 2,434 114 108 108 109 124 111
Corporate and Unallocated 4,906 4,505 6,033 273 238 231 390 442 365
Total Company $32,906 $32,883 $31,374 $ 1474 $ 1435 $ 1,408 $1,420 $1,461 $1,493

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpdraestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains an@$s®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjrcétigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelsaand certain under- or over-absorbed costsgergion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may chooge aibcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itdtris,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.

3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fifédusiness segments based on net sales andingengome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a re2M provides
additional (“dual”) credit to those business segmaeelling products in the U.S. to an external@usgr when that
segment is not the primary seller of the produot.dxample, certain respirators are primarily $oldhe Personal
Safety Division within the Safety and Graphics bess segment; however, the Industrial businessesgigaiso sells
this product to certain customers in its U.S. mexkia this example, the non-primary selling segngemustrial) would
also receive credit for the associated net salegidted and the related approximate operatingine. The assigned
operating income related to dual credit activityyrdiffer from operating income that would resutirit actual costs
associated with such sales. The offset to the chadlit business segment reporting is reflectedras@nciling item
entitled “Elimination of Dual Credit,” such thatlea and operating income for the U.S. in totalarehanged.
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NOTE 17. Geographic Areas

Geographic area information is used by the Compegy secondary performance measure to managesitebses.
Export sales and certain income and expense iteangemerally reported within the geographic arearlthe final

sales to 3M customers are made.

Property, Plant and

Net Sales Operating Income Equipment - net
(Millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015
United States $12,188 $12,049 $11,714 $2,948 $2,647 $2,540 $4,914 $ 4,838
Asia Pacific 8,847 9,041 9,418 2560 2,580 2,487 1,573 1,647
Europe, Middle East and Africa 6,163 6,228 7,198 1,046 1,017 1,234 1,512 1,531
Latin America and Canada 2,901 2,982 3,504 705 706 867 517 499
Other Unallocated 10 (26) (13) (36) (4) I — —
Total Company $30,109 $30,274 $31,821 $7,223 $6,946 $7,135 $8,516 $8,515

Asia Pacific included China/Hong Kong net salesustomers of $2.799 billion in 2016, which appraati0 percent
of consolidated worldwide sales. China/Hong Kongpreperty, plant and equipment (PP&E) was $520ionilat

December 31, 2016.

NOTE 18. Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

(Millions, except per-share amounts) First Second Third Fourth Year

2016 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2016

Net sale $ 7409 $ 7662 $ 7,709 $ 7,329 $ 30,109
Cost of sales 3,678 3,799 3,847 3,716 15,040
Net income including noncontrolling inter 1,278 1,293 1,331 1,156 5,058
Net income attributable to 3M 1,275 1,291 1,329 1,155 5,050
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddels - basic 2.10 2.13 2.20 1.93 8.35
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddels - diluted 2.05 2.08 2.15 1.88 8.16
(Millions, except per-share amounts) First Second Third Fourth Year

2015 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2015

Net sale $ 7578 $ 7686 $ 7,712 $ 7,298 $ 30,274
Cost of sales 3,821 3,858 3,877 3,827 15,383
Net income including noncontrolling inter 1,201 1,303 1,298 1,039 4,841
Net income attributable to 3M 1,199 1,300 1,296 1,038 4,833
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddels - basic 1.88 2.06 2.09 1.69 7.72
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddels - diluted 1.85 2.02 2.05 1.66 7.58

Gross profit is calculated as net sales minus aiostles.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mgament, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0éf, of the effectiveness of the design and opsraif the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@ed in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) avefend of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuetain, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fioah Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controtsancedures are effective.

b. The Company’s management is responsible fobksitiéing and maintaining an adequate system ofriatecontrol
over financial reporting, as defined in the ExctaAgt Rule 13a-15(f). Management conducted an asws of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportipgsed on the framework established by the Comenitt&Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commissioiniternal Control — Integrated Framework (2018gsed on the
assessment, management concluded that, as of Dec8m®2016, the Company’s internal control oveaficial
reporting is effective. The Company’s internal ecohbver financial reporting as of December 31, 204&s been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independenttezgispublic accounting firm, as stated in thegore which is
included herein, which expresses an unqualifiediopion the effectiveness of the Company’s intecoaitrol over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.

c. There was no change in the Company’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durthg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that hasradty affected, or is reasonably likely to maadigi affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resoplarning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whiglexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredlated transaction processes. The gradual implatien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsifmpkementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éimancial reporting and will require testing fdfeztiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeiéments of certain processes/sub-processeasitadi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to rolltdloe ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementstapplication, along with the internal controlsofinancial
reporting included in this process, was appropsiatensidered within the testing for effectiven@sth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof our evaluation described in the above graizhs, that the
implementation of ERP in these circumstances hasnaterially affected our internal control overdirtial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART 1lI

Documents Incorporated by Reference

In response to Part lll, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 addphrts of the Company’s definitive proxy stateiém be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days aftegiReant’s fiscal year-end of December 31, 2018)tbbannual
meeting to be held on May 9, 2017, are incorporhateteference in this Form 10-K.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

The information relating to directors and nominee38M is set forth under the caption “Proposal Wbin 3M’s proxy
statement for its annual meeting of stockholdetsatdield on May 9, 2017 (“3M Proxy Statement”) aohcorporated
by reference herein. Information about executifcers is included in Item 1 of this Annual Report Form 10-K. The
information required by Items 405, 407(c)(3), (d)4d (d)(5) of Regulation S-K is contained undher ¢aptions
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiapte,” “Corporate Governance At 3M — ldentificatj
Evaluation, and Selection of Nominees,,” “—Nomin&esposed By Stockholders,” “—Stockholder Nomioas”, “—
Proxy Access Nominations” and “—Role of the Nomingtand Governance Committee” and “Corporate Guugce
At 3M -- Board Committees — Audit Committee” of tBM Proxy Statement and such information is incoaped by
reference herein.

Code of Ethics. All of our employees, including @hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officené Chief
Accounting Officer and Controller, are requirecatnide by 3M’s long-standing business conduct pedi¢o ensure that
our business is conducted in a consistently legdlethical manner. 3M has posted the text of sodle of ethics on its
website (http://www.3M.com/businessconduct). At saene website, any future amendments to the codthias will
also be posted. Any person may request a copyeafdte of ethics, at no cost, by writing to usatfbllowing address:

3M Company

3M Center, Building 220-11W-09

St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

Attention: Vice President, Compliance and Businésaduct

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by Item 402 of RegulatfnK is contained under the captions “Executive Cengation”
(excluding the information under the caption “— Gmnsation Committee Report”) and “Director Compénsaand
Stock Ownership Guidelines” of the 3M Proxy Statatm&uch information is incorporated by reference.

The information required by Items 407(e)(4) andSedf Regulation S-K is contained in the “Execet@ompensation”
section under the captions “Compensation Commiigeort” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks msitler
Participation” of the 3M Proxy Statement. Such infation (other than the Compensation Committee Reptich
shall not be deemed to be “filed”) is incorporabgdreference.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ovners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information relating to security ownership eftain beneficial owners and management is sdt forter the
designation “Security Ownership of Management” &elcurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerg’the 3M
Proxy Statement and such information is incorpar#tereference herein.

Equity compensation plans information as of Decan3ie 2016 follows:

Equity Compensation Plans Information (1)

A B Cc
Number of Weighted- Number of securities
securities to be  average exercise remaining available for
issued upon price of future issuance under
exercise of outstanding equity compensation
outstanding options, plans (excluding
options, warrants ~ warrants and securities reflected in
Plan Category and rights rights column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsid
Stock options 36,196,232 $ 112.07 —
Restricted stock units 2,185,04¢ —
Performance shares 656,278 —
Non-employee director deferred stock units 242,779 —
Total 39,280,335 36,865,814
Employee stock purchase plan — 27,116,857
Subtotal 39,280,335 63,982,671
Total 39,280,33¢ 63,982,671

(1) In column B, the weighted-average exercise priamnlg applicable to stock options. In column C, thenber of
securities remaining available for future issuafocestock options, restricted stock units, and ls@wards for non-
employee directors is approved in total and noividdally with respect to these items.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence.

With respect to certain relationships and relataddactions as set forth in Item 404 of RegulaBeR, no matters
require disclosure with respect to transactiont watated persons. The information required by W&#(b) and Item
407(a) of Regulation S-K is contained under théise¢Corporate Governance at 3M” under the cagitirector
Independence” and “Related Person Transactionyatid Procedures” of the 3M Proxy Statement antl suc
information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information relating to principal accounting$eand services is set forth in the section edtitudit Committee
Matters” under the designation “Audit CommitteeiBpbn Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Nond#uServices
of the Independent Accounting Firm” and “Fees &f thdependent Accounting Firm” in the 3M Proxy 8taént and
such information is incorporated by reference herei
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) (1) Financial Statements. The consolidateanfiial statements filed as part of this reportliated in the index to
financial statements at the beginning of this doenin

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules. Finantéément schedules are omitted because of the @bséthe
conditions under which they are required or bec#useequired information is included in the Coidated Financial
Statements or the notes thereto. The financiastants of unconsolidated subsidiaries are omittedise, considered
in the aggregate, they would not constitute a §icamt subsidiary.

(a) (3) Exhibits. The exhibits are either filedhwihis report or incorporated by reference inis teport.
Exhibit numbers 10.1 through 10.31 are managenmntacts or compensatory plans or arrangements(d3&xhibits,
which follow.

(b) Exhibits.

(3) Articles of Incorporation and bylaws

(3.1)

(3.2)

Certificate of incorporation, as amendedfdglay 11, 2007, is incorporated by reference fraim Borm 8-
K dated May 14, 2007.

Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adopted ldexamber 10, 2015, are incorporated by refererara f
our Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of securitydwis, including indentures:

(4.1)

(4.2)

Indenture, dated as of November 17, 200Qydx=t 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as successor trustee, with respeditits senior debt securities, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated December 7, 2000.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 28| 2011, to Indenture dated as of November Q@02
between 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trusn@mny, N.A., as successorgtee, with respect
3M’s senior debt securities, is incorporated byrefice from our Form 10-Q for the quarter endee 30n
2011.

(10) Material contracts and management compenspl#ors and arrangements:

(10.1)
(10.2)
(10.3)
(10.4)
(10.5)
(10.6)
(10.7)

(10.8)

3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plaméorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM
12, 2016.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under Gompany 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM?2, 2016.

Form of Stock Appreciation Right Award Agneent under 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan
is incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dditay 12, 2016.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreemeander 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K datesyM?2, 2016.

Form of Performance Share Award Agreemedeu8M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K datesyM?2, 2016.

3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (includemgendments through February 2, 2016) is incorpadiaye
reference from our Form 10-K for the year endeddbauer 31, 2015.

Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grant&s®cutive Officers under 3M 2008 Long-Term Inceati
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 13, 2008.

Form of Stock Option Agreement for optiomarged to Executive Officers under the 3M 2008 L-diegm
Incentive Plan, commencing February 9, 2010, isnparated by reference from our Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2(
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(10.9)

(10.10)
(10.11)
(10.12)
(10.13)
(10.14)
(10.15)
(10.16)
(10.17)
(10.18)
(10.19)
(10.20)

(10.21)
(10.22)

(10.23)
(10.24)
(10.25)
(10.26)
(10.27)
(10.28)
(10.29)
(10.30)
(10.31)
(10.32)

(10.33)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementriestricted stock units granted to Executive Officender the
3M Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective Februar010, is incorporated by reference from our Form 10
K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Form of 3M 2010 Performance Share Awardceutide 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is incogted
by reference from our Form 8-K dated March 4, 2010.

Form of Stock Option Agreement for U.S. Hogpes under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementios. Employees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentilza s
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

3M 2005 Management Stock Ownership Prodimoiuding amendments through February 2, 2016) is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2015.

Form of award agreement for non-qualifiextk options granted under the 2005 ManagemenkStoc
Ownership Program, is incorporated by referencenfooir Form 8-K dated May 16, 2005.

Amended and Restated 3M VIP Excess Plfledherewith.

Amended and Restated 3M VIP (Voluntary stmeent Plan) Plus Plan is filed herewith.

3M Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended throagtuBry 2008, is incorporated by reference fron
Form 8-K dated February 14, 2008.

Amendment of 3M Deferred Compensation ancorporated by reference from our Form 8-K date
November 14, 200

3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plan srparated by reference from our Form 10-K for teary
ended December 31, 2009.

3M Performance Awards Deferred Compensalan is incorporated by reference from our ForaKifor
the year ended December 31, 2009.

3M Executive Annual Incentive Plan is iqmorated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May2D07.
Description of changes to 3M Compensatiam For Non-Employee Directors is incorporated bference
from our Form 8-K dated August 8, 2005.

3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Does; as amended, through November 8, 2004, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2004.

Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nonpbyee Directors is incorporated by reference foam
Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nonmplbyee Directors as of August 12, 2013, is incoaped
by reference from our Form 10-Q for the quartereeh8eptember 30, 2013.

3M Executive Life Insurance Plan, as amdndeincorporated by reference from our Form 1fkKthe
year ended December 31, 2(

Summary of Personal Financial Planning i8esvfor 3M Executives is incorporated by referefioen our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

3M policy on reimbursement of incentive pants is incorporated by reference from our ForrKIor
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified PenBlan | is filed herewith.

Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified PenBian Il is filed herewith.

Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified PenBian Il is filed herewith.

Amended and restated five-year credit agess as of March 9, 20186, is incorporated by refeeefrom
our Form 8-K dated March 11, 2016.

Registration Rights Agreement as of Audys009, between 3M Company and State Street Baghk a
Trust Company as Independent Fiduciary of the 3Mlegee Retirement Income Plan, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated August 5, 2009.

Filed herewith, in addition to items, if any, sdexlly identified above:

(12)
(21)
(23)
(24)
(31.1)

Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed ches.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of independent registered public atimog firm.

Power of attorney.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officgursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.
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(31.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officparsuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Officeursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(95) Mine Safety Disclosures.

(101)  The following financial information from 3&@ompany’s Annual Report on Form KOfor the period ende
December 31, 2016, filed with the SEC on Februa3047, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statemerihobme for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Coimgmsive Income for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014, (iii) the Consolidated Bala®lkeet at December 31, 2016 and 2015, (iv) the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity forydas ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,

(v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ferythars ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, and
(vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

A Form 10-K summary is provided at the beginninghi$ document, with hyperlinked cross-referendédgs allows
users to easily locate the corresponding item®mFLO-K, where the disclosure is fully presenfBite summary does
not include certain Part Ill information that icerporated by reference from a future proxy statdrfigng.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf bytidersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

3M COMPANY

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangeste
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
February 9, 2017

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in theatipa indicated on February 9, 2017.

Signature

Title

Inge G. Thulin
Eric D. Hammes

Sondra L. Barbour
Thomas K. Brown
Vance D. Coffman
David B. Dillon
Michael L. Eskew
Herbert L. Henkel
Muhtar Kent
Edward M. Liddy
Gregory R. Page
Robert J. Ulrich
Patricia A. Woertz

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufificer
(Principal Executive Officer and Director)
Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiCGdf
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Nicholas C. Gangestad, by signing his name hedetes hereby sign this document pursuant to powiextarney duly
executed by the other persons named, filed wittsdmurities and Exchange Commission on behalf df sther
persons, all in the capacities and on the datedstatich persons constituting a majority of theators of the Company.

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestadttorney-in-Fact
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Exhibit 10.15

3M VIP Excess Plan

(Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2016)



3M VIP Excess Plan

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

The purpose of this Plan is to attract and incdigtbde highly compensated employees to remain \8ith by offering
them the opportunity to earn additional retiremeeefits by deferring the receipt of a portiontedit compensation on
a tax-favored basis, with the belief that such appoty will permit these employees to increasarttmg-term financial
security. The Plan does this by supplementindpfere-tax deferral provisions of the 3M Voluntémyestment Plan and
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (VIP), which are tiégdiby the requirements of the Internal RevenueeCod

The Plan was originally effective as of Januar2dQ9 and is hereby amended and restated effectisbJanuary 1, 2016.

* ARTICLE 1

* DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Plan, the following waadd phrases shall have the meanings indicatedssutile context clearly
indicates otherwise:

1.1 ACCOUNT. “Account” or “Accounts” means the record of ga@ounts credited to a Participant under the Plan
pursuant to Article 4.

1.2 BENEFICIARY . “Beneficiary” means the person, persons orgdtsignated by the Participant, or as provided
in Article 6, to receive any unpaid balance in sBalticipant’s Accounts following his or her death.

1.3 CODE. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.
1.4 COMMITTEE . “Committee” means the Compensation Committeth@Board of Directors of 3M.

15 COMPANY . “Company” means 3M Company (“3M"), its U.S. &fftes and subsidiaries and any successor to
the business thereof.

1.6 ELIGIBLE COMPENSATION . “Eligible Compensation” of a Participant for aRlan Year means base pay
plus any variable pay (including annual incenti#éR), sales commissions and management objectitexeluding any
portion of such variable pay that is payable itrieted stock units and any other long-term incemtiompensation unless
expressly included by the Committee) earned byPdugicipant during such Plan Year (whether paidrduor following
such Plan Year). Eligible Compensation does ndude incentives, awards, foreign service premiams allowances,
income arising from stock options, separation gagployer contributions to employee benefit plargnbursements or
payments in lieu thereof, or lump sum payouts Baaicipant’'s unused vacation benefits.

1.7 EMPLOYEE. “Employee” means any person employed by the Gommas an active regular common-law
employee who is recognized as such on 3M’s humswourees/payroll systems; including such persons avedJnited
States citizens but on assignment outside of sty and resident aliens employed in the UnitedeS; but excluding
any person covered by a collective bargaining ages to which the Company is a party.

1.8 INDEXED COMPENSATION LIMIT . “Indexed Compensation Limit’ means the annualoamh of
compensation that may be recognized by a qualifitidement plan under section 401(a)(17) of theeC@s adjusted
annually for increases in the cost of living).

1.9 PARTICIPANT . “Participant” means any Employee who has eletteghake contributions to this Plan after
satisfying the eligibility requirements of Sectiar.
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1.10 PLAN. “Plan” means the plan described in this documesit may be amended from time to time. Thecifi
name of the Plan shall be the 3M VIP Excess Plan.

1.11 PLAN ADMINISTRATOR . “Plan Administrator” means the person to whom@ommittee has delegated the
authority and responsibility for administering #kan. Unless and until changed by the CommitteePlan Administrator
of the Plan shall be 3M’s Vice President, Compédaraind Benefits or his or her successor.

1.12 PLAN YEAR. “Plan Year” means the 12-month period from Japdathrough December 31 in respect of
which a Participant may contribute to the Plane Titst Plan Year began on January 1, 2009.

1.13 PORTFOLIO Il VIP . *“Portfolio Ill VIP” means the provisions of tt#M Voluntary Investment Plan and
Employee Stock Ownership Plan applicable to elegibmployees who were hired or rehired by the Compdter
December 31, 2008 or are otherwise classified theter as Portfolio Il Participants.

1.14 RETIRE or RETIREMENT . “Retire” or “Retirement” means an Employee’s &gpion from Service with the
Company after attaining age 55 with at least figarg of employment service or after attaining age 6

1.15 SEPARATION FROM SERVICE . “Separation from Service” means a “separatiomfiservice” as defined
in Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(h)(1) or such otlegulation or guidance issued under section 40e Code.
Whether a Separation from Service has occurredmispen whether the facts and circumstances indibate8M and the
Participant reasonably anticipated that no furtieevices would be performed after a certain dathairthe level of bona
fide services the Participant would perform aftects date (whether as an employee or independeitactor) would
permanently decrease to no more than twenty pe(26#t) of the average level of bona fide servia$gmed (whether
as an employee or an independent contractor) bednmtmediately preceding thirty-six (36) month pe)i A Separation
from Service shall not be deemed to occur whileRbsdicipant is on military leave, sick leave dnetbona fide leave of
absence if the period does not exceed six (6) nsamthif longer, so long as the Participant retainight to reemployment
with 3M or an affiliate under an applicable statotdy contract. For this purpose, a leave is Himeaonly if, and so long
as, there is a reasonable expectation that thdcipartt will return to perform services for 3M on affiliate.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 29-month periodb$ence will be substituted for such six (6) mqrgtiod if the leave
is due to any medically determinable physical ontakimpairment that can be expected to resultdatid or can be
expected to last for a continuous period of no tass six (6) months and that causes the Partitifpabe unable to
perform the duties of his or her position of emphant.

1.16 SPECIFIED EMPLOYEE . “Specified Employee” means a “specified empldya® defined in Treas. Reg.
section 1.409-1(i) or such other regulation or guoitk issued under section 409A of the Code.

1.17 3M. “3M”" means 3M Company, a Delaware corporation.
1.18 UNFORESEEABLE FINANCIAL EMERGENCY . *“Unforeseeable Financial Emergency” means an
“unforeseeable emergency” (as defined in Treas. Regtion 1.409A-3(i)(3) or such other regulatisrgaidance issued

under section 409A of the Code.

1.19 VALUATION DATE . “Valuation Date” shall have the same meaninghas term is defined for purposes of
the VIP.

1.20 VIP. “VIP" means the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan aBdhployee Stock Ownership Plan, as it may be
amended from time to time.
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* ARTICLE 2

* ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

2.1 Eligibility . An Employee shall be eligible to participatetie Plan by making contributions for a Plan Year if
as of the November 1st immediately preceding suah Pear:

(a) such Employee is employed by the Company;
(b) such Employee is eligible to make contributionsler the VIP; and
(c) such Employee had estimated annual plannetdash compensation (base pay plus variable

pay, including annual incentive, sales commiss@and management objective) that exceeds
the Indexed Compensation Limit in effect for théecdar year including such November 1st.

The eligibility of Employees to participate in tli#an by making contributions shall be determinachePlan
Year, and no Employee shall have any right to n@k@ributions in any Plan Year by virtue of haviag
Account as a result of making contributions in angr Plan Year.

2.2 Election to Contribute. In order to make contributions under the Planafioy Plan Year, an Employee who
meets the eligibility requirements of Section 2.asirenroll via the Plan’s Internet site. To besefifve, an Employee’s
enrollment must elect the amount of his or her ibutions, authorize the reduction of his or heigible Compensation
as needed to make such contributions, selectrifeednd form of payment of such contributions ardet@irnings thereon,
specify the investment fund or funds in which seontributions are to be treated as being investiad, provide such
other pertinent information as the Plan Adminisiranay require. The time period during which elmeints will be
accepted each Plan Year will be established byrtae Administrator, but in no event will any enmdint be accepted
after the beginning of the Plan Year to which sealoliment relates.

2.3 Duration of Contribution Election. Each eligible Employee’s election to make cdmntfiions to the Plan made
in accordance with the requirements of SectiorsBa&l expire as of the end of the Plan Year to Wwiticelates, although
it shall apply to any Eligible Compensation paittathe end of such Plan Year if such Eligible Cemgation was earned
during such Plan Year. Participants may not chasrgeevoke their contribution elections for a PMear after the
enrollment period for the Plan Year has ended.

2.4 Duration of Participation. A Participant’s participation in the Plan shadhtinue until all amounts credited to
his or her Accounts have been distributed, or tinélParticipant’'s death, if earlier.

* ARTICLE 3

» CONTRIBUTIONS

3.1 Participant Contributions. A Participant may contribute (defer) from twargent (2%) to ten percent (10%)
(but only a whole percentage) of his or her EligiGlompensation earned during the Plan Year to which Participant’s
election relates, subject to the following:

(@) the percentage of Eligible Compensation tHaadicipant elects to contribute to the Plan for a
Plan Year must be the same as the ParticipanttitdeDeferral percentage under the VIP
during such Plan Year; and

(b) the percentage the Participant elects to duutti(defer) shall be deducted from each payment
of such Participant’s Eligible Compensatiearnedduring the Plan Year (whether paid during
or following such Plan Year), but only if such coengation would have begaid (but for the
deferral election) to the Participant after (i) Isuearticipant's before-tax deferrals to the
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Participant’s Before-Tax 401(k) Account under tH®\during the Plan Year in which payment
would have occurred have reached the applicablardiahit on such deferrals imposed by
section 402(g) of the Code (regardless of whetherob the Participant is eligible to make or
is actually making catch-up deferrals as authorlagdection 414(v) of the Code), or (ii) such
Participant has reached the Indexed Compensatimit Linder the VIP for the Plan Year in
which payment would have occurred.

3.2 Company Matching Contributions. As soon as administratively feasible followingleg@ayroll payment from
which Participant contributions are withheld, then@any shall make a matching contribution on belbalkach
Participant who has made contributions to the Btaral to the Required Matching Percentage (astsughis defined in
the VIP) of that portion of such Participant’s adlmitions made pursuant to Section 3.1 which de¢gxceed five percent
(5%) of such Participant’s Eligible Compensationtfte payroll period corresponding to such payment.

3.3 Company Nonelective Contributions Only for those Employees covered by the Podftli VIP, the
Company shall make additional contributions to fen on behalf of each Employee eligible to pgutté in this Plan
for a Plan Year equal to three percent of such Bygd's Eligible Compensation earned during such Rkear. These
additional Company contributions shall be madeh®sRlan as soon as administratively feasible faligveach payroll
payment during or following the Plan Year corregjiag to the payroll period during which such Eligilcompensation
was earned.

e ARTICLE 4
* ACCOUNTS
4.1 Creation of Accounts The Plan shall establish a separate Accountcopiénts for each Participant who elects

to make contributions hereunder. A separate Actcshail be maintained for each Participant for dlem Year that such
Participant makes contributions to the Plan. Timewnt of a Participant’s contributions hereundeatlisbe credited to
such Participant’s Account at the same time as @pan as reasonably possible following the datestoch the Company
paid the Eligible Compensation from which such dbotions were deferred. Company matching and leatige
contributions shall be credited to separate Accoohthose Participants eligible to receive sudfirgioutions pursuant to
Sections 3.2 and 3.3 at the same time as or asa®osasonably possible following the dates on lwkiie Company
makes such contributions to the Plan.

4.2 Earnings on Accounts Each Participant's Accounts shall be crediteth wivestment earnings or losses based
on the performance of the investment funds seldnyesich Participant. The investment funds avil&dbthe Participants
in this Plan shall be the same as the investmeuaisfavailable to the participants in the VIP, edoig the 3M Stock Fund
and the VIP’s brokerage window, but shall alsoudel a fund based on the return of the Growth Faagattefined for
purposes of the 3M Deferred Compensation Plantidfemts may allocate the amounts credited ta thetounts among
such investment funds in whole percentages of fsampercent to one hundred percent. The deemedtment earnings
or losses on such VIP funds for purposes of thes Bhall equal the actual rate of return on suolddgun the VIP net of
any fees or expenses chargeable thereto, inclumihgot limited to management fees, trustee fesyrdkeeping fees
and other administrative expenses. In the everttalParticipant fails to select the investmentfanfunds in which his
or her Accounts are deemed to be invested, sudftipant will be deemed to have allocated the erdimount credited
to his or her Accounts to the LifePath Portfolimduwith the target retirement year closest to tharyin which such
Participant will attain age sixty-five (65).

4.3 Changes in Investment Fund Allocations Participants may change the investment fundshgmehich their
Account balances or future contributions are aliedat any time, subject to such rules as may tabléshed by the Plan
Administrator. Allocation changes may only be madang the Plan’s Internet site or by speaking \&itlepresentative
of the Plan’s recordkeeper.

4.4 Valuation of Accounts The Accounts of all Participants shall be reedlas of each Valuation Date. As of

each Valuation Date, the value of a Participantsdunt shall consist of the balance of such Accasmf the immediately
preceding Valuation Date, increased by the amotiahy contributions made and credited thereto siheeammediately
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preceding Valuation Date, increased or decreasethéacase may be) by the amount of deemed invas®aenings or
losses credited to the investment funds selecteithdoyParticipant since the immediately precedinu&@on Date, and
decreased by the amount of any distributions meata such Account since the immediately precedinmation Date.

4.5 Vesting of Accounts A Participant shall always be 100% vested invdleie of his or her Accounts (including
any earnings thereon).

4.6 Statement of Account As soon as administratively feasible followihg nd of each Plan Year, the Plan shall
deliver to each Participant a statement of hisesrAtcounts in the Plan.

* ARTICLES

* DISTRIBUTION OF ACCOUNTS

5.1 General Rules Except as provided in Sections 5.5, 8.2 and ®oldistribution of a Participant’'s Accounts
hereunder shall be made prior to such Participalgath, retirement or Separation from Service withCompany. All
distributions of a Participant’'s Accounts shallrbade in cash. When the Plan makes a distribufitess than the entire
balance of a Participant’s Account, the distribatihall be charged pro rata against each of trestment funds to which
the Account is then allocated.

5.2 Distribution Following Separation From Service If a Participant incurs a Separation from Servidgth the

Company for any reason other than death or Retingrtiee entire balance of such Participant’s Ac¢swshall be paid to
the Participant in a single lump sum distributiarthhe month of July in the Plan Year following thkan Year in which
such Participant’s Separation from Service occufoedn the month of January in the Plan Year failog the Plan Year
in which such Participant’s Separation from Serwceurred if such Separation from Service occumealr to July 1 of

such Plan Year).

5.3 Distribution Following Retirement. If a Participant Retires from employment witle tBompany, the balance
of such Participant’'s Account shall be paid comnemat the time and in one of the following methadgpayment
selected by such Participant at the time such ddaatit elected to make contributions to the Plansfech Plan Year
pursuant to Section 2.2 (for this purpose, thetieleanade by a Participant with respect to theritstion of amounts
contributed by such Participant for a Plan Yealldt® deemed to apply to the amounts contributethéoPlan by the
Company on behalf of such Participant for such Mear):

€) A single lump sum distribution; or

(b) Ten or fewer annual installments, with the amtoof each installment payment being
determined by multiplying the balance in the Pgstiot's Account on the payment date by a
fraction having a numerator of one and a denominatpal to the remaining number of
scheduled installment payments.

All lump sum and installment payments shall be madbe month of January or July in the Plan Yearears
selected by the Participant; provided, howevet, tlogpayments shall be made before the month gfiduhe
Plan Year following the Plan Year in which such tRgrant incurs a Separation from Service with the
Company (or in the month of January in the PlanrYfellowing the Plan Year in which such Participant
Separation from Service occurred if such Separdtmn Service occurred prior to July 1 of such PYaar),
and provided further that no method of payment@rmencement date selected by a Participant supline
the Plan to make any payment more than 10 yeaes thf¢ end of the Plan Year in which such Partitipa
Retires. Upon the Retirement of a Participant twose behalf the Company made nonelective contabsiti
pursuant to Section 3.3 for one or more Plan Yfanahich such Participant has not made an effeaiection
concerning the time and method of payment of theofiot(s) attributable to such nonelective contidng,
the balance of such Participant’s Account(s) aitable to such nonelective contributions shall &iel fio the
Participant in a single lump sum distribution i tmonth of July in the Plan Year following the P¥ear in
which such Participant’s Separation from Serviceuod (or in the month of January in the Plan Year
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following the Plan Year in which such ParticiparBsparation from Service occurred if such Separdtimm
Service occurred prior to July 1 of such Plan Year)

5.4 Distribution Following Death. If a Participant dies before distribution of asremore of his or her Accounts
has begun, the entire balance of such Accountd bhapaid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in agénlump sum
distribution in the month of July in the Plan Yéaltowing the Plan Year in which such Participaredi(or in the month
of January in the Plan Year following the Plan Yeawhich the Participant died if the Participamedibefore July 1 of
such Plan Year). If a Participant dies after disttion of one or more of his or her Accounts hagum, the remaining
balance of such Accounts (if any) shall be paitheoParticipant’s Beneficiary in accordance with thethod of payment
chosen by the Participant.

5.5 Unforeseeable Financial Emergency Distribution Upon finding that a Participant has suffered an
Unforeseeable Financial Emergency, the Committeg, fimaits sole discretion, permit the Participaotwithdraw an
amount from his or her Account sufficient to alkte the emergency.

5.6 Withholding; Payroll Taxes. To the extent required by the laws in effedhattime any payment is made, the
Plan shall withhold from any payment made hereuradgr taxes required to be withheld for federaltestar local
government purposes.

* ARTICLE 6

» DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES

6.1 Beneficiary Designation Each Participant shall have the right at anettmdesignate any person, persons, or
entity, as Beneficiary or Beneficiaries to whom eyt of the Participant’s Account shall be mad¢him event of the
Participant’s death. Any designation made underian may be revoked or changed by a new designiaitade prior to
the Participant’s death. Any such designatioreepcation must be made in accordance with the adtblished by the
Plan Administrator, and will not be effective untilceived by the Plan.

6.2 Beneficiary Predeceases Participant If a Participant designates more than one Beiag§i to receive such
Participant’'s Account and any Beneficiary shall d@eease the Participant, the Plan shall distriltiée deceased
Beneficiary’s share to the surviving Beneficiargeportionately, as the portion designated by tadiépant for each
bears to the total portion designated for all sting Beneficiaries.

6.3 Absence of Effective Designation If a Participant makes no designation or revakeesignation previously
made without making a new designation, or if alispes designated shall predecease the Particifren®lan shall
distribute the balance of the deceased Particip&mttount in the manner determined in accordantietive Participant’s
designation in effect under the VIP. In the ev&amth Participant has no effective designation utigeVIP, the Plan
shall distribute the balance of the deceased Raatits Account to the first of the following suvars:

€) The Participant’s spouse;
(b) Equally to the Participant’s children;
(c) Equally to the Participant’s parents;
(d) Equally to the Participant’s brothers and ssster
(e) The executor or administrator of the Partictfsaestate.
6.4 Death of Beneficiary If a Beneficiary to whom payments hereundertaree made pursuant to the foregoing

provisions of this Article 6 survives the Partiaipaut dies prior to complete distribution to ther@ficiary of the
Beneficiary’s share:
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@) unless the Participant has otherwise spedifidais or her designation, the Plan shall distebut
the undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’srghto such person or persons, including such
Beneficiary’s estate, as such Beneficiary shalkehd@signated in a designation made with the
Plan prior to such Beneficiary’s death (which desiipn shall be subject to change or
revocation by such Beneficiary at any time); or

(b) if the Participant’s designation specifies tisath Beneficiary does not have the power to
designate a successor Beneficiary or if such Beiaeyi is granted such power but fails to
designate a successor Beneficiary prior to suclefi@ary’s death, the Plan shall distribute the
undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’s sharestich Beneficiary’s estate.

6.5 Beneficiary Disclaimer. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thigicle 6, in the event a Beneficiary,
to whom payments hereunder would otherwise be ndiselaims all or any portion of that Beneficiaryrderest in such
payments, such disclaimed portion of such BengfiSainterest in such payments shall pass to thegueor persons
specified by the Participant to take such disclaiinéerest. In the event the Participant did peicsfy a person or persons
to take disclaimed interests, such disclaimed portf such Beneficiary's interest in such paymesitall pass to the
person or persons who would be entitled theretsyaunt to the Participant’s designation or the degign made with
respect to the VIP referenced above, whichevepdi@able pursuant to the foregoing provisionshig #rticle 6, if such
Beneficiary had died immediately preceding the dedthe Participant.

* ARTICLE 7

« UNFUNDED PLAN

7.1 No Trust. This Plan is intended to be an “unfunded” plédeferred compensation for the Participants. As
such, the benefits payable under this Plan wilb&ie solely from the general assets of the Compaige Company does
not intend to create any trust in connection wltis Plan. The Company shall not have any obligatiioset aside funds
or make investments in the investment funds refetwen Article 4. The Company’s obligations undeis Plan shall be
merely that of an unfunded and unsecured promipayanoney in the future.

7.2 Unsecured General Creditor No Participant or Beneficiary shall have anytigp receive any benefit payments
from this Plan except as provided in Articles 5 éndJUntil such payments are received, the rightsach Participant and
Beneficiary under this Plan shall be no greaten the rights of a general unsecured creditor ofGbmpany.

* ARTICLE 8

» AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF PLAN

8.1 Right to Amend. 3M may at any time amend or modify the Plan ol or in part; provided, however, that no
amendment or modification shall adversely affeetrights of any Participant or Beneficiary acquitgaier the terms of
the Plan as in effect prior to such action. Thesemt of any Participant, Beneficiary, employeothrer person shall not
be a requisite to such amendment or modificatiothefPlan.

8.2 Termination. While it expects to continue this Plan indefihjt 3M reserves the right to terminate the Plan at
any time and for any reason. Upon the terminatibtine Plan and to the extent permitted by secti@®A of the Code,

all elections to contribute to the Plan shall beoked and the Plan shall immediately distributeash to the respective
Participants and Beneficiaries the entire remaibiaignces of the Accounts.
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* ARTICLE 9

« CHANGE IN CONTROL

9.1 Termination Upon Change in Control. This Plan shall terminate and the Plan shall édiattely distribute in
cash to the respective Participants the amountitedsto all Accounts upon the occurrence of a @ean Control of 3M.

9.2 Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Article 9, a Change in Calraf 3M shall be deemed to
have occurred if there is a “change in the ownershiBM”, “change in effective control of 3M”, arat/a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of 3M’s assetstefined in Treas. Reg. section 1.409A-3(i)(55umh other regulation
or guidance issued under section 409A of the Code.

9.3 Reimbursement of Fees and Expense3 he Company shall pay to each Participant theusnof all reasonable
legal and accounting fees and expenses incurreddly Participant in seeking to obtain or enforeedniher rights under
this Article 9, unless a lawsuit commenced by tagiBipant for such purposes is dismissed by thetas being spurious
or frivolous. The Company shall also pay to eaafti€ipant the amount of all reasonable tax andrfaial planning fees
and expenses incurred by such Participant in cdiomeavith such Participant’s receipt of paymentsspant to this
Article 9. Payment of these legal and accounteesf as well as these tax and financial plannieg &ad expenses, shall
be made as soon as administratively feasible, butater than two and one-half months following #wed of the
Participant’s taxable year in which the Participacurs these fees and expenses. If a Participan®pecified Employee
and such payment is made on account of the PatitgppSeparation from Service, payment shall nanbde prior to the
first day of the seventh month following the Papamt’'s Separation from Service.

* ARTICLE 10

* GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1  Administration of the Plan and Discretion. This Plan shall be administered by the Plan Adfstriator, under
the supervision and direction of the CommitteethBbe Plan Administrator and the Committee shallehfull power and
authority to interpret the Plan, to establish, athend rescind any rules, forms and proceduresegsdibem necessary for
the proper administration of the Plan, and to &kgother action as they deem necessary or adgigabarrying out their
duties under the Plan. Any decisions, actiongtarpretations of any provision of the Plan madéheyPlan Administrator
or the Committee shall be made in their respeciie discretion, need not be uniformly applied itilarly situated
individuals and shall be final, binding and conoteson all persons interested in the Plan.

10.2 Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person shalle any right to commute, sell, assign,
transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or othereiggimber, transfer, hypothecate or convey in adbvafactual receipt
the amounts, if any, payable hereunder. All paysie@md the rights to all payments are expresslyadst to be
nonassignable and nontransferable. No part odith@unts payable hereunder shall, prior to actuaheat, be subject to
seizure or sequestration for the payment of anysg@mgments or decrees, or transferred by operafi law in the event
of a Participant’s or any Beneficiary's bankruptmyinsolvency. No part of any Participant’s Accoumay be assigned
or paid to such Participant’s spouse in the evédiwrce pursuant to a domestic relations order.

10.3 Not a Contract of Employment The terms and conditions of this Plan shall metdeemed to constitute a
contract of employment between the Company andPamtjcipant, and the Participants (or their Benefies) shall have
no rights against the Company except as may otkerbé specifically provided herein. Moreover, im@hn this Plan
shall be deemed to give any Participant the righttet retained in the employment of the Company anterfere with the
right of the Company to discipline or dischargelsRarticipant at any time for any reason whatsaever

10.4  Terms. Wherever any words are used herein in the samgarl in the plural, they shall be construed asigio
they were used in the plural or in the singulathescase may be, in all cases where they wouéppty.
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10.5 Captions. The captions of the articles and sections &f Bian are for convenience only and shall not cboir
affect the meaning or construction of any of itsyisions.

10.6 Governing Law. The provisions of this Plan shall be construediiaterpreted according to the laws of the State
of Minnesota, except to the extent preempted bgriddaw.

10.7  Validity . In case any provision of this Plan shall bedube declared invalid for any reason, said illetyair
invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts &ef;, but this Plan shall be construed and enfoeed such illegal or
invalid provision had never been inserted herein.

10.8 Claims Procedure Any Participant or Beneficiary who disagreedwahy decision regarding his or her benefits
under this Plan shall submit a written requestéstew to the Plan Administrator. The Plan Admirasor shall respond
in writing to such a request within sixty (60) dafis or her receipt of the request. The Plan f&istrator may, however,
extend the reply period for an additional sixty)@@ys for reasonable cause. The Plan Administsatesponse shall be
written in a manner calculated to be understoothbyParticipant or Beneficiary, and shall set forth

(a) the specific reason or reasons for any deffibépefits;
(b) specific references to the provision or prawisi of this Plan on which the denial is based;
(c) a description of any additional information praterial necessary for the Participant or

Beneficiary to improve his or her claim, and anlarption of which such information or
material is necessary; and

(d) an explanation of the Plan’s claims review gdire and other appropriate information as to
the steps to be taken if the Participant or Berafiowishes to appeal the Plan Administrator’s
decision.

If the Participant or Beneficiary disagrees witke ttecision of the Plan Administrator, he or shdldha a
written appeal with the Committee within 120 dajterareceiving the Plan Administrator's responsaeT
Committee shall respond in writing to such an appéthin ninety (90) days of its receipt of the a&ah. The
Committee may, however, extend the reply periocifoadditional ninety (90) days for reasonable eadshe
Committee’s response shall be written in a manrscutated to be understood by the Participant or
Beneficiary, and shall both set forth the spediéiasons for its decision and refer to the spepifision or
provisions of the Plan on which its decision isdzhs

10.9 Successors The provisions of this Plan shall bind and intoréhe benefit of the Company and its successors
and assigns. The term successors as used hea#liimslude any corporation or other business gnititich shall, whether

by merger, consolidation, purchase or otherwisquiae substantially all of the business and assietise Company, and
successors of any such corporation or other busigetity.

10.10 Incompetent. In the event that it shall be found upon evidesatisfactory to the Plan Administrator that any
Participant or Beneficiary to whom a benefit is glalg under this Plan is unable to care for hisesrdwn affairs because
of iliness or accident, any payment due (unlessrmiaim therefore shall have been made by a dulllyaaized guardian
or other legal representative) may be paid, up@rapiate indemnification of the Plan, to the spoos other person
deemed by the Plan Administrator to have accemsglansibility for such Participant or Beneficiamy such payment
made pursuant to this Section 10.10 shall be inptete discharge of any liability therefore undes thlan.
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Exhibit 10.16

3M VIP Plus Plan

(Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2016)



3M VIP Plus Plan

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

The purpose of this Plan is to attract and incdigtbde highly compensated employees to remain \8ith by offering
them the opportunity to earn additional retiremeeefits by deferring the receipt of a portiontadit compensation on
a tax-favored basis, with the belief that such eppuoty will permit these employees to increaseartteng-term financial
security. The Plan does this by supplementindpfere-tax deferral provisions of the 3M Voluntémyestment Plan and
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (VIP), which are tiédiby the requirements of the Internal RevenueeCod

The provisions of the Plan were originally effeetigs of January 1, 2002. The Plan was amendettieéfelanuary 1,
2009. The purposes of the amendment were to i@ tine plan document into compliance with the mefaents of
section 409A of the Code, including the regulatisssied thereunder, and (b) close the Plan to netvibutions effective
upon the receipt of all contributions made purstamtections with respect to the 2008 Plan Ydéanm October 3, 2004
(the date section 409A was added to the Code) giw®ecember 31, 2008, the Plan was operated infgitbccompliance
with the requirements of section 409A including $ppecial transition rules issued by the InternaldReie Service and the
U.S. Department of Treasury in connection with ilmplementation of section 409A. For avoidance ofilat, the
amendment was intended to apply both to deferredpensation subject to section 409A of the Code, (deferred
compensation credited under the Plan which relatiedr in part to services performed on or aftenuay 1, 2005), as
well as deferred compensation credited under ttean Rhich relates entirely to services performedoonbefore
December 31, 2004 that is eligible to be “grandfedd” from application of section 409A of the Code.

The Plan is hereby amended and restated effectioé danuary 1, 2016.
ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Plan, the following waadd phrases shall have the meanings indicatedssutile context clearly
indicates otherwise:

1.1. ACCOUNT. “Account” or “Accounts” means the record of timounts credited to a Participant under the Plan
pursuant to Article 4.

1.2. BENEFICIARY . “Beneficiary” means the person, persons or grdiésignated by the Participant, or as
provided in Article 8, to receive any unpaid bakamt such Participant’s Accounts following his @r lueath.

1.3. CODE. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.
1.4. COMMITTEE . “Committee” means the Compensation Committet@Board of Directors of 3M.

1.5. COMPANY . “Company” means 3M Company (“3M"), its U.S. &fftes and subsidiaries and any successor to
the business thereof.

1.6. ELIGIBLE COMPENSATION . “Eligible Compensation” of a Participant for aRlan Year means base pay,
profit sharing and annual incentive (excluding poytion of such annual incentive payable in restdestock units) earned
by the Participant during such Plan Year, unredimeany contributions made to such Participant\&r®gs Plus Account
under the VIP and by any contributions made on hefi@uch Participant under a cafeteria plan axclieled from the
Participant’s taxable income under section 12%hef@ode. Eligible Compensation does not includentives, awards,
commissions, foreign service premiums and allowshoeome arising from stock options, separatioy, panployer
contributions to employee benefit plans, reimbursets or payments in lieu thereof, or lump sum p&ymf a
Participant’s unused vacation benefits.
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1.7. EMPLOYEE . “Employee” means any person employed by the Gawms an active regular common-law
employee who is recognized as such on 3M’s humsmurees/payroll systems; including such persons avbdJnited
States citizens but on assignment outside of thisitty and resident aliens employed in the UnitiedeS; but excluding
any person covered by a collective bargaining agese to which the Company is a party.

1.8. INDEXED COMPENSATION LIMIT . “Indexed Compensation Limit"” means the annualoam of
compensation that may be recognized by a qualié¢idement plan under section 401(a)(17) of thee&C(as adjusted
annually for increases in the cost of living).

1.9. PARTICIPANT . “Participant” means any Employee who has elettetiake contributions to this Plan after
satisfying the eligibility requirements of Sectidri.

1.10. PLAN. “Plan” means the plan described in this docuresit may be amended from time to time. Thecfi
name of the Plan shall be the VIP Plus.

1.11. PLAN ADMINISTRATOR . “Plan Administrator” means the person to whoem@ommittee has delegated the
authority and responsibility for administering #kan. Unless and until changed by the CommitteePlan Administrator
of the Plan shall be the Staff Vice President ofs3lWbtal Compensation Resource Center or his ssoces

1.12. PLANYEAR. “Plan Year” means the twelve (12) month periaohf January 1 through December 31 in respect
of which a Participant may contribute to the Pldine first Plan Year began on January 1, 2002.

1.13. PORTFOLIO Il VIP . *“Portfolio Il VIP” means the provisions of thev3Voluntary Investment Plan and
Employee Stock Ownership Plan applicable to thdigioke employees who were hired or rehired by @@mpany after
December 31, 2000 or who elected to be coveretidybmpany’s Portfolio Il retirement program.

1.14. RETIRE orRETIREMENT . “Retire” or “Retirement” means an Employee’s &gpion from Service with the
Company after attaining age fifty-five (55) withlaast five (5) years of employment service orradttaining age sixty-
five (65).

1.15. UNFORESEEABLE FINANCIAL EMERGENCY . “Unforeseeable Financial Emergency” means an
“unforeseeable emergency” (as defined in Treas. Regtion 1.409A-3(i)(3)) or such other regulatmrguidance issued
under section 409A of the Code of the Participant.

1.16. VALUATION DATE . “Valuation Date” shall have the same meaninghas term is defined for purposes of
the VIP.

1.17.  VIP. “VIP" means the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan aadhployee Stock Ownership Plan, as it may be
amended from time to time.

1.18. SEPARATION FROM SERVICE . “Separation from Service” means a “separatiomfservice” as defined in
Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(h)(1) or such othgulegion or guidance issued under Section 409A®Qode. Whether
a Separation from Service has occurred depends hmther the facts and circumstances indicate thataBml the
Participant reasonably anticipated that no furtieevices would be performed after a certain dathairthe level of bona
fide services the Participant would perform aftects date (whether as an employee or independeitactor) would
permanently decrease to no more than twenty pe(26#t) of the average level of bona fide servia$gmed (whether
as an employee or an independent contractor) bednmtmediately preceding thirty-six (36) month pe)i A Separation
from Service shall not be deemed to occur whileRbsdicipant is on military leave, sick leave dnetbona fide leave of
absence if the period does not exceed six (6) nsamthif longer, so long as the Participant retainght to reemployment
with 3M or an affiliate under an applicable statokdy contract. For this purpose, a leave is Himeaonly if, and so long
as, there is a reasonable expectation that thdcipartt will return to perform services for 3M on affiliate.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a twenty-nine (29mth period of absence will be substituted for ssizh(6) month
period if the leave is due to any medically deterabie physical or mental impairment that can besetqul to result in
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death or can be expected to last for a continuetisgh of no less than six (6) months and that cattse Participant to be
unable to perform the duties of his or her positbemployment.

1.19. SPECIFIED EMPLOYEE . “Specified Employee” means a “specified empldyae defined in Treas. Reg.
Section 1.409A-1(i) or such other regulation ordguice issued under section 409A of the Code.

ARTICLE 2
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

2.1. Eligibility . An Employee shall be eligible to participate lve tPlan by making contributions for a Plan Year if
as of the Novemberimmediately preceding such Plan Year:

(@) such Employee is eligible to make contributiander the VIP;

(b) such Employee is eligible for and covered bg on more annual incentive or profit sharing

plans of 3M or Dyneon LLC; and

(c) such Employee had estimated annual planned eonsapion (base pay plus profit sharing or
annual incentive) that exceeds the Indexed Compiensiaimit in effect for the calendar year
including such November 1st. For the first Plaraivef this Plan, the Indexed Compensation
Limit in effect for the preceding calendar yearlsha deemed to be $200,000.

The eligibility of Employees to participate in tH$an by making contributions shall be determinachePlan Year, and
no Employee shall have any right to make contrdngiin any Plan Year by virtue of having an Accoasta result of
making contributions in any prior Plan Year.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisulno Employee shall be eligible to participatéhie Plan by making
contributions for any period after the end of tli®& Plan Year (the Plan Year that ends on Dece1he2008).

2.2. Election to Contribute. In order to make contributions under the Planafoy Plan Year, an Employee who
meets the eligibility requirements of Section 2.astrenroll via the Plan’s Internet site. To beeefiive, an Employee’s
enroliment must elect the amount of his or her dbuations, authorize the reduction of his or hegible Compensation
as needed to make such contributions, selectrifeednd form of payment of such contributions ardet@rnings thereon,
specify the investment fund or funds in which sgolntributions are to be treated as being investad, provide such
other pertinent information as the Plan Adminisiranay require. The time period during which elmeints will be
accepted each Plan Year will be established byrtae Administrator, but in no event will any enmdint be accepted
after the beginning of the Plan Year to which sewtoliment relates.

2.3. Duration of Contribution Election . Each eligible Employee’s election to make cdnttions to the Plan made
in accordance with the requirements of SectiorsB&l expire as of the end of the Plan Year to witicelates, although
it shall apply to any Eligible Compensation paittathe end of such Plan Year if such Eligible Cemgation was earned
during such Plan Year. Participants may not chasrgeevoke their contribution elections for a PMear after the
enrollment period for the Plan Year has ended.

2.4, Duration of Participation.. A Participant’s participation in the Plan shadintinue until all amounts credited
to his or her Accounts have been distributed, ¢if the Participant’s death, if earlier.
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ARTICLE 3

CONTRIBUTIONS

3.1. Participant Contributions . A Participant may contribute (defer) from onegamt (1%) to ten percent (10%)
(but only a whole percentage) of his or her EligiBlompensation earned during the Plan Year to which Participant’s
election relates. The percentage the Participaotseto contribute (defer) shall be deducted felanh payment of such
Participant’s Eligible Compensation earned duringhsPlan Year, whether paid during or following lsiian Year.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisfIno Participant shall be permitted to make doumtions to this Plan
for any period after the end of the 2008 Plan Yd# Plan Year that ends on December 31, 2008).

3.2. Company Matching Contributions. Only for those Participants enrolled in the Rxia Il VIP, in December
of each Plan Year the Company shall make a matafungibution equal to fifteen percent (15%) of thsser of:

(a) each Participant’s contributions made purstm®ection 3.1 for such Plan Year, or

(b) six percent (6%) of the amount by which suchtiBipant’s Eligible Compensation for such

Plan Year (taking into account such Compensatidd ffraough November 30 of such Plan
Year and an estimate of such Compensation expé&zteel earned and paid during the balance
of such Plan Year) exceeds the Indexed Compendaitiaihfor such Plan Year.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisilthe Company shall not make any matching cantabs to this Plan
for any period after the end of the 2008 Plan Yd#r Plan Year that ends on December 31, 2008).

ARTICLE 4
ACCOUNTS

4.1. Creation of Accounts The Plan shall establish a separate Accountopénts for each Participant who elects
to make contributions hereunder. Effective Jandar3005, a separate Account shall be maintaineddoh Participant
for each Plan Year that such Participant makesribations to the Plan. The amount of a Particigacbntributions
hereunder shall be credited to such Participantsofint at the same time as or as soon as reasquagsiple following
the dates on which the Company paid the Eligiblen@ensation from which such contributions were defier Company
matching contributions shall be credited to the d\otts of those Participants eligible to receivehsaontributions
pursuant to Section 5.2 during December of each WPéar.

4.2. Earnings on Accounts Each Participant’s Accounts shall be creditetthwivestment earnings or losses based
on the performance of the investment funds seldzyedich Participant. The investment funds avieltdbthe Participants

in this Plan shall be the same as the investmewisfavailable to the participants in the VIP, edaig the 3M Stock Fund
and the VIP’s brokerage window, but shall alsoudel a fund based on the return of the Growth Faagattefined for
purposes of the 3M Deferred Compensation Plantidisnts may allocate the amounts credited ta #hecounts among
such investment funds in whole percentages of fsampercent to one hundred percent. The deemedtment earnings
or losses on such VIP funds for purposes of thesm Bhall equal the actual rate of return on suolddgun the VIP net of
any fees or expenses chargeable thereto, inclumihgot limited to management fees, trustee famyrdkeeping fees
and other administrative expenses.

4.3. Changes in Investment Fund Allocations Participants may change the investment fundsngmdich their
Account balances or future contributions are aledat any time, subject to such rules as may tablkshed by the Plan
Administrator. Allocation changes may only be madang the Plan’s Internet site or by speaking &itlepresentative
of the Plan’s recordkeeper.

4.4. Valuation of Accounts The Accounts of all Participants shall be reedlas of each Valuation Date. As of
each Valuation Date, the value of a Participantsdunt shall consist of the balance of such Accasmf the immediately
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preceding Valuation Date, increased by the amofiahy contributions made and credited thereto siheemmediately
preceding Valuation Date, increased or decreasethéacase may be) by the amount of deemed invas@aenings or
losses credited to the investment funds selecteithdoyParticipant since the immediately precedingu&éon Date, and
decreased by the amount of any distributions meate such Account since the immediately precedinmation Date.

4.5. Vesting of Accounts A Participant shall always be 100% vested invildeie of his or her Accounts.

4.6. Statement of Account As soon as administratively feasible followihg nd of each Plan Year, the Plan shall
deliver to each Participant a statement of hisesrActcounts in the Plan.

ARTICLE 5
DISTRIBUTION OF ACCOUNTS

5.1. General Rules Except as provided in Sections 5.5, 8.2 and fldistribution of a Participant’s Accounts
hereunder shall be made prior to such Participale&h or Separation from Service with the Compahydistributions
of a Participant’s Accounts shall be made in casthen the Plan makes a distribution of less tharettitire balance of a
Participant’s Account, the distribution shall bewged pro rata against each of the investment ftondsich the Account
is then allocated.

5.2. Distribution Following Separation from Service If a Participant incurs a Separation from Sexwidth the

Company for any reason other than death or Retingrtiee entire balance of such Participant’s Ac¢swshall be paid to
the Participant in a single lump sum distributiarthhe month of July in the Plan Year following thkan Year in which
such Participant’'s Separation from Service occurred

5.3. Distribution Following Retirement. If a Participant Retires from employment withe t€ompany, the
Participant’s Account (i) for all Plan Years pritor2005 shall be paid commencing at the time arghanof the following

methods of payment selected by such Participal#tanthan the December 31st of the Plan Year iclwsuch Participant
Retires, and (ii) for each Plan Year after 2004]Idte paid commencing at the time and in one effthlowing methods

of payment selected by such Participant at the sinod Participant elected to make contributiorthéoPlan for such Plan
Year pursuant to Section 2.2;

(a) A single lump sum distribution; or

(b) Ten (10) or fewer annual installments, with #r@ount of each installment payment being
determined by multiplying the balance in the Pgtiot's Account on the payment date by a
fraction having a numerator of one and a denominatpal to the remaining number of
scheduled installment payments.

All lump sum and installment payments shall be miadthe month of July in the Plan Year or Yearestdd by the
Participant; provided, however, that no paymentdl die made before the month of July in the PlaarYfellowing the
Plan Year in which such Participant incurs a Sefmrdrom Service with the Company, and providedHar that no
method of payment and commencement date selectadPayticipant shall require the Plan to make aaym@nt more
than ten (10) years after the end of the Plan ¥eahich such Participant Retires.

5.4. Distribution Following Death. If a Participant dies before distribution of lmisher Account has begun, the
entire balance of such Participant’s Account shalpaid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in a senlgimp sum distribution
in the month of July in the Plan Year following tR&an Year in which such Participant died. If atiegant dies after
distribution of his or her Account has begun, temaining balance of his or her Account (if any)lshe paid to the
Participant’s Beneficiary in accordance with thetimel of payment chosen by the Participant.

5.5. Unforeseeable Financial Emergency Distribution Upon finding that a Participant has suffered an

Unforeseeable Financial Emergency, the Committeg, imaits sole discretion, permit the Participaotwithdraw an
amount from his or her Account sufficient to alkte the emergency.
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5.6. Withholding; Payroll Taxes. To the extent required by the laws in effedhattime any payment is made, the
Plan shall withhold from any payment made hereuradgr taxes required to be withheld for federaltestar local
government purposes.

5.7. One-Time Opportunity to Revise Payment Elections.Prior to the end of 2008 and during the time quri
established by the Plan Administrator, Participavite have previously elected to make contributiinhe Plan for one
or more Plan Years since 2004 and who are stilaemployees of the Company may revise their Elestconcerning
the time and method of paying their Accounts foy anall Plan Years since 2004 subject to the fmiig conditions:

€) each revised election must be consistent \Whréquirements of Section 5.3, in terms of both
the method of payment and the commencement dagafonents;

(b) no revised election may result in the defemél payments that would otherwise have
commenced in 2008; and

(c) no revised election may result in the commerer@mnof payments during 2008 that would not
otherwise have commenced during such year.

ARTICLE 6

DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES

6.1. Beneficiary Designation Each Participant shall have the right at anettmdesignate any person, persons, or
entity, as Beneficiary or Beneficiaries to whom eyt of the Participant’s Account shall be mad¢him event of the
Participant’s death. Any designation made undertian may be revoked or changed by a new designiaitade prior to
the Participant’s death. Any such designatioreepcation must be made in accordance with the rdtblished by the
Plan Administrator, and will not be effective uniceived by the Plan.

6.2. BBENEFICIARY PREDECEASES PARTICIPANT . If a Participant designates more than one Beiagi
to receive such Participant's Account and any Bieiaf/ shall predecease the Participant, the Pl slistribute the
deceased Beneficiary’s share to the surviving Beiagfes proportionately, as the portion designdigdhe Participant
for each bears to the total portion designatedlficsurviving Beneficiaries.

6.3. Absence of Effective Designation If a Participant makes no designation or revakegsignation previously
made without making a new designation, or if alispes designated shall predecease the Particigen®lan shall

distribute the balance of the deceased Particip&mttount in the manner determined in accordantietive Participant’s

designation in effect under the VIP. In the ev&amth Participant has no effective designation utideVIP, the Plan

shall distribute the balance of the deceased Raatits Account to the first of the following suvars:

(a) The Participant’s spouse;
(b) Equally to the Participant’s children;
(c) Equally to the Participant’s parents;
(d) Equally to the Participant’s brothers and ssster
(e) The executor or administrator of the Partictfsaestate.
6.4. Death of Beneficiary If a Beneficiary to whom payments hereundertaree made pursuant to the foregoing

provisions of this Article 6 survives the Partiaipeut dies prior to complete distribution to ther@ficiary of the
Beneficiary’s share:
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@) unless the Participant has otherwise spedifidais or her designation, the Plan shall distebut
the undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’srghto such person or persons, including such
Beneficiary’s estate, as such Beneficiary shalkehd@signated in a designation made with the
Plan prior to such Beneficiary’s death (which desiipn shall be subject to change or
revocation by such Beneficiary at any time); or

(b) if the Participant’s designation specifies tisath Beneficiary does not have the power to
designate a successor Beneficiary or if such Beiaeyi is granted such power but fails to
designate a successor Beneficiary prior to suclefi@ary’s death, the Plan shall distribute the
undistributed portion of such Beneficiary’s sharestich Beneficiary’s estate.

6.5. Beneficiary Disclaimer. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of tAidicle 6, in the event a Beneficiary,
to whom payments hereunder would otherwise be ndisielaims all or any portion of that Beneficiaryrderest in such
payments, such disclaimed portion of such BengfiSainterest in such payments shall pass to thegueor persons
specified by the Participant to take such disclaiinéerest. In the event the Participant did peicsfy a person or persons
to take disclaimed interests, such disclaimed portf such Beneficiary's interest in such paymesitall pass to the
person or persons who would be entitled theretsyaunt to the Participant’s designation or the degign made with
respect to the VIP referenced above, whichevepdi@able pursuant to the foregoing provisionshig #rticle 6, if such
Beneficiary had died immediately preceding the dedthe Participant.

ARTICLE 7

UNFUNDED PLAN

7.1. No Trust. This Plan is intended to be an “unfunded” planieferred compensation for the Participants. As
such, the benefits payable under this Plan wilb&ie solely from the general assets of the Compaige Company does
not intend to create any trust in connection wltis Plan. The Company shall not have any obligatiioset aside funds
or make investments in the investment funds refetwen Article 4. The Company’s obligations undeis Plan shall be
merely that of an unfunded and unsecured promipayanoney in the future.

7.2. Unsecured General Creditor No Participant or Beneficiary shall have anyhtigo receive any benefit
payments from this Plan except as provided in A$i& and 6. Until such payments are receivedritifgs of each

Participant and Beneficiary under this Plan shellnp greater than the rights of a general unsecereditor of the

Company.

ARTICLE 8

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN

8.1. Right to Amend. 3M may at any time amend or modify the Plan hole or in part; provided, however, that
no amendment or modification shall adversely affeetrights of any Participant or Beneficiary acgdiunder the terms
of the Plan as in effect prior to such action. Thasent of any Participant, Beneficiary, employeother person shall
not be a requisite to such amendment or modifinadfcthe Plan.

8.2. Termination. While it expects to continue this Plan indefihit 3M reserves the right to terminate the Plan at
any time and for any reason. Upon terminatiorhefRlan, and to the extent permitted by sectio4@f@he Code, all
elections to contribute to the Plan shall be redoad the Plan shall immediately distribute in ctslthe respective
Participants and Beneficiaries the entire remaibiaignces of the Accounts.
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ARTICLE 9

CHANGE IN CONTROL

9.1. Definitions. For purposes of this Article 9, the following mle and phrases shall have the meanings indicated
below, unless the context clearly indicates othsewi

(a) “Person” shall have the meaning associated tliith term as it is used in sections 13(d) and
14(d) of the Act.

(b) “Affiliates and Associates” shall have the miegs assigned to such terms in Rule 12b-2
promulgated under section 12 of the Act.

(c) “Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(d) “Continuing Directors” shall have the meanirggigned to such term in Article Thirteenth of
3M’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

(e) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.
)] “3M” means 3M Company, a Delaware corporation.
9.2. Termination Upon Change in Control. This Plan shall terminate and the Plan shall édiately distribute in

cash to the respective Participants the amountstedsto all Accounts upon the occurrence of a @ean Control of 3M.

9.3. Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Article 9, a Change in @uraf 3M shall be deemed
to have occurred if there is a “change in the owhigrof 3M,” “change in effective control of 3M,hd/or a “change in
the ownership of a substantial portion of 3M’s &ssas defined under Treas. Reg. Section 1.409453(or such other
regulation or guidance issued under section 409%heTCode.

9.4. Reimbursement of Fees and Expense3he Company shall pay to each Participant theuarnof all reasonable
legal and accounting fees and expenses incurreddly Participant in seeking to obtain or enforeedniher rights under
this Article 9, unless a lawsuit commenced by tagiBipant for such purposes is dismissed by thetas being spurious
or frivolous. The Company shall also pay to eaattiBipant the amount of all reasonable tax andrfaial planning fees
incurred by such Participant in connection withts@articipant’s receipt of payments pursuant te #aiicle 9. Such
payment or reimbursement shall be made no latertti@end of the recipient’s taxable year followihg taxable year in
which the recipient incurs the related expensef.a Participant is a Specified Employee and suchnmaet or
reimbursement is made on account of the Particip&#paration from Service, payment or reimburseraball not be
made prior to the first day of the seventh montlofang the Participant's Separation from Service.

ARTICLE 10
GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1. Administration of the Plan and Discretion This Plan shall be administered by the Plan Adstiator, under
the supervision and direction of the CommitteethBbe Plan Administrator and the Committee shalehfull power and
authority to interpret the Plan, to establish, athend rescind any rules, forms and proceduresegsdibem necessary for
the proper administration of the Plan, and to &kgother action as they deem necessary or adgigabarrying out their
duties under the Plan. Any decisions, actionsterpretations of any provision of the Plan mad#ileyPlan Administrator
or the Committee shall be made in their respeciie discretion, need not be uniformly applied itilarly situated
individuals and shall be final, binding and conoleson all persons interested in the Plan.

10.2. Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person dhalle any right to commute, sell, assign,
transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or othereigaimber, transfer, hypothecate or convey in agbvafactual receipt
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the amounts, if any, payable hereunder. All paysi@md the rights to all payments are expresslyadet to be

nonassignable and nontransferable. No part odith@unts payable hereunder shall, prior to actuaheat, be subject to
seizure or sequestration for the payment of anysgd@mgments or decrees, or transferred by operati law in the event
of a Participant’s or any Beneficiary’s bankruptmoyinsolvency. No part of any Participant's Accoumay be assigned
or paid to such Participant’s spouse in the evédiwrce pursuant to a domestic relations order.

10.3. Not a Contract of Employment. The terms and conditions of this Plan shall motdbemed to constitute a
contract of employment between the Company andPamtjcipant, and the Participants (or their Benefies) shall have
no rights against the Company except as may otkerig specifically provided herein. Moreover, im@hn this Plan
shall be deemed to give any Participant the righttet retained in the employment of the Company amterfere with the
right of the Company to discipline or dischargelsBarticipant at any time for any reason whatsaever

10.4. Terms. Wherever any words are used herein in the simgurlin the plural, they shall be construed asigho
they were used in the plural or in the singulathescase may be, in all cases where they wouéppty.

10.5. Captions. The captions of the articles and sections af Bian are for convenience only and shall not cbntr
or affect the meaning or construction of any opitsvisions.

10.6. Governing Law. The provisions of this Plan shall be construed aterpreted according to the laws of the
State of Minnesota, to the extent not preemptefibtgral law.

10.7. Validity . In case any provision of this Plan shall bedue declared invalid for any reason, said illetyadr
invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts &ef;, but this Plan shall be construed and enfoeed such illegal or
invalid provision had never been inserted herein.

10.8. Claims Procedure Any Participant or Beneficiary who disagreeshwdiny decision regarding his or her
benefits under this Plan shall submit a writteruesy for review to the Plan Administrator. TherPAaministrator shall
respond in writing to such a request within six@@) days of his or her receipt of the request. Plan Administrator
may, however, extend the reply period for an add#l sixty (60) days for reasonable cause. The Rtministrator’s
response shall be written in a manner calculatdzttonderstood by the Participant or Beneficiang shall set forth:

@) the specific reason or reasons for any demibépefits;
(b) specific references to the provision or prayisi of this Plan on which the denial is based;
(c) a description of any additional information praterial necessary for the Participant or

Beneficiary to improve his or her claim, and anlarption of which such information or
material is necessary; and

(d) an explanation of the Plan’s claims review gdire and other appropriate information as to
the steps to be taken if the Participant or Berafiowishes to appeal the Plan Administrator’s
decision.

If the Participant or Beneficiary disagrees with ttecision of the Plan Administrator, he or shdl §itma written appeal
with the Committee within one-hundred twenty (12jys after receiving the Plan Administrator's resm The
Committee shall respond in writing to such an appdthin ninety (90) days of its receipt of the @&ah The Committee
may, however, extend the reply period for an addél ninety (90) days for reasonable cause. Themiitiee’s response
shall be written in a manner calculated to be ustded by the Participant or Beneficiary, and sbalh set forth the
specific reasons for its decision and refer togiivecific provision or provisions of the Plan on g¥hits decision is based.

10.9. Successors The provisions of this Plan shall bind and intaréhe benefit of the Company and its successors
and assigns. The term successors as used hea#liimslude any corporation or other business gnititich shall, whether

by merger, consolidation, purchase or otherwisquiae substantially all of the business and assietise Company, and
successors of any such corporation or other busigetsty.
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10.10. Incompetent. In the event that it shall be found upon evigesatisfactory to the Plan Administrator that any
Participant or Beneficiary to whom a benefit is glalg under this Plan is unable to care for hisasrdwn affairs because
of illness or accident, any payment due (unlessrmlaim therefore shall have been made by a dulllyaaized guardian
or other legal representative) may be paid, upgragpiate indemnification of the Plan, to the spoos other person
deemed by the Plan Administrator to have accemsplansibility for such Participant or Beneficiany such payment
made pursuant to this Section 10.10 shall be inptet® discharge of any liability therefore undes thlan.

10.11. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Companylshdemnify the Plan Administrator and
the members of the Committee against any andailhsl, losses, damages, expenses and liabilityhgriedm their
responsibilities or the performance of their dutiesonnection with the Plan which is not covergdrsurance paid for
by the Company, unless the same is determined tlub¢o gross negligence or intentional misconduct.
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Exhibit 10.29

3M NONQUALIFIED PENSION PLAN |

(Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2016)
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3M NONQUALIFIED PENSION PLAN |
INTRODUCTION

Purpose: The purpose of this 3M Nonqualified Pension Plghdreinafter the “Nonqualified Plan 1”) is to proei

retirement benefits to participants and their biersies in the 3M Employee Retirement Income P(bereinafter
“ERIP”) which such ERIP is unable to provide solbgcause of the limitations imposed by section@fitfe Code. This
Nonqualified Plan | is intended to supplement tiRdFE=originally adopted by 3M in 1931 and as amenfdech time to

time thereafter.

History: 3M originally adopted a nonqualified pension planNovember 7, 1978. This original plan was nanted t
Supplemental Pension Plan of Minnesota Mining arahidacturing Company (hereinafter the “SupplemeRtah”).
The Supplemental Plan was amended from time to &ftez its adoption. Effective January 1, 1998 Supplemental
Plan was amended and restated as two separate plaas‘Nonqualified Pension Plan | of Minnesotaniig and
Manufacturing Company” and “Nonqualified PensioarPll of Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Companyfhe
provisions of the restatements superseded all paosions of the Supplemental Plan. Such restatsrigave been
amended from time to time since their adoption.nélalified Plan | provides supplemental benefitg #re strictly in
excess of section 415 of the Code. Nonqualifieth Pl provided certain additional supplementalrestient benefits, but
effective January 1, 2009, such plan has been asdettdprovide supplemental retirement benefits #natstrictly in
excess of limitations under section 401(a)(17) 4b2{g) of the Code.

Effective January 1, 2009, this Nonqualified Plands again amended and restated (the “2009 Restatdm The
provisions of this restatement supersede all meosions of the Plan. The purpose of this restat¢ris to bring the Plan
into compliance with section 409A of the Code bg-lthking” the payment provisions under this Pleanf the payment
provisions under the ERIP. From October 3, 2084 (tate section 409A was added to the Code) thrBeglember 31,
2008, the Plan continued to operate with “linked¥yment provisions in accordance with special tt@rsirules issued
by the IRS and the U.S. Department of Treasurypimection with the implementation of section 4094he Code. For
avoidance of doubt, this restatement is intendegipfgly both to deferred compensation subject tticaed09A of the
Code {.e., deferred compensation credited under the Planhntelated all or in part to services performedoorafter
January 1, 2005), as well as deferred compenset&ited under the Plan which relates entirelyetwises performed
on or before December 31, 2004 that is eligibldeéo“grandfathered” from application of section 408Athe Code.
However, the benefits payable to Members and FoMsmbers (and their Beneficiaries) who commencedrnaent of
their Nonqualified Plan | Benefit prior to Janudry2009 will be determined in accordance with thevjsions of the Plan
in effect at the time of their benefit commencernamd will not be adjusted or recomputed to reflbist or any subsequent
amendment or restatement of this Nonqualified Plan

Effect: This Nonqualified Plan | is hereby amended andated effective January 1, 2016. Similar to ti@®®
Restatement, the benefits payable to Members amddfdMembers (and their

Beneficiaries) who commenced payment of their Natifjad Plan | Benefit prior to January 1, 2016Iié determined

in accordance with the provisions of the Plan feafat the time of their benefit commencement aitidnot be adjusted
or recomputed to reflect this or any subsequennament or restatement of this Nonqualified Plan 1.

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

Except where specifically defined in this NonquatifPlan |, the words and phrases which appedrisrdocument shall
have the meanings set forth in the ERIP plan doottmExcept for definitions and other substantivevisions of this
Nonqualified Plan |, the terms and conditions of #BRIP shall govern the construction and admirtistmaof this

Nonqualified Plan 1.
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1.1. Annuity Starting Date. “Annuity Starting Date” means the benefit stagtidate as determined under
Section 3.2.

1.2. Code “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.

1.3. Compensation Committee “Compensation Committee” means the Compens&mmnmittee of the Board of
Directors of 3M.

1.4. Discharge for Cause “Discharge for Cause” or “Discharged for Causegans the termination of an
employee’s employment for reasons of dishonestyjezmiement, conviction of a crime or a misdemeaneolving
moral turpitude, willful misconduct, or personalsednduct which is detrimental to 3M and its busspes determined in
the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee.

1.5. ERIP. “ERIP” means the 3M Employee Retirement Incortaan P

1.6. Former Member. “Former Member” means a former employee whaceiving benefit payments under the
provisions of this Nonqualified Plan I, or a formamployee whose employment with 3M has terminabedafly reason
other than Discharge for Cause and who is enttthea vested Nonqualified Plan | Benefit under thevisions of this
Nonqualified Plan 1.

1.7. Member. “Member” means an employee who is a participarthe ERIP and who is accruing an additional
Nonqualified Plan | Benefit under the provisionghig Nonqualified Plan I.

1.8. Nonqualified Plan I. “Nonqualified Plan I” means the 3M Nonqualifieeénsion Plan I.

1.9. Nonqualified Plan | Benefit “Nonqualified Plan | Benefit” means the bengfiayable under this Plan
described in Section 3.1.

1.10. Plan Administrator. “Plan Administrator” means the 3M Vice PresideBlobal Compensation and Benefits
or his or her successor.

1.11. Retirement; Retire. “Retirement” means a Separation from Servicerafie Member has both attained age
fifty-five (55) and completed five (5) years of “€ited Service” (as defined under the ERIP), oz@a®ation from Service
after the Member has attained age sixty-five (65).

1.12. Separation from Service “Separation from Service” means a severance dfleanber’'s employment
relationship with 3M and all affiliates for any ssm other than the Member’s death or Discharg€#arse.

Whether a Separation from Service has occurredeisrohined under section 409A of the Code and Trgasg.
section 1.409A-1(h)i., whether the facts and circumstances indicatettieaemployer and the employee reasonably
anticipated that no further services would be pernfxl after a certain date or that the level of bfitka services the
employee would perform after such date (whethemasmployee or independent contractor) would peemigyndecrease

to no more than twenty percent (20%) of the avelagel of bona fide services performed (whethemmemployee or an
independent contractor) over the immediately prigthirty-six (36) month period (or the full pedmf services to the
employer if the employee has been providing sesvioghe employer less than thirty-six (36) months)

Separation from Service shall not be deemed torosbile the employee is on military leave, sickvear other bona
fide leave of absence if the period does not exsee(b) months or, if longer, so long as the ergptoretains a right to
reemployment with 3M or an affiliate under an apafile statute or by contract. For this purpodease is bona fide
only if, and so long as, there is a reasonable @atien that the employee will return to performvaézes for 3M or an
affiliate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a twemtine (29) month period of absence will be substdufor such six
(6) month period if the leave is due to any medjcdéterminable physical or mental impairment ttert be expected to
result in death or can be expected to last fomgilmoous period of no less than six (6) monthsthaticauses the employee
to be unable to perform the duties of his or hesitimn of employment.

162



1.13. Specified Employee “Specified Employee” means a “specified empldyas defined in Treas. Reg.
section 1.409-1(i) or such other regulation or guitk issued under section 409A of the Code.

1.14. Supplemental Plan “Supplemental Plan” means the Supplemental BerBlan of Minnesota Mining and
Manufacturing Company, the predecessor to this Nalified Plan .

ARTICLE 2
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

2.1 Eligibility . Any employee of 3M or an affiliate who is a pegant in the ERIP shall be eligible to become a
Member in this Nonqualified Plan I if and only ife& Retirement Income which would otherwise haventesgned by or
payable to such employee under the provisionseoERIP is being limited by the application of theitations on benefits
under section 415 of the Code (as reflected ini@e& 8 of the ERIP, as the same may be amendedtfroe to time).

2.2, Participation. Participation in this Nonqualified Plan | shib# automatic by operation of Section 2.1 without
any further action by the Compensation Committee.

2.3. Forfeiture. A Member or Former Member shall cease to be e or Former Member and shall forfeit all
rights and benefits under this Nonqualified Plavhien the Compensation Committee determines, isoits discretion,
that such Member or Former Member is employed biing as a consultant for or is otherwise directtyindirectly
performing services for any person or entity engagethe (i) manufacture or sale of any productilsimto or in
competition with any product manufactured or sgldM or any of its subsidiaries, or (ii) manufagtur sale of special
machinery or equipment, or furnishing of enginegion technical services concerning such machineegaipment, used
in the manufacture or sale of any product simamitin competition with any product manufacturedgald by 3M or any
of its subsidiaries, without the written consenttef Compensation Committee. Before making a detation that a
Member or Former Member is covered by the provisiofithis Section 2.3, the Compensation Committedl give the
Member or Former Member notice of its intentiorirteoke this forfeiture provision and an opportunitydiscontinue
such employment or consulting relationship or tfevision of such services within a period of ninéd9) days following
the date of such notice.

ARTICLE 3
AMOUNT AND DISTRIBUTION OF BENEFITS
3.1. Additional Monthly Benefit. In addition to the amount of Retirement Inconaggble to a Member or Former
Member under the ERIP, this Nonqualified Plan llishay an additional monthly benefit to such MemloerFormer
Member equal to the amount by which (a) exceedsibére:
(a) is the monthly Retirement Incothat would have been payable to such Member ome&or
Member by the ERIP if that plan’s benefits were liratted in accordance with the provisions

of section 415 of the Code; and

(b) is the monthly Retirement Inemctually payable to such Member or Former Menoingier
the ERIP.

Such additional benefit shall be referred to heasithe “Nonqualified Plan | Benefit”. For avoidarof doubt, a Member

or Former Member who is not entitled to a vesteaelieunder the ERIP shall not be entitled to arontjualified Plan |
Benefit hereunder unless and until such benefieutite ERIP becomes vested.
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3.2. Time of Payment Payment of the Nonqualified Plan | Benefit déssal in Section 3.1 above will begin as of
the first of the calendar month (the “Annuity StagtDate”) coincident with or next following the vider's Separation
from Service; provided, however, that:

(a) Members whose job grades wéassified as CEO, L1, L2, L3 and T7 whose planmembie

for 2008 was more than $230,000 were permitted dkera one-time irrevocable election in
2008 to elect to receive their Nonqualified Plaehefit in the form of an annuity in lieu of a
lump sum. If a timely election was made in 2008yment of such Member’s Nonqualified
Plan | Benefit shall commence as of the AnnuityrtBtg Date coincident with or next
following the Member’s Retirement. If such MemiSeparates from Service prior to becoming
eligible for Retirement, his or her NonqualifiedaRll Benefit shall be paid in a single lump
sum as of the Annuity Starting Date coincident witmext following the Member’s Separation
from Service;

(b) One Member classified as L3 gankitional Retirement Leave who incurred a Seardtom
Service prior to 2008 was permitted to make a ame-trrevocable election in 2008 to receive
his Nonqualified Plan | Benefit in the form of amnauity in lieu of a lump sum. Such Member
did in fact timely elect, and accordingly, his Noatjfied Plan | Benefit shall commence upon
his scheduled date of termination given in Schetlattached hereto (which shall be treated as
a Retirement for purposes of Section 3.3(b));

(c) Former Members classified asahtl L2 who incurred a Separation from Servicergnd2009
were permitted to make a one-time irrevocable Eecin 2008 to elect to receive their
Nonqualified Plan | Benefit in the form of an anyin lieu of a lump sum. If a timely election
was made in 2008, payment of their NonqualifiechRIBenefit shall commence upon the first
day of the calendar month coincident with or neXofving the Former Member’s attainment
of age sixty five (65);

(d) All other Former Members whatunred a Separation from Service prior to 2009w&hd have
not commenced payment of their Nonqualified Pl&@ehefit prior to January 1, 2009 shall
receive payment of their Nonqualified Plan | BengfiJanuary, 2009 in a single lump sum.
(For this purpose, the Member’s Annuity Startingéshall be January 1, 2009.)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event tha Bhember is a Specified Employee, payment on adanfuBeparation
from Service shall begin as of the first day of $egenth month following the Member’s Separatiow #he first payment
shall include all payments delayed since the Ayn8tarting Date (accordingly, if payment is in foem of an annuity,
such annuity shall be calculated based on the An®sarting Date without regard to the delay).

3.3. Form of Payment

€) Lump Sum. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 8 Nonqualified Plan | Benefit

payable to each Member or Former Member undePtais shall be paid in a single lump sum,
determined by converting the monthly NonqualifiddrPl Benefit amount in Section 3.1 into
a present value lump sum using the applicablegstaate on 30-year U.S. Treasury securities
and RP2000 3M mortality. For purposes of this @awn, the “applicable interest rate” shall
mean the average of the daily rates on 30-year TUr&asury securities in effect during the
calendar quarter first preceding the calendar quéinat ends immediately prior to the Annuity
Starting Date.

(b) Optional Annuity Forms for Eligible Retirees. Members whose job grades were classified as
CEO, L1, L2, L3 and T7 whose planned income for@&s more than $230,000, and one
Member classified as job grade L3 on TSR (colletsiy“Annuity Eligible Members”), were
permitted to make a one-time irrevocable electio®d08 to elect to receive their Nonqualified
Plan | Benefit in the form of an annuity in lieu@lump sum. If a timely election was made
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(d)

(e)

in 2008, the rules under this Section 3.3(b) siyably. If an Eligible Member dies or Separates
from Service prior to becoming eligible for Retirem, his or her Nonqualified Plan | Benefit
shall be paid in a single lump sum pursuant toiSe@&.3(a).

(@ Presumed Form: Single Life Annuity. If an Annuity Eligible Member Retires and
is not legally married on his or her Annuity StagtiDate, then the normal form of
payment of his or her Nonqualified Plan | Beneffiaks be the Life Annuity form, and
his or her Nonqualified Plan | Benefit shall, uddg or she elects to waive the Life
Annuity form of payment and selects a Joint and $pause Beneficiary Survivor
Annuity form, be paid in the form of a Life Annuityfexcept as otherwise specifically
provided in the Plan, Nonqualified Plan | Benefilyments will be made monthly to
a Member or Former Member commencing on his orAmwuity Starting Date and
ending on the first day of the month in which hisher death occurs.

(i) Presumed Form: Joint and Survivor Life Annuity. If an Annuity Eligible Member
Retires and is legally married on his or her Ampu8tarting Date, then his or her
Nonqualified Plan | Benefit shall be paid in thenfoof a 50% Joint and Spouse
Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form, unless he or gtects to waive the 50% Joint and
Spouse Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form and sedegither the Life Annuity form,
an alternative Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Survionuity form available under
the ERIP {(e., 75% or 100%) or a Joint and Nonspouse BenejiGarrvivor Annuity
form available under the ERIP (50%, 75% or 100%).

Optional Annuity Forms for Certain Vested Former Members. Certain Former Members

classified as L1 or L2 who incurred a SeparatiemfiService prior to 2009 were permitted to
make a one-time irrevocable election in 2008 tatete receive their Nonqualified Plan |
Benefit in the Life Annuity form or the Joint angh@ise Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form
(50% or 75%). If a timely election was made in 20ien the Former Member’s Nonqualified
Plan | Benefit shall commence upon the first dathefcalendar month coincident with or next
following attainment of age sixty-five (65) in th@nuity form elected (in lieu of a single lump
sum).

Total Pension Value Guarantee To the extent that a Member’s or Former Membeesrement

Income is calculated pursuant to Article 4 of tHRIE (Portfolio 1), he or she shall be entitled
to a Total Pension Value Guarantee (as determinddruSection 4.9 of the ERIP, as the same
may be amended from time to time) if he or sherBgtand elects payment in the form of a
Life Annuity, Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Annuity Joint and Non-Spouse Beneficiary
Annuity under Section 3.3(b) or (c) of this Plan,leng as the Total Pension Value Guarantee
with respect to the Nonqualified Plan | Benefit lifies as a cash refund feature under which
payment is provided upon the death of the last iggumiLin an amount that is not greater than
the excess of the Total Pension Value with resfetihe Nonqualified Plan | Benefit at the
Annuity Starting Date over the total of paymentfobe the death of the last annuitant.

Subsidized 50% Joint and Survivor Annuity. If a Member or Former Member is entitled to

elect a subsidized 50% Joint and Survivor Annuitgter Section 3.10 of the ERIP (as the same
may be amended from time to time), he or she slisdl be entitled to a subsidized annuity
under this Plan if he or she elects the 50% Jaidt@pouse Beneficiary Annuity pursuant to
Section 3.3(b) or (c), provided that the annuattithe annuity benefit available to such
Member is not greater than the annual lifetime @grnenefit available under the Life Annuity
form, and provided that the annual survivor annlignefit is not greater than the annual
lifetime annuity benefit available to such Membedear the 50% Joint and Survivor Annuity
form.
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® Definitions. For purposes of this Article 3, the terms Lifendiity, Joint and Spouse Beneficiary
Survivor Annuity, Joint and Nonspouse Beneficianpv®/or Annuity and Total Pension Value

Guarantee shall have the same meanings as undeRtRe as the same may be amended from
time to time.

3.4. Pre-Commencement Death Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan te gontrary, if a Member or Former
Member dies after becoming vested under the ERtp1ir to his or her Annuity Starting Date, thdidaving rules shall
apply:

(a) To the extent that a Member'&ormer Member’s Retirement Income is calculatespant to
Article 3 of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if the Mdrar or Former Member is married, his or her
surviving spouse shall be entitled a “Preretirenfunvivor Annuity” determined in the same
manner as provided under Section 3.8 of the ERIRnzended from time to time, with respect
to the Member's or Former Member's Nonqualified rPlaBenefit. Such Preretirement
Survivor Annuity shall be converted into a presealue lump sum, using the interest and
mortality factors in Section 3.3(a), and paid atheffirst day of the calendar month following
the Member’s or Former Member’s death;

(b) To the extent that a Member'$ormer Member’s Retirement Income is calculatespant to
Article 3 of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if the Méxar or Former Member is not married, no
benefit shall be payable under this Plan, and

(c) To the extent that a Member$ormer Member’s Retirement Income is calculatespant to
Article 4 of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if suchémber or Former Member dies prior to his or
her Annuity Starting Date, his or her Beneficiatyals receive the Member's or Former
Member's Nonqualified Plan | Benefit attributabte Portfolio Il an immediate single lump
sum, determined by converting the monthly NongieiPlan | Benefit amount in Section 3.1
into a present value lump sum using the interedtraartality factors in Section 3.3(a). For
this purpose, the first day of the calendar monthaident with or next following the Member’s
death shall be treated as the Annuity Starting Date

3.5. Beneficiary.

(a) Joint Annuitant. An Annuity Eligible Member or Former Member diz¢ entitled to designate
a Beneficiary to receive the survivor income partaf the Joint and Non-Spouse Beneficiary
Annuity, if selected, on forms furnished by an@dilwith 3M.
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(b) Total Pension Value To the extent that a Member’s or Former MembBeEsrement Income is
calculated pursuant to Article 4 of the ERIP (Raditf 11), a Member or Former Member shall
be entitled to designate a Beneficiary to receayment of the remainder of the Total Pension
Value of the Nonqualified Plan | Benefit attribulialbo Portfolio Il, if any, on forms furnished
by and filed with 3M. Notwithstanding the foreggjrwith respect to any pre-commencement
death benefit payable under Section 3.4(c) abokie, Member's or Former Member’s
beneficiary designation under the ERIP shall apply all events, in the absence of a
designation or if such designation fails, the rd@gsautomatic beneficiaries under the ERIP
shall apply.

3.6. Incapacity. If a Member, Former Member or Beneficiary is end legal disability or, by reason of iliness or
mental or physical disability, is in the opiniontbe Plan Administrator unable to attend propesifis or her personal
financial matters, this Nonqualified Plan | may phg benefits payable hereunder in such of thevioilg ways as the
Plan Administrator shall direct:

€)) Directly to such Member, Formvgmber or Beneficiary;
(b) To the legal representativswth Member, Former Member or Beneficiary; or
(c) To some relative by blood orrrize, or friend, for the benefit of such Membesrmer Member

or Beneficiary.

Any payment made pursuant to this Section shalliroeomplete discharge of the obligation therefodemthis
Nonqualified Plan I.

ARTICLE 4
UNFUNDED PLAN

4.1. No Trust. The benefits payable under this NonqualifiechRlahall be paid solely from the general assets of
3M. 3M does not intend to create any trust in @mtion with this Nonqualified Plan I. Neither 3Mmany other employer
shall have any obligation to make contributionsetr aside funds in order to pay such benefits. s3dligation under
this Nonqualified Plan | shall be merely that ofiariunded and unsecured promise to pay money ifuthee.

4.2. No Contributions by Members. Members and Former Members shall not be requirqeermitted to make
contributions under this Nonqualified Plan I.

4.3. Unsecured Creditor Status No Member, Former Member or Beneficiary shalldhany right to receive any
payments from this Nonqualified Plan | except as/ufed in Article 3 above. Until such paymentsm@eeived, the rights
of each Member, Former Member and Beneficiary utitierNonqualified Plan | shall be no greater thanrights of an

unsecured general creditor of 3M.

ARTICLE 5
PLAN ADMINISTRATION

5.1. Powers and Duties of the Plan Administrator Subject to the powers of the Compensation Cotamit
specified herein, the Plan Administrator shall adster this Nonqualified Plan | in accordance withterms and shall
have all powers necessary to carry out the pravssimf such Plan. The Plan Administrator shall hdneepower and
discretion to interpret the provisions of this Naafiffied Plan |, and to determine all questionssiag in the

administration, interpretation and application ofls Plan. Any such determination by the Plan Adstiator shall be
conclusive and binding on all persons. The Plamiiistrator may adopt such policies and proceduresect any

defects, supply any information, or reconcile amgoinsistency in such manner and to such extene as Bhe deems
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necessary or desirable to carry out the purposethisfNonqualified Plan I; provided, however, ttaty policies,
procedures, determinations or interpretations df&llone in a nondiscriminatory manner based umpdéfiormn policies
consistently applied to all persons in similar ginstances.

5.2. Records The regularly kept records of 3M shall be cosisle and binding upon all persons with respect to a
Member’s or Former Member’s Hours of Service, GiediiService, Covered Compensation, Nonunion Perf&onings
(“Salaried Pension Earnings” prior to 2016) andadher matters contained therein relating to Memkzerd Former
Members.

5.3. Advisers. The Plan Administrator may appoint such legalrsel, accountants, actuaries and other persons as
he or she deems desirable to advise and assisfslmimistrator with the administration of this Narjified Plan I. The
Plan Administrator shall be entitled to rely corsiely upon, and shall be fully protected with resipto any action taken

by him or her in good faith in reliance upon, adyiae or information furnished by such advisers.

5.4, Payment of Expenses The Plan Administrator shall not be paid for pegformance of his or her duties under
this Nonqualified Plan I, but all expenses incurbgd3M or the Plan Administrator in connection witie administration
of such Plan shall be paid by 3M.

5.5. Indemnity of the Plan Administrator. 3M shall indemnify the Plan Administrator fromdaagainst any and
all claims, losses, damages and liabilities arifiog any act or failure to act in connection wiitle administration of this
Nonqualified Plan I, and shall defend and/or reirsbuthe Plan Administrator for all expenses (inzigdreasonable
attorney’s fees) incurred in connection with anggtiag or threatened claim or any action or proasgdrising therefrom,
unless and to the extent that any claim, loss, daml@bility or expense is judicially determinexihiave resulted from
the Plan Administrator’s bad faith or gross negiice

5.6. Service of Process In any legal proceeding involving this Nonquelif Plan I, the Secretary of 3M is
designated as the exclusive agent for receiptrofcgeof process directed to such Plan.

ARTICLE 6
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.1. Right to Amend. 3M'’s Board of Directors, the Compensation Conmeitor (only for amendments whose
projected costs do not exceed $25,000,000 in deydar year) any duly authorized officer of 3M naagend or modify,
in whole or in part, this Nonqualified Plan | atyatime without submitting the amendment or modifica to the
shareholders of 3M (except that, to the extentssamy to comply with applicable corporate or sa@giaw, or applicable
rules of the New York Stock Exchange, 3M’s BoardaEctors or the Compensation Committee shall hhgexclusive
authority to make amendments with respect to benefider this Plan). However, no amendment or fizadion shall
adversely affect the rights of any Member, Form@miber or Beneficiary acquired under the provisioihsuch Plan in
effect prior to such action.

6.2. Termination. While it expects to continue this NonqualifieldfPl indefinitely, 3M (acting through its Board
of Directors or the Compensation Committee) resethe right to terminate such Plan at any time fandiny reason.

Termination of this Nonqualified Plan | shall ndfegt 3M’s obligation to pay the benefits alreadyrreed under the
provisions of such Plan in effect prior to the teration.

ARTICLE 7
CHANGE IN CONTROL

7.1 Distribution Following Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control of, 3Ms
Nonqualified Plan | shall terminate and 3M shallniediately distribute the remaining accrued retineimgenefits
hereunder to the respective Members, Former MendetBeneficiaries in lump sum cash payments inuarsoequal
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to the present values of such accrued retirememtfite as of the date of the Change in Control.e Tompensation
Committee shall have the discretion to decide wdresome or all of the lump sum amounts will be gréctly to the
respective Members, Former Members and Benefisiapiewill be applied toward fully paid annuity ¢oacts issued by
an A+ rated insurance company, which provide ferghyment of all the amounts that would otherwieehbeen paid
after the Change in Control pursuant to this Notified Plan .

7.2. Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Article 7, a Change in @arif 3M shall be deemed
to have occurred if there is a “change in the osfmigrof 3M,” “change in effective control of 3M,hd/or a “change in
the ownership of a substantial portion of 3M’s ¢sse

as defined under Treasury Reg. section 1.409A8)(0f such other regulation or guidance issued useetion 409A of
the Code.

7.3. Determination of Present Value Except where otherwise expressly provided is Monqualified Plan 1, the
present value of each Member’s, each Former Meml@rd each Beneficiary’s remaining accrued retirdrbenefits

hereunder shall be determined in accordance with sictuarial assumptions as the Compensation Cdeanin its

discretion, may adopt for such purpose.

7.4. Fees and Expenses 3M shall pay to each Member, Former Member awededfciary the amount of all
reasonable legal and accounting fees and expems@sed by such Member, Former Member or Benefidiaiseeking
to obtain or enforce his or her rights under thicde 7, unless a lawsuit commenced by the MemBenner Member or
Beneficiary for such purposes is dismissed by thetas being spurious or frivolous. 3M shall gisy to each Member,
Former Member and Beneficiary the amount of alkogable tax and financial planning fees and expeimsirred by
such Member, Former Member or Beneficiary in cotinecwith the receipt by such Member, Former Member
Beneficiary of payments pursuant to this Article Such payment or reimbursement shall be madetaotlzan the end
of the recipient’s taxable year following the tabeabear in which the recipient incurs the relatgdemses. If a Member
is a Specified Employee and such payment or reisgment is made on account of the Member’'s Separfation Service,
payment or reimbursement shall not be made prithvadirst day of the seventh month following theiber’s Separation
from Service.

ARTICLE 8
MISCELLANEOUS

8.1. No Contract of Employment This Nonqualified Plan | shall not be deemedctmstitute a contract of
employment between 3M and any Member or Former Memblothing in this Plan shall be deemed to giwe ldember
or Former Member the right to be retained in thwise of 3M or an affiliate or to interfere withelright of 3M or an
affiliate to discipline or discharge any Memberr@mrmer Member at any time.

8.2. No Assignment No Member, Former Member or Beneficiary shalfehany right to commute, sell, assign,
transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otherefsgimber, transfer, hypothecate or convey thefbgnéany, payable
under this Nonqualified Plan I. All payments ahd tights to all payments of benefits under thisiglalified Plan | are
expressly declared to be nonassignable and nofgrabg. Neither this Nonqualified Plan | nor aogrtion of the
benefits payable hereunder shall be liable foisudject to, the debts, contracts, liabilities, ey@yaents or torts of any
Member, Former Member or Beneficiary. No portidnttee benefits payable under this Nonqualified Rlahall be
subject to attachment, garnishment or other legalgss by any creditor of any Member, Former Menghbd&eneficiary,
except to the extent that 3M determines that ithahor the creation, assignment or recognitioarof right to any benefit
payable under the Plan with respect to a MembEpaner Member pursuant to a domestic relationsraftleat domestic
relations order satisfies the requirements of alifiph domestic relations order within the meanirgf
section 414(p)(1)(A) of the Code.

8.3. Governing Law. The provisions of this Nonqualified Plan | shiadl interpreted and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Minnesota, excepghtbextent preempted by federal law.
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8.4. Separable Provisions In the event any provision of this Nonqualifiethn | is ruled or declared illegal or
unenforceable for any reason, such illegality agnfarceability shall not affect the remaining psigns hereof and this

Nonqualified Plan | shall be interpreted and ergdras if such illegal or unenforceable provisiod haver been included
herein.
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SCHEDULE |
Member: Phil Yates

Commencement Date: October 1, 2011 (scheduledration date)
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3M NONQUALIFIED PENSION PLAN I

(Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2016)
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3M NONQUALIFIED PENSION PLAN II

INTRODUCTION

Purpose: The purpose of this 3M Nonqualified Pension Plathbreinafter the “Nonqualified Plan 11”) is to ptide
retirement benefits to a select group of participamd their beneficiaries in the 3M Employee Retient Income Plan
(hereinafter the “ERIP”) which such ERIP is unalie provide solely because of the limitations immbsey
section 401(a)(17) of the Code and section 40(tf))eoCode. This Nonqualified Plan Il is not intexd to duplicate the
retirement benefits provided under the 3M NongiedifPension Plan I.

History: 3M originally adopted a nonqualified pension planiovember 7, 1978. This original plan was nanted t
Supplemental Pension Plan of Minnesota Mining arahiacturing Company (hereinafter the “SupplemeRtah”).
The Supplemental Plan was amended from time to &fte its adoption. Effective January 1, 1998 8upplemental
Plan was amended and restated as two separate plaes‘Nonqualified Pension Plan | of Minnesotaniig and
Manufacturing Company” and “Nonqualified PensioarPll of Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Companyrhe
provisions of the restatements superseded all paosions of the Supplemental Plan. Such restattrigave been
amended from time to time since their adoption.nél@lified Plan | provides supplemental benefit thre strictly in
excess of section 415 of the Code. Nonqualifieth Pl provided certain additional supplementalrestient benefits, but
effective January 1, 2009, such plan was amendedotade supplemental retirement benefits thatstrietly in excess
of limitations under section 401(a)(17) and 402(glhe Code.

Effective January 1, 2009, this Nonqualified Plamvas again amended and restated (the “2009 Rewtat®). The
provisions of the 2009 Restatement supersedediail yersions of the Plan. The purpose of the 2B@8tatement was
twofold: (1) to limit the supplemental retiremdygnefits hereunder to benefits that are strictiioess of the limitations
under section 401(a)(17) and section 402(g) ofQbde, and (2) to bring the Plan into compliancehwitction 409A of
the Code by “de-linking” the payment provisions enthis Plan from the payment provisions underBR¢P. From
October 3, 2004 (the date section 409A was add#tet@ode) through December 31, 2008, the Planmad to operate
with “linked” payment provisions in accordance wipecial transition rules issued by the IRS andult®& Department
of Treasury in connection with the implementatidnsection 409A of the Code. For avoidance of dptist 2009
Restatement was intended to apply both to deferoadpensation subject to section 409A of the Code, deferred
compensation credited under the Plan which relatiedr in part to services performed on or aftaruiay 1, 2005), as
well as deferred compensation credited under ttzan Rlhich relates entirely to services performedoonbefore
December 31, 2004 that is eligible to be “granddegd” from application of section 409A of the Coddowever, the
benefits payable to Members and Former Members thedt Beneficiaries) who commenced payment of rthei
Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit prior to January 1,020will be determined in accordance with the priovis of the Plan in
effect at the time of their benefit commencemermt &ill not be adjusted or recomputed to reflecs i any subsequent
amendment or restatement of this Nonqualified Rlan
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Effect: This Nonqualified Plan Il is hereby amended andated effective January 1, 2016. Similar to tl0®®
Restatement, the benefits payable to Members amddfdViembers (and their Beneficiaries) who commedmayment
of their Nonqualified Plan 1l Benefit prior to Jany 1, 2016 will be determined in accordance wlith provisions of the
Plan in effect at the time of their benefit commement and will not be adjusted or recomputed ttecethis or any
subsequent amendment or restatement of this NafigddPlan II.

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

Except where specifically defined in this NonguetifPlan II, the words and phrases which appethisrdocument shall
have the meanings set forth in the ERIP plan doottmExcept for definitions and other substantivevisions of this
Nonqualified Plan I, the terms and conditions bé tERIP shall govern the construction and admatistn of this
Nonqualified Plan Il

1.1. Annuity Starting Date. “Annuity Starting Date” means the benefit stagtidate as determined under
Section 3.2.

1.2. Code “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended.

1.3. Compensation Committee “Compensation Committee” means the Compens&ammittee of the Board of

Directors of 3M.

1.4. Discharge for Cause “Discharge for Cause” or “Discharged for Causegans the termination of an
employee’s employment for reasons of dishonestfhezmlement, conviction of a crime or a misdemeaneolving
moral turpitude, willful misconduct, or personalseonduct which is detrimental to 3M and its businas determined in
the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee.

1.5. ERIP. “ERIP” means the 3M Employee Retirement Incortaa P

1.6. Former Member. “Former Member” means a former employee wheteiving benefit payments under the
provisions of this Nonqualified Plan I, or a formemployee whose employment with 3M has termin&te@ny reason
other than Discharge for Cause and who is entitleal vested Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit under pievisions of this
Nonqualified Plan 1.

1.7. Member. “Member” means an employee who is a participanbhe ERIP and who is accruing an additional
Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit under the provisiorf¢tas Nonqualified Plan II.

1.8. Nonqualified Plan I. “Nonqualified Plan I” means the 3M Nonqualifieénsion Plan I.
1.9. Nonqualified Plan Il. “Nonqualified Plan 11" means the 3M Nonqualifi€gnsion Plan II.

1.10. Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit. “Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit” means the bengfiayable under this Plan
described in Section 3.1.

1.11. Plan Administrator. “Plan Administrator” means the 3M Vice Presidealobal Compensation and Benefits
or his or her successor.

1.12. Retirement; Retire. “Retirement” means a Separation from Servicerafte Member has both attained age
fifty five (55) and completed five (5) years of “€tited Service” (as defined under the ERIP), cg@a®ation from Service
after the Member has attained age sixty five(65).

1.13. Separation from Service “Separation from Service” means a severance dfleanber’'s employment
relationship with 3M and all affiliates for any sgm other than the Member’s death or Discharg€#arse.
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Whether a Separation from Service has occurreceisrohined under section 409A of the Code and Trga®g.
section 1.409A-1(h)i.,whether the facts and circumstances indicate timemployer and the employee reasonably
anticipated that no further services would be pernfxl after a certain date or that the level of bfitka services the
employee would perform after such date (whethemasmployee or independent contractor) would peemigyndecrease

to no more than 20% of the average level of boda §iervices performed (whether as an employee ardmpendent
contractor) over the immediately preceding thiiity{86) month period (or the full period of serc® the employer if
the employee has been providing services to thdogympless than 36 months)).

Separation from Service shall not be deemed torosbile the employee is on military leave, sickvear other bona
fide leave of absence if the period does not exeee(b) months or, if longer, so long as the ergptoretains a right to
reemployment with 3M or an affiliate under an apafile statute or by contract. For this purpodease is bona fide
only if, and so long as, there is a reasonable @atien that the employee will return to performvaézes for 3M or an

affiliate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a twemtine (29) month period of absence will be subsdiufor such 6 month
period if the leave is due to any medically deteabie physical or mental impairment that can besetqu to result in

death or can be expected to last for a continuetisg of no less than 6 months and that causesmtipoyee to be unable
to perform the duties of his or her position of éogment.

1.14. Specified Employee “Specified Employee” means a “specified empldyes defined in Treas. reg.
section 1.409-1(i) or such other regulation or guitk issued under section 409A of the Code.

1.15. Supplemental Plan “Supplemental Plan” means the Supplemental BerBlan of Minnesota Mining and
Manufacturing Company, the predecessor to this Nalified Plan II.

ARTICLE 2

ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

2.1 Eligibility . Any employee of 3M or an affiliate who is a R@pgant in the ERIP and whose Nonunion Pension
Earnings are limited (1) by application of sect#fii(a)(17) of the Code or (2) by reason of the eyg®’s Participation

in the 3M VIP Excess Plan (as described in Se@&idrbelow) shall be eligible to become a Membehis Nonqualified
Plan 11.

2.2. Participation. Participation in this Nonqualified Plan Il she# automatic by operation of Section 3.1 without
any further action by the Compensation Committee.

2.3. Forfeiture. A Member or Former Member shall cease to be enbér or Former Member and shall forfeit all
rights and benefits under this Nonqualified Plawhien the Compensation Committee determines, isois discretion,
that such Member or Former Member is employed biin@ as a consultant for or is otherwise directtyindirectly
performing services for any person or entity engagethe (i) manufacture or sale of any productilsimto or in
competition with any product manufactured or sgldM or any of its subsidiaries, or (ii) manufagtur sale of special
machinery or equipment, or furnishing of enginegion technical services concerning such machineegaipment, used
in the manufacture or sale of any product simamitin competition with any product manufacturedgald by 3M or any
of its subsidiaries, without the written consentlod Compensation Committee. Before making a detation that a
Member or Former Member is covered by the provisiofithis Section 2.3, the Compensation Committedl give the
Member or Former Member notice of its intentiorirteoke this forfeiture provision and an opportunitydiscontinue
such employment or consulting relationship or thevision of such services within a period of ninédQ) days following
the date of such notice.
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3.1.

ARTICLE 3

AMOUNT AND DISTRIBUTION OF BENEFITS

Additional Monthly Benefit. In addition to the amount of Retirement Incoraggble to a Member or Former

Member under the ERIP, this Nonqualified Plan lalspay an additional monthly benefit to such Membe Former
Member determined in accordance with this Sectidn 3Such additional benefit shall be referred émein as the

“Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit”.

The Nonqualified Plan 1l Benesfhall equal the amount by which (i) exceeds \ihere:

is the monthly Retirement Income thatulebhave been payable to such Member or
Former Member by the ERIP if Nonunion Pension Eagsiwere not limited (1) by
application of section 401(a)(17) of the Code orlk reason of the Member’s or
Former Member's participation in the 3M VIP ExceBtan (as described in
Section 3.1(b) below); and

is the monthly Retirement Income actyadhyable to such Member or Former Member
under the ERIP.

For purposes of this determimatithe following rules shall apply:

Planned total compensation (for Plan rédaeginning on or after January 1, 2008) or
wages and salaries (for Plan Years ending on aré&ecember 31, 2007) that is not
voluntarily deferred under a 3M nonqualified deéericompensation plan and which
is excluded from Nonunion Pension Earnings underBRIP solely by reason of
application of the section 401(a)(17) limit shal kreated as Nonunion Pension
Earnings.

Planned total compensation (for Plan Mebeginning on or after January 1, 2008) or
wages and salaries (for Plan Years ending on arréddecember 31, 2007) that is
voluntarily deferred under a 3M nonqualified deéeficompensation plan and which,
absent such deferral, would be excluded from NanwRiension Earnings by reason
of application of the section 401(a)(17) limit dhiaé treated as Nonunion Pension
Earnings.

Planned total compensation (for Plan ¥eheginning on or after January 1, 2009) that
does not exceed the section 401(a)(17) limit buckvis excluded from Nonunion
Pension Earnings under the ERIP because it isr@efender the 3M VIP Excess Plan
by reason of application of the limit on regulaoifircatch up) VIP deferrals under
section 402(g) of the Code ($18,000 for 2016, qssted from time to time for cost-
of-living increases) shall be treated as Nonuniendion Earnings.

The amount of the Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit $iwed reduced by the amount of the additional mgnileinefit payable
to the same person under the Nonqualified Plarthecextent necessary to avoid duplication of hiesxefor avoidance
of doubt, a Member or Former Member who is nottkatito a vested benefit under the ERIP shall eotititled to any
Nonqualified Plan 1l Benefit hereunder unless antil such benefit under the ERIP becomes vested.

3.2.

Time of Payment Payment of the Nonqualified Plan 1l Benefit désed in Section 3.1 above will begin as of

the first of the calendar month (the “Annuity StagtDate”) coincident with or next following the vhdoer’'s Separation
from Service; provided, however, that:

Members whose job grades wassified as CEO, L1, L2, L3 and T7 whose plannedrime for
2008 was more than $230,000 were permitted to raakee-time irrevocable election in 2008
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(b)

()

(d)

to elect to receive their Nonqualified Plan Il Bénim the form of an annuity in lieu of a lump
sum. If a timely election was made in 2008, paynoérsuch Member’s Nonqualified Plan Il
Benefit shall commence as of the Annuity Startirgebcoincident with or next following the
Member’s Retirement. If such Member Separates fe@mvice prior to becoming eligible for
Retirement, his or her Nonqualified Plan Il Bensfitill be paid in a single lump sum as of the
Annuity Starting Date coincident with or next folllng the Member's Separation from
Service;

One Member classified as L3 garEitional Retirement Leave who incurred a Sefmardtom

Service prior to 2008 was permitted to make a @me-trrevocable election in 2008 to receive
his Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit in the form of annuity in lieu of a lump sum. Such Member
did in fact timely elect, and accordingly, his Noadjfied Plan Il Benefit shall commence upon
his scheduled date of termination given in Schetatéached hereto (which shall be treated as
a Retirement for purposes of Section 3.3(b));

Former Members classified asalntl L2 who incurred a Separation from Service pio2009

were permitted to make a one-time irrevocable Eecin 2008 to elect to receive their
Nongqualified Plan Il Benefit in the form of an ariiyuin lieu of a lump sum. If a timely election
was made in 2008, payment of their NonqualifiechRI&Benefit shall commence upon the first
day of the calendar month coincident with or neXpfving the Former Member’s attainment
of age sixty five (65);

All other Former Members whoun®d a Separation from Service prior to 2009 ahd have

not commenced payment of their Nonqualified PlaBéhefit prior to January 1, 2009 shall
receive payment of their Nonqualified Plan Il Benaf January, 2009 in a single lump sum.
(For this purpose, the Member’s Annuity Startingéshall be January 1, 2009.)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that hember is a Specified Employee, payment on adanfuBeparation
from Service shall begin as of the first day of $egenth month following the Member’s Separatiow the first payment
shall include all payments delayed since the Ayng@tarting Date (accordingly, if payment is in foem of an annuity,
such annuity shall be calculated based on the Ayn®iarting Date without regard to the delay).

3.3. Form of Payment

(@)

(b)

Lump Sum. Except as otherwise provided in this Section th8 Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit

payable to each Member or Former Member undePtais shall be paid in a single lump sum,
determined by converting the monthly NonqualifigdrPll Benefit amount in Section 3.1 into
a present value lump sum using the applicableésteate on 30-year U.S. Treasury securities
and RP2000 3M mortality. For purposes of this @awn, the “applicable interest rate” shall
mean the average of the daily rates on 30-year TUr&asury securities in effect during the
calendar quarter first preceding the calendar quénat ends immediately prior to the Annuity
Starting Date.

Optional Annuity Forms for Eligible Retirees. Members whose job grades were classified as

CEO, L1, L2, L3 and T7 whose planned income for@@@&s more than $230,000, and one
Member classified as job grade L3 on TSR (colletsiy“Annuity Eligible Members”), were
permitted to make a one-time irrevocable electio®d08 to elect to receive their Nonqualified
Plan 1l Benefit in the form of an annuity in liefi@lump sum. If a timely election was made
in 2008, the rules under this Section 3.3(b) siyablly. If an Eligible Member dies or Separates
from Service prior to becoming eligible for Retiremt, his or her Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit
shall be paid in a single lump sum pursuant toiSe&.3(a).

(0 Presumed Form: Single Life Annuity. If an Annuity Eligible Member Retires and is
not legally married on his or her Annuity Startibgite, then the normal form of
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payment of his or her Nonqualified Plan Il Bensfiall be the Life Annuity form, and
his or her Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit shall, usdehe or she elects to waive the Life
Annuity form of payment and selects a Joint and $pouse Beneficiary Survivor
Annuity form, be paid in the form of a Life Annuityfexcept as otherwise specifically
provided in the Plan, Nonqualified Plan Il Bengiityments will be made monthly to
a Member or Former Member commencing on his orAmewity Starting Date and
ending on the first day of the month in which hier death occurs.

(i) Presumed Form: Joint and Survivor Life Annuity. If an Annuity Eligible Member
Retires and is legally married on his or her Amp8tarting Date, then his or her
Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit shall be paid in therh of a 50% Joint and Spouse
Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form, unless he or gtects to waive the 50% Joint and
Spouse Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form and sedesither the Life Annuity form,
an alternative Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Survionuity form available under
the ERIP (e.,75% or 100%) or a Joint and Nonspouse Beneficiaryi$or Annuity
form available under the ERIP (50%, 75% or 100%).

(c) Optional Annuity Forms for Certain Vested Former Members. Certain Former Members
classified as L1 or L2 who incurred a SeparatiamfrService prior to 2009 (collectively,
“Annuity Eligible Former Members”) were permitted make a one-time irrevocable election
in 2008 to elect to receive their Nonqualified PlaBenefit in the Life Annuity form or the
Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Survivor Annuity fo®% or 75%). If a timely election was
made in 2008, then the Former Member’'s NonqualiRéah Il Benefit shall commence upon
the first day of the calendar month coincident vathnext following attainment of age sixty
five (65) in the annuity form elected (in lieu ofimgle lump sum).

(d) Total Pension Value Guarantee To the extent that a Member’'s or Former MembResirement
Income is calculated pursuant to Article 4 of tHRIE (Portfolio 1), he or she shall be entitled
to a Total Pension Value Guarantee (as determinddruSection 4.9 of the ERIP, as the same
may be amended from time to time) if he or sherBgtand elects payment in the form of a
Life Annuity, Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Annuiy Joint and Non-Spouse Beneficiary
Annuity under Section 3.3(b) or (c) of this Plan,leng as the Total Pension Value Guarantee
with respect to the Nonqualified Plan Il Benefiatifies as a cash refund feature under which
payment is provided upon the death of the last igauminin an amount that is not greater than
the excess of the Total Pension Value with resfetite Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit at the
Annuity Starting Date over the total of paymentfobe the death of the last annuitant.

(e) Subsidized 50% Joint and Survivor Annuity. If a Member or Former Member is entitled to
elect a subsidized 50% Joint and Survivor Annuitgter Section 3.10 of the ERIP (as the same
may be amended from time to time), he or she slisdl be entitled to a subsidized annuity
under this Plan if he or she elects the 50% Jaidt@pouse Beneficiary Annuity pursuant to
Section 3.3(b) or (c), provided that the annuadtithe annuity benefit available to such
Member is not greater than the annual lifetime #&graenefit available under the Life Annuity
form, and provided that the annual survivor annlignefit is not greater than the annual
lifetime annuity benefit available to such Membedar the 50% Joint and Survivor Annuity
form.

® Definitions. For purposes of this Article 3, the terms Lifendliity, Joint and Spouse Beneficiary
Survivor Annuity, Joint and Nonspouse Beneficianpvd/or Annuity and Total Pension Value
Guarantee shall have the same meanings as undeRtRe as the same may be amended from
time to time.
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3.4. Pre-Commencement Death Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan te ttontrary, if a Member or Former
Member dies after becoming vested under the ERtp1ir to his or her Annuity Starting Date, thdidaving rules shall

apply:
(a)

(b)

()

3.5. Beneficiary.

(@)

(b)

To the extent that a Member'ssormer Member’s Retirement Income is calculatesyant to
Article 3 of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if the Mdyar or Former Member is married, his or her
surviving spouse shall be entitled a “Preretirenf&umvivor Annuity” determined in the same
manner as provided under Section 3.8 of the ERIRnz&ended from time to time, with respect
to the Member's or Former Member's Nonqualified Pl Benefit. Such Preretirement
Survivor Annuity shall be converted into a presealue lump sum, using the interest and
mortality factors in Section 3.3(a), and paid atheffirst day of the calendar month following
the Member’'s or Former Member’s death;

To the extent that a Member's-ormer Member’s Retirement Income is calculatecyant to
Article 3 of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if the Mdyar or Former Member is not married, no
benefit shall be payable under this Plan, and

To the extent that a Member'ssormer Member’s Retirement Income is calculatecspant to
Article 4 of the ERIP (Portfolio II), and if suchémber or Former Member dies prior to his or
her Annuity Starting Date, his or her Beneficiatyals receive the Member's or Former
Member's Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit attributatite Portfolio Il an immediate single lump
sum, determined by converting the monthly NongieiPlan Il Benefit amount in Section 3.1
into a present value lump sum using the interedtraartality factors in Section 3.3(a). For
this purpose, the first day of the calendar moothaident with or next following the Member’s
death shall be treated as the Annuity Starting Date

Joint Annuitant. An Annuity Eligible Member or Former Member dhz¢ entitled to designate

a Beneficiary to receive the survivor income partaf the Joint and Non-Spouse Beneficiary
Annuity, if selected, on forms furnished by an@dilwith 3M.

Total Pension Value To the extent that a Member’s or Former MembBesrement Income is

calculated pursuant to Article 4 of the ERIP (Raditf I1), a Member or Former Member shall
be entitled to designate a Beneficiary to receayment of the remainder of the Total Pension
Value of the Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit attribbta to Portfolio II, if any, on forms furnished
by and filed with 3M. Notwithstanding the foreggirwith respect to any pre-commencement
death benefit payable under Section 3.4(c) aboke, Member's or Former Member’s
beneficiary designation under the ERIP shall apply all events, in the absence of a
designation or if such designation fails, the rd@gsautomatic beneficiaries under the ERIP
shall apply.

3.6. Incapacity. If a Member, Former Member or Beneficiary is end legal disability or, by reason of illness or
mental or physical disability, is in the opiniontbe Plan Administrator unable to attend propesifis or her personal
financial matters, this Nonqualified Plan Il mayyphe benefits payable hereunder in such of tHev@hg ways as the
Plan Administrator shall direct:

(@)
(b)
(c)

Directly to such Member, Formwember or Beneficiary;
To the legal representativewflsMember, Former Member or Beneficiary; or

To some relative by blood or rige, or friend, for the benefit of such Membestrier Member
or Beneficiary.
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Any payment made pursuant to this Section shalliroeomplete discharge of the obligation therefodemthis
Nonqualified Plan Il

ARTICLE 4

UNFUNDED PLAN

4.1. No Trust. The benefits payable urter Nonqualified Plan Il shall be paid solely frahe general assets of
3M. 3M does not intend to create any trust in @mtion with this Nonqualified Plan Il. Neither 3Nbr any other
employer shall have any obligation to make contidns or set aside funds in order to pay such lisne3M’s obligation
under this Nonqualified Plan Il shall be merelyttbhan unfunded and unsecured promise to pay monge future.

4.2. No Contributions by Members. Members and Former Members shall not be requirgoermitted to make
contributions under this Nonqualified Plan II.

4.3. Unsecured Creditor Status No Member, Former Member or Beneficiary shallhany right to receive any
payments from this Nonqualified Plan Il except asvjaed in Article 3 above. Until such payments agceived, the
rights of each Member, Former Member and Benefiaimder this Nonqualified Plan 1l shall be no gegdhan the rights
of an unsecured general creditor of 3M.

ARTICLE 5

PLAN ADMINISTRATION

5.1. Powers and Duties of the Plan Administrator Subject to the powers of the Compensation Cotemgpecified
herein, the Plan Administrator shall administes thionqualified Plan Il in accordance with its teramgl shall have all
powers necessary to carry out the provisions df §lan. The Plan Administrator shall have the poavel discretion to
interpret the provisions of this Nonqualified Planand to determine all questions arising in thdmaistration,
interpretation and application of such Plan. Anghsdetermination by the Plan Administrator shalldonclusive and
binding on all persons. The Plan Administrator radgpt such policies and procedures, correct afgctde supply any
information, or reconcile any inconsistency in sacénner and to such extent as he or she deemssaeces desirable
to carry out the purposes of this Nonqualified Rlaprovided, however, that any policies, procesjrdeterminations or
interpretations shall be done in a nondiscriminatanner based upon uniform policies consistempliad to all persons
in similar circumstances.

5.2. Claims Procedure Any Participant or Beneficiary who disagreedweihy decision regarding his or her benefits
under this Plan shall submit a written requestréview to the Plan Administrator. The Plan Admirasor shall respond
in writing to such a request within sixty (60) dayshis or her receipt of the request. The Plamikdstrator may,
however, extend the reply period for an additicaietly (60) days for reasonable cause. The PlaniAidtrator’s response
shall be written in a manner calculated to be ustded by the Participant or Beneficiary, and sketlforth:

€) the specific reason or reasongfiiy denial of benefits;
(b) specific references to the psmn or provisions of this Plan on which the dersddased;
(c) a description of any additiomdbrmation or material necessary for the Partiotga Beneficiary

to improve his or her claim, and an explanationnbiich such information or material is
necessary; and

(d) an explanation of the Plan’drareview procedure and other appropriate infoionaas to the

steps to be taken if the Participant or Beneficiaighes to appeal the Plan Administrator’s
decision.
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If the Participant or Beneficiary disagrees with tlecision of the Plan Administrator, he or shdl $itlma written appeal
with the Compensation Committee within one-hundrednty (120) days after receiving the Plan Admiaiir's
response. The Compensation Committee shall resipondting to such an appeal within ninety (90ydaf its receipt
of the appeal. The Compensation Committee maygehiewy extend the reply period for an additionaktyr(90) days for
reasonable cause. The Compensation Committegienss shall be written in a manner calculated tariskerstood by
the Participant or Beneficiary, and shall bothfeeh the specific reasons for its decision anérré& the specific provision
or provisions of the Plan on which its decisiobased.

5.3. Records The regularly kept records of 3M shall be cosidle and binding upon all persons with respect to a
Member’s or Former Member’s Hours of Service, QiediiService, Covered Compensation, Nonunion Perf&onings
(“Salaried Pension Earnings” prior to 2016) andadher matters contained therein relating to Memlard Former
Members.

5.4, Advisers. The Plan Administrator may appoint such legalnsel, accountants, actuaries and other persons as
he or she deems desirable to advise and assishsimcimistrator with the administration of this Naralified Plan Il. The

Plan Administrator shall be entitled to rely corsiely upon, and shall be fully protected with resipto any action taken

by him or her in good faith in reliance upon, adyiae or information furnished by such advisers.

5.5. Payment of Expenses The Plan Administrator shall not be paid for gegformance of his or her duties under
this Nonqualified Plan Il, but all expenses incdrby 3M or the Plan Administrator in connectiontwihe administration
of such Plan shall be paid by 3M.

5.6. Indemnity of the Plan Administrator. 3M shall indemnify the Plan Administrator fromchagainst any and
all claims, losses, damages and liabilities arifiog any act or failure to act in connection wtitle administration of this
Nonqualified Plan Il, and shall defend and/or raimge the Plan Administrator for all expenses (idiig reasonable
attorney’s fees) incurred in connection with anggliag or threatened claim or any action or proasgdrising therefrom,
unless and to the extent that any claim, loss, damlébility or expense is judicially determinexihiave resulted from
the Plan Administrator’s bad faith or gross negiice

5.7. Service of Process In any legal proceeding involving this Nonqualif Plan Il, the Secretary of 3M is
designated as the exclusive agent for receiptrofcgeof process directed to such Plan.

ARTICLE 6

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.1. Right to Amend. 3M'’s Board of Directors, the Compensation Conteeitor (only for amendments whose
projected costs do not exceed $25,000,000 in deydar year) any duly authorized officer of 3M nzayend or modify,
in whole or in part, this Nonqualified Plan Il atyatime without submitting the amendment or modifions to the
shareholders of 3M (except that, to the extentssamy to comply with applicable corporate or sa@giaw, or applicable
rules of the New York Stock Exchange, 3M’s BoardaEctors or the Compensation Committee shall hhgexclusive
authority to make amendments with respect to benefider this Plan). However, no amendment or fizadion shall
adversely affect the rights of any Member, Formemiber or Beneficiary acquired under the provisiohsuch Plan in
effect prior to such action.

6.2. Termination. While it expects to continue this Nonqualifielh#1l indefinitely, 3M (acting through its Board
of Directors or the Compensation Committee) resethe right to terminate such Plan at any time fandiny reason.
Termination of this Nonqualified Plan Il shall naffect 3M’s obligation to pay the benefits alreaglrned under the
provisions of such Plan in effect prior to the tavation.
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ARTICLE 7

CHANGE IN CONTROL

7.1 Distribution Following Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control of, 3Ms

Nonqualified Plan Il shall terminate and 3M shafinediately distribute the remaining accrued reteetmbenefits
hereunder to the respective Members, Former MenswatBeneficiaries in lump sum cash payments inuatsoequal
to the present values of such accrued retirememeflte as of the date of the Change in Control.e Tompensation
Committee shall have the discretion to decide wdreslome or all of the lump sum amounts will be piiréctly to the
respective Members, Former Members and Benefisiaoiewill be applied toward fully paid annuity doacts issued by
an A+ rated insurance company, which provide ferghyment of all the amounts that would otherwieehbeen paid
after the Change in Control pursuant to this Notified Plan II.

7.2. Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Article 7, a Change in @arif 3M shall be deemed to
have occurred if there is a “change in the ownershi3M,” “change in effective control of 3M,” aral/a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of 3M’s assets"defined under Treasury reg. section 1.409A8()¢ such other
regulation or guidance issued under section 409%h®Code.

7.3. Determination of Present Value Except where otherwise expressly provided is Monqualified Plan II, the
present value of each Member’s, each Former Memtzard each Beneficiary’'s remaining accrued retirérbenefits
hereunder shall be determined in accordance with setuarial assumptions as the Compensation Cdeanin its
discretion, may adopt for such purpose.

7.4. Fees and Expenses 3M shall pay to each Member, Former Member awdefciary the amount of all
reasonable legal and accounting fees and expems@sed by such Member, Former Member or Benefidiaiseeking
to obtain or enforce his or her rights under thicde 7, unless a lawsuit commenced by the Menteemner Member or
Beneficiary for such purposes is dismissed by thetas being spurious or frivolous. 3M shall gisy to each Member,
Former Member and Beneficiary the amount of alkogable tax and financial planning fees and expgemsirred by
such Member, Former Member or Beneficiary in cotioacwith the receipt by such Member, Former Member
Beneficiary of payments pursuant to this Article Such payment or reimbursement shall be madetaotlzan the end
of the recipient’s taxable year following the tababear in which the recipient incurs the relatgdemses. If a Member
is a Specified Employee and such payment or reisgment is made on account of the Member’s Separtatim Service,
payment or reimbursement shall not be made prithedirst day of the seventh month following thefber’s Separation
from Service.

ARTICLE 8

MISCELLANEOUS

8.1. No Contract of Employment This Nonqualified Plan Il shall not be deemedctmstitute a contract of
employment between 3M and any Member or Former Memblothing in this Plan shall be deemed to giwe ldember
or Former Member the right to be retained in thwise of 3M or an affiliate or to interfere withetlright of 3M or an
affiliate to discipline or discharge any Memberr@mrmer Member at any time.

8.2. No Assignment No Member, Former Member or Beneficiary shaléhany right to commute, sell, assign,
transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otheretsgimber, transfer, hypothecate or convey thefbgnéany, payable
under this Nonqualified Plan Il. All payments athe rights to all payments of benefits under themtjualified Plan Il
are expressly declared to be nonassignable andamsferable. Neither this Nonqualified Plan Il mory portion of the
benefits payable hereunder shall be liable foisudject to, the debts, contracts, liabilities, ey@yaents or torts of any
Member, Former Member or Beneficiary. No portidrttee benefits payable under this Nonqualified Rlashall be
subject to attachment, garnishment or other legalgss by any creditor of any Member, Former Menghbd&eneficiary,
except to the extent that 3M determines that ithahor the creation, assignment or recognitioarof right to any benefit
payable under the Plan with respect to a MembEpaner Member pursuant to a domestic relationsraftleat domestic
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relations order satisfies the requirements of alifiph domestic relations order within the meaniragf
section 414(p)(1)(A) of the Code.

8.3. Governing Law. The provisions of this Nonqualified Plan Il dhiaé¢ interpreted and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Minnesota, exceghtmextent preempted by federal law.

8.4. Separable Provisions In the event any provision of this Nonqualifietéan Il is ruled or declared illegal or
unenforceable for any reason, such illegality agnfarceability shall not affect the remaining pgiwns hereof and this
Nonqualified Plan Il shall be interpreted and eoéat as if such illegal or unenforceable provisiad hever been included
herein.
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SCHEDULE |
Member: Phil Yates

Commencement Date: October 1, 2011 (scheduledration date)
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Exhibit 10.31

3M NONQUALIFIED PENSION PLAN Il

(Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2016)
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3M NONQUALIFIED PENSION PLAN Il

INTRODUCTION

Purpose: The purpose of this Nonqualified Pension PlanHérginafter the “Nonqualified Plan 111”) is to priole deferred
compensation in the form of additional retiremeandfits to a select group of participants and themeficiaries in the
3M Employee Retirement Income Plan (hereinafter|fZRand certain other employees. This Nonqualifidan Il is
intended to supplement the ERIP originally adogig@BM in 1931 and as amended from time to timeehter. This
Nonqualified Plan Il is not intended to duplicdte retirement benefits provided under the 3M Natifjied Pension
Plans | and Il, both of which provide retiremennétits that are strictly in excess of limitationsder section 401(a)(17),
402(g) and 415 of the Code.

History: 3M originally adopted a nonqualified pension planNdovember 7, 1978. This original plan was nanfed t
Supplemental Pension Plan of Minnesota Mining arahidacturing Company (hereinafter the “SupplemeRtah”).
The Supplemental Plan was amended from time to &ftez its adoption. Effective January 1, 1998 Supplemental
Plan was amended and restated as two separate plaes‘Nonqualified Pension Plan | of Minnesotaniig and
Manufacturing Company” and “Nonqualified PensioarPll of Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Companyrhe
provisions of the restatements superseded all paosions of the Supplemental Plan. Such restaterigave been
amended from time to time since their adoption.nélalified Plan | provides supplemental benefitg #re strictly in
excess of section 415 of the Code. Nonqualifieth Pl provided certain additional supplementalrestient benefits, but
effective January 1, 2009, such plan has been asdetwdprovide supplemental retirement benefits #natstrictly in
excess of limitations under section 401(a)(17) 4b2{g) of the Code.

Effective January 1, 2009, this Nonqualified PlHmlas established to provide retirement benefitt supplement the
ERIP but which are not strictly in excess of lirtiias under section 401(a)(17), 402(g) and 41%efGode. Any and
all deferred compensation obligations accrued ubNagqualified Plan Il prior to January 1, 2009 whigere not strictly
in excess of limitations under sections 401(a)(#0R(g) and 415 of the Code became part of andrgedeunder the
terms of this Nonqualified Plan Ill. The purpogéh® creation of this Plan was twofold: (1) tepide for supplemental
retirement benefits hereunder that are not strintgxcess of the limitations under section 401(&)&nd section 402(g) of
the Code, and (2) to bring the benefits transfeteethis Plan into compliance with section 409Atleé Code by “de-
linking” the payment provisions under this Planfrthe payment provisions under the ERIP. From mt@, 2004 (the
date section 409A was added to the Code) througtember 31, 2008, the prior Nonqualified Plan Il @ped with
“linked” payment provisions in accordance with spetransition rules issued by the IRS and the UD8partment of
Treasury in connection with the implementation @ft®n 409A of the Code. For avoidance of doubis Nonqualified
Plan 11l was intended to apply both to deferred pensation subject to section 409A of the Code.,feferred
compensation credited under the Plan which relatiedr in part to services performed on or afteruiay 1, 2005), as
well as deferred compensation credited under ttaa RIhich relates entirely to services performedoonbefore
December 31, 2004 that is eligible to be “grandfegd” from application of section 409A of the Coddowever, the
benefits payable to Members and Former Members the@ Beneficiaries) who commenced payment of rthei
Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit under Nonqualified RIH prior to January 1, 2009 will be determinedaiccordance with
the provisions of that Plan in effect at the tinieh&ir benefit commencement and will not be adjdstr recomputed to
reflect any subsequent amendment or restatememioofjualified Plan Il or the creation or amendmeftthis
Nongqualified Plan Ill.

Effect: This Nonqualified Plan 11l is hereby amended arstated effective January 1, 2016. However, threefits
payable to Members and Former Members (and theiefigaries) who commenced payment of their Nonidjedl
Plan IIl Benefit prior to January 1, 2016 will betdrmined in accordance with the provisions ofRken in effect at the
time of their benefit commencement and will notalogusted or recomputed to reflect this or any syibset amendment
or restatement of this Nonqualified Plan Ill.
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ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

Except where specifically defined in this NonqguetifPlan 11, the words and phrases which appetisnddocument shall
have the meanings set forth in the ERIP plan doottmExcept for definitions and other substantivevgsions of this
Nonqualified Plan Ill, the terms and conditionstb&é ERIP shall govern the construction and admmatisin of this
Nonqualified Plan Ill.

1.1. Annuity Starting Date. “Annuity Starting Date” means the benefit stagtdate as determined under Section 3.2.
1.2. Code “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188&mended.

1.3. Compensation Committee “Compensation Committee” means the Compens&mmmittee of the Board of
Directors of 3M.

1.4. Discharge for Cause “Discharge for Cause” or “Discharged for Cause&ans the termination of an employee’s
employment for reasons of dishonesty, embezzlermsentjiction of a crime or a misdemeanor involvingrat turpitude,
willful misconduct, or personal misconduct whicldetrimental to 3M and its business, as determimétk sole discretion
of the Compensation Committee.

1.5. ERIP. “ERIP” means the 3M Employee Retirement IncoranP

1.6. Former Member. “Former Member” means a former employee wheeteiving benefit payments under the
provisions of this Nonqualified Plan Ill, or a foememployee whose employment with 3M has terminéiedny reason
other than Discharge for Cause and who is entitieml vested Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit under grevisions of this
Nonqualified Plan Ill.

1.7. Member. “Member” means an employee who is a participarthe ERIP and who is accruing an additional
Nongqualified Plan 11l Benefit under the provisiooisthis Nonqualified Plan IIl.

1.8. Nonqualified Plan I. “Nonqualified Plan I" means the 3M Nonqualifieénsion Plan I.
1.9. Nonqualified Plan Il. “Nonqualified Plan II” means the 3M Nonqualifi€&nsion Plan 1.
1.10. Nonqualified Plan Ill . “Nonqualified Plan 111" means the 3M Nonqualidfi¢®ension Plan III.

1.11. Nonqualified Plan lll Benefit. “Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit” means the bergfiayable under this Plan
described in Section 3.1.

1.12.  Plan Administrator. “Plan Administrator” means the 3M Vice Presiddalobal Compensation and Benefits
or his or her successor.

1.13. Retirement; Retire. “Retirement” means a Separation from Servicerdfie Member has both attained age
fifty-five (55) and completed five (5) years of “€tited Service” (as defined under the ERIP), oz@a$ation from Service
after the Member has attained age sixty-five(65).

1.14. Separation from Service “Separation from Service” means a severancevigmber’s employment relationship
with 3M and all affiliates for any reason otherrtthe Member’s death or Discharge for Cause.

Whether a Separation from Service has occurreceisrohined under section 409A of the Code and Trga®g.

section 1.409A-1(h)i., whether the facts and circumstances indicate timemployer and the employee reasonably
anticipated that no further services would be peném after a certain date or that the level of bfida services the
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employee would perform after such date (whethemasmployee or independent contractor) would peemi@ndecrease
to no more than twenty percent (20%) of the avetage! of bona fide services performed (whethemrmsmployee or an
independent contractor) over the immediately prixgthirty-six (36) month period (or the full pedmf services to the
employer if the employee has been providing sesvioghe employer less than thirty-six (36) monjths)

Separation from Service shall not be deemed toroebile the employee is on military leave, sickMear other bona
fide leave of absence if the period does not exsee(b) months or, if longer, so long as the ergpkretains a right to
reemployment with 3M or an affiliate under an apalile statute or by contract. For this purpodease is bona fide
only if, and so long as, there is a reasonable aagien that the employee will return to perfornnvézes for 3M or an
affiliate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a twemtine (29) month period of absence will be substdufor such six
(6) month period if the leave is due to any medijcdéterminable physical or mental impairment ttext be expected to
result in death or can be expected to last fordilcoous period of no less than six (6) monthstaaticauses the employee
to be unable to perform the duties of his or hesitim of employment.

1.15. Specified Employee “Specified Employee” means a “specified empldyes defined in Treas. Reg.
section 1.409-1(i) or such other regulation or guitk issued under section 409A of the Code.

1.16. Supplemental Plan “Supplemental Plan” means the Supplemental BanBian of Minnesota Mining and
Manufacturing Company, the predecessor to NondedlPlans | and II.

ARTICLE 2

ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

2.1.  Eligibility . Any employee of 3M or an affiliate who is a Rapant in the ERIP, and who is within a class of
employees described in the Appendix A attachedito glan document, shall be eligible to become amldler in this
Nonqualified Plan Ill.

2.2.  Participation. Employees who first satisfy the conditions ott&m 2.1 above shall become Members of and
begin to participate in this Nonqualified Plandlitomatically without further action by the Compatieen Committee.

2.3. Forfeiture. A Member or Former Member shall cease to be enbe or Former Member and shall forfeit all
rights and benefits under this Nonqualified Pldmihen the Compensation Committee determinessiadte discretion,
that such Member or Former Member is employed biin@ as a consultant for or is otherwise directtyindirectly
performing services for any person or entity engagethe (i) manufacture or sale of any productilsimto or in
competition with any product manufactured or soldM or any of its subsidiaries, or (ii) manufaetur sale of special
machinery or equipment, or furnishing of enginegion technical services concerning such machineegaipment, used
in the manufacture or sale of any product simamitin competition with any product manufacturedald by 3M or any
of its subsidiaries, without the written consentled Compensation Committee. Before making a detation that a
Member or Former Member is covered by the provisiofithis Section 2.3, the Compensation Committedl give the
Member or Former Member notice of its intentionrteoke this forfeiture provision and an opportunitydiscontinue
such employment or consulting relationship or ttavision of such services within a period of nin€d9) days following
the date of such notice.

ARTICLE 3

AMOUNT AND DISTRIBUTION OF BENEFITS

3.1. Additional Monthly Benefit. In addition to the amount of Retirement Inconaggble to a Member or Former
Member under the ERIP, this Nonqualified Plan Hals pay an additional monthly benefit to such Me@mbr Former
Member equal to the amount by which (a) exceedsibére:
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€) is the monthly Retirement Income that ldchave been payable to such Member or Former Meimpe
the ERIP if that plan paid the benefits or basedatmount of its benefits on the factors describetie
Appendix A attached to this plan document; and

(b) is the monthly Retirement Income actuplyyable to such Member or Former Member undeEREP.

Such additional benefit shall be referred to heasithe “Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit”. The amdwf the Nonqualified

Plan Il Benefit payable to a person under this &lailified Plan 11l shall be reduced by the amouithe additional

monthly benefit payable to the same person undemMibnqualified Plan | and the Nonqualified PlandIthe extent
necessary to avoid duplication of benefits. Faridance of doubt, a Member or Former Member whaoisentitled a
vested benefit under the ERIP shall not be entiibedny Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit hereunderesd and until such
benefit under the ERIP becomes vested.

3.2. Time of Payment Payment of the Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit diéised in Section 3.1 above will begin as of
the first of the calendar month (the “Annuity StagtDate”) coincident with or next following the vider’'s Separation
from Service; provided, however, that:

€) Members whose job grades were class#®e@EO, L1, L2, L3 and T7 whose planned income 68
was more than $230,000 were permitted to make aiomeirrevocable election in 2008 to elect to
receive their Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit in therm of an annuity in lieu of a lump sum. If a &y
election was made in 2008, payment of such Memtéoisqualified Plan Il Benefit shall commence
as of the Annuity Starting Date coincident withraxt following the Member’'s Retirement. If such
Member Separates from Service prior to becomingjl#é for Retirement, his or her Nonqualified
Plan Il Benefit shall be paid in a single lump samof the Annuity Starting Date coincident with or
next following the Member’s Separation from Seryice

(b) One Member classified as L3 on TransdldRetirement Leave who incurred a Separation fB&rvice
prior to 2008 was permitted to make a one-timevooable election in 2008 to receive his Nonqualifie
Plan 11l Benefit in the form of an annuity in lied a lump sum. Such Member did in fact timely &lec
and accordingly, his Nonqualified Plan Il Benefihall commence upon his scheduled date of
termination given in Schedule | attached heretadlvishall be treated as a Retirement for purpokes o
Section 3.3(b));

(c) Former Members classified as L1 and LDdwicurred a Separation from Service prior to 20@9%e
permitted to make a one-time irrevocable electipR008 to elect to receive their Nonqualified Pllan
Benefit in the form of an annuity in lieu of a lurapm. If a timely election was made in 2008, payme
of their Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit shall commen upon the first day of the calendar month
coincident with or next following the Former Memlseasittainment of age sixty-five (65);

(d) All other Former Members who incurred ep&ration from Service prior to 2009 and who hawt n
commenced payment of their Nonqualified Plan IlInB# prior to January 1, 2009 shall receive
payment of their Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit ianiary, 2009 in a single lump sum. (For this paepo
the Member’s Annuity Starting Date shall be Janudar009.)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event tha lember is a Specified Employee, payment on adaafuBeparation
from Service shall begin as of the first day of $egenth month following the Member’s Separatiow the first payment
shall include all payments delayed since the Ayng8tarting Date (accordingly, if payment is in foem of an annuity,
such annuity shall be calculated based on the Ayniarting Date without regard to the delay).

3.3.  Form of Payment
(& Lump Sum. Except as otherwise provided in this Section $i& Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit payable

to each Member or Former Member under this Plafi Bagpaid in a single lump sum, determined by
converting the monthly Nonqualified Plan Il Bertedimount in Section 3.1 into a present value lump
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sum using the applicable interest rate on 30-ye&. Ureasury securities and RP2000 3M mortality.
For purposes of this conversion, the “applicabterist rate” shall mean the average of the dailgsra
on 30-year U.S. Treasury securities in effect dutime calendar quarter first preceding the calendar
quarter that ends immediately prior to the Ann@tgrting Date.

(b)  Optional Annuity Forms for Eligible Retirees. Members whose job grades were classified as CEQO,
L2, L3 and T7 whose planned income for 2008 wasentizetn $230,000, and one Member classified as
job grade L3 on TSR (collectively, “Annuity EligieIMembers”), were permitted to make a one-time
irrevocable election in 2008 to elect to receiveirtiNonqualified Plan Il Benefit in the form of an
annuity in lieu of a lump sum. If a timely eleatiovas made in 2008, the rules under this
Section 3.3(b) shall apply. If an Eligible Memliies or Separates from Service prior to becoming
eligible for Retirement, his or her NonqualifiedaRllll Benefit shall be paid in a single lump sum
pursuant to Section 3.3(a).

0] Presumed Form: Single Life Annuity. If an Annuity Eligible Member Retires and is not
legally married on his or her Annuity Starting Dateen the normal form of payment of his or
her Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit shall be the Li#fennuity form, and his or her Nonqualified
Plan 11l Benefit shall, unless he or she electav&ive the Life Annuity form of payment and
selects a Joint and Nonspouse Beneficiary SurAvmuity form, be paid in the form of a Life
Annuity. Except as otherwise specifically providadhe Plan, Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit
payments will be made monthly to a Member or ForMember commencing on his or her
Annuity Starting Date and ending on the first dathe month in which his or her death occurs.

(i) Presumed Form: Joint and Survivor Life Annuity. If an Annuity Eligible Member Retires
and is legally married on his or her Annuity StagtDate, then his or her Nonqualified Plan I
Benefit shall be paid in the form of a 50% Joind &pouse Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form,
unless he or she elects to waive the 50% JoinSgodise Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form
and selects either the Life Annuity form, an altgive Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Survivor
Annuity form available under the ERIR.g(,75% or 100%) or a Joint and Nonspouse
Beneficiary Survivor Annuity form available und@etERIP (50%, 75% or 100%).

(c)  Optional Annuity Forms for Certain Vested Former Members. Certain Former Members classified
as L1 or L2 who incurred a Separation from Seryiger to 2009 were permitted to make a one-time
irrevocable election in 2008 to elect to receiveitiNonqualified Plan Il Benefit in the Life Anniyi
form or the Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Survivangity form (50% or 75%). If a timely election
was made in 2008, then the Former Member’s Nonfig@lPlan Il Benefit shall commence upon the
first day of the calendar month coincident witmext following attainment of age sixty-five (65)time
annuity form elected (in lieu of a single lump sum)

(d)  Total Pension Value Guarantee To the extent that a Member’s or Former Membiegsrement Income
is calculated pursuant to Article 4 of the ERIPr{fadio 1), he or she shall be entitled to a Tdeansion
Value Guarantee (as determined under Section 4ledERIP, as the same may be amended from time
to time) if he or she Retires and elects paymenthe form of a Life Annuity, Joint and Spouse
Beneficiary Annuity or Joint and Non-Spouse Beriafic Annuity under Section 3.3(b) or (c) of this
Plan, so long as the Total Pension Value Guaraniterespect to the Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit
gualifies as a cash refund feature under which gaynis provided upon the death of the last annuitan
in an amount that is not greater than the excetiseof otal Pension Value of the Nonqualified Pl&n |
Benefit at the Annuity Starting Date over the tathpayments before the death of the last annuitant
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(e) Subsidized 50% Joint and Survivor Annuity. If a Member or Former Member is entitled to élac
subsidized 50% Joint and Survivor Annuity undert®ec3.10 of the ERIP (as the same may be
amended from time to time), he or she shall alsertitled to a subsidized annuity under this Pldrei
or she elects the 50% Joint and Spouse Benefigianyity pursuant to Section 3.3(b) or (c), provided
that the annual lifetime annuity benefit availatdesuch Member is not greater than the annualriet
annuity benefit available under the Life Annuityrfg and provided that the annual survivor annuity
benefit is not greater than the annual lifetimeuwatyrbenefit available to such Member under the 50%
Joint and Survivor Annuity form.

)] Definitions. For purposes of this Article 3, the terms LifierAiity, Joint and Spouse Beneficiary Survivor
Annuity, Joint and Nonspouse Beneficiary Survivamdity and Total Pension Value Guarantee shall
have the same meanings as under the ERIP, asrtteersay be amended from time to time.

3.4. Pre-Commencement Death Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan te ttontrary, if a Member or Former
Member dies after becoming vested under the ERtp1ir to his or her Annuity Starting Date, thdidaving rules shall
apply:

(a) To the extent that a Member’s or Formeniber’s Retirement Income is calculated pursuaAtticle 3
of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if the Member or F@r Member is married, his or her surviving spouse
shall be entitled a “Preretirement Survivor Anntiiigtermined in the same manner as provided under
Section 3.8 of the ERIP, as amended from time nwe tiwith respect to the Member’s or Former
Member's Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit. Such Pt&ement Survivor Annuity shall be converted into
a present value lump sum, using the interest andafitg factors in Section 3.3(a), and paid ashaf t
first day of the calendar month following the Meniber Former Member’s death;

(b) To the extent that a Member’s or Formemhlber’'s Retirement Income is calculated pursuaAtticle 3
of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if the Member or Rwer Member is not married, no benefit shall be
payable under this Plan, and

(c) To the extent that a Member’s or Formemnhber’s Retirement Income is calculated pursuaAtticle 4
of the ERIP (Portfolio 1), and if such Member oorfmer Member dies prior to his or her Annuity
Starting Date, his or her Beneficiary shall receifre Member's or Former Member’'s Nonqualified
Plan 11l Benefit attributable to Portfolio Il an mediate single lump sum, determined by convertireg t
monthly Nonqualified Plan 11l Benefit amount in $iea 3.1 into a present value lump sum using the
interest and mortality factors in Section 3.3(&)pr this purpose, the first day of the calendar tmon
coincident with or next following the Member’s deahall be treated as the Annuity Starting Date.

3.5. Benéeficiary.

(@  Joint Annuitant. An Annuity Eligible Member or Former Member dhbk entitled to designate a
Beneficiary to receive the survivor income portafrthe Joint and Non-Spouse Beneficiary Annuity, if
selected, on forms furnished by and filed with 3M.

(b)  Total Pension Value To the extent that a Member's or Former Membé&&tirement Income is
calculated pursuant to Article 4 of the ERIP (Ralitf II), a Member or Former Member shall be eatitl
to designate a Beneficiary to receive payment ef rdgmainder of the Total Pension Value of the
Nonqualified Plan Il Benefit attributable to Patib Il, if any, on forms furnished by and filed thi
3M. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respecaty pre-commencement death benefit payable under
Section 3.4(c) above, the Member’'s or Former Merstsneficiary designation under the ERIP shall
apply. In all events, in the absence of a designair if such designation fails, the rules forauatic
beneficiaries under the ERIP shall apply.

3.6. Incapacity. If a Member, Former Member or Beneficiary is end legal disability or, by reason of illness or
mental or physical disability, is in the opiniontbe Plan Administrator unable to attend propesihis or her personal
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financial matters, this Nonqualified Plan Ill magypthe benefits payable hereunder in such of thewiong ways as the
Plan Administrator shall direct:

€)) Directly to such Member, Former MembeBeneficiary;
(b) To the legal representative of such MembBermer Member or Beneficiary; or

(c) To some relative by blood or marriage frignd, for the benefit of such Member, Former Memor
Beneficiary.

Any payment made pursuant to this Section shalliroeomplete discharge of the obligation therefodemthis
Nonqualified Plan Ill.

ARTICLE 4
UNFUNDED PLAN

4.1. No Trust. The benefits payable under this NonqualifiechPlashall be paid solely from the general asséts
3M. 3M does not intend to create any trust in @mtion with this Nonqualified Plan 1ll. Neither 3Rbr any other
employer shall have any obligation to make contiéns or set aside funds in order to pay such lisne3M’s obligation

under this Nonqualified Plan 11l shall be merelgtiof an unfunded and unsecured promise to pay ynortbe future.

4.2.  No Contributions by Members. Members and Former Members shall not be requregermitted to make
contributions under this Nonqualified Plan Ill.

4.3. Unsecured Creditor Status No Member, Former Member or Beneficiary shallhany right to receive any
payments from this Nonqualified Plan Il exceptpasvided in Article 3 above. Until such payments geceived, the
rights of each Member, Former Member and Benefiaiader this Nonqualified Plan Il shall be no gezahan the rights
of an unsecured general creditor of 3M.

ARTICLE 5
PLAN ADMINISTRATION

5.1. Powers and Duties of the Plan Administrator Subject to the powers of the Compensation Cotamgpecified
herein, the Plan Administrator shall administes tNonqualified Plan Il in accordance with its taremd shall have all
powers necessary to carry out the provisions di &lan. The Plan Administrator shall have the poavel discretion to
interpret the provisions of this Nonqualified Plén and to determine all questions arising in th@ministration,

interpretation and application of such Plan. Anghsdetermination by the Plan Administrator shalldonclusive and
binding on all persons. The Plan Administrator radgpt such policies and procedures, correct afecte supply any
information, or reconcile any inconsistency in saeénner and to such extent as he or she deemssaegces desirable
to carry out the purposes of this Nonqualified Rlgrprovided, however, that any policies, procesk) determinations
or interpretations shall be done in a nondiscritinamanner based upon uniform policies consisgeapiplied to all

persons in similar circumstances.
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5.2. Claims Procedure Any Participant or Beneficiary who disagreeshwény decision regarding his or her benefits
under this Plan shall submit a written requestéarew to the Plan Administrator. The Plan Admirasor shall respond
in writing to such a request within sixty (60) dayshis or her receipt of the request. The Plamikdstrator may,
however, extend the reply period for an additicaietly (60) days for reasonable cause. The PlaniAidtrator’s response
shall be written in a manner calculated to be ustded by the Participant or Beneficiary, and sketlforth:

(a) the specific reason or reasons for amyadef benefits;
(b) specific references to the provision mvisions of this Plan on which the denial is based

(c) a description of any additional infornoettior material necessary for the Participant orefierary to
improve his or her claim, and an explanation ofoliluch information or material is necessary; and

(d) an explanation of the Plan’s claims rew@ocedure and other appropriate information ahécsteps to
be taken if the Participant or Beneficiary wishegappeal the Plan Administrator’s decision.

If the Participant or Beneficiary disagrees with tlecision of the Plan Administrator, he or shdl $iflma written appeal
with the Compensation Committee within one-hundrednty (120) days after receiving the Plan Admiaiir's
response. The Compensation Committee shall resjpondting to such an appeal within ninety (90ydaf its receipt
of the appeal. The Compensation Committee maygehiewy extend the reply period for an additionaktyr(90) days for
reasonable cause. The Compensation Committegienss shall be written in a manner calculated tarikerstood by
the Participant or Beneficiary, and shall bothfeeh the specific reasons for its decision anérré& the specific provision
or provisions of the Plan on which its decisiobased.

5.3. Records The regularly kept records of 3M shall be cosnla and binding upon all persons with respect to a
Member's or Former Member's Hours of Service, CieliService, Covered Compensation, Union Pensianiiigs
(“Salaried Pension Earnings” prior to 2016) andadher matters contained therein relating to Memlard Former
Members.

5.4. Advisers. The Plan Administrator may appoint such legainsel, accountants, actuaries and other persdms as
or she deems desirable to advise and assist sutinistrator with the administration of this Nongjified Plan 1ll. The
Plan Administrator shall be entitled to rely corsiely upon, and shall be fully protected with resipto any action taken
by him or her in good faith in reliance upon, adyiae or information furnished by such advisers.

5.5. Payment of Expenses The Plan Administrator shall not be paid for flegformance of his or her duties under
this Nonqualified Plan Ill, but all expenses inadby 3M or the Plan Administrator in connectiothahe administration
of such Plan shall be paid by 3M.

5.6.  Indemnity of the Plan Administrator. 3M shall indemnify the Plan Administrator fromdaagainst any and all
claims, losses, damages and liabilities arisingifey act or failure to act in connection with #tministration of this
Nonqualified Plan Ill, and shall defend and/or reimse the Plan Administrator for all expenses (idiig reasonable
attorney’s fees) incurred in connection with anggliag or threatened claim or any action or proasgdrising therefrom,
unless and to the extent that any claim, loss, dambility or expense is judicially determinexhave resulted from
the Plan Administrator’s bad faith or gross negiice

5.7. Service of ProcessIn any legal proceeding involving this Nonquelif Plan Ill, the Secretary of 3M is designated
as the exclusive agent for receipt of service otpss directed to such Plan.
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ARTICLE 6

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.1. Right to Amend. 3M'’s Board of Directors, the Compensation Coneitor (only for amendments whose
projected costs do not exceed $25,000,000 in deyndar year) any duly authorized officer of 3M nzayend or modify,
in whole or in part, this Nonqualified Plan Il ahy time without submitting the amendment or madifions to the
shareholders of 3M (except that, to the extentssany to comply with applicable corporate or se@sgiaw, or applicable
rules of the New York Stock Exchange, 3M’s Boardakctors or the Compensation Committee shall hbhgexclusive
authority to make amendments with respect to benefider this Plan). However, no amendment or fizadion shall
adversely affect the rights of any Member, Formemiber or Beneficiary acquired under the provisiohsuch Plan in
effect prior to such action.

6.2. Termination. While it expects to continue this Nonqualifieldt®Ill indefinitely, 3M (acting through its Board
of Directors or the Compensation Committee) resethe right to terminate such Plan at any time fanény reason.
Termination of this Nonqualified Plan Ill shall naffect 3M’s obligation to pay the benefits alreaghrned under the
provisions of such Plan in effect prior to the tavation.

ARTICLE 7

CHANGE IN CONTROL

7.1 Distribution Following Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control of, 3Ms
Nonqualified Plan Il shall terminate and 3M shimlimediately distribute the remaining accrued retieat benefits
hereunder to the respective Members, Former MendetBeneficiaries in lump sum cash payments inuartsoequal
to the present values of such accrued retirememflte as of the date of the Change in Control.e Tompensation
Committee shall have the discretion to decide wdreslome or all of the lump sum amounts will be piréctly to the
respective Members, Former Members and Benefisiaoiewill be applied toward fully paid annuity doacts issued by
an A+ rated insurance company, which provide ferghyment of all the amounts that would otherwiseehbeen paid
after the Change in Control pursuant to this Nofijed Plan Il1.

7.2.  Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Article 7, a Change in @araf 3M shall be deemed to
have occurred if there is a “change in the ownershi3M,” “change in effective control of 3M,” aral/a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of 3M’s assets"defined under Treasury reg. section 1.409A8()¢ such other
regulation or guidance issued under section 409%h®Code.

7.3.  Determination of Present Value Except where otherwise expressly provided ia Nionqualified Plan I, the
present value of each Member’s, each Former Memlzard each Beneficiary’s remaining accrued retirérbenefits
hereunder shall be determined in accordance with swtuarial assumptions as the Compensation Cdeanin its
discretion, may adopt for such purpose.

7.4. Fees and Expenses3M shall pay to each Member, Former Member agwdficiary the amount of all reasonable
legal and accounting fees and expenses incurradidly Member, Former Member or Beneficiary in segkiobtain or
enforce his or her rights under this Article 7,a8d a lawsuit commenced by the Member, Former Meoitigeneficiary
for such purposes is dismissed by the court aggbaparious or frivolous. 3M shall also pay to eddmber, Former
Member and Beneficiary the amount of all reasonadkeand financial planning fees and expenses iaduby such
Member, Former Member or Beneficiary in connectioth the receipt by such Member, Former Member endiciary
of payments pursuant to this Article 7. Such payh@ reimbursement shall be made no later thanetit of the
recipient’s taxable year following the taxable y@awhich the recipient incurs the related expensés Member is a
Specified Employee and such payment or reimburseimenade on account of the Member’'s Separatiom f&ervice,
payment or reimbursement shall not be made prithedirst day of the seventh month following thefber’s Separation
from Service.
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ARTICLE 8

MISCELLANEOUS

8.1. No Contract of Employment This Nonqualified Plan Ill shall not be deemedconstitute a contract of
employment between 3M and any Member or Former Memblothing in this Plan shall be deemed to giwe ldember
or Former Member the right to be retained in therise of 3M or an affiliate or to interfere withahight of 3M or an
affiliate to discipline or discharge any Memberr@mrmer Member at any time.

8.2.  No Assignment No Member, Former Member or Beneficiary shalWéhany right to commute, sell, assign,
transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otherefsgimber, transfer, hypothecate or convey thefbgnéany, payable
under this Nonqualified Plan 1ll. All payments atie rights to all payments of benefits under Niasmqualified Plan Il
are expressly declared to be nonassignable andamsfeérable. Neither this Nonqualified Plan Ik may portion of the
benefits payable hereunder shall be liable foisudaject to, the debts, contracts, liabilities, eyggaents or torts of any
Member, Former Member or Beneficiary. No portidritee benefits payable under this Nonqualified Rlashall be
subject to attachment, garnishment or other legalgss by any creditor of any Member, Former Menghbd&eneficiary,
except to the extent that 3M determines that ithahor the creation, assignment or recognitioarof right to any benefit
payable under the Plan with respect to a MembEpaner Member pursuant to a domestic relationsrafdleat domestic
relations order satisfies the requirements of alifiph domestic relations order within the meanirgf
section 414(p)(1)(A) of the Code.

8.3.  Governing Law. The provisions of this Nonqualified Plan Il #hae interpreted and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Minnesota, exceghmextent preempted by federal law.

8.4.  Separable Provisions In the event any provision of this Nonqualifitan 11l is ruled or declared illegal or
unenforceable for any reason, such illegality agnfarceability shall not affect the remaining pgiwns hereof and this
Nonqualified Plan Il shall be interpreted and eném as if such illegal or unenforceable provisiad never been
included herein.
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SCHEDULE |
Member: Phil Yates

Commencement Date: October 1, 2011 (scheduledriation date)
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APPENDIX A

CLASSES OF ELIGIBLE
EMPLOYEES AND ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

1) Class of Employees Participants in the 3M Deferred CompensatiomPla

Additional Benefits Based On: Planned total congadion (for Plan Years beginning on or after Japnda2008)
or wages and salaries (for Plan Years ending drefore December 31, 2007) that are excluded frolari®d Pension
Earnings under the ERIP solely because they arerréef under the 3M Deferred Compensation Plan @ednot
otherwise excludable by reason of application atisa 401(a)(17) of the Code) shall be treated alaried Pension
Earnings.

2) Class of Employees Participants in the VIP Plus Plan (frozen to raeferrals as of December 31, 2008).

Additional Benefits Based On: Planned total congagion (for the Plan Year beginning on January0D82 or
wages and salaries (for Plan Years ending on arréddecember 31, 2007) that are excluded from tgdldension
Earnings solely because they are deferred undeBh¥/IP Plus Plan (and are not otherwise excluddlyleeason of
application of section 401(a)(17) of the Code) kbhaltreated as Salaried Pension Earnings.

3) Class of Employees Participants in the 3M 1987 Management Stock @winip Program, the 3M 1992
Management Stock Ownership Program and the 3M M¥@Yagement Stock Ownership Program who receivetgin
Restricted Stock

Additional Benefits Based On: The amount by whighfair market value (at the time of grant) ofts&estricted
Stock (determined as if there were no conditionsestrictions on the ownership or receipt of sutdck) exceeds the
purchase price payable for such Stock being tresegialaried Pension Earnings in the year of grant

4) Class of Employees Pilots in the Aviation Department who retire@mmafter January 1, 2006 who are at least 60
years of age

Additional Benefits Based On: See Appendix B

201



APPENDIX B

SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN BENEFITS
FOR 3M PILOTS WHO RETIRE FROM 3M’'S RETIREMENT
PORTFOLIO | AT OR AFTER AGE 60
Eligibility:
Pilots who are enrolled in 3M's Retirement Portidli are automatically eligible for the supplementsnefits
(A) described in this Appendix only if they arey#ars of age and have at least five years of Geédervice on January 1,
2006 and retire from 3M at or after age 60.
Pilots who are enrolled in 3M’s Retirement Portidli are automatically eligible for the supplementsnefits
(B) described in this Appendix only if they are yiars of age and less than 55 years of age andahiaest five years of
Credited Service on January 1, 2006 and retire 3bhat or after age 60.
Supplemental Benefits (A):

Credited Service

Credited Service is used to determine the amoutiieopilot’s pension and eligibility for the 3M
Bridge benefit to age 62.

Credited Service will include:
Pilot’s length of Credited Service earned up tedstretirement, plus

An additional amount of Credited Service (five yearaximum) for the period of time, in years
and months, between the pilot’s actual age atreent and age 65.

Example A pilot retiring at age 60 with 30 years of Cited Service at retirement will have an
additional five years of Credited Service (coverihg period between ages 60 and 65) added to
the original 30. A pilot retiring at age 60-1/2ould receive an additional 4-1/2 years of Credited
Service.

Salaried Average Earnings

Instead of the pilot’s pension being based on therame of his or her highest four consecutive
years of pension earnings, the pilot's SalariedrAge Earnings will be based on the following

table:
Salaried Average Earnings*
Will Be Based on This Number
If Pilot Retires: of Consecutive Calendar Years:
At or after 60 but before 61 1
At or after 61 but before 62 2
At or after 62 but before 63 3
At or after 63 4

*Example: If a pilot retires at age 60 or oldett before age 61, his or her Salaried Average
Earnings would be the greater of:

His or her highest paid calendar year of Salariedsion Earnings, or his or her last 12 months of
earned base and profit sharing (or, planned totalpensation for Plan Years beginning on or after
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January 1, 2008) up to the pilot’s retirement dategre any profit sharing earned but not yet paid
(or, planned variable pay under the Annual IncentNlan for Plan Years beginning on or after
January 1, 2008) by the retirement date is incluzbesid on the rolling 4-quarter profit sharing rate
in effect at the time.

Supplemental Benefits (B):
Credited Service

In addition to the pilot’s actual Credited Servigeto the retirement date, the pilot’s pension will
be based on up to two years of additional Creditedvice. The additional amount will be equal
to the years and months between the pilot's actgalat retirement and age 62. This additional
amount will also be used in determining the pil@figibility for the 3M Bridge benefit.

Example:

A pilot retiring at age 60 with 30 years of CreditService at retirement will have an additional
two years of Credited Service (covering the pelietiveen ages 60 and 62) added to the original
30. A pilot retiring at age 60 1/2 would receiveaadditional 1 1/2 years of Credited Service.

Salaried Average Earnings
Instead of the pilot’s pension being based on tlerame of his or her highest four consecutive
years of Salaried Pension Earnings, the pilot'su$ad Average Earnings will be based on the

following table:

Pilot's Salaried Average Earnings*
Will Be Based on This Number

If Pilot Retires: of Consecutive Calendar Years:
At or after 60 2

At age 60 & 1 month to age 61 3

At age 61 & 1 month or older 4

*Examples:

If a pilot retires at age 60, his or her Salariegtrage Earnings would be the greater of:

The pilot’s highest paid 2 consecutive calendaryeéSalaried Pension Earnings (or planned total
compensation for Plan years beginning on or atieudry 1, 2008), or the pilot’s last 24 months
of Salaried Pension Earnings up to his or heraatant date.

If the pilot retires at age 61 and 1 month, hi@r Salaried Average Earnings would be the greater
of:

The pilot’s highest four consecutive paid calengkzars of Salaried Pension Earnings (or planned

total compensation for Plan Years beginning onftaralanuary 1, 2008), or the pilot’s last 48
months of Salaried Pension Earnings up to his prét@ement date.
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EXHIBIT 12

3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Millions)

Year Year Year Year Year

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
EARNINGS
Income before income taxes $ 7,053 $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562 $ 6,351
Add:
Interest expense (including amortization of
capitalized interest) 219 171 164 166 191
Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest component 100 101 104 103 92
Less:
Equity in undistributed income of 20-50%
owned companies 9 5 (1) (1) 3
TOTAL EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR
FIXED CHARGES $ 7,363 $ 7,090 $ 7,295 $ 6,832 $ 6,631
FIXED CHARGES
Interest on debt (including capitalized inter: 208 162 159 166 194
Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest component 100 101 104 103 92
TOTAL FIXED CHARGES $ 308 $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED
CHARGES 23.9 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2
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EXHIBIT 21

3M COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (PARENT AN D SUBSIDIARIES)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016

Name of Company Organized Under Law of

Registrant — 3M Company Delaware
Consolidated subsidiaries of the Registrant:
3M Cogent, Inc. Delaware
3M Electronic Monitoring, Inc. Delaware
3M Financial Management Company Delaware
3M Global Channel Services, Inc. Delaware
3M Innovative Properties Company Delaware
3M Purification Inc. Delaware
Aearo Holding LLC Delaware
Aearo Technologies LLC Delaware
Capital Safety North America Holdings Inc. Delaware
Ceradyne, Inc. Delaware
3M Unitek Corporation California
Meguiar’s, Inc. California
3M Health Information Systems, Inc. Maryland
3M Touch Systems, Inc. Massachusetts
GTA-NHT, Inc. Massachusetts
D B Industries, LLC Minnesota
Two Harbors Insurance Company South Carolina
3M Argentina Stock Company, Commercial, Industfa@hancial Real

Property and Farming Corporation Argentina

3M Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia
3M Osterreich Gesellschaft m.b.H. Austria
3M Precision Grinding GmbH Austria
3M Belgium BVBA/SPRL Belgium
3M do Brasil Ltda. Brazil
3M Manaus Industria de Produtos Quimicos Ltda. Brazil
3M Canada Company — Compagnie 3M Canada Canada
Capital Safety Group Canada ULC Canada
3M Chile S.A. Chile
3M China Limited China
3M International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
3M International Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China
3M Investments (China) Co., Ltd. China
3M Material Technology (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. China
3M Material Technology (Hefei) Co., Ltd. China
3M Material Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China
3M Optical Systems Manufacturing Co., (Shangha) Lt China
3M Speciality Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
3M Colombia, S.A. Colombia
Articulos de Seguridad S.A.S. Columbia
3M a/s Denmark
Suomen 3M Oy Finland
3M Purification France
3M France S.A.S. France
Capital Safety Group EMEA France
EMFI SAS France
3M Bricolage & Batiment France
3M Deutschland GmbH Germany
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Name of Company

Organized Under Law of

3M Real Estate GmbH & Co. KG Germany
3M Technical Ceramics, Zweigniederlassung der 3MtBehland

GmbH Germany
Dyneon GmbH Germany
Wendt GmbH Germany
3M Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong
3M India Limited India
3M Electronic Monitoring Ltd Israel
3M ITALIA s.r.l. Italy
3M Japan Limited Japan
3M Japan Holdings G.K. Japan
3M Japan Products Limited Japan
3M Korea Health and Safety Limited Korea
3M Korea High Technology Limited Korea
3M Korea Ltd Korea
3M Asset Management S.a.r.l. Luxembourg
3M Attenti Holdings S.a.r.l. Luxembourg
3M Global Capital S.a.r.l. Luxembourg
Capital Safety Group S.a.r.l. Luxembourg
3M Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
3M Mexico, Sociedad Anonima de Capital Variable Mexico
3M Nederland B.V. Netherlands
3M New Zealand Limited New Zealand
3M Norge A/S Norway
3M Panama Pacifico S. de R.L. Panama
3M Peru, Sociedad Anomia Peru
3M Poland Spolka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia Poland
3M Wroclaw spolka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia Poland
3M Puerto Rico, Inc. Puerto Rico
3M Romania S.R.L. Romania
3M Russia Closed Joint Stock Company Russia
3M Innovation Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore
3M Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore
3M TECHNOLOGIES (S) PTE. LTD. Singapore
Cuno Filtration Asia Pte. Ltd. Singapore
3M South Africa (Proprietary) Limited South Africa
3M Espana, S.L. Spain
3M Svenska Aktiebolag Sweden
3M EMEA, GmbH Switzerland
3M (East) A.G. Switzerland
3M (Schweiz) GmbH Switzerland
3M Taiwan Ltd. Taiwan
3M Taiwan Optronics Corporation Taiwan
Alpha Beta Global Tapes & Adhesives Co., Ltd. Taiwan
3M Thailand Limited Thailand
3M Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. Turkey
3M Gulf Limited United Arab Emirates
3M Health Care Limited United Kingdom
3M UK Holdings Limited United Kingdom
3M United Kingdom Public Limited Company United Kingdom
Capital Safety Acquisitions Limited United Kingdom
Capital Safety ROW Limited United Kingdom
3M Manufacturera Venezuela, S.A. Venezuela

NOTE: Subsidiary companies excluded from the ablistiag, if considered in the aggregate, would cmstitute a
significant subsidiary.
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EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢ke Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Rexdish Nos. 333-
30689, 333-30691, 333-44760, 333-73192, 333-101323-109282, 333-128251, 333-130150, 333-15103%; 33
156626, 333-156627, 333-166908, 333-174562, 332481333-181270, and 333-211431) and Form S-3 §Ratjon
Nos. 333-196003, 33-48089, 333-42660, and 333-100@f13M Company of our report dated February 9, 2€elating
to the financial statements and the effectivenéssternal control over financial reporting, whielppears in this

Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 9, 2017

207



EXHIBIT 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned Directors and the Prindipalkcutive, Principal Financial and Principal Acnting
Officers of 3M COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (tf@ompany”), hereby constitute and appoint Inger@ulin,
Nicholas C. Gangestad, Gregg M. Larson, Eric D. ks lvan K. Fong, and Matthew J. Ginter, and edi¢hem, his
or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agentth full and several power of substitution aegubstitution, for him
or her and in his or her name, place and steadyiraad all capacities, to sign one or more Annugpdrts for the
Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2016,00mAO0-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1234,
amended, any amendments thereto, and all additanahdments thereto, each in such form as thegyoorse of them
may approve, and to file the same with all exhitfiereto and other documents in connection thehewiith the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting waitbattorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of tfielhpower and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimgj requisite and necessary to be done so tlcat Annual Report
or Annual Reports shall comply with the Securiie&hange Act of 1934, as amended, and the appdi¢ables and
Regulations adopted or issued pursuant therefiojlgsand to all intents and purposes as he omsigit or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all thaidsatorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of thertheir substitute or
resubstitute, may lawfully do or cause to be doneitiue hereof.

The undersigned have signed this Power of Attothisy7th day of February 2017.

/sl Inge G. Thulin /sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Inge G. Thulin, Chairman of the Board, Presicamt Nicholas C. Gangestad, Senior Vice President

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Office Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige

and Director)

/s/ Sondra L. Barbour /sl Eric D. Hammes

Sondra L. Barbour, Director Eric D. Hammes, Vicedident, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting
Officer)

/s/ Thomas K. Brown
Thomas K. Brown, Director

/sl Vance D. Coffman /sl Edward M. Liddy
Vance D. Coffman, Director Edward M. Liddy, Direct
/s/ David B. Dillon /sl Gregory R. Page
David B. Dillon, Director Gregory R. Page, Directo
/s/ Michael L. Eskew /s/ Robert J. Ulrich
Michael L. Eskew, Director Robert J. Ulrich, Ditec
/s/ Herbert L. Henkel /s/ Patricia A. Woertz
Herbert L. Henkel, Director Patricia A. Woertz r&dtor

/s/ Muhtar Kent
Muhtar Kent, Director
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-iMf Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,riraliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pec@vered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial dow results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAits 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actd&ul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutarihgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviimto us by others within those entities, particiyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaesd;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaocat of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’sloésire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectiveness®fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of the en
of the period covered by this report based on sweltuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tftbr is reasonably likely to materially affeitie
Registrant’s internal control over financial refiogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiarterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrauditors and the audit committee of the Regmttseboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfioms):

@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record
process, summarize and report financial informataon

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

February 9, 2017
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EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-iMf Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,riraliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pec@vered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial domn results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAits 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actd&ul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutarihgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviimto us by others within those entities, particiyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaesd;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaocst of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’sloésire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectiveness®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of the en
of the period covered by this report based on sweltuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tftbr is reasonably likely to materially affeitie
Registrant’s internal control over financial refiogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiarterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrauditors and the audit committee of the Regmttseboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfioms):

@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record
process, summarize and report financial informataon

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal cantover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

February 9, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2016 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pdrtnge G.
Thulin, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, tifgr pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adbptesuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieany knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly ets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin
Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

February 9, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.2
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2016 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pariNicholas
C. Gangestad, Chief Financial Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adepted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200at,tto my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly ets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

February 9, 2017
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EXHIBIT 95

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

For the year 2016, the Company has the followingensiafety information to report in accordance @igittion 1503(a) of the Act, in connection with Bissboro, North
Carolina mine, the Little Rock, Arkansas mine, @eona, California mine, and the Wausau, Wisconsgime (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total Dollar Value Notice of Potentieto Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section eclion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions  Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and  110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#) Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) $) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 — — — = — 3 466 — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 5 — — — — 3 7,128 — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 3 — — = — 3 6,281 — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 5 — — — — 3 1,294 — No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 2 — — — — 3 2,567 — No No —
Total 15 — — — — 3 17,736 — — — —
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